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HEARING OF
THE ASSEMBLY SELECT COMMITTEE ON ETHICS
CHAIRED BY:
THE HONORABLE JOHN VASCONCELLOS
MEMBER OF THE ASSEMBLY
STATE CAPITOL, ROOM 127
FEBRUARY 6, 1989
CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS:
I've been here -- this is
my twenty-third year and I've never seen a quorum of a committee
arrive within six minutes of its call time. Which I believe says
something about the seriousness which we are undertaking this
peculiar and precious assignment. A brief opening statement -the first day back, the Speaker of the Assembly, Willie Brown,
announced that he would create a Select Committee on Ethics, and
would ask me to chair it, and charge us with the responsibility
for doing a complete study and developing a well balanced program
on ethics for the Assembly for submission and, hopefully adoption
by the house during the course of this year. There is no more
important matter than we can address than the issue of ethics
because it lays the foundation for the credibility of all else
that we do.

•

And, so we have this particular charge -- the eight of
us -- to work together these months, and develop a program to
give to our colleagues for their consideration and adoption.
Hopefully, our program will deal both with the reality of ethical
concerns and behaviors as well as the impressions and perceptions
about ethical behavior in the Legislature which have become
somewhat tarnished (as they are about ethics in religion, Wall
Street, business, and the government in Washington). There's an
ethical crisis in the country and we may be the first group to
really form ourselves to address that -- to put our own house in
order, hopefully, and to let everyone know what it is we're
about, and by the ways in which we go about our own process in
this committee, to set a model for ethical behavior that is open
and public and inclusive and credible to anybody who cares to
observe us.
George Bush, our new President, has announced an Ethics
Commission, with four principals: Number one: ethics standards
for public service must be tough enough to inspire public
confidence, number two: the standards must be fair; number three:
they must treat all three branches of government equally; and
number four: they can't be so strict that they discourage folks
from entering public service. They seem to be good guidelines
for us to follow. We hope in the course of these deliberations
to come to some conclusion that all of us here can be proud of
and that all of you out there, whether you're in the media, or in
the building, or in the advocacy corps, or most importantly, in
the public of California can feel a little confidence in what you
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can know and expect of our behavior in the future.
Bob Frazee
shared with me a sad story of a constituent, who developed a
reform proposal, and at the end of which he said, "After a lot of
work you guys probably can't pass this because of all the special
interests. That person's lack of confidence in our capacity is
the kind of thing we want to challenge and overcome by the
character of the proposal we develop for the Assembly.
Today is our first meeting and we have in mind to
accomplish a particular couple of things.
In each of the packets
there is an agenda and an opening statement and a charter and
work plan.
Charlene Simmons is the consultant for the Assembly -Principal Consultant. She has earlier worked for the u.s. Senate
Committee on ethics work under Carl Levin in Washington, and most
recently, on our Joint Audit Committee under Bruce Bronzan's
chairmanship. She joined our staff immediately after I was
appointed chair -- within ten days after, earlier in January.
She is out of Davis, Ph.D., in the Philosophy of Political
Science, and a person who has a background and integrity that, I
believe, is in keeping with the charge that we have.
The Charter has, on page one, a statement of purpose, in
which we tried to draft what it is that the speaker has charged
us with doing. And pages two through the end are a proposed work
plan for the committee, first to this organization meeting and
then introducing some bills to have deadlines covered but with no
content at this point -- spot bills -- in case we come up with
substantive bills. Then to proceed to a public overview hearing,
a members' survey, hearings on concerns, hearings on solutions,
and an education program.
It's our expectation that the work of this committee
will culminate in three pieces, though the committee really needs
to make the choice. One is a set of rules and regulations -- a
code of some kind. Second is an adjudication process, whether
it's the courts or a committee, or whatever -- sanctions and
process. Third is an intensive education program for members,
and for staff and, for advocates, and even perchance for the
media, whose ethics are as important as ours in conveying to the
public what happens in this building.
One particular unusual procedure that we have proposed,
and we've talked about this individually with the Members, is to
include all Members of our house in this effort. So that it's
not just the eight of us who are getting enlightened and imposing
something on the rest. Each one of us eight Members will
interview nine of our colleagues, across party lines, chosen
alphabetically so that no one has any game playing going on, so
that every Member of the house has an input into this committee.
Not that each person would get his or her way, but that each
person gets to have a say in how we come together and finally
make our own conclusions.
So, that's kind of an introduction.

Anybody else have
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any comments to offer? Mr. Katz is here.
committee of eight, I'm proud to say.

We are a full

Stan Statham.
ASSEMBLYMAN STAN STATHAM: I just want to say, Mr.
Chairman, first of all, this is our first public meeting, but I
have already met with you a couple of times privately, and I just
want to say publicly, that I'm very proud that Willie Brown has
chosen you as the chairman of this committee. You have a
reputation for integrity, and I think every Member on this
committee has a reputation for independence and -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

-- and integrity --

ASSEMBLYMAN STATHAM:
yes. And it's my feeling that
--how can I put this -- I'm very proud that this committee is
off to a really strong, effective start. And I think, it is my
opinion, and I've been here for -- this is my thirteenth year
I think that people who demand good government, good clean,
ethical government, are going to be very proud of what this
committee produces. And I'm glad to be on the committee and I'm
glad to see the membership that has been appointed here. Thank
you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

•

Anyone else want to open?

Bob?

ASSEMBLYMAN ROBERT FRAZEE: I would also want to echo
what my colleague has just expressed, and our hopes for this
committee and what it can do.
I think it's important to state at
the outset that this is not a witch hunting committee or a judge
and jury to look at any specific instances or cases or attempting
to identify people who may have done something wrong in the past,
but rather to analyze the past and to see if we can't do better
to both improve the action and the image of the Legislature. And
it will be directed toward, if necessary, bills that modify the
way in which all of us operate -- by all of us I mean not just
legislators, but everyone associated with the process. And with
that kind of direction, I feel that we are going to accomplish
something worthwhile.
I just hope that in the process that nothing is sacred.
Because one of my concerns with the image this Legislature has
one that's caused by the structure of the rules of this house,
and one that vests an inordinate amount of power in one
individual and in one party, and we spend so much time directing
ourselves towards elections and things of that nature, and not
the time that we should spend doing the people's business. So I
think as we look at ethics, we need to go back and look at
perhaps the root cause, and not -- as we do so often in
government and try to treat the result of what has happened in
the past. And I think that goes across the board, and everything
that government does, whether it be in social problems and
criminal justice system, and everything else, we spend so much of
our time on the remedial side, when we should be looking at the
root causes of the problem to begin with, and I hope that's the
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direction the committee will take.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
I want to confirm that my
understanding of our charge is in the Charter, that we're not to
be a committee that hears bills, per se, those are standing
committees. We're a select committee that will hear the subject
matter of bills, instead, and give back to the appropriate policy
committees, a proposal that we hope they will adopt. We're not
to be an enforcement committee, but rather a committee that
really looks at the whole scene and puts together a program that
can lay the foundations for the future operation of ethical
behavior in this house and all the people who are affected by it.
Bill?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BILL LANCASTER: Thank you Mr. Chairman.
First of all, I would like to say that I am very positive about
this approach, and I'm very glad and very willing to participate
in this.
I think this effort is in the right direction -- is
something that's very needed.
I'd like to make a couple of
suggestions, Mr. Chairman, perhaps the committee should consider
-- and reading over your very fine Charter and work sheet -- I'd
like to emphasize a couple of points.
I think that one of the
things that's kind of interesting is --my experience on the
Joint Ethics Committee -- there's really kind of a little
understanding, or lack of understanding, if you will, of what
already exists in law and what the charge is as far as the
Constitution and things of this nature. For example, in the
Constitution the people of California charged the State
Legislature with the responsibility of come up with a conflict of
interest code -- things of this nature.
I think we ought to
review where we are from the statute point, and also from the
standpoint of what the people have recently adopted, for example
Propposition 73, which sets limitations on honoraria, things of
that nature.
Along that line -- for our own edification -- but I
think, frankly, the information of the house itself, I think they
should become aware of this. And I would like to see, some sort
of a program developed, Mr. Chairman, with an informational
system provided to the Members of the house, and to staff, so
that they can ask questions, rather than make mistakes.
I think
that's critical to the whole process. So I think that's one of
the things we need to do. Also, on the public hearing concept, I
know that you're advocating, and I certainly agree, I would like
to see maybe the public hearings split up into areas: membership
concerns; staff concerns.
I can't leave aside the legislative
advocates. You have to start dealing with that.
And one of
suggestions made by your staff and
yourself, of course,
requesting the Auditor General review and
suggest improvements in existing programs.
I think that has some
merit, too.
I serve on the Joint Audit Committee and -- Tom
Hayes was the Auditor General, now he's the Treasurer-- but the
fact of the matter
, I know they're capable of doing a good job
for us.
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Mr. Chairman, I'm very positive on this and I'm looking
forward to this. People are going to have the right, now, to
come to us and say what they think we ought to be doing.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

That's correct.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: That makes a lot of sense.
Most people haven't had that opportunity in recent history, and I
think it's a good idea.
I really do.

I

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Right. Okay. We'll go back -Bob Frazee. As far as I'm concerned, all that's sacred is
integrity, and we mean to get to the root causes of whatever the
problem is and find ways to make things as best we can. Make
them proper. Bill Lancaster, on your request about looking to
see what's in place, number eight in our work plan is to have an
audit of all that is going on, in addition to which, Ms. Simmons
has asked Legislative Counsel for a review of all of the laws
that we have, to be made available to the committee. Secondly,
as far as education, number seven, we propose a program for
Legislators, staff, and advocates, and then we should probably
have an ongoing capacity to answer questions. And that has not
existed before.
(Let's add that into the education program.)
The way the work plan is set up, after this first hearing, the
next hearing we'll want to have will be simply to hear people's
concerns. No solutions. What problems alarm people about
ethical behavior in the Capitol, in our house in particular.
Then we plan to have a hearing with some national figures about
what it looks like ethically, nationally, including, perhaps,
Fred Fielding -- if he can come out in March for that. And then
we'll begin to have hearings on proposed solutions that deal with
the different concerns. Whether it's staff, Members, advocates,
job in-and-out, conflict-of-interest voting, contributions,
first get all the concerns on the agenda, and then have
individual hearings that deal with particular issues and
problems. Ms. Killea?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA: I'm very pleased to be a
member of this committee. And I think one of the things that I
hope we will have is some real exchange of ideas -- not just
everybody agreeing with everybody.
I think we need to get
everything out that we can. And I hope as we do that, that we
can do that in a nonpartisan way, in which whatever we say will
not be interpreted as a partisan ploy. I think that most of us
will not be doing that and I think it shouldn't be considered
that way.
It may be interpreted that way sometimes by the press,
but we will have to bear up with that one.
The other thing is, I think, when we come up with
guidelines or ideas of enforcement, measures that we think are
suitable for the executive branch, I think we should make that
recommendation.
In other words, I think our purpose here is to
put our own house in order, but I think, in doing that if we come
up with things that we feel should have a broader enforcement or
a broader acceptance, then I think we should make that
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recommendation.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Right.
I talked very honestly
with the Speaker pro Tern of the Senate, David Roberti, and then
with Bob Presley, who is involved there with ethics, and told
them what we're about doing, and we'll keep them informed as we
go along, and at some point, I could imagine there would be some
kind of a joint effort designed between the two houses, and even
with the administration in the executive branch, and even with
the courts. At this point we want to start with our own
bailiwick and make it clear and clean then proceed from there as
we can. Richard Katz.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER RICHARD KATZ: John, to reiterate -- a
number of Members touched on the importance of what the
committee's going to do and, again, our pleasure with you as
chairman.
I think it's important -- the public sometimes looks
and says: well, I don't understand why you need to have an ethics
committee. After all they're legislators.
Isn't that something
that people ought to already have under control. And in an ideal
world, I think the answer to that would be yes. And I think what
we forget too often, and what gets lost too often, is that the
people who make up the Legislature represent every walk of life
in California, and come from every walk of life in California,
and while it might be ideal when you come through Sacramento
Metropolitan Airport, you don't sort of enter a portal that
cleanses out whatever temptation or experiences people have had
in other lives or in other parts of their lives.
As we've seen all over the country in recent years,
there has been a problem, be it Congress, the White House, the
business community, private sector, movie industry, lawyers,
there has been a problem around the country that we all have to
address. This is our way of dealing with it, and I'm looking
forward to the work of this committee, because I think it's going
to be important -- not just for the membership -- not just
limited to the Membership, but as we were saying: third house,
staff, the entire arena -- that we set out those parameters again
and remind people of not only what those parameters are, but, as
Bill was saying, how to get your questions answered ahead of time
and in a proactive way that restores the confidence that Lucy and
others were talking about.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Right.
Part of it too, and I'm
not sure how, when and whether to get to it, but in order to have
this government work, the people ought to have a certain
expectation of us, as you indicate, and a chance to have input to
what we do, and say, and what our own rules are. And they also
have a respons
lity themselves to take part in the government
and to see to it
things work. All of us have a stake in
this, a role
, from Joe Q. Citizen to each of us who sits here
in this house, and all those along the way.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: One of the reasons we see a lack
of participation is, I think, a lot of people feel they cannot
overcome -- they're not powerful enough by themselves to overcome
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the special interest domination that
perceived as running
either the Legislature or Congress. And that by setting up the
boundaries, maybe
can begin to understand that they can
make as great or
hopefully we if can
that out
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I

Be nice if -- for sure
-- we
Sure.

1 have done a
Ted, do you want to

I just wanted to say what
an honor
It's an important
committee and just one thing that I think we should keep in mind
that other members have mentioned, that it just can't be eight of
us making all of these decisions, and I think it's a great step
that we are going to open this up and bring in experts and listen
to people from the public, as well as others who have thought
about this a long time.
, I think.it will be a process
that does take a whi
as we get this input, so I think we should
also focus on some
steps that we can do in the shorter
term as well. Programs
as education programs that we can do
for Members and others, I think, are things that we get can
started fairly rapidly. So I'd like to focus on those as well.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: And especially in the
by each of us of
of our
leagues. We will each
persons of both
, so
will be no partisanship
implicit
the
s
1
utterly nonpartisan. Elihu
you want to
any opening comment?

do

Yes.
you Mr.
Chairman. One
was struck by as I've
thinking about this
that
s is on so
different levels.
s, there's
ethics, there's
so on and so forth.
would hope that
s it we begin to break
down on those
other words, what
to me as an
not I'm meeting my own
standards, as
that are going to
set
by others, and
fair. In trying to meet a
standard, it seems
we all
understand how we
at
consensus.
who
politics has got to be -- at some point or other -- tired of
being judged by standards that you don't know who set. Are they
the press' standards,
the public's standards, are they
the individual
' standards? If you're
,
fact, to measure
I
real question
who's
doing the
standards
which
're
being measured.
we do
really try to
define and deal
levels, and not try to be
too expans
at least hopefully in the
process of
press who's always second
guessing
ition to say someone has
erred, and
-- to give us some
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(idea of what they think the standards ought to be, other than
full disclosure.
CilliiRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. We have before us the
proposed statement of purpose, charter, and the work plan.
I
have consulted the committee in going over this as a proposal,
and in fact incorporating particular suggestions by most of the
members of the committee, so I think it's in a pretty good shape
at this point. Richard?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

I think I'll make a motion to

adopt it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: I want to make the one
refinement that Bill Lancaster suggested, that we have some kind
of an education program, and at least consider a ongoing capacity
to respond to inquiries.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: We're not necessarily, at
this point, an investigative committee -- we're a select
committee -- but by the same token, I think that anything we
recommend ought to establish a well thought out set of procedures
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

for sure --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
I'd like to see at least the
topic procedures added to the work sheet for discussion, in
general.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
I know when you start asking
questions, for example, what you can and cannot do, there has to
be a procedure to follow, and that's one thing that -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay, on number six, where it
says "Public Hearings and Proposed Solutions," what if we had
that include both standards and procedures.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Fine.

Thank you.

That should take care of that.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

-- part of the action --

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
we'll amend that to include
that. Any comments from the committee about the proposed charter
and work plan? Motion by Katz, second by Lancaster. Any one of
you wish to testify on the proposed work plan and charter? You
think it is in any way deficient?
Does anyone have some
suggestions as to how we go about this? We're open from the
beginning to have your input. Anyone from the press have any
suggestions? You usually do about -- anything else we do.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS:

(inaudible)
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Here's your chance. Anybody
here have anything they wish to offer for our consideration at
this moment in the committee's deliberation. Seeing no one
lifting a hand, or voicing a word, or coming forward.
Do you
want to call the roll?
On the charter and work plan? Hearing
no reservations, eight persons aye, and no noes. We have adopted
that, and we will proceed by that. And we will utilize that as
our format, and if we decide to change it to get better along the
way, we're open, of course, to doing that, but this is a sound
beginning.
Next item is number three -- committee bills. Ms.
Simmons has prepared a spot bill and a spot ACA, just to go in to
meet the deadlines, and the contents don't say more than just
something that's a formality to get us by the deadlines. What
I'd like to ask is that we all sign on to these and introduce
them and that is only for the purpose of having a committee bill
and a committee ACA, if we come to need it.
If we don't need, it
shall be dropped.
If we decide we want to use it, and we don't
all agree, the names will come off of it, but it is a precaution
to have something in place if we want to do that. That makes
sense to do? Not to preempt anybody else's efforts, but just to
give us some place in the operation -- Bill?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: There are measures, I
presume, that have been introduced and are some place along the
line to do certain things. I just wonder what happens to those?
Are we going to review those -- or what?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: The plan for those bills that
have been introduced in this area is that they will be, I
believe, held in the Rules Committee. Their matter -- subject
matter -- will be referred to us to hear the subject matter and
then referred back out of this committee, a report with
recommendations that will then be, at some place, proposed to be
amended into those bills or some bill. Bill.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
I guess what I'm asking for,
Mr. Chairman, is the guidelines for what those bills would be.
Are we talking about rules of the house or are we talking about
just general -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

That's up to us to decide.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
what we need.

Okay.

First we should come up with

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: What you are asking us to do
is to put in a bill, right now, in the offices of the Committee
on Ethics. And we'll call it the Committee on Ethics bill, and
that does not mean, of course, we all endorse
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

All it means is that it just
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holds space, because deadlines are passing.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

I have not objection to

that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: -- and it will not be moved
anywhere, except insofar as the committee decides later on that
we need to use it. If we don't need to use it, that's fine with
me too. Just a matter of precaution.
It's not got any substance
significance -- at all at this point. Stan?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER STATHAM: Mr. Chairman.
I was just
going to say, I think it's very, very important that this
committee as a whole put in what we call a spot bill around here,
because that would eliminate a couple of things, I think, to a
large degree. One is the needless and unjustified legislature
bashing and the other is the accusation that cleaning up the
house and setting standards for the house might be Democrat or
Republican. This is not a partisan effort.
I think it's
important that we have a committee bill -- committee effort -- so
that the entire house is getting tough and enforceable guidelines
for ethics, as opposed to an individual or small platoon
somewhere doing this.
I think a committee bill concept is
excellent.
If down the line we can't get consensus, that's
another thing. But the committee bill works in the best interest
in having the strongest reinforcement of ethics we could possibly
think of. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: That's why I'm doing it.
So we
have a bill and an ACA -- in case we want to go into either of
those areas. Any objection to our having the two? A motion by
Frazee, second by Killea that we will introduce a spot bill and
an ACA as committee measures, to be not moved at all, nothing to
be done with them until and unless the committee decides what to
do with them later on, so no one is bound to anything they might
not like, at least we have the place reserved. Any objection to
that? Hearing none. Eight aye votes, and they will be passed
around for each of us to sign.
With regard to our own rules, I gather we checked and we
simply abide by the house rules for committee in our own
operations, whatever they might be.
Number four, then, hearing schedules. We have scheduled
the first public hearing on the concerns on February 26. That's
a Sunday. Must be the 27th -- we're not here on Sunday. Change
the date to the 27th and at that time, we will be open to the
public, to Members, to various groups, whomever wants to
fy,
but limited to the matters of concern. Don't bring us your
solutions in. We want to get the concerns inventoried, then we
can address them systematically and make clearer sense of
we
proceed.
Then on March -- looks like 15th -- in the afternoon,
we'll have an overview of ethics issues with some national
figures.
Yes, that's a Wednesday afternoon. We've got Fielding
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coming from Washington; going to probably get somebody from
Common Cause; maybe somebody from the Hastings Institute on the
Hudson, which has done work on ethics in legislative life; and
Michael Josephson, who is in ethics education out of Los Angeles,
and has done work with the State Senate and the U.S. Congress.
If any Member of the committee has anybody you know who is
distinguished and thoughtful in the area, who you'd like to have
us solicit to come and testify, please let us know.
April 3rd will begin-- that's right after Easter break
-- the first of hearings on proposals for substance and standards
and procedures. We'll put together a program for adoption later
on. Does that seem appropriate? A beginning list of hearings.
February 27th is a Monday. March 15th is Wednesday.
April 3rd is a Monday -- the day after Easter break.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:

-- When is Easter Break?

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Easter break is from the 26th of
March to the -- no, it's from the 16th to the 27th?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:

Those are the dates before

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: -- this is the Monday after
Easter break. We're back a whole week and then come back for
this. Easter break starts on the 16th of March. Easter is the
27th of March.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:
27th.

March 16?

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: The f
The second hearing is March 15th
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:

t hearing is February
the afternoon.

Wait a minute --

Okay.

27th?

15th?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: -- and April 3rd. Okay? Any
problem with that proposed schedule? Without objection, we'll
adopt that as our schedule and delegate to Ms. Simmons to get it
all ready. Anything else anyone wants to discuss today? Bill?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
I -some legislation may be held up because they're waiting for us to
do something that's already in the hopper.
I would suggest that
the chairman and perhaps Mr. Frazee, or somebody like that, get
together and kind of review that and give us a report on where we
are as far as
lat
that is introduced, which we ought to
review.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Because there's no reason to
hold up a person's legislation way beyond the deadline just
because somebody's got to decide what is germane and what is not.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. We'll get an analysis of
all the bills and I will go over with -- Bob, with you? Okay.
And figure out which ones really are within our jurisdiction and
which ones are not. And so, those that are not are forwarded and
those that are, are held -- and hopefully, we all understand that
we will at some point join across party lines in waiving whatever
rules are needed to go forward.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Just issue a report to the
committee and if you need to, Mr. Chairman's request and have a
hearing.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
and do that. Lucy?

Fine.

Okay.

We'll get together

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
I would just like a little
comment from the chair that we aren't just going to come up with
some suggestions and then fold up our tents and walk away. That,
although this committee is set up to do a specific task in terms
of setting up the structure and making our recommendations, that
we have no intention of just letting it all come to naught. And
that is the type of question I've been getting-- rather cynical
questions --well, so what's going to come of it?
Does this
committee have any real teeth? -- and all of this kind of thing
-- as though we're going out and being the prosecutor -- the
investigator and the prosecutor and the judge. So I think I'd
just like from you something on that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Well, I don't like taking on
things I can't bring to completion. And, my commitment to the
Speaker and to each of you, and to myself is to pull this
together and do a thorough-going study with public hearings,
design a solid program, and then take it through to get it
enacted, adopted and become the rules for the house -- the
procedure for the house. And I hope the eight of us can agree on
the final product and then take it to our colleagues and bring
each of them along to enacting it by a unanimous vote of the
house. Something that's really solid and clear and fair and
thorough-going.
Any other comments, questions? I think we can adjourn
if I have a motion to adjourn. Committee? Motion by Mr.
Statham.
I'll second without objection. Thank you all for being
here and for starting this hearing promptly.

--oOo--
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Select Committee on Ethics Charter and Agenda
February 6, 1989
Statement of Purpose
The Assembly Select Committee on Ethics has been created
by the Speaker of the Assembly and charged by him with the
responsibility for undertaking a comprehensive study and
developing a well-balanced program on ethics for submission to
and, hopefully, adoption by the Assembly.
The committee intends to be proactive and to review and
propose improvements to the existing laws, rules, and regulations
governing the ethical conduct of all participants in the
legislative process including, but not limited to, members,
legislative staff, advocates, and executive branch personnel.
In
the course of its work, the committee will hold a series of
hearings, take testimony, and evaluate ethics programs in other
states and the national Congress. Bills introduced in the
subject matter area will be held in Rules pending the committee's
report.
The proposed ethics program will probably include a
system of rules, an education program, and an adjudication
process.
In time, its work may be coordinated with the State
Senate.

I

The committee's challenge is to restore public faith in
the integrity of state government and its elected officials by
fostering an environment in which impartial concern for the
public interest informs the decision-making process. Both the
reality and the public's perception of it are important--the
appearance of wrongdoing as well as the misbehavior itself. To
accomplish its goals, the Committee will seek to define the
boundaries of the ethics "problem" and then will focus on ways of
preventing abuses and the appearance of conflict of interest
through care
ly drawn laws and rules and through an enhanced
sense of personal responsibility and commitment to serve the
public.
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Select Committee on Ethics
February 6, 1989
Page Two
A secondary, but important, intention of the committee's
work process will be to model ethical behavior in the course of
its operation and to develop relationships of trust within the
Assembly, eroding antagonisms and fostering cooperation.
Implementation
1.

Organization Meeting

The committee will hold its organizational meeting on
February 6, 1989, at 2:30p.m. in room 127, State Capitol. At
that time the members will discuss, refine, and hopefully approve
a statement of purpose and an agenda for the committee.
2.

Committee Bills

The committee will discuss introducing a "spot"
Committee bill and ACA at its first meeting.
3.

Members' Survey

The committee's work will be the most successful if it is
developed with the input and cooperation and confidence of all
members of the Assembly.
Therefore, to facilitate this exchange of views, each
member of the committee is to be responsible for personally
interviewing nine of our colleagues during February, so as to
benefit from learning their concerns and suggestions for
enhancing the ethical standards by which the Assembly conducts
its, and the publics', business.
4.

Public Hearing on Concerns

All interested parties are invited to testify at this
hearing on February 27, 1989, the purpose of which is to develop
an agenda of ethical concerns which will structure the following
series of public hearings on proposed solutions.
5.

Public Overview hearing

A major hearing, with testimony from a cross section of
highly regarded and nationally-known witnesses, devoted to
general concerns regarding ethics in government, will be held on
March 15, 1989, at 2 p.m. in the State Capitol.
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6.

Public Hearings on Proposed Solutions

The specific subject matter of these hearings will
proceed from testimony given by members and the public in the
preceding hearings and will cover a wide range of issues
including both standards and procedures. Bills already
introduced by members may be discussed at the appropriate subject
matter hearing.
7.

Education Program

Education programs to enable legislators, staff, and
advocates to develop the knowledge, attitudes, and skills
conducive to ethical conduct by increasing "ethical
consciousness, commitment, and competency", will be offered
through the auspices of the committee. The committee will
develop a program with an on-going capacity to answer questions.

B.

Audit

After fifteen years of experience, it would be useful to
examine the implementation of existing financial disclosure,
lobbying regulation, conflict of interest, and disqualification
statutes. Therefore the committee will request the Auditor
General to review and suggest improvements in existing ethics
programs.
9.

Additional fact-finding

Committee staff will survey legislative staff for their
concerns and suggestions, examine comparative state and federal
laws, prepare a summary of existing California laws, rules, and
regulations regarding legislative ethics, and develop an
inventory of the various ethics agencies and programs.
10.

Respond to Members on a Continuous Basis

11.

Interim Projects

Issues to be explored during the interim include citizen
ethics, press ethics, and advocacy ethics.
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order.

CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS:
We have a quorum here.

Call the committee to

We'll start the second meeting of the Select Committee
on Ethics of the Assembly.
Today's topic is Governmental Ethics:
Issues and
Concerns. We decided in our work plan that we would move first
towards a hearing which would provide for everybody, Members,
public, press, citizens of all types, to come and advise us about
the range of issues and concerns that they believe we ought to
have as an agenda as we begin to develop an ethics program for
the Assembly. So, today's purpose is to have that agenda
detailed for us by interested parties.
We express our appreciation to those of you who have
come to testify today, and I think that we'll go ahead and start
the hearing.
John Larson, Fair Political Practices Commission.
MR. JOHN LARSON: Mr. Chairman, members of the
committee, I appreciate the opportunity to be here.
I'm John
Larson, Chairman of the Fair Political Practices Commission.
I'd like to not spend a lot of time discussing the
problems that are inherent and the need for this commission. The
fact that there are problems in the political and electoral
process in California is evidenced by the fact that this
committee was created and evidenced by the fact of your
willingness to serve on the committee to create an atmosphere
where there can be improvements to this particular process.
It is not a local problem.
It's not a statewide
problem.
It's a national problem. There's a growing lack of
faith in the political process. There's a growing lack of
confidence in public employees, both elected and appointed, in
the state.
I want to extend to you my cooperation and the
cooperation of the commission in developing appropriate laws, as
necessary, and appropriate guidelines that we can use.
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I seek your help in approving the program for political
reform that we have adopted this year; that is, the Fair
Political Practices Commission and which has, in part, been
introduced from time to time and will be in the next few weeks,
and we'll ask your assistance in quickly securing approval of
those various bills as they come before you.
If this is done, I
hope that it will tend to stop the cynicism that the public has.
I have served in public life for thirty-eight years now,
counting four years in the Marine Corps.
I have felt the
shifting feeling of people. There was a strong anti-employee,
anti-government feeling when Proposition 13 was adopted.
It got
a little better, and now
seems to be a feeling that we're not
doing a very good job, and you know and I know that most of us
are doing it.
I think if we get these developments -- yes, sir?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELIHU HARRIS:

Let me interrupt you, Mr.

Larson.
One of my primary concerns is: ethics, by whose
definition?
It's also a matter of right and wrong being fine
when it's simple and everybody can say, "That's right. That's
wrong." In other words, "Murder is right, murder is wrong."
Depending on what? Is it a war? Sometimes we say, "Murder is
justifiable." If it's done in cold blood, without provocation, we
say that it's homicide and punishable by capital offense.
Right now, I'm very confused about what's right and
wrong by the FPPC's definition. Campaign finance the voters
approved in Proposition 73, and we call your office and ask them,
"What are the rules?" and they said, "We don't know."
You know, if people are trying to abide by the rules,
how do you, in fact, make sure the rules are sensible and that
they're easily understood?
Part of the public perception about rules violations
they get from the media where they say such and such violates the
rules.
Now, it seems to me, if we're going to be charged with
not violating the rules, then it ought to be clear what the rules
are, and it should not be very difficult for someone to
understand when he transgresses.
MR. LARSON: I have no disagreement with that, and the
fact that Proposition 73 was adopted at the last election, at the
primary election
, is complicated by the fact that
there's eight cases -'s seven cases litigating the various
propositions set forth in that.
Our commiss
held many hearings. We attempted to
adopt appropriate rules that would be guidelines and would be
clear guidelines. With
turndown in the budgets and so forth,
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we had money appropriated to try to put our regulations in the
English language.
I mean, it was a plain English goal that we
were looking at, and that has to be dropped for the time being,
but we are attempting to clarify it.
I have no disagreement. Everybody on the commission or
the staff deals with attempting to put regulations so you know
what is right and you know what is wrong.
That's why we have
increased, almost doubled, our seminars, our workshops, our
training sessions.
If people can't come to the big city, we'll
go to their areas and answer their questions and point out to
them what the problems are and what should be right or wrong.

I

Admittedly, it's a complex subject. We would like to
give answers on the funding, for example, and carry-over moneys,
and so forth, but there is one case that says that there can be
no carry-over moneys, that our regulation was invalid. There's a
petition filed in the California Supreme Court. Various people
have asked the Supreme Court to make a quick judgment.
I have
personally written to the Supreme Court and said it's going to
eventually be decided there, so would they please take the case
and decide it quickly.
We have forty elections coming up in municipalities in
the State of California this year. We have an election in 1990,
a major election, statewide elections, and we have to have the
ground rules in place as quickly as possible. Decisions are
going to be made.
I agree: those decisions are going to be
made, and some of them are irreversible, whether you spend money
or not.
We are attempting to do what we can. When the court
tells us that our regulation is invalid, we have very little
choice but to abide by that.
We adopted regulations -- yes, sir?

•

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: That's true. That's true.
You
have to abide by the court's ruling. That's the way it goes .
MR. LARSON: Yes, sir. Yes, sir, and on the
newsletters, the court has said that the restrictions on
newsletters are invalid, and therefore, I assume that those
people are going to take a chance and do whatever that particular
trial court has said. Neither one of those have been in writing
so we can determine an appeal, and one of them, we weren't even a
party to that that lawsuit.
So I like simple rules.
I like clear rules. I like
rules where you know what you should do and should not do, and we
spent a good part of our budget on training, and we will continue
to do so.
We think the committee should operate and consider three
major areas of reform. The first is the elimination of the
appearance of personal gain by reason of gifts, honorariums, and
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similar matters, to
iminate any appearance that the person in a
for private gain. Whether it's true
public position is us
or not, it's not as
at this point as whether the public
true.
perceives that to
There

further reforms started by reason of

the -ASSEMBLY MEMBER BILL LANCASTER:

Mr. Chairman?

Yes, sir?

MR.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: What would you recommend
that we do to el
that? You recommend that we do
something, but what would you recommend?
MR. LARSON: El
the taking of gifts and honoraria
on the part of elected officials.

MEMBER LANCASTER:

In total.

MR. LARSON:
local and state, with the
understanding that certain things are within the definition of
gifts. For example, if you have a meal because you're giving a
talk, that's not a
Gi
families, relatives, home
hospitality is not a
Tokens and other things, plaques and
trophies are not
So
that area, no gifts and no
honoraria.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: The definition is one of the
things that's diff
to come up with, but you think it can be
done.
Is that
're saying?
MR. LARSON:

Yes. sir.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
correctly -- I
'm correct
which was voted on
people
MR. LARSON:

Yes. s

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
Is a gift part of
$1,000?
MR.

Prop 73, if I remember
put a limitation of $1,000
June.

The question then remains:

ir.
LANCASTER: That needs clarification,
Was 73 silent on that?

too,
MR.

and honoraria are the same.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
MR. LARSON

Under 73?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
MR. LARSON:

They're the same thing?

Yes, sir.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So, if, for example, if you
got a $500 honorarium and a $300 gift, that would be $800.
MR. LARSON:

Yes, sir.

Yes, sir.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
MR. LARSON:

I see.

Thirdly, we hope there's an effort so that

we can
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:

Which one's the second?

MR. LARSON: The second is the further development of
the reforms that we started with Proposition 9 and Propositions
68 and 73.
The third is a further step in what is a continuing
process of political reform here in California, and the fourth is
to develop a prompt, fair, and responsive enforcement program.
That is the job of the commission to the extent we have
jurisdiction. I think we've done an excellent job. I know we've
done an excellent job in making it fair, making it impartial,
making it unbiased, and being as responsive as we can so that we
can act as an umpire for all the parties.
I don't think there's any disagreement as to the fact
that we enforce it as long as the enforcement is fair and
standard all the way across the board to all people that are
involved in the Political Reform Act. As we say, since adoption
of Proposition 73, there's 104,000 people who will file something
with us
this coming year in connection with the Political
Reform Act, and we attempt to serve them all fairly and equally.
Our specific proposals that we have submitted, some of
which have been introduced and some of which members of this
committee are carrying, are:
First, a ban on gifts and honoraria.
It removes
temptation.
I served in public life for many years.
I thought I
was very popular when I was county counsel and had a big
chauffeur-driven limousine, had a little radio telephone, and
went around, and the minute I left office, I found that my
popularity extended only to one phone call, which is:
"Would you
give us your successor's name and address and ask if he likes
golf?"
So, that is a temptation that can be removed. Those
people want something. I'm not a great loving person. They
didn't give it to me because I was a nice guy and a raconteur and
a good golfer. They gave it to me because they wanted some
assurance of some kind without spelling it out.
If they can't
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take that, there's no temptation.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay.
I'm going to po
out,
and I'm not going to play it too hard, but today was primarily to
get a list of concerns so that we could develop an agenda, and
then we could go through and take testimony about honoraria,
about a prosecutor, or about whatever else. So, if each of you
today attempts to provide us a whole solution as well, we're
going to get, I think, ahead of ourselves with the developmental
process.
MR. LARSON: I realize that, and I realize the concern,
but that gives me some concern, because the statement that you've
made and that has previously been made by this committee is going
to develop some overall program which will be completed sometime
in the future, and I hope that doesn't mean that or individual
bills, which are very effective bills and very important bills,
will get held up by reason of the fact that nothing will move in
this subject matter until this committee makes its final decision
sometime later in the year.
We are hoping, and that's my request of you, that our
bills will move forward as they go through the ordinary process
as they would have routinely done in the past.
If they don't
pass, fine, and if they do, fine, but that they will not be held
up, irrespective of their merits, until the commission has
developed a complete package of political reform.
We don't feel that that's necessary. A lot of things
have to be corrected in this area.
It can flow through normally,
and that's our request of the commission.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay, your request.
In my
experience in areas that are as complex and touchy as this, a
thoughtful package has a better chance of succeeding than
individual sporadic bills. So it has been our plan to try to
take in all the testimony and come up with a proposal shortly,
and to have bills pending so that we can have a comprehensive,
thoughtful piece of work that really gets adopted, a lot of
trade-offs and different kinds of proposals.
I think that if we
can integrate all the best of those, it solves the problem the
best we can.
MR. LARSON: Some of these bills don't necessarily
relate to another subject matter. Some of these matters are
matters of importance and will stand on their own, and we're
asking that they be considered individually on their own as the
program goes through.
Some of the various bills that have been introduced so
far can do that without reference to an overall bill, and some
things may be traded off, but, for example, I realize the
chairman doesn't want specific bills, but a requirement that
people who deal with finances for state and local government
should file under state law because it's more restrictive and
more revealing; and gives better information as to whom people
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that invest in
law.

ic

is a good law, and is an appropriate

It was a
an orniss
law
ly, and
we think it does not
to an overall package of ethics but a
matter of clarifying loopholes, problems, and defects in the
present Political Reform Act, and we hope they don't get stopped
for the development of an
l new Political Reform Act.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER STAN STATHAM:
Larson if he felt that
I

I just wanted to ask Mr.

You've been very active on the FPPC, and I think you've
been making some very positive statements in the press, and I
think something has to be done. But you've just had a
conversation with the chairman of the Ethics Committee on whether
we should do it piecemeal or whether we should do a rather
encompassing package.
Don't you think that the problem is severe enough, or at
least the perception of inappropriate ethics in the legislature
is severe enough, that a package, a well-thought-out package of
many things, would be the best solution?

•

MR. LARSON: A well-thought-out package of many of the
things that are covering the important problems that face the
legislature and face the public, yes.
I don't disagree with
that. But what I'm saying
that requesting that individual
bills should proceed that aren't necessarily tied to that package
but can cure day-to-day problems that we'd like to have solved in
order to give better and correct advice and could give the
Commission better control and consultation with people, would be
helpful. That's what we're asking. What I foresee, and am
concerned about, is that every bill on political reform that
amends the Political Reform Act doesn't go anywhere pending the
development of an
1 package .
ASSEMBLY MEMBER STATHAM: Yes.
In that regard, though,
I was nervous that
one or two -- you know, you've offered
some nice bills. Mr. Lempert has several that I like very much.
I was afraid that an atmosphere would be created where one or two
bills would go through and then enough people would say, "Well,
that's swell. We've done our job. We passed this, and we passed
that."
That was
I was asking the question, and Chairman
Vasconcellos has put
committee on fast-track. Almost half
of the members of the California Assembly asked to be on this
committee. He has it on fast-track, and he's attacking it the
way he normally attacks problems, and that's "open the door wide
and let everybody come in here, beat us up, give us any solution
they can think of," and then this committee has to produce.
I
mean, it literally
to produce. This topic brings the media
spotlight every time
's discussed.
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MR. LARSON: We agree with that. As I indicated, and as
you read, we had one bill last year of major importance, and it
disappeared somewhere through a black hole.
I thought it was
going right along, and that's just what we're concerned about,
and being very frank, I'm sort of a novitiate in this particular
area with what happens. So I'm more used to dealing with boards
of supervisors. You only have to count to three. This is a
different atmosphere, and we just hope our bills don't get lost.
Whatever way you choose to do it, I want to offer you
the cooperation of the commission, the draftsmanship, the advice
on how it fits into our regulation process and our rules, and we
do hope that there are judicial decisions made quickly so we can
give advice, as Assemblyman Harris requests. We are attempting
to do that, and I think you for the opportunity to present our
position.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Thank you. We appreciate your
offer. Our hope is that this will not be a black hole, and by
forming ourselves as we have and getting started as quickly as we
have, we will come up with a solution that is comprehensive and
thoughtful and really effective, and there won't be room for a
black hole.
The idea of holding things toward a whole package is to
avoid the black hole syndrome, not to be part of it, we assure
you. We certainly want your solutions. Today I wanted to get
items.
I want you back with the solutions.
MR. LARSON:

Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I want solutions.

MR. LARSON: One last comment we have, and you are aware
of it as much as I am, and that is that if we solve it here, if
we can solve it in the legislature, it will not be solved by
initiative.
Initiatives are a vital part of the California way
of life, that's true, but initiatives have a habit of not doing
exactly what the authors wanted them to do, and we end up with
all this litigation.
If we can tailor these bills we can work
out something that's satisfactory to both sides, and that's what
we hope for.
I thank you again.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I look forward to working with

you.
Okay.

Fred Woocher, Special Counsel to the Attorney

General.
MR. FRED WOOCHER:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

My name is Frederick Woocher, Special Counsel for the
Attorney General.
I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to
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address the committee on behalf of Attorney General John Van de
Kamp.
I'd like to preface my comments by commending the
committee for its fine start on the difficult task that you face.
The challenge before you, as you've recognized, is nothing less
than helping to restore the public confidence in the integrity of
its government, the confidence that has been shaken recently by
allegations of political corruption and the perception that
governmental decision-makers are sometimes beholden more to the
special interests than the public interest.
One senses that the public trust is now wearing thin, as
is their patience in waiting for us to put our own house in
order. This is, therefore, not a time for rhetoric or for
cosmetic palliatives.
It's a time for some serious
self-examination, and as you mentioned, a thoughtful reform.
That is the committee's agenda, and we will look forward
to working with you in achieving your objectives, for this may be
our last hope for demonstrating our commitment to reform before
the people resort once more to the initiative process with all
its rigidity and weaknesses.
You've asked what our office perceives the ethical
concerns of the people to be.
In our view, there is one concern
that eclipses all others, and it's the public's fear that
government no longer represents their interests but responds only
to the special interests of those who line the pockets and the
campaign coffers of elected officials with money.
Whether
matches the public perception is a
matter for debate, but we cannot deny that the public perception
is important in and of itself. Government is a compact between
the electorate and their chosen leaders, and when the people lose
confidence in their elected representatives, that compact
disintegrates.
It is not enough that in our heart of hearts we can
honestly say that we decide every issue on its merits,
uninfluenced by gifts or speaking fees that we might receive from
those with an interest in the outcome. We must also convince our
rightly skeptical public that this is the case, and we can only
do that by enacting prophylactic safeguards that remove the
potential for abuse.
The Attorney General has put together a package of
legislative proposals that are designed to respond to this public
concern by protecting the governmental and political processes
from possible undue influences.
First, we would seek to eliminate the suspicion that the
votes of public officials can be bought and paid for with
lobbyists' gifts and honoraria by making it unlawful for any
state or local official, including members of the legislature, to
participate in or attempt to influence a decision that could have
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a material financial effect on any donor or other source of
approach most
addresses
income. We bel
unnecessarily
the public concerns
that pose no danger of impermissible
speaking fees and
conflicts of interest. Such disqualification laws have worked
well at the local level for years, and it's high time to extend
that principle to state government as well.
Now, as a companion measure, we would increase the
frequency with which public officials must disclose and report
their outside income and investments so that public attention may
be focused on the potential for a conflict before any actual
conflict develops. The current annual timetable for reporting
income, including gifts and honoraria, makes
virtually
impossible to monitor the relationship between financial interest
and official actions, nor is there likely to be any timely public
reaction to possible violations. More frequent disclosure would
thus aid both in deterring and more effectively responding to
abuses of the conflict of interest laws.
Just as the public is concerned about the influence of
direct payments of gifts and honoraria to public offic
s, so,
too, are they concerned about the untoward impact of large
campaign contributions. Money will always play an important role
in political campaigns, and private campaign contributions are a
valuable and constitutionally protected component of our
democratic electoral process. Nevertheless, we must ensure that
these contributions are used for their intended purpose: to help
elect a candidate of the donor's choice, and not as a personal
slush fund for candidates and office-holders.
The ambiguity and weakness of the current law
prohibiting the personal use of campaign funds has led to
increasing abuses in recent years. Our office has developed a
number of recommendations that would tighten up these
restrictions and provide more specific guidance for candidates
and office-holders regarding the permissible uses of campaign
funds.
We believe that we must also reassure the public that
their own tax money is being used for its intended function.
To
that end, we have proposed legislation that will protect against
the misuse of state resources for unauthorized personal or
political purposes.
No government office-holder should be able to secure
personal or political advantage as a result of their official
position, and a complete range of remedies should be available to
deal with those who might abuse the public trust they hold.
The public's concern over the integrity of the
governmental process has inevitably spread as well to suspicions
regarding the integrity of the political process. Ever spiraling
campaign expenditures have not increased voter participation in
the electoral process but have had just the oppos
effect, and
when the voters are turned off by a barrage of
ads and
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slick promos, they don't turn out to exercise their franchise.
While we must obvious
tred carefully in attempting to legislate
the "truth" in the
political opinion, we must also
recognize that the
not served when intentional
misrepresentations
are freely allowed to masquerade
as facts.
In order to restore some measure of integrity and public
confidence in the political process, therefore, the Attorney
General supports legislation that would crack down on knowingly
false statements or misrepresentations made in the course of a
political campaign.
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Finally, even the best and most well-intentioned reforms
are rendered meaningless if not effectively and impartially
implemented. We need to make enforcement of the existing and
proposed reform laws a higher priority at both the state and
local level. That will require not only a greater commitment of
resources but better coordination and cooperation among our
multiple law enforcement agencies having jurisdiction in this
area. Here, too, we must be able to assure the public that the
investigative and prosecutorial decisions have not been
influenced by improper political or other considerations.
Our office will soon be coming to you with a legislative
proposal that we believe will accomplish these objectives, and we
look forward to working with you in achieving our common goals.
Thank you very much for your consideration, and I'd be
willing to answer
questions that you might have at this time.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

clear statement.

It was a
MR.. WOOCHER:

•

Any questions by the committee?
Thank you.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Jane Baker, Councilmember, City
of San Mateo, past President, League of California Cities, and
past Chair of the Campaign Reform Committee and Committee of
Twenty-one of the
California Cities.
MS. JANE BAKER:

Good afternoon.

Thank you.

The League of
ifornia Cities for the past three years
has had a Committee of Twenty-one, and they have decided to study
the issues that we
to know about to take us into the
twenty-first century.
The past year, as chair of the League of California
Cities and Chair of Twenty-one, it is my pleasure to present to
you the actions and views of the League in addressing the
subjects of ethics and value. That was the topic of our study in
1988, and you have a copy.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

We do.

Thank you.
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MS. BAKER: As an organization, as cities, and as
individuals, we have
this subject a great deal of attention
and focus, and I'm proud to say that this has gone nationwide
because it is the first time that anyone has looked at this issue
with the cities.
In our view, it is the responsibility of every
government official, whether elected, appointed, or a member of
staff, to be above impropriety and the appearance of it. During
the past decade or more there has been a general decline in the
public perception about its government. Realizing the importance
of ethics, the League recognized a strong system of shared
values, and ethics is essential to the proper functioning of
government. The League of California Cities Committee on
Twenty-one definitely decided this year that this should be the
issue we should study.
As I stated in the introduction in this pamphlet, we, as
city leaders, play a key role in regeneration and transmission of
values and ethics which renew and sustain our cities as healthy,
humane communities. Unlike most of the issues we face as
government officials, values cannot be legislated. However, we
can, as leaders, do much to set high standards for our
communities and lead by example and persuasion.
The report includes specific action city officials can
take to foster attention to values. A few of the points that may
be helpful to the committee include the following:
Clearly understand and acknowledge the perspective of
all citizens. Be aware of the existing values within the
organization. Be aware of your own values and assess how you
live up to them.
Review the concepts of ethics and values and compare
them to the organization's and your own.
Make ethics a priority and a topic of conversation with
your colleagues and staff. Develop a process to determine
organizational values which ensure a buy-in from all facets of
the organization.
Also related to this issue of ethics is that of campaign
contributions. As the League president in 1987, I formed a
special task force for addressing the issues of ethics and values
as they relate to local government officials' accepting campaign
contributions and the effect on decision-making and perception.
It was felt that if a city council adopted ordinances which
limited campaign contributions, the public would perceive their
elected officials more positively and have a positive impact on
the decision-making.
The result is a model campaign spending ordinance that
has been completed. This also is in your packet. The impact of
Proposition 73 has been incorporated, and the model now focuses
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on campaign contribution limits.
It is not as inclusive as it
originally started out to be, and the draft of the model
ordinance, which was
ignated for general law c ies,
in
your packet.
We also worked on one for charter cities, but we are
waiting now, like you, for final legal definitions of how this
can be done. A major campaign will begin next month to educate
our membership about the advantages and the need to adopt this
kind of ordinance.
In fact, sixty-three local agencies have
already adopted campaign financing laws.
In my city, since we
are a charter city, we are waiting for a legal interpretation
before we can do the final adoption.

•

The public perception, and many times the reality, that
votes and influence can be bought must end at all levels of
government, and each of us in government service have come to
realize that perception is reality.
In your packet also is a copy of an editorial that will
appear in our monthly magazine, Western City. You'll see that
the League realized the importance of perception several years
ago when we chose not to enroll our staff in the Public
Employees' Retirement System, in spite of the fact that the
system provides greater coverage at less cost than we have
attained. We believe that since we'd likely be lobbying
legislation affecting PERS, it was important that there be no
appearance of conflict of interest.
In fact, the League staff
recently devoted a great deal of discussion to the subject of
values and the way we
our business.
Among the
incorporated into the overall policy
were integrity, honesty, accomplishment, service, cooperation,
and a reference for tradition, coupled with an openness to change
and the appreciation of and respect for city officials that staff
serve. A key element throughout the discussion was the personal
ethics of individuals and the ethics of the organization, and, as
the editorial concludes, an examination of values is moot unless
an organization can find ways to ensure its values are not mere
words but also are translated into action.
In conclusion, on behalf of the Cities of California,
I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to share with you a few
of the concepts and actions that have helped the League to focus
on the need to help city officials and staff be aware of ethics.
The values of our cities are the key to how livable our cities
are, and the values of our states are the key to how livable our
state is.
It is our collective responsibility to help make our
cities and our state a truly great place for ourselves and for
posterity.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Thank you.

Any questions from the committee?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER TED LEMPERT:

Ted?

I have a question, but
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first, I just want to say it's a privilege to have with us today
a long-time councilmember in my home town, and she is certainly a
great role model for ethics for all of us in San Mateo.
MS. BAKER:

Thank you.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Jane, I just want to ask you,
we've already heard some comments about conflict of interest as
regards the state legislators. Obviously, local city
councilmembers and boards of supervisors are affected by conflict
of interest provisions already, and I just wondered if you or the
League have any feelings about the conflict of interest
provisions on the local level. Are they working, or do they need
to be strengthened, or do you have any thoughts on that?
MS. BAKER: We have not studied that in depth, but I
will say that we feel that all that has been done has been
helpful.
The conflict of interest statements that we have to fill
out, including sometimes filling out four of them -- I would hope
that once you fill out one you wouldn't have to fill our four and
can help the state in its paperwork -- but I will say from my own
personal experience that there is a rule that if you are on our
boards and commissions you cannot accept more than $250, I think
it is, of contributions and still vote on an issue. That does
not apply to the council people, and this isn't really fair
because the people who are challenging cannot accept
contributions that the incumbents can. So I feel that there is
disparity in that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Bill Lancaster?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Thank you very much.

I thought your testimony was fine, too, Mrs. Baker, but
I have a question that's come up already twice from previous
witnesses, and that is on the reporting procedures we now follow
in the State of California.
I believe Mr. Larson said that he would like to see a
more uniform reporting procedure, I assume through the Fair
Political Practices Commission. As I understand it now, it's a
matter of reporting to the city clerk or county clerk, as the
case may be, at the local level.
Does your league have any information on what is
happening out there in the local communities as far as reporting
procedures are concerned with the county clerk or the city clerk?
Are there any problems out there?
MS. BAKER: Well, I know that when we were studying our
campaign finance limitation we realized that our cities are very
different sizes, and so we left it blank as to the limitation one
could receive. We left it from $50 to $500. We have found out
in studying it that there is only one city in the whole state
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that before the proposition passed a limitation greater than a
thousand dollars, and we found that the City of Los Angeles,
which is our largest city, had a limitation of $250.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Well, I think I'm kind of
alluding to the informational aspects, whether or not the
information was there for the public to view if necessary.
Is
there any problem out there in any cities that you're aware of?
MS. BAKER: I'm not aware that there are any because,
you see, it is filed with the city clerk, and anyone can go into
the city clerk's office and get a copy of that, and I am sure, it
is used quite a bit by reporters and by the opponents to see how
things are going.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
MS. BAKER:

Is it uniform, Mrs. Baker?

Yes, it is.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: In other words, all time
slots are the same in every community out there? As far as when
the reports should be turned in?
MS. BAKER: They're all the same. You have to fill them
out so many days before the election. Of course, the elections
could be on different days.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I understand, but there's a
certain procedure that's uniform throughout California as far as
reporting to the local clerk what's going on?
MS. BAKER:

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I think I understand,
because one of the problems, I think, if everybody reported to
the Fair Political Practices Commission from all over the state,
every community in the State of California, we'd have a difficult
time.
Perhaps the public would have a difficult time getting
the information they want on what is occurring at the local level
because I know they sometimes have problems finding information
at the state level.
I just wondered how that would work.
MS. BAKER: I think it probably works better filing it
with the city clerk, because anyone can walk into City Hall and
get the information, where it isn't so easy to come up to
Sacramento to get the information.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Outside of the financial
aspects, are all the restrictions the same, the timeframes,
everything's the same throughout the State of California?
MS. BAKER:

Yes.

It's a state law.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Ms. Killea?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA: This may be an unfair
question from this committee. Maybe I shouldn't be asking it,
but from your point of view, what do you see as the state
legislature's biggest problem in this area? In other words, what
do we need to tackle right here?
MS. BAKER: Well, it took us a year and a half to get
our model ordinance together, so I know it isn't easy, but I
think you're on the right direction with this committee, and I
think that you need to start here and pull it forward as a
complete package.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Did you tackle it with the
values first and then specifics later, or did you just do both as
you went along?
MS. BAKER: We had two different committees.
the Committee of Twenty-one.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

One was

Yes.

MS. BAKER: We did the model ordinance in 1987.
It went
into 1988, and then, in 1988 we looked at this through the
values.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I see.
Okay.

Good.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Next, Walter Zellman, Common Cause.
MR. WALTER ZELLMAN:
members of the committee.

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman,

I'd like to address some problems as we see them.
I'm
going to try to range, perhaps, into the grayer areas, rather
than deal with a whole list of specific problems. Perhaps that
will generate a different kind of dialogue or approach.
I want to start by saying that I think this committee is
a positive step, and I tend to agree with the scenario that's
suggested, that you should try to draft a consensus committee
bill or a series of bills and move that forward as a package.
I
understand it's a legislative process, and I've been dealing with
this type of issue for eleven years, and I understand that this
kind of package is going to need that kind of clout behind it,
and the clout that comes from a consensus of a bipartisan group
of individuals such as yourselves might be what's necessary.
I think, short of that, individual bills moving forward
on their own track may have the best of intentions but probably
will not get the best results.
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I also would support your staff's recommendation. I
know this has been discussed a little bit amongst yourselves, and
it might be helpful to have some kind of audit of what's really
out there in terms of conflict of interest and ethics laws, so
that we can all get a handle on what's our there, what's being
applied, what's working, et cetera.
Let me address what I think are some of the major
ethical issues facing the legislature, and, again, I'm going to
be specific in some cases and, perhaps, a little vague in others.
The first, I think, and it still remains the single most
compelling problem, is the area of campaign financing. That's
not only the appearance of a problem, it's the reality of the
problem. Campaign financing consumes this process. It mars the
appearance of the process. It forces everyone to think about
campaign financing too often, and it puts everyone's ethics to
the test on a daily basis.
There are two specific aspects of the campaign financing
I'd raise with you this afternoon, and they're current, right
before us.
One is the problem of off-year fund-raising. This has
been where the real explosion has been in recent years, not in
the period preceding elections but in the period when legislation
is being considered. In the six months of the off year before
the election year even starts, the explosion of campaign
financing in the off year makes the relationship between dollars
and votes seem more incredible and more alarming to the general
public, whether it's accurate or not.

I

Proposition 73, in my view, couldn't be more
counterproductive if it tried in this regard. It encourages you,
if not forces you, to go to every contributor every year.
Nothing could be more foolish than a fiscal year campaign
contribution limit, which means that if you don't go to every
contributor every year, you cannot get the maximum contribution,
and I think it's a catastrophic mistake in that regard and only
aggravates one of the greatest problems we already have.
The second campaign financing issue I'd raise is also
related to the off-year problem, and that is that campaign
dollars are no longer simply campaign dollars. Campaigns are no
longer just political campaigns, at least in the sense of appeals
to voters for votes. Most of you have now become, and are now
operating full-time, in effect, public relations efforts.
Legislators, incumbents, are spending tens of thousands, and in
some cases hundred of thousands of dollars.
And this occurs at the local government level, too, tens
and hundreds of thousands of dollars on what I would call
noncampaign-related activities, months and years ahead of
elections. Campaign dollars have thus become, in a sense, and I
use the phrase rhetorically, the capital of Capitol politics, and
the use of campaign funds beyond campaign purposes only spurs the
need for more campaign funds, and the problem just escalates upon
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itself.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER RICHARD KATZ:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
you're talking about?

Mr. Chairman?

Richard Katz.
Will you be more specific in what

MR. ZELLMAN: The fact that in 1987 the state
legislature spent over $16 million in campaign contributions at
least a year before anybody was running for re-election and three
years, in many cases, before people were running for election.
If you look at the expenditures of local government
officials, if you look at the statements of most of your
colleagues, you will see that the average legislator is now
spending over a hundred thousand dollars, perhaps, enormous
amounts of money, before the election even really begins to take
place, money spent not so much on polling. It's spent on
entertainment. It's spent on tickets. It's spent on travel.
It's spent on all kinds of things, some of which are
perfectly legitimate, but the fact that all of you, and I say
this with all due respect, that many are now raising and spending
that kind of money and seeing the value of raising and spending
that kind of money that's not directly related to elections, only
makes all of you realize that I've got to do it, too. I've got
to get out there and raise this money, and I've got to get out
there and conduct this full-time public relations campaign. I've
got to give money to the church, and I've got to give money to
the synagogue and to the boy's clubs and to the Gay Right's
Parade, and this parade, and that parade, and I've got to appear
at all these things, to the local Chamber of Commerce. And it
only forces you to go out and raise more money, and I think that,
basically, has a debilitating effect on the process.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: How do you suggest dealing with
that, in the sense that there are things tied into doing the job
in terms of all the things that officeholders do? You can argue
whether it's for the officeholder's benefit, the Chamber of
Commerce's benefit, the constituents, or all of the above. How
do you balance that out?
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, one of the things I want to talk
about in a minute is that I don't know the answer to all these
questions of principle, and I think that's where we get bogged
down.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

But you're Common Cause.

MR. ZELLMAN: I'm going to raise that question, as to
how you define some of these principles.
One simple way to do it might be to put a limit on
yourself on how much money you're going to spend on
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officeholder's expenses. I won't quibble where you spend it, but
take $20,000, or $30,000, something reasonable, and that's it,
but this $200,000 or $300,000 a year, in some cases, is
unreasonable.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
legislators to prioritize.
MR. ZELLMAN:

Let the legislators make that decision.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

•

In other words, force the

Okay.

MR. ZELLMAN: It's a terrifying story, in a way, about
campaign financing, but there is a member of the Los Angeles City
Council, probably someone you know, that raised and spent over
$300,000 in a non-election year a few years. He gave money to
virtually every single group he could think of. He went on
several trips. He spent all sorts of money in all kinds of ways,
all of which, in spirit at least, was a violation of the city
campaign reform law, and now the new state campaign reform law
comes in and says you can only raise money for a specific office,
so he's opened a Committee for Lieutenant Governor in 1994 so he
can raise money for that.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

1994?

MR. ZELLMAN: 1994. In 1990 he's not going to run.
He'd have to give the money back, so he sets up a committee for
1994.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
council election before 1994.

He'll be able to run for one city

MR. ZELLMAN: That's right. He could have alienated his
constituents by saying, "I'm not running for city council," so
he's running for Lieutenant Governor in 1994.
The second major issue I'd like to talk on with you is a
delicate one these days, and that's your compensation.
Common Cause believes that legislators and many others
in public service are generally paid too little. The result is
to resort to other forms of income, which can create public doubt
and conflicts of interest. Honoraria payments keep going up, and
however you may view it, to the public, right or wrong, they
often seem more like payoffs than payments. Outside income, in
many cases, is substantial, and, in some cases, can create
conflicts of interest. Certain gifts and travel costs can seem
inappropriate to the general public.
It may be that it's the wrong year to raise this issue.
I read the papers as much as anyone else, but legislative
salaries should be raised in exchange for an almost total ban on
honoraria, for stiff limits on outside income, and for more
careful regulation of certain gifts and travel pay.
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Let's not only talk about you. Let me mention myself.
I like to think I uphold high ethical standards in my lobbying
practices, but I don't know that I, as an individual, have any
higher level of ethics than anyone else in this building. What I
do, though, is work for Common Cause. The system under which I
work does not allow me to consider, I'd like to think, anything
but adherence to the highest ethical standards. The system I
work for is one in which, if I breach those standards in any way
-- whatever I might do to my own personal sense of ethics -- I
lose my job.
It's very simple.

I

The contract I have with the organization is so high and
the systemic pressures on me are so great that it's much easier
for me to behave, perhaps, in what I think are ethical ways than
it may be for many of the people who in their own organization
might be able to get away with other kinds of behavior.
Let me leave you with six ideas that, after going
through all this, I wrote down as something of a conclusion.
I
call it a search for a higher ethical standard, and I think we
should do this in many ways, and some of these I've mentioned
already.
One, reduce the reliance of elected officials on
campaign contributions from people who want something from them.
Two, pay elected officials a salary worthy of their
responsibility, and don't allow them, with few exceptions, to
accept compensation from private sources.
Three, offer political awards and recognition to those
who adhere to the highest of ethical standards, and by awards, I
don't mean plaques, I mean political power.
Four, select leaders who are willing to adhere to a
standard higher than the standards that would apply to those they
wish to lead.
Five, recognize that the problem of appearance of
conflict of interest is very real.
I know that many of you deal
with conflicts much more so than the rest of us every single day.
You get adjusted to dealing with it. You may believe that taking
that money doesn't mean anything, doesn't influence you, doesn't
-- shouldn't -- look bad, but it does look bad sometimes, and you
have to keep in mind that you're dealing with this every day, and
you're getting used to that problem. The public never gets used
to it.
Six, find the means to encourage all public servants to
abide by the spirit as well as the letter of ethics laws.
Thank you.

I'd be happy to take any questions you might

have.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Harris?
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on the outside, and maybe some additional restrictions on gifts
and travel, -- if we put that squarely before the people and say,
ultimately, we're not going to be paid anymore -- I think has a
chance.
I've lost before.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:

Do it by commission?

MR. ZELLMAN: I don't know if there's any other way to
do it, because your salaries are set in the constitution. No,
you could put it on a ballot. We would urge you to put it on a
ballot.
I think the difficult question will also become, do you
vote on it? I think Common Cause believes that the straightest,
fairest way to do it is to say, no, you don't vote. They make a
recommendation, and that's it.
I don't think you could approve
that here.
I don't know that the voters would approve it, and if
they ever came in with an increase, and you sat there with your
hands tied, the voters might chop your heads off. So we might
have to put a vote requirement in.
I don't know. That's the way
I think it should be done.
I think you should get a higher
salary in exchange for reductions on other sources of income.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS: How do they find a salary that
the voters will think an appropriate level of compensation?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER HARRIS:
role model.

Bryant Gumbel's?
I've always liked Bryant as a

MR. ZELLMAN: That's the part that becomes a political
question as to how to put this before the public, but we will
support it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Richard?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: I agree with what you said. We
have had the discussion before, you and I, and the part that I
find the hardest to grapple with in this whole thing is that I
sense sometimes that we're passing a lot of laws and regulations,
but that's really not the problem. The problem is that we have a
fraction of the population voting, and as a result, we have
legislators skating close to the line because they either don't
remember where the line is, they've conveniently forgotten where
the line is, or they figure nobody out there cares anymore and
they can get away with it. A large part of it, I think, is that
the watchdog function that the public also plays in keeping
legislators on notice that they're at risk once every two years,
and I guess some of that has to be worked into this as well.
What concerns me is that I believe in full disclosure.
I agree with the FPPC in that I'd like to see disclosure more
often. My personal preference is for disclosure more often, as
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opposed to a lot of the other restrictions.
I think we've taken the altruistic donor, for instance,
out of the political donating business altogether, and all we
have left now are corporate entities that form PAC's, because
they're the only people who have the lawyers and accountants who
can get around and figure out what all the rules are. The people
who donate just because they like whoever's running for office,
are out of the ball game. They don't play anymore.
It's not
interesting. There's no government that they participate in.
So, it's a ramble, but how do we get to that point? I
know there's no easy answer, but what I see us doing is putting
rules and regulations in place. And all they do, frankly, is
make it much more difficult for the folks to play it on the
straight and narrow. The person who's going to get bought is
going to do it knowing what the rules are and then walk across
the street to the Hyatt.
MR. ZELLMAN:
I guess my concern has always been less
about a person who is open to being bought and more about the
person who doesn't want to be bought but is faced with
irrepressible pressures to be bought. I mean that in the sense
that I think there are problems here, especially the campaign
finance problems, that are so great that absolutely the most
honorable person in this body can't stay out of it.
I don't have
anyone in mind, but I agree with you, and that's why I made the
point about the details versus the spirit.

Maybe we should look at -- and this is something for the
committee to consider -- blanket kind of aggregate restrictions
rather than detailed restrictions. Maybe we should say that
rather than defining every single type of gift you can or cannot
take, you can take a certain amount and take it from anyone you
want.
If you want to take a baseball tickets, fine.
If you want
to take a dinner, fine.
If you want to take a meal, fine, but
this is it, and we don't care where you get it, but don't take
more than this, and we don't care about all the myriads of
reportings, and you don't have to worry about what you can or
what you can't take.
If you want to take some amount to travel,
if you want to allow yourself some trips, put a ceiling on it and
say, "Okay. Do this," and then don't worry about all the myriads
of disclosure.
If you want to take that concept even further into
campaign financing (I'm ruminating in my own mind, this is not
necessarily a Common Cause position) I think the case can be made
that you should have a limit on how much money you can spend.
And I don't care where you get it, so long as the upper limit is
not such that it's impossible for you to get reasonably.
If you
have a friend who wants to give you $50,000, okay. Maybe that's
better than going to fifty lobbyists for a thousand dollars each.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
your --

What do you have to justify
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MR. ZELLMAN: I'm saying that if there were a state
spending limit in place, you can make an argument that a state
legislator in a general election shall spend no more than
$250,000, and with some very modest limits, we don't care where
you get it. The theory behind that is that a state legislator in
a competitive race -- we all know it's not that difficult to
raise $250,000 in a competitive race -- what gets difficult is
four hundred thousand, five hundred thousand, six hundred, eight
hundred thousand. Then you have to go to everybody and his
brother and sister for that kind of money. But if we just said,
"Okay, here's your two and a quarter, two fifty, whatever it is,
and we'll take the conflict of interest out in terms of not so
much each individual contributor complying with that but in terms
of your compliance with the overall pressure that's placed on you
to raise the money."
That would be a simpler way to do it. You'd file a lot
less paper. You'd still have to say who your contributors are,
but it might be a simpler way to do it. Those are potential
answers. You're raising some large questions.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

Sure.

MR. ZELLMAN: I don't know. You want to start about
public accountability. You can go back to my old friend
reapportionment, but I'd better not raise that one, and political
competition. There are a lot of issues that come together on
these kinds of questions, and we could go back and forth for some
time on it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Lucy Killea.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Do you see Common Cause still
entertaining the idea of pursuing the campaign limit? You
mentioned that several times, and I'd have to agree with you on
that one.
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, I hate to say it with Mr. Larson
still in the room. We're probably the cause of all his lawsuit
problems. We still believe that ultimately we need true campaign
finance reform in California.
We think that the single biggest problem is the amount
of money being spent, because that drives the find-raising.
Unless there's a spending limit in place, the fund-raising will
be endless.
I don't care how tight you make the contribution
limits, the tighter you make the contribution limits, unless you
put a spending limit on it, the more pressure you're going to put
on people to raise money, the more you'll have to go to
contributors, the more contributors you'll have to find, the more
time you'll have to spend. We think that spending is the key
problem. Spending must be controlled, and unfortunately -- I
call it the sting of 1988 -- Proposition 73 not only did not ban
a spending limit, it banned a ban on spending limit.
It killed,
in effect, the reform we need the most and the reform that people
want the most.
eliminating public funds -- we have some legal
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questions about this -- but essentially by eliminating public
financing, it eliminated the only means we know of to attach a
spending limit on legislative campaigns, and without a spending
limit, I don't care how those campaign contribution limits work
-- and they won't work very well -- we're not going to solve the
problem.
We think ultimately we need real campaign financing
reform, including a spending limit, including use of some public
taxpayer dollars -- call it whatever you will tax checkoff
dollars, tax credit dollars -- some means of making it easier for
people to raise campaign money.
Richard Katz is gone. But when I was raising the
question to him of the $250,000 -- and you can raise it any way
you want it --my idea would be to say, "Yeah, we'll give you
half of it. You need $250,000? The public will give you
$125,000. You get the other $125,000 any place you want, and we
won't worry about your ability to raise $125,000. That's not
going to be a strain."
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Just following up on the
spending limit, and I do agree with you entirely, is there any
way to get around the requiring of public financing? Has anyone
tried any other means or tried to get around that court decision
in any way?
MR. ZELLMAN: I've devised some means in my own mind,
but our national president would shoot me if I divulged it
because he believes that public financing, the spending limit, is
absolutely mandatory.
I don't know that it is, really.
The one thought I raised would be -- you mean get a
spending limit without public financing -- the only way that I
could think of doing that -- and there are lawyers probably there
who would say it wouldn't work -- would be to say that the law's
the following: we're going to have a very stiff campaign
contribution limit of, say, $250, $500, on any contribution in
your campaign.
If, however, you agree voluntarily to accept a
limit of a certain amount on your spending, then we're going to
lift the limit. Then it's a voluntary decision on your part.
Now, there are some people whom we have run that by who say it
won't pass constitutional muster, but it's a thought. The only
problem with it is, quite frankly, in this room the problem isn't
so great because the amounts of money you need are less than what
state senators need.
If you start lifting this contribution
limit completely with no public funding in Senate races, you
begin to talk about a lot of money again. You begin to look at
six or seven hundred thousand dollars for a primary and general
election, and I'm not sure we'd be comfortable saying, "Oh, yes,
that's okay. Just spend $700,000, but you can raise it any way
you want." That would be the only conceivable tradeoff that I
can think of.
If you take the spending limit, we'll get -- as I
said earlier-- we'll get your conflict of interest at the top in
the aggregate rather than piecemeal.
I'm not advocating that.
It's an idea.
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Keep on thinking.

MR. ZELLMAN: I think the public -- the notion behind
your question is that the public won't accept public financing
that's really not true.
If the public knew anything in June of
1988, they knew that Proposition 68 was public money going to
those rascals, right? They knew ic, and they voted for it. Get
my quote marks on that, too.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I

Lucy?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: You mentioned several times
about the off-year fundraising. What about lengthening the
terms? Would that help alleviate some of that? I mean, if you
combine it with some of the other things you're talking about?
MR. ZELLMAN: I remember watching Lyndon Johnson give
his State of the Union speech in 1965, and suggesting a six-year
term for members of the House, and they stood off and applauded
like you wouldn't have believed.

It went nowhere.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER STATHAM:

Did they get it?

MR. ZELLMAN: No, they didn't get it, obviously, and I
don't think it'll fly here.
I think people would see it as
losing their control over here, but I think it is arguable that
it's not a bad idea at all. Of course, it pulls you a little bit
away from the ongoing touch, but given the finance problem, as I
said, I'd rather take a campaign finance solution rather than
that one.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: The analogous one to that,
though, would be to move our primaries back to September to
shorten the time period. That wouldn't take us further away but
move us closer.
MR. ZELLMAN: It might.
I think the risk of that is
always the competition question, that as a challenger it's
difficult enough to raise money to run against an incumbent.
If
you say you only have about six or eight weeks to do it, it's
that much harder.
I think it would be interesting, though to study, for
example, New York and a number of other states that do it and see
if they have the capacity to raise the money.
I'm sure you could
and maybe that's a reform worth looking at.
Generally speaking, we haven't advocated shortening
campaigns because that just gives the advantage to those with
better fund-raising capacity and denies the capability of the
grassroots effort to mobilize itself.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Thank you, Walter.
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MR. ZELLMAN:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Robert Fellmeth, Center for
Public Interest Law, is not here I'm told. He has submitted
something in writing, though.
Richard Ratcliffe, Legislative Advocate for Applied
Strategies.
Also, note in your book that we have available to us one
of the tabs, the Advocate's Code, and the third house has over
the last couple of years met and drawn up their own set of rules
of conduct vis-a-vis themselves, the legislature, and their
clients.
I think we ought to look at it.
MR. RICHARD RATCLIFFE:
you very much.

Mr. Chairman and members, thank

I'd like to make a couple of preliminary remarks.
First
of all, I appear before you today as a legislative advocate who's
been in this business for a long time. I started in 1960 and I've
watched the process change in many fashions.
It has improved in
some ways.
It has perhaps deteriorated in others, but basically,
as I come before you today, I am here -- I would like to
emphasize this as strongly as I can-- I'm not representing any
of my clients.
I'm not representing anybody other than myself,
and the reason I am here is because of the code of conduct that
the chairman referred to.
Two years ago, I was somehow conned into being chairman
of the Ethics Committee for the Institute of Governmental
Advocates, an organization of lobbyists. We went through the
process of developing a code of conduct that applied to our
relationships relative to the legislative process and the
legislators, and what I'd like to do generally is kind of share
the experience that I had in chairing that group.
Let me first indicate, though, just sitting here
listening to the conversation so far, a couple of things occurred
to me. There seems to be a general consensus that the problem is
public perception. As we think about it, it seems to me
something we need to do is to think that perhaps public
perception is kind of what we've earned, and I'd like to suggest
that the public perception of the kind of functioning of this
process is one which comes from what you do, not what you enact,
not bills that you pass, but rather how the system works, how the
system deals with the problems that the public has.
I think that there's another rather ironic element that
I've see here today, in that there seems to be-- and I think
with the exception of Jane Baker's comments -- a tendency of
people to come in, and there are people who have made comments
which have addressed themselves to this process in a less than
flattering fashion.
There are people in organizations who are
convinced in their minds that as part of the public they view
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this process as one which doesn't work.
My own personal view and experience has been over almost
the thirty years now that I've been working with this process as
an advocate, as a lobbyist, is that it's a process whereby it
works surprisingly well.
I think it's a function of the people
who are in it.
I think it's a function of those of us that
participate in it, and I think that when you see the weaknesses,
it comes by and large from those who don't participate in the
process.
I think that it's very important to keep in mind that
the process that we're dealing with is not just us today, but it
goes on beyond us.
I think that's the important part.
Getting back to what I came here to talk about. As
Chairperson if the Ethics Committee of IGA, I'd like to try to
explain what that is and what it isn't. You've got it in front
of you and, hopefully, you will look at it and give us any
comments that you may have, but it's important to understand what
it is and what it is not.
First of all, it is not an answer.
It is not a
solution. Rather, it is a guide and an attempt by a group of
people, with their peers, to decide how best to grapple with and
deal with the problems of how people conduct themselves.
If you
think about it for a minute, ethics really is a term that we all
use to one degree or another as applying to somebody else and not
what we're doing. Actually, it's a term applied to us all, but
most importantly, it applies to what we are doing, because the
concept of ethics and how you do this and how the end result
comes out is, in my view, the product of each of us as
individuals making decisions.
It's the hard decisions that are
obviously more difficult but the ones which are more important.
These are the ones that deal with questions such as what are you
willing to do to get elected or to get re-elected? What are you
willing to do to get a bill passed or defeated?
Applying this to lobbyists, we have the same problems.
What am I willing to do to get a new client? What am I willing
to do to keep a client? What am I willing to do to get a vote?
I think that those questions are the ones that you and I
have to answer. And it's the manner in which we answer those
that results in a system by which we will be judged.
Basically, what we did is focus on three obligations
that lobbyists have in common, and they're obligations that very
often end up being in conflict. The overall process is one of
voluntarily looking at these obligations and suggesting that
there is a minimum standard of conduct that we can expect from
each other, and the emphasis is also to make the conduct of each
of us better than that minimum.
The three obligations we have focused on were our
obligation as lobbyists to the legislative process, the people
within that process, and most importantly, I think, the public
for which this process exists.
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The second obligation is our obligation to a client,
where someone will come and pay me money to come before this
process and represent their interests and do it in a manner that
is supposedly effective. But at the same time there's an
underlying requirement that I participate in such a fashion that
I contribute to it as opposed to detracting from it.
The third obligation is the obligation the lobbyists
have to one another. This is a classic restatement of a concept
which, all too often, we lose track of in everyday life and that
is the concept of empathy. The art -- and it really is an art -is looking at the world through somebody else's eyes so that we
can understand what that person wants out of life, thinks about,
what that other person expects from us so we can conduct
ourselves in a manner that it is consistent with our own
standards, that it causes as little stress as possible with
regard to that other person.
The work product that we came up with is one which
focuses and begins with the fact that the function we perform, in
our eyes at least, is one that is constitutionally protected. We
are the vehicle of the institution for which people petition to
their government. It's an opportunity that exists for people
that, for one reason or another, have no way or no willingness to
do it themselves. The sad part is that there are too few people
who are willing to use this process for themselves. Rather, they
hire someone else to do it.
In addition to that, there's a recognition within the
work product of the legal limitations. We're subject to the laws
of the State of California. We're subject to John Larson's FPPC
regulations. By the way, I don't necessarily have to agree that
that is a wonderful end-all and the solutions come from
amendments to that law, but rather, I think the suggestions that
you people need to come up with relating to that law are a very
definite part of the process that we need.
In addition, we need to deal with rules of each house
and the joint rules, but that is after all kind of where we live.
These are the home rules. Beyond that, we're dealing with this
effort, a situation where we're looking at the unwritten rules,
that are the expectations that we have of ourselves and the
expectations that others have of us.
I think that there's several areas I'd like to just
mention as areas in which ethical problems really come to the
fore. One point I should mention in the beginning is I do not
equate ethical problems with money.
I'm not saying that the
limitations on campaigns are a necessary part of the solution,
but I'm saying that it's a mistake to assume that money is the
only source of unethical activities.
I think it's a mistake we
have made in the state regulatory approach over some years which
has given people the idea that they can go beyond the dollar
transgressions and do what they wish.
I don't think that's the
case, but I think when we have obligations which are in conflict,
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when somebody has a job where within that job they have an
obligation, such as your job, there's an obligation to
constituents -- there are other
igations: the
stay around so
can accompl
the things which
constituents sent you up here for.
I think when you have
obligations, crossing obligations, those are the areas where
problems generally arise.
Beyond that, I think the issue of public perception, as
I indicated -- I don't think changing public perception is really
the answer.
I think it's something that comes from within.
It's
something that you earn. Beyond that, I think another area that
people get into trouble with regard to overall ethics is the area
where they assume they know what somebody else is doing and they
rely on that as a justification for what they do.
I think that's
an area where there's a great deal of problems. Among other
things, you don't really know what the other person is doing most
of the time. You're guessing, and you need to make these
decisions for yourself, and this is true of all of us.
Another concept I'd like to just throw out:
I don't
really know how to pull this into it necessarily, but throughout
my working life in this business, I have heard people refer to
the word "politics." To me, politics means different things.
In
a sense, it's the process of making the public decisions, and I
think that's the overall meaning of the term, but I also hear
people say, "Well, I can't do it.
I'd love to.
I really agree
with you because -- but it wouldn't be the political thing to
do." I have heard people talk about, "Well, I'm doing this just
because it's good politics,"-- comments such as that.
I mean,
the use of the term "politics" as an excuse to make an exception
to act in a manner other than what you perceive as right or wrong
is, I think, a dangerous element. It seems to me that you're
taking the end objective, which is the defining of the political
decision-making process, and then turning it back on itself and
using it at times as an exception for your doing things we really
ourselves understand are not the things you should be doing.
I think that the other part of it is the concept of
empathy, because I think it's extremely important.
After we go through these, I think there are a lot of
elements that you're going to come up against.
I don't think
rules are the answer.
I think mandated ethical considerations is
a dangerous practice in the sense that as soon as you write down
a rule, that means that that becomes the standard up to which
people have to go. Ethics is a standard beyond the rules.
I
believe the rules ought to describe the minimum conduct.
I think
the expectations ought to be greater than that.
I think that
there needs to be a focusing on individual judgment.
How to mandate that, I frankly don't know.
I think -I'm not sure it's been made before this committee before, but I'd
like to throw it out and see if it applies -- is that one of the
things that I've noticed through the years of working here is
that
unwritten and written rules, with regard to conduct of
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each of us relative to the process of enacting and considering
legislation, in the past seemed to be much clearer than it is
today.
Committee rules, where bills are amended in committee or
totally constructed in committee, where exceptions are made with
regard to the rules referring to deadlines and the number of sets
for a bill, it seems to me, result in a context within which we
operate, where it's very difficult for all of us to know exactly
what we face.
It seems that if some focus can be paid to making
those processes work better, I think it would do something to
help all of us.
I think that if the chairman of the committee finds
himself in a position where a judgment has to be made as to
whether or not it's appropriate to consider a bill before the
committee -- in other words, is it ready to be heard, has the
drafting been done properly or does it have great holes in it
I think that decision has to be made and conveyed to the author.
I think beyond that, those of us who are dealing with the process
have the obligation to face up to the fact that we haven't done
our work and we haven't properly prepared a proposal, then the
expectation ought to be that it not pass.
I remember some years ago, Senator George Miller from
Contra Costa County ,explained to a member of the legislature who
lost a bill in his committee, that the person who lost the bill
didn't really understand the legislative process. There was some
criticism of the committee's killing the bill, and Senator Miller
explained very patiently, that the purpose of the committee was
not to pass the bill. The purpose of the committee was to kill
the bill.
It was part of the overall process through which bills
got introduced and considered, and those that were not acceptable
were rejected and those that had value were passed. How to apply
that can result in a lot of quibbling and squabbling argument,
but I think it's important to remember.
At this point, I'd like to stop and indicate that what
is going on here is something which is commendable. As you look
at it I hope you'll consider the ideas that are given to you by
all members of the public as they come before you, but more
important, I hope you'll listen to the words that come from
inside.
I think the function of ethics is the result of all of
us growing up in more or less the same community and applying
those concepts of right and wrong and realizing that when you see
something with which you disagree it's okay, to stand up and say,
"I disagree."
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Thank you, Dick.

Comments or questions?

Bob?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ROBERT FRAZEE: Thank you, Dick, for
your comments.
I think they were very helpful in our discussion

Page 48
I want to deal
One

some

ifics very carefully.

areas I

creates this perception of
or the legislature is because
of the natural relationship
builds up between members with
other members and members with advocates, such as yourself, and
year in and year out of doing this, a degree of camaraderie that
comes about, and we're all in the process. We meet each other,
not only in the business context across the table, but at the
various social events that come along, and then following that,
there's a natural progression of things. I think we've all had it
occur where representatives for an interest group in our own
community or someone we know indicates we are preparing to hire
or to employ or contract with a new advocate in Sacramento, would
you recommend this person or that person?
We have this group of applicants, and on the other side
of that, those of your profession come to us and say, "I have
applied to represent Company X that has headquarters in your
area. Could you help me with that?" and that's a natural sort of
thing that we do built out of our friendship, and I'm wondering
what does that create in our ability then? Does that imply some
kind of a favor that could affect not only from your standpoint
of recommending people you represent the level of contribution
that's appropriate, or does it affect the outcome of legislation
or how we may vote on legislation outside the issue itself?
MR. RATCLIFFE: Assemblyman Frazee, the question is a
good example of the kind of thing we have to deal with. Keeping
in mind that I'm here representing only myself, the problems that
are represented by the overall relationships that develop around
here is one that, in the public perception sense, may not be
good. On the other hand, within the reality of dealing with very
important issues and with the timeframes which we very often have
to deal with when things are extremely short, for people to get
to know each other in the sense of knowing who you trust and who
you don't trust, who you can rely on, who you can't rely on, the
extent and depth of somebody's judgment and the extent to which
you can anticipate somebody to play games with a particular
issue, is a necessary thing.
We go through that process, however, you're right.
It
tends rather naturally, beyond those kinds of things, into the
situation of "Can I get a new client? Can I keep an existing
client?" In that context, I think I have had problems.
I have
had members of my profession attempt to come to people in the
legislature and get them to convey to my clients that I'm doing a
lousy job and what they should do is hire this other person. Now,
I find that not only distasteful, unethical, and a few other
other things, but it's kind of irritating. When that occurs, I
would expect the member or the legislator involved to do what I
assume they would expect me to do under a similar circumstance,
and that is to conduct myself or yourself in a manner such that
you feel is proper.
If a constituent calls and asks should they
hire Dick Ratcliffe or should they replace Dick Ratcliffe, I
think you need to answer that
a way you're comfortable.
If
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you feel that I have done a decent job, knowing what I do,
knowing the issues, I think it's appropriate.
If you don't know
and say so, that's appropriate.
If you feel that I have done a
job that's subject to criticism on what you regard as a
legitimate basis, I think it's part of what I assume in living in
this world.
I would hope that my clients not come and ask you, but
that's probably based on the assumption that I'm a bit of a
paranoid. That comes from experience, but I think those kinds of
problems exist. I don't know that there's a ready-made answer.
I think that the answer is pretty clear-cut, in that if you
should help me get a client, and I respond by trying to help you
get an inordinate share of a campaign contribution that my client
has, I think there's something wrong with that. To me that sends
up a balloon that this really isn't ethical, and I should not do
that, and if I'm operating properly, I would assume I not do
that.
On the other hand, if you should give me an assist in
getting a client based upon what you feel and what you've seen of
my conduct, I certainly owe you all kinds of thanks, and I
appreciate it, and perhaps go the extra mile to try to understand
what your problems are as we work together on the issues.
I
think it's the problem, the problem of how you conduct yourself
in a proper manner, and I think each of us has to deal with that
on our own.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Let me just take one more step
very carefully. The situation that was relayed to me -- and I
don't even know names of individuals involved in this -- but an
issue that was of particular importance to a representative of an
industry who visited a member and said, "What can I do to stop
this legislation? I've already hired X and Z," and the response
was, "Well, I think you really should hire Y also."
"Well, why should I do that?"
"Well, he's a good guy and he needs a break," and to me,
I think that is perhaps stepping over that line of appropriate
conduct. You know, on the part of the advocate who accepted a
job under that circumstance and the member who made that
suggestion to the individual in the first place.
MR. RATCLIFFE: I agree with that, that something -perhaps I should have said this earlier. To my mind, the role of
an advocate is one where we owe a fair amount of our time and
effort in terms of explaining the world in which we live as seen
through the collective eyes of the legislature to our clients.
We should not passively take what our client wants and run off
and try to get it. Rather, we should try to work with the
process to accomplish their purpose. I think it's an important
part of the process.
On the other hand we have an obligation to the client to
try to accomplish the purposes they have hired me for.
But as
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you do that, I think that both of us in dealing with those people
need to keep in mind that, the process we're talking about is one
which is a mystery to people outside this process, and I think
all of us know people within the process to whom it's apparently
a
also.

I

As we deal with it, I think that the process is such
that we need to make sure that the people we're dealing with
understand
it's not necessarily the number of people that
you
It's not necessarily the size of the package that you
have. It's not necessarily the image that you present. Rather
these are substantive issues. The process is on in which 120
people and
governorhave an opportunity and the necessity to
express themselves. As you go through that process, there are a
lot of options. Each issue has it own series of options, which
the intelligent participant in the process will consider.
I
think a lot of people tend to feel that, "Well, gee, if I hire X,
that solves it because I read in the newspaper that he really has
killed a lot of bills," and I think you and I both know that's
not necess
ly the case.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: In your rules of conduct, in
your bylaws, were these a continuing kind of process? When were
they drawn up?
MR. RATCLIFFE: Assemblywoman Killea, we started two
years ago. They were adopted by the organization with one
dissenting vote in January.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: That answers my question.
I
guess this is jumping ahead a little bit, but you have said it
here: it's a
s of judgment of your peers, or judgment by
the
, someone
may have committed misconduct. I'm sure
't had an opportunity to jump into that yet.
That
one of the things we're going to be facing.
Do
you see
as being effective in the legislative body? It's a
little bit different, because we have our independence, because
we're voted in by people with whom we're the main conduit of
information
contact. So
's a little different from,
certainly, your situation. Do you see this as being workable, a
workable process for your organization, and would something like
that apply to
legislature?
MR. RATCLIFFE: It's difficult at this point to answer.
Let me try to give you my -ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: You set
some hopes
would work.

up, so I assume you

I have some very strong concerns about
or not. As a private organization, we have
with the laws in terms of creating an
for our members.
If we decide that you
requirement of due process. There's
It gets very difficult.
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Rather than try and deal with that, we took the
viewpoint
we are a voluntary group. We do not include all
the lobbyists among our membership. The result is, we tried to
set a standard that
1 of us could be better and being better,
hopefully, it would help everybody else. For those who are
relatively new to the business, we provide some hopefully
thoughtful instructions in terms of what the unwritten rules are
and how they should act based upon an attempt to make a judgment
not on good or bad but rather on an effectiveness basis of what
has worked for a group of us over a period of time.
You indicate correctly that your role is different than
ours. You have the ability to reach out and provide enforcement,
far easier than ourselves. On the other hand, we have some of
the same problems, in that -- say I represent one company among
the group of ten who have a common problem. If we disagree
strongly with the viewpoint of that group, our company disagrees
strongly with that group, or we, as advocates, disagree strongly,
we still have to make the decision of how we are gong to deal
with that. Do we shut up and go along with the group when we
think
's not the right thing to do? Do we go back and talk to
our constituents and say, "Look, here's the problem. They're
going to the left. I think I'll go to the right, and unless you
tell me not to, I'm going to the right." Again, those options
are there, and it gets down to how do we deal with those, and
those same problems are there. They come in different forms, but
that's
bas
problem.
I don't know that what we've got will be helpful.
I
have a fear. My fear is that, as you put together your overall
package and your construct, I would hope that you not look at
what we have done as a fall-in chunk to deal with lobbyists,
because
was
there as a voluntary thing.
It was put there
as an effort to try to put together what people could agree upon
and what people should strive for.
It is not necessarily the
kind of thing that any one of us would agree to if it were
mandated and if we had to live by it. On the other hand, the
intention of a great number of us is to do just that, to live by
it.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Thank you very much.
Okay.

Thanks, Dick.

Thanks a

lot.
I'm going to ask that the remaining witnesses, if you
would, particularly
to add anything that hasn't been covered,
but to kind of flesh out our agenda so this thing can go forward.
There are some
committees we need to get to.
Herman.
am
of Women
I

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members.
legislative representative for the League
i
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I'm sorry.
I was not here earlier, and consequently I
have not heard what everyone has said. However, my statement
will be brief.
I was struck by a comment I heard just last week on the
subject of ethics in a different context. The speaker remarked
that a society that behaves ethically does so almost
unconsciously without discussing it, and the reason for that is
because everybody has the same cultural values. Consequently,
everyone's beliefs are the same. They don't have to talk about
it. They know what the right behavior is.

•

When a society begins to discuss ethics, then it's got
problems.
I'd like to approach this subject in terms of
restoring and maintaining public confidence in the legislative
body.
There are some areas that we think are cause for concern
and that are worthy of your attention. Most those revolve around
the subject of campaigns, the way the campaigns are financed, the
way that they are run.
We still believe that you need expenditure limits on
campaigns. We also believe that there should be aggregate
contribution limits in order to be effective. We think that you
need to look at the subject of off-year fund-raising, to ban or
limit honoraria, and to look at the subject of tighter campaign
disclosure laws secured on funds that are directed by contract
lobbyists.
We'd like to have you take a close look at disc
of
economic interests for the members of this body. We believe that
you should look at the way staff are used for campaigns, and
aside from the issue of campaigns and how they are run, those are
the things that the public sees most and are most concerned
about, and for that reasons, you hear comments mostly from the
public about the area of campaigns and how they are conducted.
On the subject of your own internal procedures, I think
that you should look at the way that both fiscal committees
handle the suspense file.
Over the last few years, many years,
the legislature has become very open to the public. The notice
of hearings has become much better.
We had conference committees that were closed to the
public when I first began here. Those have been opened.
However, the handling of the suspense files, it seems to me, is
an area in which we are moving backwards, and there is less
public information and disclosure on what happens to the bills on
the suspense file and consequently, less accountability.
Those are the comments that I have to make this
afternoon.
I appreciate the opportunity to put them before you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Thank you, Margaret.
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Comment

?

: Just because it happens to be
statement
the disclosure, about the
suggest how that could be any more
to me that it's complete as --

h

•re fairly broad, for one thing,
which I don't know what can be
that you need to look at
on issues in which they

and
done.
from
have an
categories

FRAZEE: You mean it's broad by the
of $10,000 to $100,000?

If a conflict exists, wouldn't
would at $99,000?

it
MS

so

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
that
disc

feel
do not
the access

I'm just trying to think how
It seems to me that the
complete. The conflict
looked at.

You, representing the League,
access to the members because you
? Do you feel you have
of the group you represent?
ing question.
I've been
for about sixteen
was very easy to see almost any
considerably more difficult
reporting the same kind of thing
There are several possible
situation has changed
the explosion

of

s

that has been about

I'd

to

same

::

, Mr. Chairman,
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that I spent better than an hour with four of your members last
Friday in my district off
MS. HERMAN:

We all

CHAIRMAN ,£1,.... ._...,...,.._..,.........,,...,...,:

you're running

clean, Mr. Frazee.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

I

have my meeting next

Friday.
Thank you, Margaret.
MS. HERMAN:

You

some tomorrow.

They're in

town.
Okay.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

The next witness, Yolanda

Reynolds, Latino Issues Forum.
MS. YOLANDA REYNOLDS:
members of
committee.

Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman,

I want to c
one thing. I'm not speaking for the
Latino Issues Forum,
to let you know a little bit about me.
I am the founder
a neighborhood association
the city I live
in, the City of San Jose, very active. I also am currently on
the Board of
of that neighborhood association as well
as the Santa
Association for Good Government. This
will give you
I'm coming from.

I'm
you, f
of
invitation to
and, in fact,
and local ,
serious concern
democracy
at
number of

•

I'm
community,
have much
is documentation
I was told, as
wanted a broad

a citizen. I want to tell
heartened to receive the
group, because
our community
happening nationally, statewide,
with regard to government is of
I personally believe that
take some decis
action on a
certainly one.
a
in the
to say is
on fact, of which I
1 qualify that. What I had to have
the remarks I'm going to make, and
out, Mr. Chairman, that you
of what I'm going to speak on.
government, and the
of San Jose. A
streets, and
government, all
is a real need to

reason
number
what I

going on

You'
Los

lus

to things that are
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Let me say that we want to
ethics in the Assembly.

listen

I'm making some
Which overlap with the common
MS • REYNOLDS:

I've
ass

is
law
out the ones
for example,
stream that
municipality in
state policies
in which a state
action be
That was
severity
action.

she's
counc
munic
statement
staff.

response when we tried to get some
sues that we're facing, and this really
there are state laws that go to the local
, are being -- as was pointed out to you
of the law and, in fact, the letter of
, and since it is state law, I think it
lators to see that the spirit of the
the letter of the law is followed.
a number of areas, and I'd like to point
are familiar with. One of them,
That has created a new revenue
of control of the citizens of the
Another one is that there are
c
zen's safety. I was at a hearing
agency recommended that a particular
citizens' safety would be at risk.
a day late, despite the
occur because of the proposed
We've had a lot of
, and it exists at the
Miss Baker-- I'm sorry
they can report to the city
1
venture
couldn't find in our
statement or their personal finance
off
In fact, they reduced
agenda in our newspaper. We
to say, to get that
where, for whatever
there are some serious
after the fact to get even an
local district attorney. This
to go, and I am
relative to laws that extend
,
ause whether -- it is
ly and lack of interest at
to do something is what's
among
affluent as well

as
if we don't have more
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participation in our government process, we don't have
government.
It is a government run by just a few people and a
few special interests who feel they're going to get something out
of it.
Now, the other matter
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Excuse me.
I need to go to
another committee. Okay. You're going to go? Okay.
MS. REYNOLDS: Somebody just left who talked about an
increase in salary, and until and unless there is some kind of
reform relative to ethical issues and political PAC's, the
community at large is not interested in giving anybody in elected
office a salary increase.
I'll speak for myself.
I spend hours
and hours of my time watchdogging what goes on in the community,
and there's others like me, and we're not getting paid for it,
and it's unfortunate that we have to do that because we have
discovered that the future for our children and the future of
our democracy is truly at stake.
I'm sorry that you're here listening and seeing that
frustration.
Obviously, you're interested but must understand
this is a frustration of the citizens of the state, this very
great state.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Any questions? One, I think,
just a comment, having been in local government and having
watched the same process, the same malaise, if you will, on the
part of the voters, seems to apply to local government, too.
I
don't see that much difference. The local government is handier
and gets beat up on more in that sense, and there's nothing wrong
with that.
I think the frustration is that we appear to be further
away, but I think the malaise is not just aimed at the state or
federal.
I think it's pervasive, as I see it, and I think the
bigger problem is not just with local government.
Now, your comment on the interconnection, I think, is a
very important one because it's very easy to say, "Well, that's
the state government. That's the federal government. You can't
do anything about it." I do think there is some responsibility
on the part of all
s to make it better, a better connection
there, and I think that's a good suggestion.
MS. REYNOLDS:
If the law is good for the state and the
legislature
ses
,
I think
's incumbent upon the
legislature to make sure that the spirit and letter of he law is
followed.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Thank you very much.

Mr. Lancaster has a question.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Miss Reynolds, I would like
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to ask you one question.
I appreciate your very fine comments.
I believe what you're really saying is that it's a matter of
informat
Is
very difficult for you to get information?
Is that
're s
?
MS. REYNOLDS:

Well, that's not all of it.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Part of it?

MS. REYNOLDS: It's part of it, but the other part is
that we do know the laws. But where do we go to get redress?
What we would have to do in our particular situation is to go to
court. You know what that costs, and that's not the way to run
government. We should be able to sit down and discuss things.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: In order for you to make a
value judgment based upon an individual, on what any governmental
entity has done, you try to seek out information, and you're
finding it difficult at the local level to secure the information
you feel
necessary to make a value judgment?
MS. REYNOLDS: We've had to make value judgments with
regard to comments about personal finance and this type of thing.
It is extremely difficult to find out who, in fact, owns property
and what kind of decisions are going to be made.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Is this on the redevelopment
agencies, or is
relative to -- this is getting away from the
charge of the select committee, but one of the things I'm kind of
getting through all this testimony is that there's a need to
perhaps improve the informational stream, and I guess that's
where I'm kind of corning from, and your remarks indicate that's
true also.
MS. REYNOLDS:
needs to be a
interests of

There is that kind of problem, and there
of keeping track of the financial
get elected.

I agree
the comments made by Common Cause and the
League of Women Voters, in fact, with almost everything, but what
they pointed out in that is that it is a systemic problem.
I've
seen good people come into office, but it's extremely difficult
to retain a sense of integrity once they're in in some of these
instances.
It's just too difficult.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: All the more reason why people
who feel strongly about that should take part.
problem
course,
others
and organizat

your remarks because it is a much broader
we're deal
with. We're trying to start out
of
can come to an agreement on some
ion for this body. Then, of
effect will affect some of the
our relationship with some of the agencies
're talking about.
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MS. REYNOLDS: I do hope that you don't forget that
regardless of what you do, if there's a complete blind eye to
what's going on elsewhere, it's a problem. Again, I go back to
the fact that it is state law that's been passed by the
legislature.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Do you know about the district
office of your state legislators? Because there is a district
office there, as far as the informational aspect, and maybe one
of those would help you and, if not, go to another one.

I

MS. REYNOLDS: Yes. We have, and we've written many
letters. We've had contact with the district attorney's office.
I just know all the people that are involved, and too bad, they
have to work, and I came. Yes, we do, and it's such an
aggravating problem that I am here, spending all day.
I drove by
myself to come up here.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: I really appreciate it, Ms.
Reynolds, and thank you very much for appearing.
Our last witness today is Don Gutridge, who is President
of the Foundation to Promote Positive Learning Processes.
I'm sorry. This isn't our last witness.
will be our last witness today.

Ralph Morrell

Go ahead.
MR. DON GUTRIDGE: Madam Chairwoman and members, I've
heard it said by a man by the name of Kevin Robert that no one
has yet found a
to
a second chance at a first impression,
and the comments I want to share with you today relate to the
first impression I had of our state government in 1958, when I
was in the eighth grade.
I was a page boy here.
ASSEMBLY
Before you start,
familiar with the
Processes, Master
all to me.

MEMBER LANCASTER: May I ask a question first?
because I hate to interrupt you, I'm not
Foundation to Promote Positive Learning
Mind Dynamics. Could you please explain that

MR. GUTRIDGE: Okay
The Foundation to Promote Positive
Learning Processes
a foundation founded here in January of
last year by Burl Waits, who is a local attorney in town. The
purpose of that foundation, primarily, is to identify positive
learning processes, in other words, processes which bring our
success and self-esteem
movement toward achievement from
people and to
together with the people who are
looking for
Is it statewide or for
, or just --?
MR. GUTRIDGE::
the National Counc

1, we're talking right now of NCSE,
Self-Esteem and intend to be nationwide.
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That's in the process right now.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So, it's part of the
self-esteem process that we're entering now?
MR. GUTRIDGE: Not exclusively self-esteem, no.
Self-esteem seems to be an inherent part of most any positive
learning process, yes, but that is not our exclusive focus.
Anyway, my impression then was that the people here in
government were people who were really sincere, and I just had an
awe for the people who were participating in government. When I
came to Sacramento a year and a half ago, my impression was quite
different as I sat in the gallery of the Assembly and watched
people speaking. Yet everyone else was speaking to everyone
else, and when it came time for a vote, one person would run back
and forth pushing other people's buttons and so forth.
In counseling, I work with people pushing other people's
buttons in a different way.
What I learned was it didn't seem to be a process of
integrity.
It didn't seem to be a process which spoke to me of
the integrity I had seen when I was younger, here as a young
person, and that's what I want to speak to you today about.
First of all, I want to talk about what's on the
surface.
I want to talk about the doing that takes place that
creates what's on
surface. Then I want to talk about some
new directions in creating a new system.
I've heard this said
several times today. There is a systemic problem, and I believe
it's true.
I believe there are systems that can be used to
facilitate
integrity that we are talking about here.
of all, I want to talk about what's on the
surface, and what
on
surface is a reflection of what we're
feeling deeper inside. What's on the surface is what the public
is drawing their perception from.
For example, if I had -- well, I did. When I walked
into the Assembly, I saw what was going on.
I thought, "Well,
gee, that's not how I get results in meetings," and I thought,
"How can
do that?" Then, of course, I got the understanding
from talking to one
that what happens is that you
participate in meetings outside of those assemblies, and then my
mind says, "Well, what is the purpose of the Speaker? What is
the purpose of someone standing up and giving a talk if no one's
going to
to
because they've already made up their
mind?"
answer to that question, but it
to use the process, then we ought to
that we have intended, and that's
to do.

I

seems to
have
what I
So,

f

is that we ask,

"What is the
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focus of people's faith now in terms of our government?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Excuse me. What you're
saying, in ef
, is that our appearance to the layperson, when
they come
to see us, they all seem to go away with the image
that they tell their friends about. And they tell their friends
about it, and the next thing you know we're not held in high
esteem because of that image that we, ourselves, create by
appearances that you saw on the floor?
MR.. GUTRIDGE:

•

I saw, yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: That's a normal criticism
that we do receive quite often.
I've had people say to me, "Gee,
I hope you know what you're doing, because I sure don't," and
that's how you perceive it. And part of what you're saying here
is that we help create our own image problem by the way we're
conducting our affairs, right?
MR. GUTRIDGE: It cold be said that way, yes, and I want
to mention that John Larson mentioned earlier about this idea of
well, he didn't. He said it didn't matter whether it was true
of not, but
was not important. What was important was the
appearance.
I suggest to you that it does matter whether it's true
or not, and to me, if we're ust going to be concerned about the
appearance,
we're out
integrity.
What I

image to
committee
whether
Now,
sincerity that I
really has.
said, "What
It seems to
that we are
these
as we're
government
government
quest
their act
submit

like to have in
reflected out
not
I want
, to me,

life, personally, is to
reflect who I really am,
others to think I am, but
very
fferent.

we expose the facade for the new
that's one charge that this
cons
, exposing that facade, whatever it is,
context of the Assembly meetings or whatever.
true image is the image of
one participating in government
thing
looking below
surface. Emerson
speaks so loudly I can't hear what you say."
we can't hide the truth, and if it is true
our desire to serve this government and
1 reflect what we do
our sincere commitment to this
the integrity
people in this
needs to be addressed. No one
First Continental Congress because
to this country. And I
participate in government,
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support our intention to serve it, there will be no more need to
question our integrity.
So
recommendation is that we face and tell the
truth about our actions and realign them to our sincere desire to
serve. When we're ready to do that, then there's no more
problem, is there?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Well, I must say, I appreciate
your comments as an ideal. The actual situation in which the
issues we deal with are very complex, and I don't know what size
organizations you've chaired, but when you have eighty people,
you don't have a long discourse about some complicated issue.
That's why we have the committee system.
I'm sure in the organizations that you belong, you
handle issues the same way, but I agree that there is a lack of
decorum and seeming interest when it gets to the floor, and
that's something I deplore. But it isn't that nobody's thinking
about it and nobody hasn't given it careful though with
integrity. By the time it gets to the floor, it's gone through
the committee, and if that committee has come to a judgment that
you don't agree with entirely but is what this particular body
came up with at this particular time, you support it because
that's progress. It may not be the progress you want.
take the

So it's not nearly so simple as saying we're going to
off, as you said, and present the real us.

I agree
your other remark that we shouldn't worry
about being something we aren't for appearances' sake.
I agree
with that completely,
there is a problem of being who you are
and having it misinterpreted, and that's something you have to
fight against,
you certainly have to be very well aware of
that.
I appreciate your ideal, but it's certainly, from the
viewpoint of the product we come up with, may not be very ideal,
the best that we'd like to see, but it's not because of lack of
integrity necess
There are other factors.
MR. GUTRIDGE:
I agree.
I would suggest that there are
systems that would
ilitate coming up with solutions that would
be more closely al
to the ideal.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
anything like
MR.

study -- you
regarding
that I would

I

would be interested in

Mainly, I would suggest that in your
in the letter that I got
there are three systems of thought
at.
mind concept written by Natomi
of that names, as the key factor,
you have the factor of harmony, then
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everyone subordinates their personal desires for the desire of
the purpose of that group, and when that happens, you don't have
things that cause the conflicts because people aren't attached to
their own particular views. They're attached, rather, to the
purpose of the group. Then that is what gets served.

•

The second one that I recommend, which is very closely
aligned to it, is the concept of synergy, written about by
Buckminster Fuller. Also, there's a local lady by the name of
Jeri Frields, who is founding the Institute for Synergis.
They're putting together about twenty people creating a doctrine
in synergistic learning -- these people are educators, primarily
-- to facilitate this process of "The whole is greater than the
sum of its parts." When that process is used in group dynamics,
then you'll have something that will work.
So I suggest looking
at that one, and also, then, the concept of group dynamics.
Some questions, I suggest, that could be asked are, "Is
our commitment to service or to campaigning? Is it to quality
representation of the whole or to the part? Is
to our
individual turf or to the turf of the Assembly and the state? Is
our commitment to winners and winners or to winners and losers?"
When you look at it from the synergistic perspective,
everyone is a winner, and when that happens, then each
perspective is held as something valued on the part of the whole,
and then the outcome becomes very different.
My third recommendation
that the Assembly seek to
learn about and use the concepts of synergy, the master mind, and
the group dynamics.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
Any questions?

I

Thank you very much.

appreciate your coming today.

Morrell?
MR. RALPH MORRELL: My name is Ralph Morrell.
I chair a
statewide voluntary nonpartisan group commonly known as Operation
Slush Fund.
It represents, through city and county governments,
about six million Californians.
I wouldn't
that the details of what I address you
with would conform to each one of these local governments, but
the basic fact that I want to speak of is supported by formal
resolutions, or letters, of those thirty-two or thirty-three city
and county
the thirtyor so public service
taxpayer groups,
will.
the
I
term "s
,"so
designated as Slush
Inc
he

General's representative use the
request at this time that he be
and I'll be Slush Fund One.
,

Attorney General
written me that
concept of what Operation Slush Fund is
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trying to do. That's Attorney General John van de Kamp.
He has
written me and stated that he supports that.
I would that that
would have some meaning.
Before I go any further, I have a tape recording.
It's
about less than a minute, thirty or thirty-five seconds.
It's a
significant part of this presentation.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Is it audible?

We'll listen to

it.
(Whereupon a tape recording was played):
"This is Quentin Kopp. Ten days ago, I began
radio ads explaining my independent candidacy for
the state Senate. Now my opponent, Louis Papan,
has responded with a vicious, deceitful radio
attack on my honesty.
To make it worse, Mr. Papan
lacks the courage to make his false attacks in a
public debate. Mr. Papan talks about his high
goals in one breath and then purposely lies with
his next breath. The truth is Mr. Papan has yet
to be honest with the public.
"For example, why did Mr. Papan punch a
fellow legislator in the face in the state
Capitol? How did Mr. Papan become a
self-proclaimed multimillionaire in just eight
years in the Assembly? Why did Mr. Papan become
partners in a bank when he sits on a committee
that oversees banking in California? Why won't he
allow an audit of the legislature's secret $150
million slush fund?"
MR. MORRELL:
I will be very brief.
I'd like
complete my statement and then answer any questions.

to

First,
I'd like to speak to the issue, and I appreciate
that the gentleman who spoke before referred just in passing to
the conduct which has become commonly known across the state as
vote-switching. He referred to "ghost voting," where members run
from desk to desk pushing the buttons of their absent colleagues.
According to the senior members of the Capitol Press
Corps, these practices have been prohibited for about forty years
in the Assembly rules, but at some time it became the practice to
ignore these rules. Therefore,
it seems logical to conjecture
that
the Assembly at one time was
able to fulfill its
responsibilities under the prohibition against vote-switching and
ghost-voting and vote-adding.
As a matter of fact,
there is a publication of the
California Legislature by Mr. Beak, who tells all about that in a
couple of pages how
was back in 1925 and 1937, when someone
attempted to
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Your methods of operation, which have been referred to,
can be modified to preclude any excuse for engaging in this
conduct, which has been universally condemned, and it does
nothing for the perception of your ethical standards, believe me.

•

I've talked to people all across this state about slush
fund spending. For those who are not aware, we refer to the
state
budget, $40 billion, and the state statute in the
Government Code, Section 925.6, which, in essence, says that
nobody can get a dime out of that budget of $40 billion absent
approval of the State Controller.
But then the legislature
enacted Section 9230 of the Government Code, which, in effect,
says,
"That law doesn't apply to us and our $200 million that we
spend on our own business."
Now the fact that this money is spent may or may not be
appropriate.
I see in the Sacramento Union this morning and in
other papers a great hue and cry, perhaps appropriate, about this
amount of money. It's gone up since I first began looking at it,
from $67 million $200 million.
The Assembly, through AB 45 -- this is an area which
deals with the question of ethics
over my objections and the
objections of my colleagues in the Assembly, the Assembly passed
AB 4564 and attempted to pass off this fatally flawed so-called
slush fund reform measure containing hearts and flowers, if you
will, but very little which would actually do anything to correct
the situation. One thing it did do was to take the situation
where a legislator or staff goes to the Controller, Treasurer,
and gets a travel advance of $1500 and flies to washington, D.C.,
on official business. He comes back three days later, and eleven
months later he reconciles the expenses against -- with the
advance -- and turns it back in, in this one instance $540.20 -an allowance, if you will, a loan from a tax-free entity of the
taxpayers' money for a period of eleven months.
Ms. Betty Baxter, the Chief of the Audits Division in
the State Controller's Office advised me at the time that there
were as many as fifty of these transactions outstanding at any
given time for a period of as long as twelve months.
AB 4564 was killed in the Senate Rules Committee, and
they are now putting together another measure anticipated to
provide meticulous control and detailed reporting of legislative
spending, because a problem that you face will disappear if the
public can see what it is that you're doing and if the reports
are accurate and complete.
This will abate the barrage of
critical press reports that are so distressing to all of you.
With respect to the slush fund, I'm going to read to you
just an excerpt from a copy of the Alameda County Grand Jury
report which was produced at my insistence, more or less.
I have
copies that can be provided to the committee. The Grand Jury of
Alameda County was asked to investigate the charge that the
legislative contingency fund was not properly controlled.
We
were advised by counsel that this was not a matter in the grand
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jury's jurisdiction. They admitted to the possibility that, from
a
legal point of view, the question of jurisdiction was
debatable.
The nineteen members of the grand jury, however, as
citizens of Alameda County, went to the state Capitol to find out
what was going on. We, therefore, write this report.
We discovered the funds are initiated and made from time
to time by the legislature.
There are various legislative
committees that review the expenditures and set some guidelines.
But it seems that in the final analysis, the legislature is
accountable only to itself through the provisions of Section
9130.
We subsequently forced the legislature to ask the
Attorney General for a formal opinion, and he issued one in which
he said that's wrong. That's wrong. He, in essence in twelve
pages, said that the State Controller sits at the right hand of
God with regard to whether you can spend a dime out of the
treasury or not.
Horrors.
Controller says no.
or anyone else. You
of the Assembly and
as to whether or not

You
What
take
Gray

want a
typewriter, and the
State
do you do? You do just like I would do
it to the court. I can see the Speaker
Davis arguing before the Supreme Court

In any event, the recommendation of the Alameda County
Grand Jury was that the Board of Supervisors of Alameda County
pursue the establishment of a state grand jury which would be
made up of impartial citizens charged with the responsibility, at
the state level, similar to the responsibilities of a grand jury
at the county level.
In that regard, I would call to your attention -- and I
provided this also for the committee
to a copy of the
legislation
proposed by Congressman Frank
and Congressman
Dioguardi of New York. They've had some ethics problems up
there, and they put this together up there. There's one thing
that he says in his press release, Congressman Dioguardi, that
I'd like to comment on. He says, "This issue of ethics is not
one of individual or politics.
It's a question of process.
While I have the highest regard for the members of this Ethics
Committee, this house has proven itself incapable of properly
investigating itself.
By practice and by design, we are a
collegeal
body
that's
heavily
dependent
on
personal
relationships.
It is unreasonable to expect that members, who
operate in a closely knit atmosphere one day can turn and be
impartial judges against their colleagues the next day."
I wonder what the provisions of Article Four, Section
Five, the first sentence, of the California Constitution, mean
when they say that the members of the Assembly are the judges of
the qualifications thereof and by a two-thirds vote can expel any
member. Certainly, this doesn't fly.
In

any

event,

with the

exception of

that particular
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statement, I will
consideration.

turn

this

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

over

to

the committee

for its

Thank you.

MR. MORRELL: Finally, I will quote briefly from two
letters received last November responding to our appeal for
assistance in addressing the issue of legislative spending.
Although we make it clear that we are a nonpartisan group, the
letter stated, in part, "Our interpretation is that this issue
must be nonpartisan and not take a position on specific issues.
We
are
an
education
institute,
a teaching
institute.
Nevertheless, we admire your actions and pursuits. Thank you."

•

In the other letter, the board reaffirmed that, "The
institute is focusing its activity on education and resources in
serving as an educational institute, nonpartisan. The institute
is to pursue its mission to increase the ethical quality of
conduct in society. We support you, your endeavors, and wish you
the very best." It is signed "The Joseph Foundation."
In other words, "We pray for you, but get lost."
This bunch, as we understand, will be testifying next
week.
Like many others, they talk about but they don't produce
many results. Otherwise, we wouldn't have the Sacramento Sleeze.
The committee of this Legislature should carry out its
responsibilities under the provisions of Article Four, Section
Five of the California Constitution. And in the case of the
fellow who was relieved of his indictment under the appeals
court, there was a report in the Sacramento newspaper that the
members of the legislature knew what he was doing and they warned
him, and I submit to you, Madam Chairman and others, if they knew
what he was doing and they warned him, they had an obligation
under the provisions of Article Four, Section Five of the
California Constitution to call him up short, to discipline him
up
to and including
expulsion, notwithstanding what
the
congressman said about collegiality and so forth.
I am reminded, although I didn't attend a military
academy, I'm reminded that they have what they call a code of
conduct:
"I will not cheat, and I will not permit my colleague
to cheat." I don't think that's asking too much. Perhaps it is,
but in any event, I submit this for your consideration and thank
you very much. I'll answer any questions.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
Thank you very much.
We'll
make those available.
The sergeant can get those for us and
distribute them.
MR. MORRELL:

Thank you.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
ASSEMBLY

MEMBER

Thank you very much.

LANCASTER:

May

the

record reflect,
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Madam Chair, that there was a recording played?
reflect that?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Yes.
With that, the meeting is adjourned.

--oOo--
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I

CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS: Good afternoon. I would
like to welcome everyone to the third meeting of the Select
Committee on Ethics, created in January by the Speaker.
There are eight of us from across the state working to
design a policy of ethical behavior and process for the Assembly.
we had our first two meetings in February and adopted a work plan
and charter for ourselves.
We had a meeting a couple or three weeks ago and took
testimony from all who wanted to advise us of their concerns. We
designed an agenda for ourselves, and we will begin after Easter
on the various solutions. After that, we will deliberate and,
hopefully, produce a plan before the summer break.
We decided to go outside of our normal Capitol circles
and invite in three persons who are known for their background,
experience, and thoughtfulness in the area of ethics and public
life.

•

The purpose of today's hearing is to provide our members
and everyone in the Legislature the chance to discover and
discuss and evaluate the ethical standards for persons in
government, and the course we may have to undertake to assure
ourselves and the public both of the reality and the perception
of ethical conduct on behalf of the Legislature.
We have with us Mr. Brand, former Counsel to the House
of Representatives, now in private practice in Washington, D.C.,
specializing in various litigation including that involving
corporate and government ethics.
Mr. Josephson, founding president of the nonprofit
Joseph and Edna Josephson Institute for the Advancement of
Ethics, has a wealth of experience as an educator, attorney, law
professor, and business person as well.
Mr. Jennings is Associate for Policy Studies and former
Co-director, Legislative and Representative Ethics Project in the
Hastings Center in New York. Hasting Center is a think tank
specializing in ethical issues.
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I have done some work there with Daniel Callahan before.
We had some meetings in Berkeley on medical ethics at one point
that I was a party to.

We welcome you here from New York, as well as you, Mr.
Brand, from Washington. We appreciate your taking the time and
coming here to deepen our thinking and broaden it, because we
truly are committed to producing the best we can in the way of an
ethical system, Code of Ethics, education and enforcement.
We have had some discussions, each of us.
Part of our
work plan was that in order to not be eight of us separate from
the whole house, and to have the program that we develop become
the house's property, we decided that each one of us would
interview nine of our colleagues so that everyone in the Assembly
is a part of this effort. We chose to do that and then chose to
do it by alphabetical order and across party lines. So I got the
first nine, five Democrats, four Republicans.
The next person alphabetically, whoever he or she is,
took the next nine, and on through. Some of those interviews
been conducted and accomplished at this point. We might
a few moments if we have any comments to make about what we
learned or thought or what we were told to bring back to this
liberation.
One of the persons I talked with suggested that we ought
to be smart in terms of developing a system that would include
newcomers kind of a handbook of do's and don'ts: You do this
situation; you don't do this;
if this is presented to
, you immediately do this, and that we really have an
process that is explicit, not just generally about
s but that has some real practical cases and situations in
which people have some advice as to what to do.
Another colleague of mine, when I approached that
league, simply said, "My advice to you is, good luck." I have
a number of interviews to conduct.
Bob, do you have any general comments to bring back to
us?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ROBERT FRAZEE:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

I have not completed all of mine. We had some
scheduled, and they ended up being discussions as we were walking
down the hall.
Some of them were formal discussions with the
members where we sat down, and the views of the members that I
talked to ranged all the way from, "Let's not touch it at all,"
to some perhaps constructive suggestions.
One of the, I think, initial problems that we have with
this committee is a lack of understanding by the balance of the
membership of what our charge is and what our goal is.
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I think there was a general misconception on the part of
many members that we were an ethics committee in the sense of
statutory ethics committee, the Joint Ethics Committee, that this
Legislature already has.
It's there to review the actions of
members.
So, it took some explaining to convey to them that we
had a rather narrow charge and that, really, our goal was: one,
to look at a specific set of problem areas and, two, see if there
is a need for legislation in that.
In fact, as you and I
discussed, we went through a number of pieces of legislation that
have been introduced already, and we have decided that there are
some subject areas that are not appropriate to our jurisdiction
although they may tend to be in the area of ethics.
Principal problem areas, I think that I found, and this
is in talking to other members and my own feelings, deal first of
all in the area of honoraria and gifts. This, perhaps, is first
on the list of things causing a perception or image problem about
the Legislature. You've heard me express this before.
I think it probably should be our by-word that -- and I
have to think about this. This is a statement, I think, from law
school, which I have not attended. For those of you who have, it
is that one should avoid the appearance of wrong-doing as much as
avoiding the wrong-doing itself.
Is that a fair statement? Much of what creates a
negative ethical image, many times, is the appearance of
wrong-doing, rather than the wrong-doing itself, or the
difficulty in drawing that line.
One of the members that I talked to indicated that you
can't legislate ethics. That's in each individual's own make-up
and the way they conduct themselves, and if a person wants to be
unethical, they are going to do it no matter how many laws we
enact or how many courses we conduct or anything else along that
line.
You mentioned earlier, Mr. Chairman, in introducing one
of our presenters today, the subject of medical ethics.
I had
the opportunity this last year to -- in fact, it was the only
honoraria money I received, the one and only, a two-day meeting
of the American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology.
I worked
hard for that little bit of money.
I happened to sit in on a discussion, and this was an
opportunity to sit down with people in the medical profession,
generally, one or two legislators with five, or six, or ten
medical professionals and to have a free discussion with them.
One of the sessions that I particularly chose to sit in on was
the one on medical ethics.
I found, contrary to what I would have believed going
in, that there was a wide range of views among medical
professionals on what ethical behavior was.
It was an eye opener
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to me.
It was all over the board.
I think that is what we are
going to find in conducting our own project here.
Conflict of interest is certainly one that creates some
image problems.
I think it is possible for a person that has a
technical conflict of interest to divorce himself from that and
judge or vote on the matter clearly from what is good for their
constituents and for the people of California.
There are cases where the image problem, where there is
not wrong-doing but the appearance of wrong-doing, comes in, and
where there is the need to avoid going beyond what is reasonable
to avoid those conflict of interest situations.
One of the other comments that came actually from more
than one member is the view that the very structure that we
operate under here is one that creates some of the image problems
and some of the perception of unethical behavior, that perhaps
even that the difference between the Senate system and the
Assembly system probably tends to give the Assembly a more
negative image than the Senate has in that regard because of the
method in which the two houses are structured and the contrast
between the bipartisan Rules Committee structure in the Senate
and the powerful Speaker in our house.
That very structural arrangement, in the view of some of
our members, tends to create problems.
I think that is what I
have to report on at this point.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay.
I would like to take Ms.
Killea and then let's go to the witnesses and give them all the
time that we have. We can get to the rest of the members next
time.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER LUCY KILLEA:
I managed to talk to six
out of the nine.
I still haven't had an opportunity to meet with
the last of the nine.
There were varying views ranging from concern about what
is legitimate outside income for legislators, the whole area, the
salary, recommending particularly that an outside commission be
established to decide salaries, or the other one was that we have
longer legislative terms to prevent the pressure on people that
our two-year terms provide.
It's a nice idea, but one that we
would probably have a bad time coming up with. That was
mentioned several times.
Certainly, recommending higher legislative salaries and
eliminating honoraria or limiting honoraria in some very strict
way was mentioned.
Also, several things were suggested on limiting the
number of bills and then spending the money saved on more
oversight hearings so that we could see that the bills we did
pass are actually implemented appropriately and so on, which I
thought was an interesting idea.
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Two people stressed the problem of education in ethical
conduct, having some kind of ethics guidelines and so on,
particularly for staff as well as members and to have better
local press coverage and investigation of the legislative process
in Sacramento.
I think it was even -- somewhere along
suggested, and this might be something we would
encourage but somehow subsidize, that we pass a
would be direct public viewing of what is going

the line -not only
bill so there
on here.

I also have an advisory committee, which we met with
last week in my home city. We have eighteen members on that, and
fourteen were present.
I did kind of a sneaky thing.
I have an automobile
dealer, a stockbroker, a savings and loan person, and other
people who are having their own ethical problems. Of course we
have medical people, a doctor, and a whole range of others, but
the main emphasis of that was not so much the detailed
legislation, as we are concerned with, but the establishment of
some kind of valid and enforceable, if you will, code of ethics
and the question of education more generally, not just for
legislators.
In other words, the concern was a societal one
almost, not just the Legislature.
That was certainly very much in the forefront of
everyone's minds. Generally, I had the same experience that Bob
did, the misunderstanding about what we were about on this select
committee, and I did try to inform them on that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Bob and I talked after our first or second meeting about
what were the parameters of our charge. We came to a fairly
clear assessment that the Burton Committee, created by the
Speaker, was particularly charged with looking at issues of
internal house management, logistics of administration. Those,
by and large, are not ethics issues, although there is a
relationship, and those would not be within our purview as we
look at ourselves.
The Elections Committee, by and large, has the issues of
how you get here in terms of campaigns. While there is a
correlation, that is not particularly what this committee is.
This committee is particularly about behaving ethically once you
are here. What kinds of behavior are appropriate, what kinds of
behavior are not appropriate, what kinds of adjudication process,
what kinds of rules, what kinds of education programs would
really address that issue, and there are links to the issue of
how much money or what kind of management of the house which we
might look at in gross terms, but as far as the particulars, all
we would do is get ourselves in a mire that we couldn't get out
of if we tried to be all things to all people.
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So we are looking particularly at how legislators and
their staff, and with them the advocates and perhaps others as
well, should comport themselves in order to provide an assurance
of integrity and ethical behavior, as well as the impression of
it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: At this point, let's go to the
witnesses, two of them, since they have come a long distance, and
be sure we give them all the time that they would like, and us
with them.
Thank you for joining us.
Our first witness is Mr. Stan Brand, former Counsel to
the House of Representatives, a lawyer now in litigation with
respect to ethics.
MR. STAN BRAND: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of
the committee. It's a pleasure to be here. I deeply appreciate
the opportunity to appear before you and talk about an issue that
I think is increasingly important to the preservation of public
confidence in the Legislature, and that's ethics.
I always tell an epochal story about my tenure in the
House and my private practice. I attended Paul Kirk's birthday
party about six months ago, and one chairman of a committee came
up to me and was going to shake my hand, and the photographer was
there about to take our picture, and every aide present broke in
between us and said, "No, don't have your picture taken with
Brand. They will think you're under investigation."
So I certainly appreciate your invitation,
notwithstanding my reputation in the Washington community.
I have been involved in the issue of legislative ethics
for over fifteen years, both in the House and in private
practice.
Very briefly, I served as Chief Counsel to the United
States House of Representatives, under Speaker O'Neil's tenure,
during one of the most active periods of the development of
ethics standards, including enactment of the Federal Election
Campaign Act, the Ethics in Government Act, the reform and
expansion of House and Senate Rules, and what I would say is the
virtual explosion in ethics cases brought about by Korea-gate,
Abscam, the so-called Page Scandal, and the prosecution of other
cases during that time.
I assisted in drafting and implementing ethics standards
and litigation before the federal courts, including the Supreme
Court, involving the self-disciplinary processes.
Since leaving the House in 1983, I have remained
actively involved in my representation of over twenty sitting
members of the House and Senate in ethics and criminal
proceedings, as well as private corporations, and outside
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entities seeking advice on application of these standards, and
even in my appointment as Special Counsel to the House Ethics
Committee in 1984.
I consider myself a creature of the Legislature.
I was
reared in its processes and its traditions, and I revere the
popularly elected Legislature most among our democratic
institutions because it is closest to the people.

•

It is primarily for that reason that I wanted to appear
here today to help you if I could with this important subject.
I
want to address several issues: the need for and elements of an
effective internal ethics mechanism for the Legislature,
including the appropriate enforcement means; the relationship of
that process to law enforcement, as well as the creation of
substantive standards of conduct and the models upon which
standards could be based; and creating rules and standards of
sufficient clarity to enable members to avoid ethics problems.
First, it needs to be remembered that the legislative
self-disciplinary power is as venerable as the legislative
institution itself.
Indeed, it predates the Colonial Legislature
and is founded upon English Parliamentary law empowering the
Legislature to punish improprieties by members.
The California Constitution at Article IV, Section 5,
mirroring the federal Constitution, provides that each house
shall judge the qualifications and elections of its members and
by roll call vote entered in the Journal, two-thirds of the
members concurring, expel a member.
So the power to discipline and engage in the activity of
crafting codes and enforcing them is as old as the Republic.
There is no doubt in this day and age about the efficacy of the
Legislature to exercise that power.
I would like to focus now on what I see as the
boundaries of the ethics problems in the Legislature today and
the ways to deal with these issues. While the regulatory matrix
has become very complex, I really believe that the dimension of
the ethics problem can be reduced to some simple axioms.
In my experience, the largest number of ethical issues
arises from the acceptance by legislators of benefits, gifts, or
reimbursements from outsiders who have a direct interest in the
legislative process.
The American model of government, unlike its European
counterpart, is based on the sound premise that public service
should be publicly funded and all the emoluments and benefits of
office and the funding of activities that arise in connection
with public service should be paid for by the public.
As a tactful remark, when a democratic republic converts
salaried appointments into unpaid ones, I think one may conclude
that it's steering toward monarchy.
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The presumption in Congress is that if it is official
and representational in nature, it should be paid for by the
public appropriation of funds. This has resulted in several
rules, both in the House and Senate, barring the use of outside
funds to pay for expenses associated with the duties of an
office-holder, the so-called Office Account Rule, and a
prohibition on the acceptance of gifts, including gifts of
transportation, lodging, or entertainment aggregating over $100 a
year from persons with a direct interest in legislation.
In this connection, the bill which staff provided to me,
which is the current scheme as I understand it, bars receipt of
any gift or compensation for services or advice or other matters
related to the legislative process. This prohibition would seem
to reach only the most direct and blatant sale of legislative
services by a member and is probably already illegal under state
law.
It would not appear to reach the vast number of
instances where a member performs no direct service for
compensation but accepts a gift from a group with a direct
interest.
I noticed the Assemblyman's comments about appearance,
and that's really the issue here. The Legislature has an
interest in regulating not only those direct sales of legislative
services where there may be no direct guid pro guo but also any
conferral of benefits upon the legislator, because that would
affect, inevitably, the public's perception of the legislator's
relationships and motives.
For purposes of clarity, from my experience, a specific
dollar threshold, as is established in congressional rules,
provides a very good objective standard by which members can
guide their conduct, rather than a subjective standard.
The previous rule was "substantial value." The House
changed that in 1977 to a hundred dollar figure.
In the Senate,
it's the overnight rule: if it doesn't involve a gift of
overnight lodging, it's acceptable. That assures that diminished
gifts of food and entertainment will not be considered improper
and permits legitimate interaction between legislators,
constituents, and the organizations with whom they deal.
House and Senate rules exempt, for example, food and
beverages consumed at receptions or similar events, suitable
mementos of functions honoring the member, home state products,
and other minimum types of gifts. The rationale behind these
exemptions is to relieve members of burdensome record-keeping
requirements and accounting procedures and recognizes, as the
Ethics Manual has stated, that common sense judgment indicates
that there exists a category of gifts of such minimal value that
their acceptance does not create even a reasonable appearance of
improper influence, much less an actual threat to the member's
objectivity.
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Incorporation of a rule barring gifts over a certain
value from those with a direct interest in legislation
encompasses a concern with the appearance of impropriety as well
as the actuality of conflict.
In the Congress, people who have a direct interest are
companies that have lobbyists, companies that have political
action committees, or any other person who has an interest above
and beyond the general public's interest.
If the California Legislature functions like the
Congress, and my sense is that it is very similar in many
fundamental respects, there are legions of lobbyists, lawyers,
and representative groups seeking access to legislators to
advocate their legitimate concerns.
Indeed, access by these
groups is critical to informed legislation, and we should do
everything in our power to assure that their considerable
knowledge and expertise is fully available to the Legislature.
But my sense would be that Sacramento is like Washington
in another way. These legions of representatives are attempting
to obtain the ear of legislators in an environment where time is
precious and the pressure to resolve burning issues is intense.
These groups will seek out ways to be heard, furnishing
environments in which to do this which set them apart from their
lobbying competitors. This may be done innocently and with no
motive whatsoever to corrupt or influence, but inevitably it is
so perceived.
For example, in Washington the use of corporate planes
by legislators has become a common practice, with both
corporations and members seeking ways in which to use corporate
planes because of their obvious convenience compared to
commercial travel and, from the corporation's perspective,
because they provide a conducive and isolated business
environment.
In the case of one member whom I represented, the House
Ethics Committee found that the acceptance of corporate plane use
for official travel was a violation of several rules, although it
did not sanction the member because he reimbursed the company and
made public disclosure prior to the time that the committee
acted, but since that time, corporate travel has come under
increasing scrutiny and remains one of the most misunderstood
subjects which awaits unwary legislators and co~porate
representatives.
In my view, the Assembly would serve itself well by
clearly prohibiting the receipts of these kinds of gifts from
persons with a direct interest, along with other forms of gifts
that create ethical dilemmas for members or the appearance of
impropriety.
I also notice that honoraria was another such area.
Honoraria have been much in the news in Washington lately,

Page 77
icularly in terms of its link to the issue of salary of
The legal concept under which honoraria is seen as not
ing a gift is that they are payment for services rendered, a
speech, an article, or an appearance. So the member must give
equal value.
What has evolved in Washington, however, are
increasingly lengthy stays at resort hotels, sometimes
extravagant accommodations, by which the honoraria is paid, but
the member remains at the resort for several more days, raising
an issue concerning the receipt of a gift of lodging and
entertainment that exceeds what is actual and necessary, under
the rule, as associated with the honoraria.
I have advised all my clients to impose on themselves a
three-day rule: the day before, the day of, and the day after,
because to stay longer invites scrutiny that a separate gift has
been conferred of entertainment and lodging which is not directly
associated with the honoraria.
I think that is a very troublesome issue in the current
environment.
In washington, I think, it's an issue that has been
bubbling up for some time, and it only takes -- ethics, in one
sense, I like to say, is like the kid in school who throws the
spitball and the teacher doesn't see who it is and the whole
class gets in trouble. We all can use our good judgment about
staying within the limits, but one member will press the button
and the investigation will begin. Then the practice becomes
suspect from that time forward.
That is clearly happening in
Washington with respect to honoraria.
The committee would serve its members well if it would
ine what those limits are ahead of time.
It will be
protecting its members when it does that.
There are several other substantive standards that you
may want to consider. One is a bar on the conversion of campaign
funds for personal use.
Because of pressures on members to defray otherwise
unreimbursable and legitimate expenses from campaign funds,
renewed attention is focused on members' use of those funds.
Recently, the House Ethics Committee has had two proceedings with
respect to members who have had transactions with their campaign
committees and has interpreted this rule to include borrowed
loans from the committee for the member or use of the committee
funds as collateral for personal obligations.
I don't know what
the state of law is in California, but that one is something that
may bear examination.
Secondly, please consider standards requiring that
members do not exert their influence on the Legislature in a way
which insures their personal benefit.
Thirdly, consider financial disclosure rules requiring
members to file annual financial disclosure statements detailing
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outside income, transactions in property or security, holdings,
positions held on boards, associations, or outside organizations,
and the receipt of gifts and reimbursements. Disclosure remains
today, as it has been for years in this country, under the
securities laws and under other regulatory regimes, one of the
oldest ethics antiseptics available, and it instills public
confidence with greater awareness by the public of the potential
for conflict.
I also want to briefly discuss enforcement of internal
ethics rules and its relationship to law enforcement. Several
points need to be made, some with important separation of powers
overtones for the Legislature.
One lesson I have learned repeatedly is that the
enforcement of legislative ethics standards abhors a vacuum. If
the Legislature does not seize the initiative, other agencies and
institutions will occupy the field, and the Legislature will cede
an important constitutional power.
In addition to the impact which this will have on public
confidence, it will vest in other agencies unrestricted power to
police the Assembly but not always with the sensitivity to and
appreciation of the legislative precedence and customs which we
have come to understand and which must be considered to preserve
the Legislature as independent from its sister branches. That's
why I have recommended against wholesale delegation of this role
elsewhere. It strengthens the Legislature, and its branches and
committees, and asserts its constitutional role to supervise the
conduct of its members.
The one case that I argued in this area in the Supreme
Court, there was a good deal of precedent about the Supreme Court
kicking dirt on the House's disciplinary process as political.
We have come a long way since that early case to change that, so
that the court would perceive that the Congress was serious about
self-discipline, and when it did, there was a much greater
appreciation in the courts and in the public for the Congress's
ability to police its conduct.
Lastly, in asserting this rightful role, the Legislature
must temper its application of its rules with some fairness and
due process. The courts and the Executive Branch will step in
and hamper the Legislature if the rudiments of due process are
absent or if it appears that partisan motives or arbitrary
processes undergird self-disciplinary power.
In the Congress, the House of Representatives lost a
very famous case called Towle v. McCormick when it attempted to
discipline a member by excluding him from membership rather than
seating him. He was properly credentialed under the standing
qualifications clause, and in disciplining him they did that to
avoid the two-thirds vote that was necessary to expel.
The Supreme Court found that to be an unconstitutional
exercise of power. There needs to be some attention paid to
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this, particularly. When Congress disciplines members of the
Legislature, it's acting as a quasi-judicial body. That isn't to
say that it's hamstrung by the same rules that apply in court as
to evidentiary standards or privileges or burdens of proof, but
there should be some consideration given to what basic rights a
member has in an ethics proceeding.
Lastly, I just want to touch on a few points that I'm
not sure could be written into a code, but I think you need to
keep them in mind as you consider the proposals. These are
axioms that are really my axioms, that I have developed from my
experience in practice over the years, that I think really do
stand up.
One is that what is perfectly legal and legitimate under
ethics rules can, under scrutiny, result in a conclusion that the
conduct being examined is wrong or improper by the public and by
reviewing officials.
An example I give, which I'll submit for the record, is
an article from the Washington Post a couple of years ago about
fourteen members of the Energy and Commerce Committee taking an
honorarium trip in a mine company's jet. This was a totally
legitimate and above board exercise. The members gave speeches.
They attended the meetings. The honoraria were within the rules
limits. The expenses were actual and necessary. It was all
totally proper.
The problem was that in pandering the trip to his
colleagues, one of the members sent around a brochure and touted
it as "a truly outstanding, custom designed aircraft, which I
think you will enjoy." He enclosed a color brochure of the
aircraft's state salon, dining area with wet bar, and executive
stateroom. That is certainly innocent enough and that did not
make it illegal, but what it did do was focus people on the trip.
It created the appearance that something was going on here which,
in fact, was not going on and invited prosecutors and others to
take this and say, "Maybe we ought to take a look at this."
It's very important to create some clarity in the rules
which deal not only with the letter of the law but what is likely
to create a situation in which scrutiny will motivate the
prosecutors and others to make conduct which is innocent not
innocent.
Secondly, no ethics program can replace common sense and
good judgment. No matter how many laws we write, there will
always be those who seek to avoid them. That shouldn't deter you
from your mission. You still can go a long way towards advising
and counseling members by making clear rules for their guidance.
Thirdly, insist on educating your members about the
rules. The mythology of the chamber is like the mythology of the
locker room: it can be very misleading.
This ethics manual is distributed to every member of the
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House and Senate. In the fifty clients I have represented, I
haven't run into one that has read it.
I don't say that in any
disparaging way. They are busy. They have to legislate. They
have to visit their constituents.
What you need to do is boil it down and give them true
assistance in learning what these rules are, because I have been
told over and over again by members who have asked me about
particular kinds of conduct, "Well, it's really not a problem.
So-and-so does it," or, "I saw So-and-so on the floor, and he
said it's fine."
Don't let the scuttlebutt get your members into trouble.
Have a clear set of rules that you boil down into English, not
lawyerese, and spend some time indoctrinating them about those
rules because, in truth, those rules are for their protection.
Lastly, do not rely on outsiders with legislative
interests to interpret your ethics code because their
self-interest will get in the way of their judgment. Again,
scores of times I have been counseling members, and they tell me,
"Well, the lawyer for such and such company has reviewed it, and
he says it's okay." Well, he's not in a position to give very
disinterested advice. You shouldn't rely on it.
You
with respect
Counsel, the
that kind of

need your own internal means of obtaining advice
to the rules, whether that be the Standing Committee
formal advisory opinion, or others who can give you
advice.

Those are some very practical things which I think can
help you in crafting these rules.
Once again, I appreciate the opportunity to be here and
testify on this issue.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Thank you.
sense of the practicalities of it.

That's a good solid

Bill Lancaster.
ASSEMBLYMEMBER BILL LANCASTER: First of all, let me say
that I certainly concur with the remarks.
I thought Mr. Brand
was excellent and shows a lot of experience and knowledge
learned.
MR. BRAND:

The hard way.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

We appreciate your being

here.
I have a couple of questions for clarification.
sure I understand what the overnight rule means.
MR. BRAND:

Okay.

I'm not
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I, for one, appreciate this testimony.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Frazee.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
Just a
couple of comments, and perhaps, some help from our experts.
I was very interested in your suggestion of defining the
limits.
I think, presently, we are operating in a circumstance
that is a little bit of an analogy to the way that we set surface
street speed limits in California.
In that instance, an
engineering survey is done. Then, the speed limit cannot be set
below the eighty-fifth percentile of what the average speed is.
That causes a great deal of consternation on the part of a lot of
citizens.
In fact, I'm currently carrying legislation that will
appear before Mr. Katz's committee dealing with that subject, but
it seems without rules that is what we have drifted into here.
Your comment on locker rooms, or sea lawyers, as they
are called in the service, what people's advice is as to what is
acceptable. So we have developed, I think, without any written
rules, a block of law that sort of shifts to the eighty-fifth
percentile, if you will, and that may be moving over a period of
time, whatever the body feels is acceptable. So we get, "I know
that so-and-so does it, so it must be all right, and I'll do it
also."
There is not a problem with that, so I think that rule
is really a great help to us, as are some of the suggestions and
some of the things from Congress in defining some limits in that
circumstance.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

•

Ted Lempert.

ASSEMBLYMEMBER TED LEMPERT:
I have a couple of
questions in terms of your definition of someone with an interest
before the Legislature or the Congress, in terms of the one
hundred dollar rule. How exactly does that work, and do you have
problems with that definition?
MR. BRAND: It's usually not a problem in terms of
figuring who has a lobbyist or who has a political action
committee. The catch-all, people with interests above and beyond
the general public interest, that could be Mrs. O'Brien because
she gets a Social Security check.
It has to be rnore direct than
that.
It has got to be somebody whom the members know or believe
has a legislative interest.
It's subjective in that sense.
Secondly, someone who has a disclosed legislative
interest, where you're aware that this person represents a
company or is associated with a company or has something pending
before the Legislature, it's not a terribly clear standard even
in the Congress.
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The flip side of that rule is be wary of gifts from
strangers. Personal friends -- and that's another rule of thumb.
If you knew this person before you got to Sacramento, you could
take a gift from them.
If you only met them after you got here,
chances are they have a direct interest in legislation.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: So really, another way, if we
were trying to enact some kind of rule, would be "business before
the Legislature outside of personal friends."
MR. BRAND:

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: What kind of conflict of
interest rules, if any, are there?
MR. BRAND: There is a federal conflict of interest
statute, 18 USC 203, which applies to members. The conflict
standard in the House is really the one that I read about: not
doing things for personal benefit.
In the Senate, there is a conflict of interest rule
which prohibits association with a professional law firm,
doctor's practice, insurance agency, where your duties in
Congress would conflict with your private practice. Those are
the general standards.
The other conflict of interest regulation really comes
in the disclosure statements that are filed every May 15th when
people disclose what their holdings are and what their positions
are.
There are no bright lines, other than what is in the
Criminal Code conflict of interest standards right now.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: I heard there was an
introductory ethics course for new members?
MR. BRAND: The orientation which I used to do, and I
always used to tell them, "I hope I never get to know any of you
professionally." There is not enough of that, quite frankly,
because new members are deluged with things. There is not enough
time to focus on that. They need to do even more than they do.
They give you a very cursory course. In my judgment, it's not in
depth enough.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
Senate handbook?
MR. BRAND:

There is a House handbook and a

Each has its own handbook.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

What is the approximate size of

them?
MR. BRAND: This has grown, as everything has grown
every year, despite Graham Rudman. This is now 191 pages of
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legal, ethical, and other constraints that operate on members,
complete with advisory opinions, statutes, and whatever.
It's a
fairly big bite to swallow.
Some of the panelists and I have
talked about maybe trying to boil this down to 20 pages or less.
This is the Senate version.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
would we be kind of on track?

I

If we adopted that in its total,

MR. BRAND: You would be putting yourself under an
immediately difficult burden.
I think what you would want to do
is extract from there the basic rules, develop your own
precedence on a case by case basis in terms of interpreting.
This could really be boiled down into four or five paragraphs.
That's my judgment.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
If you guys get around to doing
that, we would love to see a copy of what you come up with for
our consideration. Do we have a copy of those now?
MR. BRAND:

I

could provide those.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: One for each member of the
committee and perhaps for the four leaders of the four caucuses
as well and anyone else who wants. We'll try to get copies to
take a look at.
In terms of conflicts, is there much on the
issue of gifts and honoraria, and are contributions dealt with
similarly or differently?
MR. BRAND: The contributions, of course, political
contributions, are dealt with in principle in that rule that I
read about not commingling official or campaign or personal
funds, and then under the Federal Election Campaign Act, and
conflicts are regulated under the rules and under the Criminal
Code.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Besides the separation as to
where they are addressed.
They are addressed in substance quite
differently, I would think, as well?
MR. BRAND:

Yes.

Although the House has adopted the statutes at large as
an ethical standard, the rules of the House provide that a member
is subject to rules, laws, or standards of conduct that apply to
his activity as a member.
So in effect, the entire Criminal
Code, Title 18, applies to every member of the House, as do their
own internal ethical rules.
The House has used criminal law
standards to discipline members.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Is there a standard of proof?

MR. BRAND: The standard of proof in the House is
preponderance of the evidence.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Not reasonable doubt?

MR. BRAND: Not beyond a reasonable doubt. We have
argued abut that.
I thought there should be a high standard
because the Supreme Court has said that in a proper case the
Congress could actually imprison a member for ethical
improprieties.
If you're going to talk about the deprivation of
liberty, it seems to me that you need a much higher standard of
proof than you do for reprimand or censure or fine.
The prevailing standard now is preponderance of the
evidence. That seems to work from both the respondent's
standpoint and the committee's.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay.
In the conflict area
where, I suppose, there are provisions that with certain holdings
the person is to disqualify himself or herself from voting?
MR. BRAND: Now the rule in the House is that, first of
all, the Chair will not rule on matters of personal interest on
voting. That's up to each individual member's conscience.
It's
not in order to entertain that question.
What the House has said is that if as an individual, as
opposed to a member of a large class, you are so interested, then
you should not vote. So, for instance, military retirees in the
House have always voted on pensions because they are members of a
class, or holders of stock in savings and loan associations have
voted as long as the bill is a bill that addresses itself to a
class of persons as opposed to individuals.
That rule, again, seems to have worked fairly well. At
least that's one standard where the constituents, probably better
than the Assembly, can really enforce that, because it's going to
be a disclosed interest. And nine times out of ten, the member
would have heard about that and focused on that issue prior to
the time. The vote is deemed such a sensitive part of being a
legislator that the House and Senate are very reluctant to take
that right away from a member except in the most egregious
circumstances.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Granting that it's under your
provisions there, that it's each member's prerogative to assess
and declare his or her own appropriateness or not, is there a
situation where the rule says if it is a particular and that
person is to refrain?
MR. BRAND: If you are not benefiting as a member of a
large class but in an individual sense.
For instance, there was a provision in a bill on savings
and loans -- and I use that because it's in the news and it's
going to be legislated on -- if the provision affected only the
savings and loan in which you were an investor, or only your
stock, obviously, that would be the kind of personal interest
that under the House and Senate rules would disqualify you.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Either way you chose to vote?
Even if you chose to vote against your own interests?
MR. BRAND:
interests.

Even if you chose to vote against your own

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: In that case, where you're
disqualified from voting, is there an automatic change in the
number of votes required, be it either a quorum or a majority,
either in committee or on the floor?

•

MR. BRAND: There would only be that implication for
constitutional amendments because in the House and in the Senate
it's a majority, a quorum is a majority vote, a quorum being
present, a simple majority being present.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. For us to pass a bill
here, on a committee or on the floor, requires, if not two-thirds
in certain circumstances, always a majority of the committee or
MR. BRAND: The constitutional number of people. That
would be a problem in your case, then, because you could get to a
situation where people would remove themselves from the vote and
deny you a constitutional majority and the bill would fail by
virtue
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: --or, I'm trying to think how
to phrase this -- because an abstention amounts to a no vote
under our system, if there were three people who loved the bill
and gained from it if they abstained, it's reverse logic, and I'm
not as clear as I would like right now.

I

We have to figure out if people are disqualified, under
a general rule we have in committee, where members are
disqualified on account of conflict, the quorum number is reduced
because of the disqualification for the committee and the
majority on account of which the bill is passed.
That's not true on the floor.
I'm trying to think ahead to what kinds of things
MR. BRAND: You could, I suppose, do what we have done
in the Democratic Conventions, and that is for purposes of a
member having a personal interest in the outcome whether you
allow them -- you put that to a vote in the chamber and determine
first whether the chamber believes they have a disqualification.
That question being answered, you may avoid -- now, I
realize the political problems in having members vote on each
other's personal conflicts.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER RICHARD KATZ:
through the process?

Have you seen that go
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MR. BRAND:

Not in the House or Senate, no.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
functioned.

I was curious as to how that

MR. BRAND: I think that would be, Mr.
issue that you would have to focus on.
I could
would be creative ways to deal with that.
If I
long enough, even on the way back on the plane,
come up with a few.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
hearing from you.

Chairman, an
imagine there
think about it
I could probably

If you do, I would appreciate

Ms. Killea.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA: Talking about the
honorarium and gifts, the political move now is to eliminate them
entirely, or limit them so strictly so that they don't constitute
a benefit to the member.
Along with that is the issue of salary increases. There
are two sides of that. In public service, you get in it not
because of the money but for the job, yes, the glory.
The other is that where do you -MR. BRAND:
I got out.

The glory was not enough for me.

That's why

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Where the guidelines are
between the idea of what is needed for normal living, reasonably
normal living, and where it become something over and beyond
that? I think that's where the congressional thing got into a
little bit of trouble. Maybe it would have run into trouble
anyway.
Do you have any guidelines on that?
MR. BRAND: My judgment is
and I argued this to the
Speaker in 1978 when I was in the House and we were grappling
with it and since then -- if you want to steer members away from
outside interests, you have to pay them a living wage.
If you
want them to not be dependent on the largess of benefactors, you
must pay them a living wage.
To me, that quid pro quo for cutting off honoraria and
freeing them from this burden, is to pay them a living wage.
Now, whether that's 50% of $89,000 or not, I don't know.
If members can act on things like nuclear disarmament
and the things that you deal with in the state Legislature, they
ought to be worth what the Superintendent of Garbage is paid for
the County of Los Angeles. It seems to me that should be easy to
justify to the public, if you are saying to the public at the
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•

that Mr.
him .

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: The answer I get under that
had more than a living wage and that didn't deter
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Katz.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
Isn't the counterside of that
argument that no one held a gun to anybody's head and told them
to run for
We all knew what the wage was when we got
involved
thing. Without discussing whether it's
adequate or
, everyone knew what the rules were when
they signed up.
MR. BRAND: Sure.
I guess for a lot of my friends who
came to
s
1974 when they were barely old enough to take
the oath, the amount of money they made in that era as they got
famil
everyone else in the world got, that
amount of
s meaningful.
We
way through.
MR. BRAND:

an

fort to keep this bipartisan all the

I also represent Republicans.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

I did not mean to brand you.

I'm going to hear from Bruce Jennings since you are from
far away and get your testimony in.
Mr.
co-director of
of New York.

is associate for Policy studies and former
Institute, an ethics project in the State

MR. BRUCE JENNINGS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
am very glad to be here with you today.

I, too,

Let me say just a word about how I come to the subject
of legislative ethics and my background in terms of the project
that I co-directed at the Hastings Center.
In 1980, the Hastings Center was approached by the staff
of the Senate Select Committee on Ethics to consult with them and
to take part in hearings, as they were doing a study of possible
revisions
revamping
the Senate Code of Ethics at that
time.
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An exercise that I gather is not unlike the one that
your committee is now undertaking.
It was not aimed as a
specific investigation of anybody.
It was really aimed at taking
a broader look at what the Senate understood ethics to be and
what their code should contain, and if it should be tightened up,
if some provisions should be added, and it also had a kind of
educational component to their inquiry, namely, how far can we go
with regulation and when does conscience and self-control and
self-scrutiny and self-discipline by members take over in regard
to ethical conduct?
In the course of working with the Senate committee at
that time, we were asked to develop a code of ethics that was
quite unlike anything that the Senate had or the members had ever
seen or thought of.
I think we succeeded in doing that because we developed
a code that was really very broad, very aspirational, very
idealistic in many ways. The point, of course, wasn't to give
them something that they were about to adopt.
It was rather to
give them a different way of perceiving and thinking about the
business at hand. The hope was that ethics could be put in a
somewhat different context as a result of that exercise.
Subsequent to that, we received funding from the Ford
Foundation and did a three-year research study of legislative
ethics broadly defined, which produced several publications in
1985. I was involved in directing that research and developing
those publications.
Those books, a couple of which have been made available
to the committee, as I understand weren't best sellers I have to
admit, but when we closed up shop and put the books on the shelf,
I had a feeling that the wheel would eventually turn around and
we would come back to the subject of government ethics and
legislative ethics, and indeed, this has certainly been the case.
I'm struck by the difference in the climate and in the
amount of attention and concern that I perceive in Washington and
in many state capitols between 1985 and 1989. I think that it is
partly because there have been a number of incidents in the
intervening years that have focused public attention on
government ethics. But I also believe that it comes about from a
general perception among public officials, legislators, and the
press and citizens alike, that there are certain fundamental
changes that have been taking place in our political system and
in our institutions of government that somehow make public
service and government ethics more difficult and more problematic
than it was in the past, than it traditionally was in the past.
There is some certain concern, in some quarters, that in
the area of campaign financing, or in the area of the growth and
influence of congressional staff, or in the area of the kind of
lack of attachment to party or party discipline
exists in
the Congress (something that in our study we
to as
legislative entrepreneurialism), that these
of development
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that might be avoided in the coming years might be.
Let me start with a couple of
assumptions that I
bring to this whole conversation. First, I'll be using the term
ethics a lot. Maybe I ought to try to give a definition or a
sense of what I mean by that term.
For me, ethics is a very practical and a very worldly
subject. Principles, rules, and standards that promote human
dignity and civilized social order, that's what ethics is about.
Standards of right and wrong.
Ideals of human good and the good
of society, considerations of benefit and harm, relative to right
and good.
Ethics, in short, is fundamentally about the proper
exercise and use of power. Whenever and wherever one person
exercises powers over others, matters of ethics will be present.
They may not be perceived. They may not be acknowledged or
discussed, but they will be there.
Ethical questions may not always be couched in ethics
talk explicitly, but the questions and the concepts will be there
even though the words are not.
What we then can conclude from that understanding of
ethics is that ethical issues do permeate legislative life. They
permeate all facets of being a democratic representative and
lawmaker.
Ethics, in my view, is not something that should be
thought of exclusively in terms of those particular aspects of
conduct and behavior that we might find plausible and feasible
and desirable to regulate or to write a code about.
Ethics is broader than
scope of ethics codes need
be. What I think that that suggests is that whatever specific
matters you chose to address in an ethics code or
a regulatory
kind of fashion in the Legislature,
l be large areas of
ethical judgment and reasoning and
making that will of
necessity fall into a less formal, a less legalistic realm of
your own thinking, of your interaction
your colleagues, and
of your interaction with the institution.
I bring a broad brush to
ethics.
I'll try not to make it so
for your purposes.

of legis
ive
as to be meaningless

Secondly, I do believe that legislators should be held
to a higher ethical standard than ordinary citizens.
I think
that this follows from the fact the legislative life is saturated
with issues of power and effects on others. The things that you
do and decide upon as legislators help people, they harm people.
The impact that your dec
beyond the impact that most
virtue of your
ition and your

goes far
have by
seems

Page 92
to me quite
stressing
legislative
kind of
and
demanded ones.
your constituents, c
that it's what
form of government.
There
of legislative
s
Ethics isn't convenient
ethical.

saying and
accepting
into a special
al
igations
are properly
We the people,
of you. I think
a healthy democratic
to approach the topic
ethics
hard.
always expedient to be

to
to ourselves
The question
we
and think hard about is how much can we assume and expect from
llingness to put up with
American legis
terms of
? How much should we
those inconvenient aspects of
levels of publ
take for granted as far as
service we have to work with?
commitment and
to publ
Because I
an
estimate and assumptions
about those matters
a significant difference in terms
of our starting point and our whole approach to legislative
ethics, I realize
•s hard to make
izations across the
board,
I
of
you find out as you
poll your col
and
scuss
ir
perceptions of
they face, and what the
committee might
one of the senses that you
will get from that
ain why I think this is so
important in a minute -- I
one of the senses that you
will come away with is how do your colleagues understand their
calling, their role, their commitment? Is there a picture in
your heads of what a responsible, effective, ideal legislator
looks like? Because if we can formulate something like that
picture, we can ask
how practically can we move the
reality of legis
c
to that picture? How can we
enable legislators
and large, want to live up to that
picture to do so?
Ethical ques
someone offers you a
you a gift, or when
financial conflict o
alertness, ethical sens
or off for special occasions,
disclosure statements or sess

now and then when
ful constituent sends
about a potential
thinking, ethical
things that you switch on
ike the preparation of annual
of an ethics committee.

Your
, or to change the metaphor, your
ethical gyroscope,
to
on all the time.
It may
sound unfairly demanding and too much to expect of anyone, but
the importance of ethics does increase as the power one wields
and the impacts of one's ac
on
reases.

Page 93
This works
constituents to
representatives,
es
voters have the understanding
standards and what they really
those kinds of expectations with their
own political behavior.

and proper for
elected
and
to meet these
and to support
and their

One of the problems that we face is that we're trying to
do legislative ethics, we're trying to write codes and enforce
standards of conduct in a context, and I do not live in
California, so you will correct me if I am mistaken about this
state, but in a context of extraordinary political illiteracy and
the ignorance on the part of most voters, and in the context of
educational institution's media of communications and other
educational forums --and I'm a political scientist so I indict
myself and my own profession when I say this -- that really are
not doing the job of civic and political education. It's tough
to address questions of legislative ethics in part because there
isn't the public understanding and support necessary to make some
of the impediments to ethical conduct easier to deal with or to
eliminate them
It's partly difficult -- and I think in my experience in
talking with many Congressmen and Senators -- when I gave them
the message which I am about to give you, which is to take a
broad and a constructive view of legislative ethics and not a
narrow or legalistic one. The usual response is, well, if we do
that, it would sort of be political suicide. We really can't do
that. We're going to be giving our enemies lots of ammunition to
use against us. We couldn't possibly adopt the kind of code of
ethics that the Hastings Center proposed because if we did so,
every day we would
accused of a violation of some facet of
that ethics code, and that would be the kind of political
lightning rod that they don't need.
, I
a
deal to that objection.
I think there is a lot of
it.
I would not propose, in
fact, that my remarks be used in any way as guidance for the
actual content of a code that you might want to adopt.

I think
a
that would be
possible. We came close with our
with the Senate to getting
them to think seriously about adding a preamble or a preface to
their standing rules, the Code of Ethics, which would contain a
statement of purpose and principle. That did not happen, in
part, because the investigation problem with Senator Harrison
Williams came along at that time and really derailed the whole
enterprise.
I thought it was almost within our grasp at that
time.
It would be something that I would seriously urge you to
give consideration to.
Finally, we must approach legislative ethics in a
positive, affirmative, and constructive
This really is the
gist of
I wanted to
fy
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that you find in
The first, I would call
is. Emphasis is
The idea is to deter
Ethics is made up of
an institutional body,
most part. The point of
lators. It is premised on a
lator. As John Locke put
it,
with the assumption that
the exception rather than
set goals to be reached for as well
serve civic educational as well
Its job is to educate both members and
firm what the Legislature, as an
lators as individuals stand for as
for. Ethical standards should be
ethical conduct and shield
constraining them.

A

•

corruption
the rule;
as minimal
as regulatory
citizens.
Its
institution,
well as

protective and
I think it's terribly
important
a ready excuse to resist
to personally reject
you such a situation or

ethics
than the
asks us to
impediments
respons
j
public interest
where they feel
self-constraint of
because to do so
competitive
their colleagues,

or educational approach to
positive incentives rather
and negative incentives.
It
and seeks to find
legislators who want to do a
citizens of that state in the
hamstrung or placed in a situation
cannot take the first step at
up various practices that widespread,
them in some sort or political or
future opponents or vis-a-vis

's
we
to
at this view, at rules
concerning the receipt
honoraria, the use of campaign funds,
the maintenance of office accounts, and on and on. We have to
look at those kinds of rules, again, not so much as constraining
the legislator who wants to do something wrong, as giving a level
playing f
to most of those legislators who want to do
something
they can't do it as long as some
others
advantage of a non-regulated
situation.
I

we

to cons

both of these
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perspectives that I have identified,
regulatory and the
educational or the civic approach. But I think that what I have
learned, if anything, in the years that I have been following the
discussions of legislative ethics
thinking about it in my own
work, is that the biggest problem that we have had since 1977 is
that we have focused almost exclusively on scandal ethics. Our
response has often been to take up the subject of legislative and
congressional ethics only after some kind of public scandal or
public pressure has been put on the Legislature to do so.
We're looking at a particular kind of abuse, and we're
trying to figure out how we can cast a rule so as to deter or
prevent and prohibit that abuse in the future. We get a kind of
patchwork succession of structure of rules and regulations
without ever systematically making an attempt to provide a
rationale, an explicit rationale, not just kind of oratorical
language about public service is a public trust, but an explicit
rationale that both members and constituents can understand so
that they will, in fact, support that structure or rule making
that has been put in place, not to mention the educational value
that an explicit statement of rationale might have in affecting
the other half of legislative life not covered by the rules but
the part covered by their own individual conscience and decision
making.
I think I have seen rules that were necessary and
important and well intentioned turned into an exercise of petty
red tape, which are not paid much attention to by members. They
don't bother to read the ethics manual, not entirely, because
they are so busy.
If they were so busy, you would not have to
have your three-day rule.
They have time to do certain things. They don't have
time to read about the ethics rules, in part, because many of
them view these things as trivial, as bureaucratic hassles, and
the like, and, of course,
too
-- I've been told in
the u.s. Congress -- it affects the
and work of the ethics
committees.
In the Senate, membership on the Select Committee on
Ethics is not exactly sought after.
It didn't used to be.
In
fact, the majority leader had to do a lot of arm twisting to get
certain members to serve on that committee. Why? Well, it
doesn't produce many benefits back home.
It does get your
colleagues upset with you a lot. It's a no-win committee
assignment in many ways. Partly, again, this grows out of the
kind of negative and somewhat petty environment that has grown up
around the very subject of ethics in the Congress and indeed in
many legislative bodies. Something to be avoided.
I think it
can be avoided in many ways.
I think a lot of it has to do with
personality and diplomacy and the tact and the care with which
the leaders in the legislative assembly, who care about ethics,
proceed with their business.
I applaud you for the sens
that you seem to have
been showing and following, a route of consultation, and as
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something I
enforcement exerc
right track,
deal of
that you pass
way to other
is not going to address and

educational and not a law
beginning.
I think that's the
's necessary to pay a good
purpose of the rules
in some sort of educational
life that the code

What are those
? How could we fill out and
flesh out the content of
might be? What format would
they best be put
are some of the questions that my own
work and Mr. Josephson's
, and the work of others, have tried
to answer.
I won't spend a
of time now going over the
details of
I personal
bel
that there are two essential ways
to think about those purposes in that context. One is to think
in terms of what ethical decision making in general requires and
involves. Mr. Josephson
one of the country's leading experts
at analyzing the components of ethical decision making and the
process. Then you have but to apply that to your own practice,
your own situation, your own experience and see what happens.
other
to start with, what I mentioned
before, is a
o
understanding of what representation
and what being a legis
should be all about and trying to
derive from that picture some basic principles or ethical
standards that we would hope
1 legi ators would live up to as
much as poss
Having
f
, I think that it is very
straightforward then to
why honoraria can be a problem
and when they are a problem and when they might not be. Why
certain campaign financing arrangements are a problem. Why the
revolving door situation is a problem. These matters get their
rationale from these principles from which I'm speaking.
In my work, I identified three basic principles:
autonomy or impartiality, accountability, and responsible
institutional membership or institutional responsibility.
That
may not completely cover the whole waterfront, but I think that
gives us a reasonably good start.
I haven't found anything in any legislative code of
ethics that I have looked at that could not be accounted for and
explained in terms of these general considerations. This is the
kind of thing that I think should be in a preamble or preface,
and I think it should be a priority to try to find ways to
communicate to the public what the Legislature expects of its own
members, what it stands for as far as ethical representation is
concerned, and to try to begin the slow process.
Oliver Wendell Holmes said that judicial reform is not
for the short winded. Legislative ethics reform is not for the
short winded either. Nobody has ever accused me of being short
winded.
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The long, slow process of building political
understanding and civic support for what you are trying to do
with your membership and what you are trying to do in terms of
with making the Legislature, which is a very complex and fragile
institution in so many ways, come closer to the ideal standard
that we derive from our democratic and representative traditions
in this country.
Thank you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Those three you talked about are
accountability, responsibility to institutional membership, and
the third one?
MR. JENNINGS: Impartiality or autonomy of judgment.
I
was interested to find that language in the committee's state of
purpose document.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Our consultant has looked at
this field before she arrived here and since even more and has
obviously brought us already two really fine, provocative
witnesses.
The preamble that you wrote for the Senate book that
kind of got lost along the way, do you have a copy of that that
we could take a look at, at some point?
MR. JENNINGS: I have a copy of the model code. We
never got, I'm sorry to say, as far as writing a preamble.
I'm not quite sure what it would look like.
I think one
thing that is important is to stipulate that this is not -- to
somehow make the distinction between parts of the code that are
enforceable and parts that aren't, so that you don't run into the
problem that you get -- that you really get this code used as a
kind of political or self-interest club.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Sure.

When I write my bills, I usually do a pretty thorough
finding section and intention so people know what I'm after with
the bill. When they read it, they have the grounds for
interpretation and also can understand the genesis of it.
I
think that your suggestion is one that is really helpful.
Ms. Killea has a question.
I want to advise the San Jose Mercury, who seems to
think it's newsworthy whenever I leave a committee, that I have a
four o'clock conference call, so I need to leave the committee.
Mr. Frazee will act as chair.
I will be back in about fifteen
minutes.
As soon as we conclude the questions with you, we will
take a short break for the court reporter to make changes if she
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needs to,
appropriately
experience

KILLEA:
essential principles
autonomy, accountability, and
dynamics of the legislative role,
come in conflict, it seems to me that
ion making, your own conscience,
, you have your constituency
something else, and you have a
House, to the tradition, to the body as a
very much in conflict in the day-to-day and

of a
res pons
the gray
you have
if you wi
saying
res pons
whole.
smal

•

Mr. Josephson, which really comes
larger set the stage better for your
education.

Do
any comment on how that can be addressed in
any kind of -- I think being aware of these three, and the fact
that they are sometimes in conflict, helps to explain some of the
dilemmas we have.
MR. JENNINGS:

Not necessarily to resolve them.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
to resolve them.

But it doesn't necessarily help

MR. JENNINGS: I think that that is right. These things
are not things
will generate an easy answers in these gray
areas.
I

perceive,
appears

if

think through the dilemma that you
the case that the conflict that first
so stark as it seems.

, the conflict between keeping oneself free
For
from improper
so as to maintain your impartial and
autonomous legis
judgment versus the democratic pressures
that our system places a legislator under would seem to be a
constant tension in
lative life.
Of course,
•s the old story of Edmond Burke, are you a
delegate or are you a trustee? I think that that particular
conflict is sometimes resolved by the exercise of political
creativity in leadership.
In cases
I have discussed with legislators when
that confl
seems to
the proper interpretation of the
situation that they are in, it often comes to pass the reason why
their accountability seems to be pulling them in one direction
and their own conscience in another, is the accountability is
only accountability to a small, attentive minority of their
constituents.
With
al creativity in leadership, sometimes they
could build a support
coalition in their district behind the
policy
that
integrity and conscience wants them to
fol
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So if you have a conflict between conscience and
political pressure, and it's special interest pressure, sometimes
you can make your conscience politically viable by going out
there and taking leadership and building political support behind
what you want to do on other grounds. That is not a violation of
the notion of democratic responsiveness of accountability.
I
think it's an integral part of it because legislators need to be
leaders as well as followers. That's the way to resolve it
sometimes. Obviously, it's not an easy answer because that kind
of political creativity is hard.
It's not always feasible.
The idea that a legislator should immediately prioritize
accountability when you're responding to special interest
pressures that are very vocal, and say that this is ethical
because the accountability thing trumps the independence of my
conscience or my best judgment about what the public interest
requires, that is just using an ethical discussion as an excuse,
I believe, for caving in when you know in your heart you
shouldn't.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: I guess one of the things we
have now, not just the special interest, we have polls on
everything. Certainly there you could say that the majority of
the people will support something that you don't think is going
to be the effective way to deal.
Of course, the answer there is that I have more
information.
I know more.
I understand the complexity of the
issue and many of the people don't in answering a simple poll
question.
So it becomes a question of the education, if you
will, and that's a bad term to use, vis-a-vis your constituents,
you shouldn't say you're educating them. You're trying to give
them some idea of the complexity of it. That isn't always easy.
I understand, of course, that the conflict sometimes is
not actually there, but it does present itself.
I guess what I'm
saying is by presenting these three principles, if you will, that
it's very useful to legislators to think about that because you
do realize -- I think to me it puts it in a very good context of
how you deal with those differences and those pressures.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

Thank you.

Any other members wishing to state anything?
Next, we have testimony by Michael Josephson, founding
president of the nonprofit Joseph and Edna Josephson Institute
for the Advancement of Ethics, and also publisher of a periodical
on ethics; is that correct?
MR. MICHAEL JOSEPHSON:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
MR. JOSEPHSON:

That's right.
Mr. Josephson.

He mentioned a break.
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

We do need to wait

I 'm

for just one moment.

Mr.

,

much.

.

I
given a written statement.
I
be
to say something interesting enough to
hope that I
stimulate some of you to read it because I won't be covering
points that are in that statement.
nearly all
MR.

to coordinate some of the testimony
I would
tell you the special place that we
that I have
maybe add a dimension to what you
have in our
,
might consider in terms of this legislation.
Just a
moment of background, our nonprofit
institute
two
Basically, we have publication of a
magazine called Ethics, Easier Said Than Done, which tells you
somewhat of our philosophy to start with.
Secondly, we run programs literally all over the country
for people in pol
s, in journalism, in business and law, and
in a number of
areas.
I state that because some of the observations I want to
of those kinds of workshops where we have
make today are a
worked with the state
lators. We have worked with mayors.
We have
state budget officers. We have worked with
with attorneys general and the like.
lobbyists.
We get the
ive about ethics that I want to share
with you.
The
of the institute, and one that I would
like to encourage
to have with regard to this legislation, is
to affect behavior. The whole purpose is not simply to make
statements or even to engage in interesting discourse. Our
interest
to affect behavior in a positive way, to have people
behave in a way that
generally acknowledged as more ethical,
more consistent with
kinds of values that we think are
universal and cross-cultural. Things like honesty, things like
integrity, things l
loyalty, fairness, caring, respect,
accountability and a number of other values that we think are
really at the root base of what we think of when we talk about
someone being
or doing the right thing or acting as they
ought to act.
We understand that laws are a potential part of that.
Laws have an ability to motivate conduct on a number of levels.
One, they can coerce conduct simply because people do not want to
run afoul of those laws and bear the sanctions. For others, the
mere statement of the law sets a principle or standard that a
willing person might be able to acknowledge and say that that's a
reasonable standard, and I'm willing to live up to that if you
are, in terms of society.
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Of course, there is a certain leadership role in the
articulation of the laws themselves. For example, in many cases,
I think the Legislature is almost forced to act because inaction
would send a symbolic message that is itself significant, and
even where the legislation itself may not be accomplishing all
that one would hope it would, one recognizes that there is some
need to really respond.
Our concerns when we run these workshops and deal with
ethics education is to try to help people literally in the
trenches of serious decision making, where the ethical conflicts
are rampant, work out -- sort out -- the values and principles
that are involved in those situations to try to come up with
certain strategies that increase the likelihood that they are
going to behave in ways that are consistent with their own
highest aspirations more often.
It's very clear there are different kinds of ethical
decisions. The most basic kind people talk about is between
right and wrong. There is a whole group of people who assume
that's an easy choice. You just either know it or you don't.
I
have heard the comments before. You either have ethics or you
don't have ethics.
We think that's an incredibly simplistic view of what
it's like to live in a complex world where you make decisions
where there are conflicting interests involved. First of all,
it's not always easy to know what is right. There are often many
alternatives, and there are many different ways of handling the
same situation.
Secondly, even if you know it's right, it's not always
easy to do what is right.
So the behavior level involves both an
acknowledgment of the factors that help you sort out right from
wrong and also the personal, psychological, social, economic
factors which might be an obstacle for you doing that thing that
is right.
I state this at the outset because if there is a hope
that this legislation will affect the behavior of legislators, it
has to be done in the context of the behavioral patterns that
have developed and the way in which we can expect people to
respond to that kind of thing.
I want, for a brief moment, to step back with you to
give you some observations that I have found from literally a
hundred workshops for over 8,000 people in the last two years or
so.

First of all, we find there is not disagreement.
Everybody says ethics is important. That may not be intuitively
obvious, given the level of cynicism that has occurred in society
where one would wonder whether there would be people who would
say that is a passe judgment. Well over 90 percent of the people
we survey, an anonymous survey, say it's very important to them
to not only be ethical but to be perceived to be ethical.
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The second observation is that most people are very
concerned with the ethics of others. They believe generally that
the others, groups and professions, are not living up to its
highest standards.
I hear the comment continuously, if I'm going
to talk to lawyers about talking to businessmen about ethics,
they say it's an oxymoron.
If I'm going to talk to journalists
about talking to politicians about ethics, it's an oxymoron.
The ability to quickly label the other group as being
incapable of relating their own profession to ethics is
surprising in a sense especially since the reverse is also true.
Each profession believes it is more ethical than the other
profession. So, when you talk to people within politics, or
within business, or within law, and you ask them to truly
evaluate the ethics of their profession compared to others, they
believe they are more ethical.
We recognize that there are two things that go on in our
evaluation of our own ethicality, if you will. One is some real
self-righteousness -- this kind of based-in, built-in notion that
"it must be ethical because I did it. Since I am an ethical
person, by definition, what I do is ethical," --and because we
tend to judge ourselves by our noble motives rather than the ways
that we accomplish those motives or the consequences, we tend to
always forgive ourselves the things that we thought were
necessary.
Yet, when we look at other professions, we are much less
demanding.
In addition to this self-righteousness, there is
self-deception.
It comes from everything from "everybody's doing
it, so it must be ethical,"-- and we find that in every single
field -- from journalism to business to law to politics -- to
just the deception of "you don't understand."
I did a program for sixty-two generals from the Pentagon
recently and I was asking them about accepting certain things,
the weapons systems that they don't believe are good weapons
systems, and whether or not they had some responsibility to be
more accountable to that and stand up, to which I heard the
refrain I always hear, "you don't understand."
I talked to attorneys general about how they ought to or
not ought to be accepting money in certain ways.
I didn't
understand that either.
It's clear to me that I don't understand, but what I
also want to suggest is that there appears to be a
rationalization process that each profession goes through, each
of us as individuals go through, which necessarily filter the way
we analyze information.
Why is it important? Because whatever legislation you
are going to impose is going to be viewed by many of the people
regulated as being unnecessary.
It is going to be viewed as an
intrusion.
It's going to be viewed as an insult.
It's going to
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be resented in all likelihood because they
ethical and there are only a few bad apples.

think they are

Every solution to a problem has seeds to another
problem. The legislation you will create,
is, will
create seeds to another problem unless you're
ling to, in a
much broader way, approach the notion of ethics.
One other characteristic we found that I would like to
share with you as a backdrop to this, is that in order for people
to justify the belief that they are more ethical than most other
people is to adopt a kind of double standard with regard to
their professional behavior as opposed to personal behavior.
They construe their goal to be a moral imperative, if it
is in their professional behavior. For journalists, for
instance, the moral imperative is the so-called people's right to
know, which when examined is no more than their right to tell it
first because they want the scoop.
If you look at business, it's
the
business's obligation to survive, which turns out to be the
imperative to maximize profits.
When we deal with people in government, the moral
imperative is the intention in gaining a power, because without
power you can't do all the good things you want to do, and,
therefore, ultimately the end justifies
means.
The point of this little exposition
that if any of
these comments help you see in the other professions their
shortfalls -- and I find people usually see
crystal clarity
the shortfalls of the other profess
I
you could all
agree on the shortfalls of journalists. I
could all
agree on at least several of them.
I think that the fact of the matter
, to be honest,
most ethical problems that you are laboring over are not
difficult problems. You don't want to just
difficult
choices. Examples: gifts should not be taken because nobody
gives you a gift because they like you, they give you a gift
because they want something from you, whether
's access or
whether it's your kindness or whether they want you to like them.
See how many gifts you get when
Those will be the number of gifts you got
devotion and caring. People giving you
other things.

of office.
love and
you for

The fact remains that we want to delude ourselves from
the obvious notion that people are trying to
scales
somehow. That's what they are trying to do.
I've done programs for lobbyists.
I'll
about it. They will say they are only trying
if access is insignificant. Access is almost

very frank
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situation because you can't possibly give
are in a persuas
who
like to have
Therefore, if I
access to
get access, that is not
could buy, rent, or
insignificant
outs
sees with great clarity something
Thus
seems to me, for the legislator to
that is very
is, in many cases, you're not simply an
acknowledge.
advocate for your constituencies.

•

What you are, in
to allocate the resources
people as a whole, and in
individual constituencies
interest or position that

fact, is a judge. You sit as a judge
of the state for the benefit of the
most of decisions you make, your
do not have such a clear-cut vested
you need ever go against that .

The fact is, if we use the judge analogy, and I know
it's not a perfect analogy, there are a number of differences,
but when you're deciding to allocate the state's resources, look
at what the ethics are for judges.
I'm on the committee that is redrafting the judicial
code of ethics for ABA, as a matter of fact.
We would not
imagine a judge being able to accept a gift from anyone who is
going to be affected by his judgment. We would not imagine a
judge having ex-parte conversations with the people who are going
to be before him or her.
I'm not s
that all those principles need to apply
with the same amount o rigor, but the outsider sees what the
insider finds is difficult to acknowledge. And that is, when we
want to be certain that legislators are exercising impartiality
-- independent judgment -- that the kinds of things that are
literally thrust upon you are designed in some way to distract
from that, and rather than having a whole lot of very technical
rules as to how much a gift you should accept is, and how much
not, another alternative
to say, why is this person giving it
to me? What do they expect?
You may have your secret knowledge and motives to say,
but it won't affect me.
I think that that's probably the case.
You don't know that. No one can judge their own case. No one
can really know exactly how much this affects them. The problem
is that the appearance of impropriety itself causes damage. The
reason I say that causes damage is simply because a democracy
requires confidence that people are going to exercise impartial
judgment, and if I can't have that confidence, it's as bad as if
you did, in fact, alter your judgment.
So, where does education come in? I would like to tell
you our approach to education. One of the things that we would
urge you to consider as part of the legislation, first of all,
there are two different dimensions of ethics when we come to
legislative ethics.
of the ethics that come from the law,
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the regulations that you will pass. Obviously, whatever you pass
will be somewhat complex if it follows the patterns.
It will be
something that lawyers -- I was a law professor for twenty years,
and I understand how we both write and construe this kind of
thing to make it more difficult -- but in addition to teaching
people about the laws, my suggestion is that it should be taught
in the context of the way those laws apply.
If you are talking
about courses -- I saw there was a bill proposed, or maybe it's
even offered, to teach this kind of thing, that I urge it be done
in the context of realistic examples so that the people who are
learning the rules say, well, how would it apply?
"Give me some
hypotheticals. Give me some examples," and that it also be
taught in the context of the underlying philosophical
underpinnings so that at least those people who are willing to
follow the thrust of the law will know how to do so.
It was said earlier that the person who is committed to
do the wrong thing will find a way to do it regardless of the
law. First of all, that's not always true. Empirically, we know
that that's not the case, because there are some people who just
are enough concerned about sanctions that they won't. But the
real value of ethics regulations and ethics education is not for
the villains and for the bad people who are committed.
It's for
the fundamentally good people and the neutral people who need
some guidance as to how they ought to behave in these very gray
areas.
I mentioned there were three areas of choice. One is
between right and wrong. The second is between right and right,
where you have several positive alternatives but you still have
an ethical judgment as to allocating resources. The third kind
of judgment is between the lesser of two evils, between wrong and
wrong. These kinds of decisions require sophisticated judgment
and sophisticated training for that kind of judgment.
I think that what we have learned in the programs that
we run is that if you get a group of peers together who are
willing to honestly discuss some realistic problems in their area
and relate them not merely to the laws but to the moral
underpinning of ethics, including values like honesty, integrity,
promise-keeping, fairness, caring for others, respect for others,
and those values, and you ask them to compare their decision
against these values and to see who has a stake in the decision,
more often than not we find that the decision-making process is
more systematic and more effective.
There are, in fact, three dimensions to ethical
decision-making that can be enhanced not only by direct teaching
but also by what you do indirectly. First is the notion of
ethical consciousness. That is the level at which you make
people perceive the ethical implications of their conduct.
I couldn't agree more with Bruce Jennings when he said
everything you do is permeated with ethics because it affects
others, and you have a moral obligation to try to do your best to
create the most amount of good and the least amount of harm, but
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it isn't always obvious how that affects others or what others it
affects.
are being
under great
When
itical pressure to get a certain thing done
pressure, both a
and time pressure to get it done in the certain timeframe, it is
very difficult to make these dec ions.
Incidentally, that's what I hear from the journalists
when I do journalistic workshops. They tell us how much time
pressure they have and how much competitive pressure they have
because they have to get it before the next paper.
It's
unforgiving if it results in an unfair story or incomplete
selection, but in spite of the pressure, the moral responsibility
was to do the story right
There are things we need to do to make people more
ethically conscious, teach them the rules, of course.
That's
absolutely mandatory. But if you only teach them the rules, you
make them substitute those rules for moral judgment. That is an
extraordinarily dangerous thing in the area of ethics.
How many times have we heard it's legal, as if that were
the equivalent of saying it's ethical? There is a significant
difference between what is permissible and what is proper.
This can be taught to people by walking them through it
But if we do not do this, the burden
and by leading by
on the Legislature
to write more laws, more detailed
because you will be the only source of
laws, and more except
1
judgment.

•

I agree,
,
Mr. Jennings when he says you need
a preamble. You not only need a preamble, in my view, I think
you need commentary to the individual provisions so that the
provisions that you set out are pervaded with the real higher
purpose of the rules, so that people just don't feel offended and
put upon by the petty-red-tape kind of notions that some of these
regulations turn into .
You can increase people's ethical commitment, which is
the second part. Ethical consciousness is the first, and ethical
commitment is the second. You increase ethical commitment by
appealing to people's self-interest -- for one part -- to
recognize that a more ethical government or more ethical
Legislature
clearly better for everyone. That if you don't
fix it, someone else will. Those are all the self-interest
reasons.
Also, you can appeal to it on the emotional level. Most
people really want to be ethical, not just because of what they
get out of it but because they think it's the right thing to do.
We ought not to forget the enormous power of idealism.
In any kind of program, any kind of course, any kind of
leading by example that
do, it seems to me, you ought to in
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some way convey that message that virtue is its own reward, that
we're trying to be ethical because we are all just doing the best
we can everyday.
The final dimension of ethical decision-making is what
we call ethical competency. We suggest again that ethics is
easier said than done because first of all you have to evaluate
ambiguous and incomplete facts.
In other words, before you make
an ethical decision, you have to have some idea of what the
consequences are going to be.
It's very hard to know what the
consequences are going to be with the state of acts. You can
train people to be a little more effective at evaluating facts.
Secondly, in order to make effective ethical decisions,
people have to be able to predict consequences with some degree
of certainty.
Third, they have to find problem-solving methods that
don't require them to fall on the sword.
If the only way to be
ethical is to always lose, it's a on-shot situation. That's not
going to be a very effective system.
You can teach people to problem solve, to look for and
find alternatives. The way we would do it, if we were, for
example, doing a workshop with this Legislature, you would
develop the strategy because you have all been through the
experience before, and you would have a hypothetical of a
contributor coming up and putting you in this very embarrassing
situation. How do you deal with it?
You need to develop strategies to draw upon your
colleagues, and the collective wisdom of people who have been
through this thing before to make practical hardheaded kinds of
ethical decisions.
Finally, I would like to say that
purpose of this
kind of ethics education has got to be to open people up to
challenge some fundamental assumptions.
If you're not willing to
challenge your assumptions, you're not going to grow, you're not
going to move, and you're not going to change behavior.
Among the assumptions that we think should be examined
is the assumption that selling access is not a wrong. That
access is something that is okay to give to some people rather
than others, based upon something like how much they support you
or whether they give you money or not.
A second assumption that we would like you to examine is
the notion that a legislator is always an advocate and never a
judge. We think, again, if you reflect upon your behavior and
what you do in the course of a week, many, many times a
substantial portion of that time you are really sitting in a more
nonpartisan, impartial kind of position where you are asked to
make a judgment for the overall well-being of all of us.
Finally, to examine the assumption that disclosure is
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the equivalent of ethical conduct, that as long as you disclose
it and therefore people read about it, that it, therefore, says
it is ethical.
The disclosure myth is based on several things.
One,
the theory that the people really will read it. Sometimes they
do.
Sometimes they don't.
It depends on whether the press is on
you this week or not.
Secondly, it only works after the fact because you have
already done it.

•

Third, the fact is your individual constituency may be
able to support you on that issue. For instance, Adam Clayton
Powell was re-elected over and over again after conviction of a
felony.
So was Mayor Curley while still in jail, you know, from
Boston.
It isn't enough to say, "Well, I told you and you still
like me." There are fundamental moral principles of integrity,
of honor, of duty, of public service that you all know
intuitively.
If this Legislature could be committed to finding a way
to advance that, and part of what I'm suggesting you do is not
only clean up your own house, not because it's dirty -- you don't
have to be sick to get better, but because you can make it
better, but to also acknowledge your role in moral leadership in
this state.
Ethical problems are rampant in business. They are
rampant in sports. They are rampant in education, and if you
would actively, aggressively say, "We are going to re-examine our
role as ethical leaders," you also would be doing the final and
best way to teaching ethics which is to teach by example.
Too often we do the reverse.
It's like the father who
comes home and find his son has taken home these magic markers
from school. The father says, "Where did you get those?"
He says, "Well, I took them from school.
I know I'm not
allowed to, but I needed them," and the father says, "We're going
to return those tomorrow. You know that's wrong.
If you needed
the magic markers so much, why didn't you tell me? I would have
taken them from the office."
I think, to a great extent, that is exactly what so many
of our leaders are doing. We're talking one game and acting
another.
If this body were willing to make improving the ethical
quality of society a major agenda item, not just a side item in
response to the fact that there is some public pressure, but
because that may be the highest and best thing you can do, there
are enormous opportunities for that kind of leadership.
I encourage you to take them.
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I thank you very much.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

Thank you.

Do you believe that the ethics of our contemporary
society are worse now than they were, say, twenty-five years ago,
or is it just the public's perception that they are worse?

MR. JOSEPHSON: It's very interesting.
exactly competing pressures.

I find two

On the one hand, professionally, ethics are better than
they have ever been. There is no question that the ethics of
this body is much higher than it was twenty years ago. Money
could be handed out in paper bags at that time, in cash.
The same is true for journalism.
many of the professions.

The same is true for

So, on the one hand, I see with regard to our public
persona, standards are constantly ratcheting upward. We're
expecting more, and we're demanding more.
In that sense, they
are higher.
On a personal level, I feel they are not higher. They
are at least as low and perhaps lower.
I recently retired from
teaching law school.
It was not only to go into this full time,
something I believe in in terms of this institute, but I
genuinely found it more and more difficult to deal with the
present generation.
I will tell you without any fear of contradiction to
those of us who have taught in both graduate and undergraduate
school, the upcoming generation is less morally anchored than any
I have seen in twenty years of teaching.
I have genuine fear for what that will mean when the
reins of power are turned over to this generation unless we build
some institutional safeguards.
I guess my answer is that on a personal level we have
tended to substitute these new higher laws for morality, and
therefore, we have encouraged a new group of clever people who
find ways to do what they want to do without violating the laws
but who don't seem to have the conscience about it that they used
to.

I will tell you a simple story about competition.
It's
a story about an MBA who goes on a camping trip with a friend,
and they are up in the mountains, and they see a cougar about
twenty yards away. The MBA starts to take off his backpack. The
friend says, "What are you going to do?" He says, "I'm going to
run for it." The friend says, "But you can't outrun a cougar."
The NBA says, I don't have to outrun the cougar.
I just have to
outrun you."
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I suggest to you that that approach to competition is
rampant in the professions.
It most certainly is in journalism.
It most certainly is in pol ics and government.
It most
certainly
law and business.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: The reasons I pose that
question is because it seems from the amount of attention that is
paid to ethics these days that those of us who are involved in
the legislative process, perhaps this is the worst of all times.
Then I talked to individuals who were legislators here
twenty or twenty-five years ago, and you will heard statements
about, "I wish we could go back to pre-Prop 9 days when decisions
were made across the street in the Senator Hotel. We didn't have
all these problems of lengthy committee hearings because we had
already decided what the vote was going to be before we got
here."
MR. JOSEPHSON: And you could have secret meetings
there is not a question in my mind that the overall quality of
behavior by the standards that we are applying today are much
higher now than they have ever been before, but they were never
right.
That's what we have to understand.
The mere fact that
maybe JFK did have an affair, that didn't make it right because
we didn't know about
It suggests to you that if it was as
publicized then as we would publicize such a thing today, there
would be a similar outrage of people.
I don't
that ethical standards of people have
changed.
I think the mores of the behavior of politicians and
other public officials may have changed, but most critically, the
ethics of journalism has changed. Things that used to be
off-limits, hands
f, are no longer hands off or off-limits, so
now we are required as a society to acknowledge and respond to
things.
I suggest the response wouldn't have been different ten
or fifteen years ago, but we now are responding.
MR. BRAND: Just to echo that, I divide my clients by my
pre-Watergate clients and post-Watergate clients.
There is no question that the post-Watergate clients
come with a completely different vision of the world. Their
standards are higher. Their sensitivities are higher. Their
practical application is higher. They tend not to fall off the
ladder as much as the older members who were around before
Watergate.
So I don't think it's worse now.
just more is expected.

It's better.

It's

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Are their standards higher or
are they more
at
what they are doing?
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MR. BRAND: Their standards are higher. They approach
these problems from a totally different perspective.

MR. JOSEPHSON: There was a time when patronage was
absolutely proper. That's what you did. There was a time when
doing favors for somebody you liked was considered proper.
I think the fact that it's not anymore is because people
are sensitive to issues of fairness and conflict of interest, not
just because of the law but because you step back and say, "Yeah,
I guess this really isn't very fair".
If we're a democracy, we
are not supposed to be based on who you know or who you are
because all citizens have equal rights."
We have really significantly increased our intelligence
about ethics.
Let me also point out one other thing, if I may. One of
the things that has to be realized, no matter what laws you pass,
those are not necessarily the standards that the public will hold
you to, especially as interpreted by the press.
It is very clear
that the notion of appearance of impropriety may extend well
beyond what you think is legal or not.
Part of the problem is that in the last fifteen years
the press has gotten religion. You have to understand that their
newsrooms have been cleaned out about conflict of interest. They
couldn't dream of taking any payment from somebody they are going
to write a story about. They can take no gifts other than the
most nominal of value, such as a calendar.
Whether one agrees with that or does not agree with it,
understand, they say, "If I can do this and if I can live with
this and make the decisions, I'll be damned if I'm not going to
apply the ~arne standards to these people who are spending
millions of dollars."
Remember, they are construing now the standards of
propriety through their own new eyes, which was imposed upon them
by corporate management incidentally, not by voluntary changes.
MR. BRAND: In Washington, they are the same ones who
have the special parking spaces on the Hill, get the cut rate
haircuts in the House barber shop, and get other benefits that
accrue to those who hang around the environs of the Legislature
but want to hold everyone else to a different standard.
I'm not so sure that all of them approach it quite from
the disinterested standpoint that they don't get the same
benefits. Some of them do, at least in the Congress they do.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
I had a comment from someone in
the group that I pulled together that maybe we should take a look
at the standards, ethical standards, for judges. The conclusion
was that this is a very elite group, and they live in a
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well-protected world. Since you worked in this area, is there
something there that we could adopt?
MR. JOSEPHSON: If you talk to the judges, a lot of them
think of themselves as politicians, not in your supreme court as
much as in your
ipal court, and they rebel dramatically when
we are talking about the code, the limitation of how they can
raise money, and what they can do and what they can say are
highly regulated.
I don't think they think that they are in a
rarefied atmosphere.

II

I think that the difference is that there is a history
and a tradition that recognizes in the judicial system -impartiality is so critical that anything that seems to affect
that, we're going to outlaw.
I don't think you should have the same rules as judges.
Don't misunderstand me.
I think that there is much you can learn
from that. Because when you're sitting as a judge, in a
committee, for example, and reporting out a bill and what you do,
it seems to me that those obligations are the same.
MR. BRAND: I
to dissent from that, because at
least at the federal level, judges are life-tenured and don't run
for election. You cannot be impartial if three million of your
constituents have a problem that you have to deal with.
MR. JOSEPHSON: Except the ethics code for judges
applies equal
to
and elected judges, and those who
have lifetime tenure and those who have to rerun for election,
and the standards are just as strict for both.
While you are right, it's a heck of a lot easier if you
don't think there is going to be any consequences to your
exercise of that, it is nevertheless imposed on all the
judiciary.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BILL LANCASTER: Let me express a
concern that I have had for some time, and I believe that Mr.
Brand, at least, alluded to it briefly in his remarks.
There is a tendency on the part of the members of the
Legislature in California, and I presume, now, perhaps,
nationwide, to say, "Let George do it."
In California, we have the Fair Political Practices
Commission which was formed by the people, which is fine.
They
have the right to do all these things. There is a tendency on
the part of the Legislature to say, "Well, give the
responsibility to the Fair Political Practices Commission."
All of a sudden, I think, we're going to find ourselves,
and this is where I'm concerned, we are gong to find ourselves
with a whole set of rules and regulations that are not
necessarily realistic in the sense of what our responsibilities
and job are.
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They are an appointed commission, in effect, over there
some place, kind of in a different world, I guess would be the
best way to describe it.
I would be interested in all three of
you gentlemen's remarks because I think it's important to the
Legislature, in my personal view, to come back to doing our own
thing that is necessary to be done.
MR. BRAND: I agree. Constitutionally, it's compelled.
As we have all discussed, it can only be done here in a
way that gives the public confidence that you are seizing the
initiative.
It may be done wrongly by others and not as well.
I
would -- delegating endlessly to others -- that basic
self-disciplinary and ethical role is a mistake.
MR. JOSEPHSON: One of the problems is when one talks
about unrealistic rules -- and I think unrealistic rules are the
worst kind of rules of all because they don't do anything. Are
they politically unrealistic or are they factually unrealistic?

There is a difference, because some of the things we
want to change, perhaps, is the politics. Some of the things we
may want to change is the fact that under the existing system
Congress is not willing to close any bases, so we have naval
bases in Arizona. That may be politically unrealistic, but we
need some system that forces a change in that.
By the same token, if there is a will in this body to
make a difference, it is far and away the best body to do it, but
there has been no demonstration of that will.
I must say in all
candor that, as an outsider, no one has yet impressed me that
this is anything more than, "Let's tinker with this a little bit
and see whether we want to launch into it, because there are
going to be massive changes that are going to be necessary if
you, in fact, continue on this road, which is a good road."
MR. JENNINGS:

I agree with you as well.

I think that the idea that the
lature should always
transfer the responsibility to ethical
sues outside of itself
is not really the best approach to take, except perhaps in those
few areas where public perception, the concern of public
perception, and the independence of the investigation would call
for an outside intervention of some sort.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I'm not talking about the
enforcement aspect. To me, I have my own personal point of view
on that aspect, but the fact of the matter is, I believe, that
part of our public perception that is held may be not in the
highest esteem is because we are saying to our constituents, we
can't do that, let's let the Fair Political Practices Commission
do it. That's where I am becoming more and more concerned.
I
see more of this all the time, a shifting of someplace else.
exist.

MR. JENNINGS: I would add that the same problem may
What is the charge of this committee? Should you look at
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the rules or anything?
fragmentation can
confusing and
intra-agency.

No. That's something else. The
internal, and I think it is just as
if it
internal as if it is

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I believe one of the charges
to me is to try to bring all of this together to present a
package to the membership that is clearly understood.
I think
all of these are parts of it.
MR. JOSEPHSON: But the fundamental question that the
public will ask, are you willing to vote against your own
self-interest in some cases?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: I am going to, if I could, just
interrupt this for a moment and ask the panel to stay here. Mr.
Elder has a bill before this committee, AB 6, dealing in this
subject area, and he would like to present that bill because he
is busy in another committee.
Also, it may give you an opportunity to comment on the
approach that he has with this particular piece of legislation.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER DAVE ELDER:

Thank you very much.

I had earlier introduced what is now AB 6 in a previous
session.
I could not get the bill heard in the Rules Committee,
which was pretty distressing to me at the time.
I think now, with a different climate of op1n1on and
obvious concern by an
lot of the members, this AB 6 will
now be heard eventually.
I was distressed to see that it was
going to be heard, I think, on June 3, which is two days short of
six months after I introduced it, certainly not a galloping pace
in the legislative world, but, in any event, I guess it will be
heard, which will be kind of historic.

•

The bill was to provide information to people seeking
office, whether candidates or incumbents, about what is
appropriate behavior. What we were going to focus on were things
-- the ten or twenty major transgressions that had been
identified by the Fair Political Practices Commission in all of
their work.
Essential ,
was a voluntary course. We were going
to permit the Fair Political Practices Commission to charge
people to see it, the thought being that I did not want to have
fiscal problems with the administration if it were a fee for
viewing the tape, that might be an extremely good way to do it.
Essentially, the really purpose of the bill is to warn
individuals who come from all different walks of life that the
rules in politics, while they are not essentially better, they
are certainly different from what is common practice in the
business world, where finders' fees and referral fees and various
things like
are appropriate, and one's attempt to maximize
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their income is certainly greeted with applause in many circles.
That is not the appropriate course as far as public
elected officials are concerned. They should not enrich
themselves at the expense of the public, rather it is to do
public service and to try to promote the common good.
Essentially, the tape would be mirrored somewhat after
the tape that has been produced for the ethics course in the real
estate world, which is a required course.
I'm not familiar with
the ones that attorneys have to take, but I understand that it's
a substantial part of their legal training.
In any event, not being an attorney, and interested in
trying to alert people to what is appropriate behavior and what
is not appropriate behavior in advance of their seeking office,
I thought that was a very laudatory kind of thing.
I don't think we can deal with every issue. But I do
think there are a number of things that happen over and over
again, that we read about all over the state at different
jurisdiction levels, that these mistakes can be reduced in
number, at least.
And as the Fair Political Practices
Commission, the League of Women Voters, and others, identify
things that they think are problems that could be included in the
course.
One of the real things that makes the course almost
mandatory would be the fact that individuals who refuse to take
the course, or had not taken the course, that this would almost
become a campaign issue in itself. Refusing to take the course,
or would not take the course, or did not take the course is
something that could be leveled against a candidate by a
candidate who was smart enough to have taken the course.
That, in itself, is very good. Another one, too, is
that it is warning individuals about these offenses and
certifying that, in fact, they were there when the course was
given and have them sign in, so if subsequently they are guilty
of one of the offenses that is listed in the ethics course
material, they could not claim ignorance because we would have on
record the fact that they took the course.
In effect, we would
have had an opportunity to not have individuals claim ignorance
of the law or of problem areas.
Now, as far as
is reasonable.
I don't
philosophical questions
ethical and what is not
problem areas that have
the number of errors.

what is proposed here, it's beyond what
think that we can get into the
about what each individual thinks is
ethical, but I think we can identify the
existed for some time and at least reduce

Obviously, I think it has been pointed out that some
people will behave unethically regardless of what we do.
Sometimes those individuals see elective office as a way to
revolt. Unfortunately, the public can't tell, as well as we can
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tell, who these individuals are until they don't report for work
one day and they are
another country.
I
that
that this course is a rather
modest proposal and
cost anything, and it should
accomplish something of a
ing of the attention of the Fair
Political Practices Commission on those things that have been
problem areas identified and agreed to by the commission that
individuals ought to be warned about before they seek elective
office.
That is es
it ever gets to a vote,
more progress than the

what AB 6 hopes to accomplish.
If
1 be extremely happy.
That will be
1 has had up to now.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: I think that I understand that
the intent of the chair of this committee is to handle all of
these bills that -- perhaps the consultant can help me.
My
ethics area
taken until sometime
committee.

that all bills dealing with the
by the committee but no action
part of the overall proposal of the

I think his intent was to focus on a single piece of
legislation dealing
the ethics area.
MEMBER ELDER:

Which means my bill is dead.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER STAN STATHAM:

No.

One of the problems is that this is such a crucial area
to us all now, and that
why there is such a plethora of ethics
bills in the house, and
committee simply didn't want to
attack this in a piecemeal fashion.
We wanted to put together a substantial package of which
yours should be a most definite part.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: This bill requires the Fair
Political Practices Commission to come up with a three-hour
program, videotape, regarding ethics, conflict of interest, and
all of the things dealing with elected officials.
The fact
that the Fair Political Practices Commission
in this state was not given the charge for our conflict of
interest, for our staff, yes, but not us. The ethics situation,
they are not given that charge either.
So, again, we're saying to somebody else, you tell these
guys running for office, these people running for office out
there just exactly what is expected of them as far as ethics,
conflict of interest, and all of these things, and that is what
this committee is charged -- to bring it together where we can
put our own set of criteria.
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I have no quarrel with the Fair Political Practices
Commission coming up with a videotape of what they do.
I would
like to know. The second factor is perhaps we ought to come up
with a videotape of what we think ought to be the correct way.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER: Mr. Lancaster, again, I just
thought the Fair Political Practices Commission because some
people think they have a lot to do with this.
I am open to
whoever would do it. Again, I think we should focus on the
common offenses that have obtained a certain amount of notoriety
and at least warn people who are from all walks of life who seek
office and who do not have this prior background that certain
things that are permissible in the business world are not
permissible in elected office. There is this great myth that
what we need is more business-like practices in government. The
fact of the matter is that certain practices have no business
being in government.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: You're welcome, Mr. Elder.
there anything on the Elder issue and bill? No bills are
referred to this committee, per se.
MR. JOSEPHSON:

Is

May I say something about the concept of

this?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Procedurally, is this
generally how it will work? We hear the bill idea, and consider
it, and then we will put together a recommendation?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: All the subject matters of the
various bills in our purview as we have designed it now, will be
on our agenda and typically be heard in the three hearings on the
particular topics. Each member who is an author of any of those
bills is being encouraged to come and present his or her proposal
for our consideration.
MR. JOSEPHSON: I was wondering if I could comment in
general upon that kind of notion
a video course because I
think in concept it's an excellent one because people do learn
better from that kind of thing. There are three dangers that I
would just want to call to your attention. One is the pedagogy
of it is critical. Pedagogy, how it is taught, what is the
method? Is it going to be a talking head? Is it going to be a
panel? Is it going to be what? I was in the bar review business
in a prior incarnation. Some people could sell the thing, and it
was very effective. Others, it was deadly.
I think that no
matter who writes it, you need to be very concerned how it is
presented.
Secondly, I just ask you to consider when you single out
some rules to be taught this way, you derogate others that are
not. Therefore, you have to be very careful as to whether you
are approaching it comprehensively enough. Are these rules more
important than some others? And you want to be cautious about
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that. There
take the
legalisms to
and what you
this legal
passing on

enormous tendency once you start to do that to
out, which is to focus on the
exact rules, and what you can get away with
If
you end up doing is reinforcing
, I suggest to you that you are just
to the next scandal.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I made the comment and asked
or not -- my certainty is that
the gentlemen
respons
ity to somebody else, a
we are shifting so
Practices Commission, to make
commission, the Fair
judgment dec ions for us, and I think I was correct in my
my concern and that we should not do
assumption that
that.
MR. JOSEPHSON:

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: We should take it into our
own and maybe we could do the correct thing. I brought that up
because that was the
ft of the program to the Fair Political
Practices Commiss
for something we should do ourselves. They
really don't
anything to do with our ethics, or, for that
matter, our conflict of interest.
MR. JOSEPHSON: It tends to send a different message.
If the Legislature were truly willing to undertake that kind of
educational rule, through a committee, or something else that you
do, I think
's outstanding.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: If we fail to do that, we
are, in effect,
that we can't do that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: I came in late, but it seems to
me, as I said at the beginning, we ought to have as a part of our
program an educational component. The stronger we make it, that
we really intend to educate ourselves, I think it builds our own
credibility. FPPC's record is not one that I find to be
compelling in this
style, I'll say very carefully,
circumspectly, almost.
Anything further?
Stan.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: If I could ask Mr. Josephson a
question. You talked about how we, as government, have been
improving its operation and morality, at least the level of
ethics. I wanted to ask you a question about the press because
you made some really interesting comments about that. What is
the cause of the change in the way the press covers what they
cover?
In other words,
me just use the example you used.
Why was there
a dramatic difference in the way JFK's
lifestyle and Gary Hart's lifestyle were covered by the press?
What changed
way
s operates in that short period of
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time?
MR. JOSEPHSON: I've speculated.
I'll share my
speculation. There are two motivations. One is coming from
something good, and one is coming from something bad. The one
that is coming from something good was sort of leaving that
old-boyism. By the way, It was FDR, too. They would not take
pictures of FDR below the waist so people shouldn't see that he
was in a wheelchair.
There was a time in which the press, especially the
Washington press, was as much a part of the establishment as
anything else.
I think it is good that that has changed.
Part
of it was let's separate ourselves from that. The part that
isn't so good, always, came from Woodward/Bernstein. When you
had the Woodward/Bernstein thing, you changed journalism because
now Green Beret journalism became the way in which you are going
to become a great journalist. People want to look for that kind
of story.
Many of the stories they have broken are excellent,
important, and vital to society. The trouble is that everybody
is looking for a story.
It's like too many lawyers out there
looking for cases, so you end up with some lawyers getting really
bad cases and treating them like they are good cases.
I think
some journalists get stories that aren't worthy of the attention
and treat them as if they were.
I think that those are two basic
motivations. Clearly today, the competition amongst people in
the press, amongst themselves, is as high as it has ever been.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: When you weigh it all, is the
press doing a better job today than they were twenty-five years
ago or not?
MR. JOSEPHSON: In many ways, they are doing a better
job; but there are seeds of some serious problems with what they
are doing as well that may undermine it in some parts.
By the way, the biggest problem with the press is the
increasing pressure on the business side in the newspaper
industry to bottom line it and make the situation shorter and
make them more attractive, et cetera.
If you were to look at random newspapers from twenty
years ago and today, they do a much better job. The quality of
reporters is better. They are better educated and the like.
There is, however, an assault-type journalism that may be running
amuck in certain places.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

You got it.

Ms. Killea.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: This is a question not on the
specifics but on the more general, on the relationship that
perhaps an independent counsel, perhaps adjudication kind of arm,
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investigative
How do you see
relationship,
out-house
standpoint,
expens
time at
constitut
exercised.

•

should have to a legislative body.
be a semi-independent
?

, in-house counsel and
From the Legislature's
outside counsel. They are very
them to reinvent the wheel every
They don't have any sense of the
or the
that is being

are too hot to handle
for the ins
I have not seen that case in
on the staff. They should be
my time. You
professionals
committee. They have developed
an expertise. They see
1 the cases instead of just one case.
They don't have to re-learn everything each time.
If you have a
standing committee
staff who can deal with these
things, they
1
of knowledge, an expertise,
that the committee can
you have to go outside every
time, you're not
factor.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
same independence of judgment
MR. BRAND:
if you
committee
if
truly independent
from the body.
I
there is an
go find that.

1 you have universally the

there is any more independence
to do that work of the
someone inside your staff.
It's not
source of supervision and funding comes
it makes any difference.
If
lacking, then the Legislature can

MR. JOSEPHSON:
I really disagree, at least on some
level, with that.
I
that Dick Falen who did the study on
Jim Wright -- and you haven't seen it yet -- absolutely had a lot
more freedom to do whatever he was willing to do than anybody who
was working full time for that committee. Having said that, I
think it should be only
the extraordinary case that you really
need to go outside.
My biggest concern is not outside versus inside, but
g1v1ng the inside counsel conflicting duties.
I think you should
have two offices.
It's l
a public defender and a prosecutor.
You should not
the same group that is counseling, advising
and working with and helping, which is what they should do, also
be the group that has to ultimately prosecute and make
recommendations
sanct
It's an inherent conflict of
interest.
MR. BRAND: I
Michael there.
That is a very
significant point.
It's constitutionally permissible, but I
think it
a bad
The designated ethics officers in the
government,
a note today about it, have that
conflict.
They become attorneys in
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effect for the employee or the legislator. Then they have to
turn around and refer that legislator to the floor of the House
or Senate for violations of the codes.
I don't think that is
going to work.
I think you need a separate, bifurcated process
-- advisory, counseling -- and if it goes to a proceeding or
situation where that is going to be enforced, that has got to be
done by somebody else.
MR. JENNINGS: I would like to reinforce that, too, by
saying that if you don't have that kind of separation, in some
fashion, you really don't have education and counseling. What
you have more often is members coming to the committee staff for
advisory opinions, which essentially turn into permission to do
something.
If they are later criticized, they want to have
covered themselves.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: What about having someone as in
an independent position, such as attached to the Attorney
General's Office, but operating as a-MR. BRAND: Well, I don't like that because that's an
executive branch agency.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Okay.

I got it now.

MR. BRAND: You could make them independent within the
Legislature the way the general accounting office is independent
within the Congress or is put into some procedure where he's
immune from attack in the ways that those kinds of people can be
attacked, insulate him from the institutional forces of control
that might control other people.
MR. JOSEPHSON: The President's Commission just made a
report which has a similar suggestion. The President's
Commission on Ethics suggested that both houses select and ratify
an individual who would really be responsible to both houses to
making recommendations as to sanctions back to the committee.
MR. BRAND: And give him protection the way they give
the independent counsel protection to say the only reason that he
could be dismissed is for gross impropriety or illegal conduct.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

They spell that Czar, don't

they?
MR. JOSEPHSON: In this case, he only has recommending
power anyway. He only sends it back to the committee. He
recommends it back to the committee. But the point is, he is one
more step removed from the political pressures. The issue is not
only whether he'll do a better investigatory job.
It really
depends on the administration he is working in, I think.
It's
also that it appears better.
I feel more comfortable as an
outsider saying, "Okay, at least this guy is not answering to the
Speaker, you know, every day."
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Any further comments or
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questions?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I have a request of the
staff that they provide the membership of this committee with the
structure of the House Ethics Committee and how it's formed and
kind of a brief history, and what they do back there so we
understand.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Sure.

The Senate as well?

MR. BRAND: If I could make one plea, a very parochial
one. Don't have a joint committee. I don't know if this body is
like the Congress, but joint bodies tend to be taken over by the
Senate in the Congress.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

That's not true here.

MR. BRAND: But there are separate institutional reasons
above and beyond that for having your own ability and authority
to do your own program separate and apart from whatever the other
body may do.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: What I hear you saying is that
we should have four committees, one in each house about advice
and counseling, and one in each house for prosecution.
MR. BRAND: It does not have to be a committee.
could be an individual.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

It

Four different entities?

MR. JOSEPHSON: I want to dissent from that.
I think
that -- and I don't know the politics enough -- but I think if
you have two different bodies, you're going to have two different
standards, and you're going to be ending up having the mismatch
in standards in the same way we have the executive has different
standards now in the federal government.
I think on ethics we
should expect exactly the same thing from a senator as you do
from an Assemblyman.
I don't think we ought to even subject it
to the risk that it will be interpreted differently and apply
different standards.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: The way the committees work in
our Legislature, usually, is that they have a chair from one
house and a vice chair from the other house.
MR. BRAND:

That's how ours worked.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: It isn't always that the Senate
has the chair.
I just completed joint committee work this month
in higher education where I have been the chair.
I have been the
person leading that very clearly. The vice chair is in the
Senate and worked with me. We have had a group of four caucuses
working. We have really taken a lead on that.
I'm persuaded
somewhat, Michael, that the ethics are going to be the same in
both houses.
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HEARING OF
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THE HONORABLE JOHN VASCONCELLOS
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STATE CAPITOL, ROOM 127
APRIL 5, 1989
CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. This is the fourth
meeting now of our Assembly Select Committee on Ethics. We were
created in January by the Speaker with the charge of developing
a program regarding ethics for the Assembly.
We first met and adopted a work plan and a charter, then
met to take testimony, which provided us, and anyone who wanted
to, a notion of what we ought to be addressing.
We have generally chosen not to take ourselves into the
particulars of house management nor the particulars of campaign
financing, but rather what it means to be an ethical person once
we are here as a Legislator or as a staff persons, or as an
advocate, or whatever else we find to be in the purview of the
place, operating in a way that is both ethical and presents the
appearances of being ethical to those who are observing, whether
a regular here in the Capitol or any Californian at large.

•

We then had a hearing, just before Easter, of experts
from New York, Washington, and Los Angeles trying to get a larger
framework in which to figure out how to effectively put this
together. And in putting this together, we've talked about being
sort of a tripartheid package of a code of some type of ethics,
rules, do's and don'ts, number one; number two, a process of
sanctions and adjudication and; number three, an educational
process for all of us on what are the do's and don'ts, and
probably in some way an intermittent catch-up educational program
for those who come in as staff, or as advocates, or as Members
from time to time.
So, with that foundation, which I think is the correct
one, we today begin a series of hearings on proposed solutions
regarding the inventory of concerns that were presented us
earlier. And we've put them together so far in three major
efforts.
One is the financial matters that pertain to us as
Legislators or ought not to as the case might be; secondly, the
issue of jobs and employment and in and out; and thirdly, the
issue of sanctions along with the adjudication process and along
with an educational process.
Today is the issue of financial matters, investments,
disclosure, conflict of interest, and the rest of that. And we
have put together, as you will note, an extensive agenda at the
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, a two-page agenda, that covers the major
as well the particular pieces of
know are around, have been introduced
of either party, and then a whole booklet
us more background with which we can
appropriate, wise, and effective and
's financial matters, financial disclosure,
, personal use of campaign funds, and then
, and travel.
the Acting Vice Chair of this
I have tried to go over all the bills introduced
those that don't fall in the particular
we're talking about ought to be freely taken forward
but rather hold only the ones that are on this
the matters of adjucation and sanctions and the
of education.
are some larger gross issues -- and I use the word
terms
the size of them -- that I think at some
to wonder about in terms of the whole issue of the
campaigns and/or the organization of the house.
But
these are the ones we have on our agenda right now.
asked to develop and intend to develop some
what do we have now in the way of laws, in the
,
the way of rules through statutes and/or
and/or through the FPPC and/or otherwise. And we
as an introduction to each one of the areas of
Leg Counsel advise us as to what laws
1 print some sort of a handbook for Legislators
know what it is that's on the books now, as a
have
in mind, and this has come up before, to
, who seems to be the most appropriate
State's existing financial disclosure
1 together. So we, in a more comprehensive
we have to start with there as well as

26
concern

two hearings will be like today.
They'll be the
May to look at the other areas of
a comprehensive program.

's see -Mr. Chairman?
VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Lancaster.

LANCASTER: If it's in order, I'll make a
Committee do make the request of the
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I have a copy. Just because
I think it ought to get over there as soon as possible.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA:

Second.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Mr. Lancaster moves. Ms. Killea
seconds. We have four of us here. We need at least a fifth to
get a quorum vote on that, so we'll put that on call pending the
arrival of a fifth member.
We'll proceed on our agenda for today.
general comments we're going to open with.

There are some

What we've tried to do is have each of the hearings have
a particular agenda so it's focused. And we've tried to be, as
well, flexible for those who couldn't make a particular agenda.
So, at the last one, which was more of the general overview, we
had invited Robert Fellmuth, Center of Public Interest Law in San
Diego. And he couldn't be there then. And he is here, I'm
advised, today. And we've asked him to kind of make up for what
he would have told us last time.
we have a request to provide testimony from Walter
Zellman of Common Cause, because they've been so active in the
field, which we'll try to put on after Mr. Fellmuth.
And then in terms of the particulars, both Mr. Condit and
Mr. Friedman, for one reason of geography and one reason of
readiness, have indicated that their proposals -- that they have
either surfaced or intend to, they're not prepared to be here
today. So they will both be given a raincheck over to the next
meeting.
And I'm told, just by note, that John Burton likewise is
ill and unavailable this afternoon.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

And who are the other two?
Terry Friedman and Gary Condit.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Condit has the
committee rules that have been introduced here
Friedman is developing a larger proposal which
this point, not enough completed to be able to
understand.

proposal -and there, and
is not ready at
make public, as I

So, we'll carry ourselves into these areas today, again,
to learn all we want. And I'll tell you, just for people who
want to know how it's going to happen, that my general style as a
chair is to set up the right foundations, and get everybody
inside. And I've interviewed so far five of the nine colleagues
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Bane and Bronzan, and Allen and
can gather there's a real diversity
and geography
,
at.
we've got the foundations, you know, in
we'll take the testimony. And then, during the
some sense of where'we•re all heading and
of a proposal, probably in a draft form, that
meet and deliberate over, and then present to
that we're ready to do that, and to take as
make sure it is worth doing for us and for
on today•s agenda -- any comments otherwise
the agenda? Is there anything else? Ted,
Fellmeth.
Mr. Chairman, Members of the
Fellmeth, and I'm on the faculty of
Diego Law School, where I direct the Center
Law.
It's an academic center, which focuses
Government, and publishes the California
a number of books and chapters relevant to
Committee, and directed the Nader Congress
'72, chaired the Athletic Commission from '78
as a white collar crime state prosecutor from
as a federal and state cross commission
'80 to '82, and litigation co-chair of California
counsel for the Center for Public Interest Law,
, the FPPC, which is currently awaiting a
District Court of Appeals.
appointed State Bar Discipline Monitor by
a few things that maybe need to be said,
's important to emphasize them. The
important. Simply saying those words does
ficance of this position.
, you determine sanctions for their
the power to specify death. You compel
spending.
In '88-'89 you'll collect and
regulatory agencies to license, monitor, and
You created more than sixty of them operating under
statutes, and your oversight covers pollution, worker
, coastal development, the regulation of
, banking, real estate sales, alcohol sales,
trades and profess
from
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physician who delivers us to the mortician who embalms us.
You decide the rules of the marketplace, the obligations
we owe to each other, who pays the damages when those obligations
are breached. You determine the quality of our lives. And
really, the executive is left to carry out your programs and the
judiciary to interpret your intent.
So, your position, in my way of thinking, is pre-eminent
above all in not only in our state, but in our society. So, to
you we entrust much and we expect much.

•

There are two things we expect above all else. You
protect democracy by making sure elections are competitive and
fair and that your public decisions are made on the merits .
After fair elections, you must build a wall of integrity.
Because the importance of your position is so unparalleled, the
public owes you consummate respect. You owe the public total
fidelity.
Your pay should be set by an independent commission. The
standard should be a level of pay comparable to those of public
servants with similar station or responsibility. The independent
commission should be given the authority to make this decision.
It should be subject to alteration only by an affirmative act of
two-thirds of the Legislature. This question is of no less
self-interest than is the drawing of lines for districts and
should likewise be treated by an independent commission, not be
interested parties.
Ideally that pay should be adequate and more than is
currently extant. That should be all of what legislators
received, period. No exceptions. No honoraria. None. No
travel pay by private sources. None. No gifts outside of
immediate family.
None. No law practice. None. No personal
use of campaign funds. None. All investments in blind trusts.
All.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Clarification. You seemed to
have covered the whole spectrum, I believe Bob. What about a
person who has a business and is a partner in a business? Just a
business. A car dealership or something. They should divest
themselves, their total holdings before they come? Is that what
you're suggesting?
MR. FELLMETH: Yes. Full-time job. Absolutely
full-time. Trusted to the public, exclusive contract to the
public. And the public should pay you accordingly.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So, you're advocating, in
effect, a person runs for this office or any office, that they
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should divest themselves totally of any holdings whatsoever.
MR. FELLMETH:

Absolutely.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

I see.

MR. FELLMETH: Everything in a blind trust. Every
investment in a blind trust. Your occupation is legislator. It
is a very important position. It's the most important position
we have in our society, as far as I'm concerned.
And I don't see
there's an advantage in having this
bright line test, this very clear, bright line, absolute test.
No questions. A wall of integrity. Someone buys you a cup of
coffee -- you say no. Somebody pays for your taxi -- you say no.
No exceptions.
And that wall creates an atmosphere that's very
important. And it's needed up here. Needed anywhere. And it
also creates a kind of a trust in you that's badly needed.
I know it works hardships, because maybe someone wants to
pay for an education trip. Maybe there's a book you want to
write. Maybe there's something that won't harm anybody. But I
think that that wall of integrity tells the outside world, the
work of these people is so special, so important that we brook no
exceptions. They're ours. And we're going to pay them, nobody
else. Exclusive contract.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: What about -- you said no blind
trust. You mean somebody who's wealthy and has money -- but they
cannot have it in a blind trust?
MR. FELLMETH::

No, they would have it in a blind trust.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

They would have it in a blind

trust.
MR. FELLMETH::

Yes.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

MR. FELLMETH:: Investments in blind trusts. Occupation,
you take a leave of absence. You are now a legislator full-time.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
MR. FELLMETH::
whatever.

Leave of absence from the law firm, or

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
the immediate family -MR. FELLMETH::

Okay.

When you say no gifts other than

Right.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

-- I have a dear friend, for whom
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I'm like family, but not immediate family. who owns a condominium
on Maui, which I use regularly. Would that be disallowed under
your interpretation?
MR. FELLMETH::
Absolutely.

Absolutely, it'd be disallowed.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER RICHARD KATZ:
MR. FELLMETH::

•

As is wedding gifts?

Absolutely.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: In other words, you want to create
legislators in a separate category than the public insofar as
interpersonal relationships, friendships and really segregate
them from the world. And then you make a value judgment that
that's good.
MR. FELLMETH:: I'm not segregating them from the world.
I hope they're right in the world.
I'm segregating them from the
receipt of any gratuity or anything of value at all from anyone,
whatever, period, except members of their own families.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: Well, I understand. That's what
I'm saying. But when you got married, if you're married-- I
don't know if you are or not -- but you got wedding gifts from
those who were not in your immediate family.
Correct?
MR. FELLMETH::

Actually, no.

But let's assume I did.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: Well, we can't solve all the ills
here today, but you would not afford a legislator that same -I'm not talking about somebody who's a lobbyist.
I'm not talking
about somebody who's involved in government.
I'm talking about
somebody you've known for twenty years.
MR. FELLMETH:: I would say absolutely not. The price
you pay in starting to make exceptions, in compromising a bright
line test, is too high given the value of what you're talking
about.
Sure, someone, a legislator, gets married. And, indeed,
a legislator is going to have to not receive private gifts from
lobbyists or from members of -- friends, associates, or whatever,
fine.
I'll tell you what. We'll set up a public fund to give as
a noblesse oblige, a thousand dollars to every legislator who
gets married as a kind of a gesture from the public to that
person, fine.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

A little dowry?

MR. FELLMETH:: If you want a dowry, if you want to do
that. But I don't think that the benefit that you're conferring
to that individual is worth drawing an exception. And if you can
find an exception that's clear, that's compelling, fine.
But
aside from gifts from the immediate family, I don't see any.
I
think it's much more valuable to just take an absolute approach
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and to say, yes, we're holier than thou.
are.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
done very well together.
MR. FELLMETH::

You're darn right we

You and Jerry Brown would have

I don't think so.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: I'm more than sympathetic with
what you're talking about in terms of the wall of integrity and
the wall of trust. And yet, the way in which you describe how we
would be, it's like a bit above and beyond.
It's like a coterie
of priests and priestesses, which has its own problems in terms
of whether we ought to even think of ourselves that way, much
less have anybody else wonder about us being those.
I'm not
quarreling, you know, I appreciate the -MR. FELLMETH:: I think in terms of evaluating these
momentous public issues for which you're entrusted.
I think that
having that atmosphere is worth this very small price you'd be
paying, and a miniscule price, particularly if you're being paid
at the levels I think the public should be paying you, which is
obviously substantially more than you're getting now.
I also think there should be no employment for two years
after leaving the Legislature which involves legislative or
regulatory executive contact for pay. The same rules should
apply for legislative staff, upper executive staff, regulatory
agency boards, and high officials.
To enforce those standards and existing law protecting
the basic integrity, I'd suggest an independent prosecutor. An
independent prosecutor is needed to take current existing elected
prosecutors off the hook. We need a system that operates by at
least a semiautomatic trigger, if you'll forgive the unfortunate
allusion to weaponry after yesterday's hearings.
The early draft of such legislation by one senator, I
think, lacks such a mechanism.
It essentially restates the
powers of the Attorney General to prosecute a case or assign it
out.
I think there's going to be another bill introduced which
will be modeled after the current Federal Independent Counsel
Act. And I think that's preferable. I think it does no good to
create an independent system and then wink at noncompliance or
defer to an agency which has its own burdens in prosecuting.
There has to be a trigger which is realistic and does not require
a prosecutor to put himself or herself in the position of taking
on someone who may have a political agenda or a political
identity vis-a-vis the prosecutor.
This is true both at the local level and at the state
level, as well. The remedies themselves should not be the
Draconian choice of no sanction or criminal prosecution. That's
a real problem with many of these systems. There should be a
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system of civil penalties and injunctive relief which is
segmented, which is fine-tunable, and which is somewhat
reconcilable with the degrees of violation which may be expected
to occur, some of them quite innocent and some of them not.

•

I know this hearing focuses on proposals regarding
income. And I do have in my written testimony some comments
about elections, because I didn't testify before.
I'm not going
to make those orally, because I know you want to focus on these
other issues.
I do have some comments what I think is an
incredible need for either a public funding or a Prop 68 type
checkoff system for financing of campaigns. And I think that the
wall of integrity I'm talking about is of little use unless you
also do something about the campaign finance situation, including
the campaign spending limits and so forth, which is now, I think
before you in a particular bill, AB 1844, Vasconcellos.
I hope
that bill is considered seriously, because it's well-written,
well-drafted, and important.
There's a strong movement for initiatives on districting,
campaign reform, and compensation questions, and so forth. And,
you know, that's going to be very sad if that happens. And I
think it may very well happen if we're not able to act on this,
because what happens is someone gets locked in on one of these
initiatives that may be very poorly drafted. And there you are.
You're sitting there with it. And you've got the signatures.
You can't change it. You can't refine it.
Instead, you defend
it to the hilt, even though you're dead wrong, even though you've
made terrible errors. And you're stuck with it afterwards. And
then you're often -- the result is the Legislature is locked on
the issue or deadlocked on the issue and there you are.
What I would suggest instead is we bit the bullet. Tough
bullet to bite. But we bite the bullet. We we show the public
what we're willing to do. And we offer bright line test, clear
prohibitions, delegate to others decisions you should acknowledge
are not best made by you.

•

And I know that the conventional wisdom out there -- and
I hear it all the time, and I know you probably do, too -- is
that that'll never happen; that it's out of fashion for people in
the Legislature here in Sacramento to ever vote against anyone's
self-interest. That it's actually considered kind of a sign of
weakness.
It's kind of a cynical attitude that everybody's
supposed to be sophisticated. Everybody's supposed to be a
player. Everybody's supposed to try to exert influence and
increase power and get more appointments and control more
appropriates and get more ink and enhance territory and get
perks.
And if you're not in that milieu, then you're somehow
weak, you're not sophisticated and so forth. And I think that's
a very unfortunate kind of atmosphere. And whether it's here or
not, people think it's here.
I think you're better than that.
And a lot of people we work with think you're better than that.
They think that these issues are so important that you will be
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willing to operate very much against your own self-interest for a
larger purpose.
Thank

Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Bill Lancaster and Ted

Lempert.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Yes, Bob, I have a question.
Throughout our testimony, I believe, at the last meeting, the
persons that were here, they commented on the need for the
Legislature to try to get back to where we are making judgment
decisions instead of deferring all of our judgments to other
bodies, such as the Fair Political Practices Commission or the
whatever the case may be. Do you have any comment? I think you
advocate that we actually give the authority to somebody else as
to what our conduct should or should not be. Are you advocating
that or should we develop our own?
MR. FELLMETH: I think you have to give it away to
somebody else.
In terms of both setting your salary -- I think
you have to give that to a commission that is independent from
politics, and we don't have to endure the posturing that we had
at the federal level. And I think that in terms of the
prosecution, you have to give that away, too. You really cannot
set up an operational committee. This committee is great for
obviously policy, which is what it's doing. But if this
committee had the task, as other committees have had, of actually
policing the membership in ethics, I don't think the public
believes that's very effective. And I think many of you are
uncomfortable with it. And I understand why.
I would be, too.
I think anyone would be.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Well, I wonder, you know, if
we're perceived to be unable to do the right thing by
consistently saying, "Let's somebody else do it." I asked that
question the other day of the persons who were testifying. And I
thought some of their answers -- particularly the gentleman who
had experience with a house committee, he strongly suggested we
not give it away, that we bite the bullet, as you said, and
proceed to do the right thing.
I think that's one of the policy decisions this
committee's going to have to make.
I'm interested in your point
of view on that. You know, the word independent is great. But
he could not define it for us, what an independent -- he'd been
both, by the way. He's been an independent prosecutor and a
fellow who worked for the House Ethics Committee. And he had a
difficult time defining what independent prosecutor meant. So,
I'm just curious.
MR. FELLMETH: Well, independent prosecutor, to me, would
be someone whose job is not dependent upon the decision-making to
prosecute or not to prosecute and whose budget is not directly
dependent upon a decision or a series of decisions to prosecute
or not to prosecute, and who knows it, and the Legislature knows
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it, and the public knows it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

•

Thank you.

Ted?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER TED LEMPERT: Yes.
I think you're making
a number of strong suggestions.
I had a question about your
concept of a wall and not allowing any outside income. Wouldn't
you be creating a system whereby people would be financially
forced to be re-elected and stay in government, because if you're
severing all ties with your former profession, one could say it
would be that much harder to be able to go back into that
profession if you ever left office?
MR. FELLMETH: Well, I think you would have to,
obviously, take some time to re-learn the profession. But, you
know, I'm kind of startled that someone would want to continue a
law practice while he or she is up here, given the difficulty of
maintaining a law practice and given the burdens that are up
here.
I think the whole notion of the part-time legislator
keeping the finger in the pie was fifty years ago or thirty years
ago. But given the number of bills we have, given the
importance, given the $79 billion you're talking about, I think
we can afford -- if we could afford to pay you all a million
dollars a year in order to -- it would probably be money well
spent to make sure that we got you full-time.
I think it would be a bit of a sacrifice. But, you know,
there's not enormous turnover up here. You had three incumbents
defeated last year. We had zero defeated in '86.
I think we're
losing more from death than we are from electoral defeat.
I
don't think that getting back to the profession doesn't seem to
be a serious problem. And I don't think it's a big problem.
I
think that you're up here.
It's a full-time job. Let's build
the wall and tell everybody, this is what I am and I'm nothing
else.

I

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Lucy?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: One of the things that I don't
have a very good concept of, and maybe you have some examples of
-- if you had an independent counsel -- I prefer that to
prosecutor -- and you talk about being triggered automatically?
How do you set off that trigger? Who pulls the gun? Who pulls
the trigger?
MR. FELLMETH: The way to do that, I think, is set up a
system similar to the independent counsel system at the federal
level.
I think the way
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
little bit.

That's one I've looked at a

MR. FELLMETH: Yes.
I think the way to do that is to
have a similar kind of system where you have a probable cause
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test with professional investigations, perhaps using the current
AG's staff. And
have a judicial panel who reviews the
investigat
a decision about whether
appointment
the appointment
special
prosecutor.
The prosecutor then has the freedom and
the independence
the matter.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Bob Frazee.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ROBERT FRAZEE: I wanted to pursue a bit
of what Mr. Lempert brought up about having this clear wall
division, what that does and for how long does someone stay here.
I've always believed that we have a system of government
in the United States that was founded on the citizen legislator
concept. And particularly in the case of someone who is involved
in a family business -- and I am in that situation.
In my
situation, I sold my interest in that business. And the business
is able to continue. But there are many people who would be good
legislators, would represent their constituents very well, but
because of that family business type of thing, they would be
uncomfortable in taking a few years away, and then go back to
that again.
It certainly would cause them not to be want to be
in the office or, if they did, to make a much longer commitment
to being here. I guess the question that goes along with that
is, do you believe that we should have a limitation on terms to
avoid that?
MR. FELLMETH: No.
I do believe that the Assembly terms
of office ought to be four years so that there isn't this
constant campaigning.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
term, the number of years --

What about the limitation of the

MR. FELLMETH: I think that's an enormously serious
problem if the elections were competitive. I'd rather see
competitive elections
an artificial limit on terms.
I think
if elections were competitive, that would tend to take care of
itself a bit more.
That goes to campaign finance and redistricting problems,
which is another issue. But I mean if we were to have a limit on
terms, I'd sort of like it to be a fairly high limit, because
what you're doing is darn complex. I don't think someone can
take two years off from the family business, come up here, and be
an effective, competent legislator, work in committees, and then
go back to the family business.
I think if the electorate were
to understand
's what you were intending to do, I don't think
you'd get elected. I think people want people who are going to
be here and are going to take some time. It's going to take two
or three years for you to really get your feet on the ground and
learn what it's all about. And for the next two or three, four,
six, eight years, you're going to be pretty effective. You'll
know what to do. You'll know what's going on. And the public's
made an
Let's
them get the results. That's how
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I feel
MEMBER FRAZEE:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
about three
f
Constitution now,

Well, it's clear you're talking
It's under the
five percent a year.

MR.. FELLMETH:

dollars
we're paid
conflicts.
the Constitution
with salaries,
really get us out o
contaminate our
People see
be handled
decided my own
MR.. FELLMETH::

commiss
only
are just dec
to the point
understand

Reapportionment and campaign
here, staying here, and what
a sense, all raise issues of
could put together one amendment to
create a commission that would deal
, and campaign financing as well to
those things that probably serve to
more than anything else we do.
licts and whether they're able to
makes us credible. And I haven't still
Well, I think whether you have one
s
, I think it's definitely the
I can see that's available, because these
're just structurally self-interested
can't function. And I think the people
electorate will understand that.

San Diego on Monday, and
experienced a
editorial writer there
about the
productivity or lack thereof.
I
guess I had a comment
was
to make about it. Oh, just the
sense that one
is -'s off our agenda, but the
issue of
, if
districts were competitive, all
eighty rather
twenty
seem to be now -- although Mr.
Lempert's proven
wasn't those who were thought to be are
competitive -- and then
's competitive comes up for grabs in
terms of the dol
I

So I was appreciative that you linked reapportionment and
campaign financing together.
If there were eighty races that
were even and eighty races like the Norm Waters' race, and
whoever his opponent was, at $2 million a crack, the money would
literally flood
!ding.
MR. FELLMETH:

Yes, that's true.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: So, the problem always seems to
cut both ways, you know. Full-time Legislature or part-time,
either long terms or no term limits, and each way you get and
gain something; it's a question of where the balance is that
makes the most sense, it seems to me
MR.. FELLMETH

Yes.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
MR. FELLMETH:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Zellman.

MR. WALTER ZELLMAN: Imagine a legislative committee that
must be happy to see mel
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
MR. ZELLMAN:

Of course.

Finally.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Finally?

MR. ZELLMAN: Finally, someone in Sacramento that makes
me look like a lamb to his lion.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

What committee are you talking

about?
(Laughter)
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
MR. ZELLMAN:

Okay.

I come bearing moderate gifts, ,I guess.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER STEVE PEACE:
speaker said, no gifts.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
Zellman.

I get your reference.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
You're out. Sorry.

You heard what that last

No!
Can't take any gifts, Mr.

(Laughter)
MR. ZELLMAN: I guess I have some holes in Bob's wall.
What I would like to do for you is review the major areas of
potential financial conflict of interests on which this hearing
is focused and try to rank them as I see them; which is the most
important and which may be perhaps not as important.
And that ranking is, in part, based on some data which
we've developed and have distributed today on gifts and honoraria
and outside earned income. And is in part, frankly, based on a
subjective analysis that one has to bring to bear as to what one
thinks are the greater or lesser problems.
I would start by saying that it's relatively easy for us
to define -- and I think I mentioned this the last time I
testified before this committee -- some basic principles about
what should and should not be done.
But I guess a little bit, unlike Bob, I find it's easy to
say no gifts, no travel expenses, no honoraria of any kind, no
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outside income of
And then I, at least, start thinking
of certain exceptions that I would consider legitimate.
I'm a
little concerned about the same kind of
sues that Mr. Lempert
raised about
off from certain other kinds of
avenues and opportunities and
them perhaps a little too
dependent on maintenance of their position in office.
So, I think I'm perhaps a little more flexible on-- and
I think Common Cause -- the package we've advocated has generally
been a little bit more flexible. We're certainly very respectful
of Mr. Fellmeth's position on the value of that kind of a wall.
I would
so we have to continue to deal
with the appearance as well as
reality of conflict of
interest problems. It may be harder for you to see that problem.
I know many legislators freely say to me, "It's not a conflict.
I don't feel any conflict."
I think legislators just have to realize that the public
doesn't know whether the conflict is real or apparent. All we
see is a certain source of income or certain speech, a certain
acceptance of campaign money, and certain outcomes. Only you
know what the linkage between those two things are.
So, the only way the public can protect itself from the
realities of confl
is to protect itself from the appearance of
conflict. I think that's terribly important to keep in mind.
There are a variety of financial potential conflicts of interest
that legis
and other publ
f ials face.
This
dealing
Legislature, but I would
basically
anything I'm going to say would deal with the
executive branch and deal in many cases with non-elected public
officials as well.
From our research and from my own experience in these
halls and elsewhere, I would identify at least seven problem
areas, and I'd rank them as follows -- I know some of them are
not the subject of hearings today. And then I'll go through each
one of them in a little bit of detail, not exhaustive detail.
First, campaign financing, still far and away the biggest
problem.
Second, compensation; overall levels of compensation and
how they tie into other problem areas.
Third, honoraria.
Fourth, what I would call the increasingly borderline use
of large amounts of campaign funds that are bordering on the
personal use of campaign funds, which we can't really tell are
campaign funds because we don't have enough disclosure. We don't
have enough disclosure, and the laws are pretty weak in that
area.
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Fifth, the acceptance of gifts in the form of travel.
Sixth, the acceptance of other gifts, non-travel gifts.
And, seventh, and I'm frankly surprised that this is at
the bottom of my list, and after review, I'm not sure it doesn't
deserve to be anywhere at the bottom. And that is the issue of
outside income.
It's a problem, but I don't -- between five, six, and
seven, I must admit I'm really getting subjective. But the first
four I'm pretty comfortable with.
Let me begin with one. I know it's not the subject, but
I feel compelled to raise it at every hearing. The campaign
finance problem dwarfs every other conflict of interest problem
that exists anywhere in politics that I know of. And until that
problem is resolved, if you do everything else, you will still
have eighty to ninety percent of the problem facing you.
I don't
think Proposition 73 is the answer.
I raised last time with you
the issue of why.
I think in many ways it's creating more problems than we
had before.
It's forcing all of you into limitless every-year
fund-raising. And until we resolve that problem, we're simply
not going to be able to address any of the fundamental conflict
problems before you. Well, I shouldn't say that. You will be
able to address them. You will not be able to resolve the real
crunching problem that you face.
The campaign finance problem
may be less personal than some of the others, in the sense that
you're not accepting personal money perhaps as in the other areas
I'm going to talk about.
But your desire to stay in office, which is
understandable, and the pressures to raise the extraordinary
amounts of money you're now either expected to, or encouraged to,
or forced to raise are threatening to the very foundations of our
democratic system.
The second issue is compensation. And essentially, I
agree with what Professor Fellmeth raised. Legislative salaries,
especially, and the salaries in many cases of other public
officials, we believe, are too low. And the insistence in the
Constitution of a low salary forces even well-meaning, well
intentioned, honorable people into the search of other forms of
income, which can take the form of honoraria or the increasing
use of your campaign funds to carry some meals and travel and
other things may maybe should be put elsewhere; forces you maybe
to look at outside sources of income, forces you or makes you
more open to the acceptance of certain kinds of gifts, and
travel, and meals, and other things that you probably would
otherwise not accept or might not accept. So, we basically agree
that the compensation problem is significant. And we would
advocate the establishment of an independent salary commission.
And we would include in that the kinds of things that Bob

Page 140
Fellmeth was
commission to set
stiff limitations on
about.

Setting the salary, allowing a
salary and impose, at the same time, very
1 of
other things I'm about to talk
Mr. Chairman?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER
CHAIRMAN
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
recommendation that the
decision by a vote?

•

MR. ZELLMAN:
and around. I think
you can't touch
diem. They set your
and you can't touch

Is it included in your
f ratify that judgment

's one we've kicked around and around
way to do it would be to say, no,
set your salary. They set your per
They set your health benefits,
Politically --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Okay.

ally, I'm torn.
If I were the
MR.
that
and see what happened. And
author, I'd
amendment either -- accept the
I would, if neces
vote
some way on the
amendment that the
recommendation. And I'd accept that for one or two reasons.
lature may insist on a vote, given the
Either because
the public might want the
congressional
able to pass the package with the
vote. And we
Legislature has to take
voters if we
ideal way to do it would be to
responsibility
say, no, you don't set your compensation. No one else does.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Well, factually, from the
standpoint of what
ity is, the House of Representatives,
got in serious
because they failed to act upon the
measure, and stand up and say, It's a good idea. We deserve it
or something. But they didn't do that.
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, I think the congressional problem
resulted from two things. One, the increase requested was huge.
And it was hard to defend, even though we tried.
And the second problem was they ran into all sorts of
procedural problems by holding up the entire United States
Congress while they got their salary increase and now voting,
because they knew as soon as they accepted one vote, they'd have
to vote down the pay increase. Now, if they were absolutely
banned from voting, maybe it would have worked. But I think
that's a problem. That's a political problem that might have to
force some compromise
the ideal scenario.
The third problem I would focus on is the honoraria.
These numbers are getting larger and larger. Almost every Member
of the Legislature is now involved in acceptance of honoraria to
some extent, although some do not take any honoraria.
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It's all too common, increasingly common. You hear the
stories, sometimes you see it -- of legislators and other public
officials accepting fairly substantial amounts of honoraria
without even doing anything for it, just for showing up or making
an appearance.
In 1987, which was the latest year we tabulated all the
data, sixty-two Assembly Members received some honoraria
averaging over $6,700 apiece; thirty-five Senators averaging
almost $8,000 apiece; and eighteen Members of the Legislature
received over $10,000 in honoraria. Gifts and honoraria
combined, they're up almost thirty percent between 1985 and 1987,
to almost $10,700 on average per member.
The solution, in our view, is to ban all honoraria. And
I would say with very, very limited exceptions.
I can see
allowing Byron Sher to teach his class at law school.
I can see
a few other kinds of exceptions like that. But essentially, I
think we should probably ban honoraria, especially from any
source that has anything to do with business before the
government.
The fourth area is what I call the borderline use or
personal use of campaign funds.
In 1987, state Legislators spent
over $24 million out of their campaign funds. That was not, I
remind you, as I'm sure you're all aware, an election year.
Campaign dollars are increasingly no longer campaign dollars.
Elected officials are now spending huge amounts of money on
activities that we suspect are at best only modestly related to
their political activities.
At very best, or in its least damaging form, this
explosion in campaign spending causes candidates to raise more
dollars than they legitimately need to run for public office, and
that creates all kinds of problems in terms of you're having to
raise more money, because you're expected to do all these other
things with your money, including support every little citizen's
group in your district. At worst, the explosion leads to the
beginnings of or the increasing use of your campaign funds for
nonpolitical purposes -- for tickets, for meals, for travel, for
entertainment.
We found one Los Angeles councilman -- we did a story on
him a few weeks ago-- spending $80,000 out his campaign-- I'm
sure you know the individual involved -- $80,000 of his campaign
funds to travel to virtually every major capital of the world I
can think of. The solution, in our view, is to tighten the
personal use law and to substantially improve -- if we can find a
way to do it -- the disclosure on the expenditure side.
Right now, if you look at the campaign disclosure forms,
you find that they're pretty good on the contribution side. We
know where the money's going.
It's almost impossible to know -excuse me. We know where the money is coming from;
it's very
hard to see where the money is going. Tens of thousands of
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... ~.,,~, travel, consultants. We
And the amounts of it
1 elected officials in
could ever
campaign costs,

are so vast
the state to
legitimately
that we think

call gifts in the way
thirty-eight Assembly
from interest groups,
received over -on average over
travel. We're not
Bakersfield, or
This is outside
, Middle East capitals,

of

Far

is a
then
others
wife or
airfare
nights on
inappropriate.
at
propose a
especial
any -- or
We might
paid for by

, et cetera.
is legitimate
speaking, if it
on your part,
lators and
, and taking a
pays for the
have four or five
right.
It's
about erecting walls
effect, be to
1
out-of-state travel payments,
or
inesses that have
s be
the Legislature.
some cases travel
possibilities.

gifts -- problem is also
getting
mention that five Assembly Members
and two Senators
reporting accepting absolutely no
gifts in 1987.
Members received $290,000, or just
over $2500 apiece. The most common gift, incidentally, was the
health club gift.
Members -- I guess it's a healthy
gift to accept --- but fifty-three members
accepted membership
clubs, usually worth about $880 or
so.
Tickets to
events are very common.
I know in many
cases it seems petty, you know, to say, well, why can't I take
two tickets to the Dodgers' game? My sense is it's so petty, why
not pay for the tickets? They're $10 apiece.
If somebody wants
to give them to you or 1
them on you, fine.
Give them a check
for $20. Our general sense is
these kinds of gifts are not
a dramatic problem, but
are
appearance problem. The
money involved
not
that if you had a
reasonable s
couldn't be expected to pay
for
would be cleaner if
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you eliminated those kinds of things.
My last category is outside income. This is -- and maybe
we're wrong on this one, because it's very, very hard to analyze
because the category of reporting is so vague -- it's under a
thousand dollars, a thousand to ten, ten to a hundred, a hundred
and up.
It's almost impossible to tell how much is really going
on there. But in '87, at least, in 1987, eighty-four legislators
received outside income of $250 or more. We estimate that
thirty-three legislators received outside income of $20,000 or
more, which is approaching a substantial number. Much of it,
however, appears to be like rental property, real estate
holdings, which may pose no conflicts. This is probably an issue
area in which there are some individuals that have real
conflicts, that are taking money from people how have interest
before the state, and that should not be tolerated.
It is not an
issue area where you probably have thirty or forty legislators
abusing a problem in a serious way.
Those are the rankings of the issue areas as I would see
them. We're supporting legislation that is directed at virtually
all of them, and I hope you make some progress is that regard.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Any questions or comments of Mr.

Zellman?
Bill Lancaster.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Walter, see if I understand
what you said. You clearly said that we should participate in
certain types of activities, such as appearing before a group
explaining what is going on in the insurance field or the case of
it being an association. But you're really advocating the state
pay for that rather than they pay for it.
Is that what you're
advocating?
MR. ZELLMAN: No, it's our general rule of thumb at this
point, and again, it gets very hard when you begin to define
every circumstance
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

I understand.

MR. ZELLMAN: If the insurance industry wants to pay your
way to Los Angeles to speak before their conference, if it's
necessary for them to give you a hotel for the night -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Okay.

MR. ZELLMAN: -- you should take the expense, perhaps the
hotel, the ticket, and that's it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: But if there is an honorarium
given, then you're also saying we should establish some absolute
criteria for the acceptance of such an honorarium?
MR. ZELLMAN:

You shouldn't accept that honoraria,
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period.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: There is one. You made the
comment that
should be established. You don't think
there is a
time?
MR. ZELLMAN: I'd
is the easiest one in a
sense. It's eas
for us to say we would virtually ban all
honoraria. I can't see
purpose. I don't necessarily include
an honorarium, for example, writing an article, if you actually
wrote the artie . But, you know, even so, if a legislator writes
and article published in the Los Angeles Times on an issue -what do they pay? $250 now. You know, the truth of the matter
is, that's part of your job. You write speeches all the time.
You do public
all the time. Banning honoraria, I think, is
pretty clean -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
MR. ZELLMAN:

In total?

In total?

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: But I think you mentioned if
we do have
, we have to have some criteria established,
guidelines, or something of this nature?
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, if I were to start compromising the
principle, I'd say
would accept absolutely no honoraria from
anyone who had
the Legislature where the
acceptance of
create any kind of the appearance
of the real
interest. The exception I
mentioned is one
with. Somebody teaches a class
once in a while. That
some preparation and some time.
And I have some sympathy with Mr. Lempert's view that it's not
I don't necessarily
with Bob Fellmuth that you would cut
off every single income connection to the outside world.
But the notion
taking money for doing a particular
appearance, which is basically what honoraria is, for doing a
particular event, showing up in some particular place, that seems
to me that's your role as a legislator. And you should be doing
it and not accepting money for it. And I would go the step
further, because the next compromise is, well, we'll take the
money, but we'll give
to charity. Right? No.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So, you don't subscribe to
the federal theory at
l that a certain percentage -MR. ZELLMAN:

No .

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
honoraria?
MR. ZELLMAN:
percentage of your
includes your bus
divorce court, or

No.

-- of income should be for

The federal rule is a certain
can
made in outside income, which
a realtor or your role as a lawyer in
else, including honoraria, everything.
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Our position at both the federal and the state level is you
should ban honoraria.
I think we'd be more tolerant of other
forms of income in which you really are working for it and which
doesn't involve any potential conflict by taking money from any
source that might have business before you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Stan?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER STAN STATHAM: Just a quickie -- Mr.
Zellman. You study things so well and look at all those stats,
and we look at your report as it comes out, have you ever taken a
look at legislators voting against special interests that they
have received honoraria from? How often does that happen?
MR. ZELLMAN: That's one we haven't looked at.
I'm sure
it happens all the time. All the time. But that goes back to my
opening point. The appearance questions. You know that you took
that honoraria and you may know that this honoraria's going to
have absolutely no impact on me. And you may cast ten votes
involving the California Medical Association. They're the
biggest giver of honoraria in the system.
In 1987, they gave out
about $31,000 in honoraria. You may know it's having no impact
on you. But a constituent of yours seeing Stan Statham voted for
an increase in MediCal payments and took $5,000 or $2,000 in
honoraria, they don't know. And because they don't know, to
them, there's no difference between real and apparent.
It's a
legitimate question to raise, and that's why I have no doubt that
you and everybody else in this room has voted against people
who've given you money.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Like last Friday.
I went to
Orlando, Florida, and was asked to keynote a self-esteem
conference, and was offered a $500 honorarium. Where does that
fit in your
MR. ZELLMAN: Our general argument would be, no. Now,
again, I mean if you're going to start moving from the principle,
there are areas, maybe one could argue, and that's where Bob's
wall gets erected. You know, you start cutting it too much, you
get into problems. But they should be allowed to pay your
expenses. They should be allowed to maybe put you up.
It's an
issue that's dear to your heart. But I don't know that it's
necessary for you to accept money from them.
I would
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

It's not necessary.

MR. ZELLMAN: It's not necessary.
I would say it's not
necessary.
I would say we would generally say no, because if you
don't say no fairly near the wall that we erected, the wall
crumbles pretty fast. And then you start writing dozens of
exceptions then.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Bob Frazee?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Yes. On the issue of outside
income, there's clearly a separation between your position and
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that of Professor
lmuth, where he said absolutely nothing,
blind trust. You're suggesting, I think, that earned income
would be the test where you would eliminate the outside income.
MR. ZELLMAN: Our national and state organizations have
it different ways. At the national level, they have an overall
aggregate 1
on how much money you can earn outside your
legislative salary.
I think at the federal level now, it's
fifteen percent, they include honoraria in that. We would ban
honoraria, period. But they're saying fifteen percent.
In law
practices, real estate, businesses, insurance business, medical
practice, that kind of thing.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

That's earned income.

MR. ZELLMAN: Earned income. There's an aggregate total
amount of money you may receive from all outside earned income.
Generally speaking, our rule of thumb would be that you should
probably have in this state some aggregate on that.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: I'm making the comparison:
earned income versus passive income.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER STATHAM: Generally do not restrict on
passive income. We have not taken the position that everything
would have to be put in a blind trust. But
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
MR. ZELLMAN:
taken that position.

-- I can see that argument.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
MR. ZELLMAN:

But if
We haven't

But if you limit earned income

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: -- which is probably
appropriate, then you have some very crafty individuals who
continue to do what they do, but for the benefit of the business
in which they receive passive income, do you not? You enhance
the value of the business, but you don't take any salary from it?
MR. ZELLMAN:
from the business?

So, you're saying you would get some income

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Yes. You would build equity in
that business, and when you're out of office, you collect that
equity.
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, I don't see how you could impose a
reality on potential clients, to say that a prominent Member of
the Legislature is the member of the law firm.
That may attract
clients to the firm.
That legislator may not take a dime of it,
but yes, the law firm may get more established, may grow more
powerful, may ultimately make more money. He may ultimately, or
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she may get ultimately more money from it. But there are limits
to the hundreds of pages of regulations you can write, which
ultimately leads, I think, to the biggest question of all. The
most you, as a Legislature, can do is set some principles, have
an enforcement agency that tries to regulate them as aggressively
as possible. But even that clearly is not going to stop every
potential conflict from arising, and is not going to force every
legislator to behave ethically.
What I suggested last time was that ultimately the
greatest mechanism to get legislators to behave according to the
highest ethical standards is to reward ethical behavior. The day
that the Members of the -- no personal message is intended -- but
the day that committee chairmanships and powerful positions in
the Legislature begin to go and acknowledgely are beginning to go
to those people viewed as having the highest ethics, that's the
day we'll be winning, when that's viewed as the reward. Ethical
behavior is rewarded politically and every way.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
MR. ZELLMAN:

One more question on --

That may be the ultimate, you know.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: You cited the problem with
honoraria, and I certainly agree that that's the one that could
be eliminated without creating a great problem and certainly
improve the image. But you also cited that campaign financing
probably amounts for eighty to ninety percent of the problem.
And does not many of the rules that create the problem with
honoraria also apply to campaign financing, the appearance of
conflict? What difference does it make whether you took a $5,000
campaign contribution from an interest group or you received it
in the form of honoraria?
MR. ZELLMAN: Well, I think I'll take it from both sides.
In a sense, the honoraria is the more dangerous corrupting
mechanism. That's cash, goes directly to your pocket for your
personal use. The campaign money at least has to be used for
some public purpose. So, in some sense, the honoraria is more
troublesome than the contribution. However, the fact is that on
average, maybe you're taking $10,000 a year in honoraria. You're
taking on average of maybe three or four hundred thousands a year
in campaign contributions. The problem is so much greater than
that of a few individuals maybe going overboard by taking
honoraria. The problem is so much greater in campaign financing
that it dwarfs the honoraria problem.
It dwarfs everything.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Generally, the honoraria are
limited to very few interest groups. And so you narrow down
where the potential for a conflict is.
In the case of campaign
financing, there are almost on a daily basis instances where
members of the Legislature are voting in an opposite manner in
the way they received the contribution.
MR. ZELLMAN:

The best way --
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
all of us.
MR.

elus
The greatest
a legis
corrupted by
is compel
to
source they can 1
problem. And
gun. And I've
smoking gun
be easy if we
easier.
I'd get
here are the
people making
most
to the most capitals.
finger at somebody and
is, that's not the
are doing too
people who want
problem. And if we
individual on
the problem.
It's
too much too o

think we do that regularly,

to try to be
in a systemic framework.
ict of interest is not that
from a source and be
that every legislator
money from almost every
It is a basically systemic
looking for the smoking
times. You don't find the
much smoke in the room.
It would
the
You know, it would be
s if I came to you today and said,
most honoraria. Here are the
fts. Here are the people who've gone
's newsworthy. Somebody can point the
a problem. What I'm trying to say
The problem is that too many of you
and taking too much of that money from
you. That
the systemic
to def
corruption as one
1 miss the boat and never get at
to go to the wrong people for

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
CHAIRMAN

I

•s helpful.

Thank you.

Thank you, Walter.

, we have financial disclosure in
On
particular. We've
analyst to prepare a summary of the
current laws which
our behavior. And Jim Ashford's here.
Principal Deputy with
Legislative Counsel's Office. And
they've given us
a twenty-page opinion, it looks like.
Twenty-four page. And we'd like you to give us a summary of each
part of that as it
to each part of our agenda one part
at a time so we
on a piece at a time. So, Jim, you
want to give us
disclosure summary, please, to kick
it off?
you, Mr. Chairman.
If you will re
to the beginning of each section in
your agenda book, you'll see the consultant has broken out our
detailed analys
and
summary, which we provided, in each of
the four subject areas.
What I say to
in these brief words will, in many
respects, parallel what you see before you. But I think it helps
to, as you say, to set the tone, to give you a very brief,
concise explanation of where
are in the law now without
benefit of citat
that
of legal terminology we like
to indulge in. As
1 see as
through these matters,
there are es
in California which
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govern the areas which you're concerned with today.
The first of those areas is the Legislative Code of
Ethics, which has been in the Government Code for more than
twenty years, and which deals most specifically with conflict of
interest for state officials, including legislators and
legislative employees.
The second major body of law is the Political Reform Act
of 1974, enacted by initiative by the people. And that is pretty
much it with regard to laws which govern you in these subject
areas.
So, to go to financial disclosure. After setting the
stage, I want to say the Code of Ethics has no provision in it
that deals with financial disclosure. The only body in law in
California that affects financial disclosure of legislators or
legislative employees is the Political Reform Act of 1974, which
has extensive disclosure requirements with which I'm sure you are
very familiar.
These are the statements of economic interest which you
are required to file when assuming office and thereafter, and
upon leaving office.
Under the Political Reform Act of 1974, legislators -and under the Conflict of Interest Code adopted by the
Legislature, legislative employees -- are required to file these
periodic statements of economic interest in which they are
required to disclose investments, real property interests, and
income when the income exceeds a given threshold amount.
In this
regard, the interests of immediate family members are also
required to be disclosed under this law. With regard to income,
an annual statement is required to disclose each source of income
of $250 or more or a gift of $50 or more. Loans of $250 or more
are also required to be disclosed. All real property interests,
other than personal residence, are required to be disclosed.
These disclosure requirements are enforced by the Fair Political
Practices Commission, and they may also be enforced by criminal
prosecution or by monetary penalties that may be assessed in a
civil action.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Does that cover it?

Okay. Sure. We have the next listing the various bills
so far introduced. They're listed in numerical order.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Mr. Chairman, I need a
clarification.
In reading this, I keep coming across the words,
administrative remedy, rather than criminal. And maybe Mr.
Ashford could tell me the difference here.
I think I know.
MR. ASHFORD: I think that refers to actions that may be
taken by the Fair Political Practices Commission in their
capacity as the enforcing and administrative agency charged with
enforcing the Political Reform Act.
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER j;,ANCASTER: So, an administrative remedy
could be an
have, whether it's good, whether
they can or cannot
what an administrative

1,

MR. ASHFORD:

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
MR. ASHFORD:

's not really it.
A fine?

A remedy, a fine would be more to the

point.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

In other words, they can fine

you --

•

MR. ASHFORD:

sanction, yes.

Some sort

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
Basically that's what that means.
MR. ASHFORD:

Sanction, that's what I mean.

Yes

CHAIRMAN
: Mr. Peace, do you want to
describe your bill and
rationale, subject matterwise briefly,
about the particulars of the bill?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

Which one do we start with?

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

AB 4 53?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
lobbyists' reporting
1.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

The reporting bill?

That's the

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: It's pretty simple. Right now,
when reports are made by entities in terms of what gifts or other
contributions may have been made outside of the campaign
reporting environment, those reports are made directly to the
required reporting authorities, FPPC and such. And Members are
not necessarily notified of those reports. As you know, when you
go to some of these events that are held here in Sacramento,
often there are reportable requirements there. There are other
circumstances -- from the lobbyist's perspective -- it's in his
interest to show contact with a legislator. And you can very
easily have had things reported that you were not even aware of.
For example, somebody picks up a name tag at an event and such
that you may not even have attended.
It gets reported. We've
all appeared on report forms, I know, for things we have not even
been in attendance for.
What we would accomplish here is simply require that
these expenses that intended to be reported be reported to the
Members themselves so, in fact, we can be certain of two things.
First, that we
fact, fully reporting what others are
reporting and,
, to ensure that those items which are
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reported are, in fact, accurate before that report occurs.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Any questions or comments

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
anything else.

More a housekeeping issue than

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
Mr. Lempert, AB 1238?

Questions or comments?

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Of all the bills in our reform
package, this is by far the most minor. And, in fact, doesn't
involve Members of the Legislature. But basically, it's
sponsored by the Fair Political Practices Commission.
The first part requires officeholders to file statements
of economic interest, a class of officeholders who right now
aren't required to file that for the year preceding their
election; legislators, since they're sworn in in December already
are required to do so.
But there's some officeholders who are exempt from that,
and this would require them to file those.
Secondly, a class of designated employees who are
required to fill out statements of economic interest are exempt
oftentimes from having to file outside income on those
statements. And this would require them to do so. So, they're
both pretty much house cleaning measures that the Fair Political
Practices Commission thinks are necessary.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Okay.
I do as well.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Any questions or comments on Mr.
Lempert's proposal? Anybody here to speak on behalf of Senator
Roberti's 1432 and the subject matter of that?
Does anyone else want to offer any testimony about this
area of concern from the audience? Any discussion on the
committee at this point about these?
Lucy Killea.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Mr. Chairman, it seems to be the
extension of forty-five days from the time which an economic
disclosure form is required, whether entering duty or leaving, or
any of the things like that.
I don't know what the arguments are
on that.
It sounds reasonable enough to me. But I don't have
any quarrel with it.
I don't know why he's asking-- I assume
there have been instances where people have had a hardship trying
to get it in or get the information together or something like
that.
It is sometimes difficult to get all your information if,
you know, you haven't been keeping track of it regularly.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Are extensions currently
available like you do for your taxes? Can you request an
extension or
it
or down on a deadline? Is the FPPC here?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
them, too?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Is this bill sponsored by

The Attorney General, I think,

Bill.
MR. JOHN McLEAN: John McLean from the Fair Political
Practices Commission. This bill's not sponsored by the
Commission.
told.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: It's not the Attorney General I'm
We don't know who's sponsoring it.

MR. McLEAN: The deadline right now is absolute. There's
a discretionary decision as to whether or not to impose a fine,
but the time line's absolutely currently.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Would it be possible, somebody
could say I've been in the hospital with pneumonia or something
else happened, I need thirty more days?
MR. McLEAN: It happens oftentimes that people do have
some reason that they couldn't make it within the thirty days,
and action's not taken on it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: But there's no provision for an
extension to be obtained. They still have to be exonerated after
a hearing.
MR. McLEAN: Not after a hearing.
decision with the agency.

•

It's a discretionary

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: It would be sensible to perhaps
provide a thirty day extension on cause rather than have it
invoked and then say no.
I mean -MR. McLEAN: I don't know necessarily that the
Commission's going to have any problem with this bill.
haven't taken a position on it. They may support it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

They

Anything else on this

section?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

On that bill, Mr. Chairman --

Bill?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: One of the things that
occurs, the Commission now says the reason you did not file
invalid, so therefore we're not going to fine you. Other people
may have valid reasons not to file, they get fined. Maybe the
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answer is to give the Commission the ability to give a fifteen
day extension or something like that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
reasonable thing to do.

think that would be a

I

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
double thing going on there.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

I

What you have is kind of a
think that sounds reasonable

to me.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I guess I have to ask a
question, Mr. Chairman. Are these measures, dealing with this
subject, that are really kind of technical, are they supposed to
stay here with us or -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Well, none of the bills are here.
They're all in policy committees. They'd be held there pending
our putting in our comprehensive program together to go through
and be successfully adopted.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I would suggest that some of
these measures that are technical like this, that we might look
at them.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: We might review them. Mr. Frazee
and I might well do that. Okay. Next section, number four on
the agenda, page 1, the bottom, conflict of interest.
Mr. Ashford?
MR. ASHFORD: At the beginning, I said there were two
major bodies of law with which you're concerned. Both of these
bodies of law, the Code of Ethics and the Political Reform Act,
have provisions that relate to conflict of interest.
I'll deal
with them separately.
First, the Code of Ethics. The Code of Ethics has been
part of the California Government Code for more than twenty
years.
It was initially adopted at the same time a
constitutional provision was adopted to require the Legislature
to enact laws to govern conflict of interest. The Code of Ethics
has two general provisions, the first of which applies generally
to all state officers, including legislators, judges, appointive
officers, and the like. And this also applies to legislative
staff.
This is the prohibition against having any financial
interest or engaging in any business transaction or professional
activity, or incurring any financial obligation which is in
substantial conflict with the proper discharge of public duties
and responsibilities. A substantial conflict is defined for
these as one where the person has reason to believe that he or
she will get a direct monetary gain or suffer a direct monetary
loss by reason of his or her official activity.
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But a substantial conflict does not exist where the
legislator, or member, or
benefit or
s, profession, or other group to
employee as a
member of that group.
no greater extent
the Code of Ethics applies only
The
It prohibits the
to legislators and to legislative employees.
other employment which would impair
following:
independence of udgment as to official duties or which would
or employee to disclose confidential
induce the legis
information.

•

Two,
information

ly and knowingly disclosing confidential
by reason of official duties.

Three, taking money or being in partnership with any
person who takes money to represent someone before a state
agency. There are statutory exceptions to this. For instance, a
legislator or employee
appear before the courts of the state
representing a cl
may appear before one or two named
state agencies. But,
ly, the prohibition prevents the
legislator or employee
going before a state agency
representing another person.
Four, taking money for services in connection with the
legislative process.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: One question. Is the one or two
agencies excepted,
l
the PUC -- when we really have no
jurisdiction over them as opposed to a department where we really
have their budget in our hands, or not just the budget, but the
whole operation?
MR. ASHFORD: Well, if I could just name the exception.
You can appear before the Workers' Compensation Appeals Board.
But the Commission -- your example, the PUC, is not mentioned.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. The Workers' Comp Board is
the only one then besides the courts? Or except if it deals with
quasi-judicial or judicial bodies rather than -MR. ASHFORD:
the essential.

The Workers' Comp and the courts really are

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Go ahead on number four

then.
MR. ASHFORD: Okay. Back to number four. Taking money
for services in connection with the legislative process. And, of
course, there is an exception here for taking money for speeches
or published works; in other words, the honoraria exception.
Five, taking action on the floor or in committee in the
passage of legislation
which the legislator or employee has a
personal
But
this case, the Member can abstain or,
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alternatively, can disclose his or her interest and his or her
belief that he or she can act fairly and objectively, and then
the Member may vote on the question of final passage.
Now, the Code of Ethics literally also applies to
non-financial interests. However, in the view of our office, we
don't think that this kind of application could be
constitutional. I'm thinking of non-financial interest, such as
prestige or political obligations or religious belief.
Even if
these kinds of non-financial interests could be constitutionally
made the basis of a crime, we simply don't see how the Code of
Ethics sets forth these interests in sufficient particularity
that you could ever get a conviction constitutionally. So we
just don't think that the non-financial interests, even though
they're mentioned in the Code of Ethics, have application here.
Now, the Code of Ethics also specifically mentions two
relationships which not solely by themselves give rise to a
conflict under the code. The first is where the interest is
remote, as defined in other provisions of law. And the second is
where a campaign contribution is reported under the Political
Reform Act so long as the contribution is not made on the
understanding or agreement that the legislator's vote, opinion,
or judgment will be influenced by the contribution.
Now, the Code of Ethics can be enforced either by
criminal complaint to a district attorney or by filing a
complaint with the Joint Legislative Ethics Committee, which is
established under the Government Code. This committee can
consider a complaint and then recommend disciplinary action to
the appropriate house or to law enforcement authorities.
There
often is confusion in the press and with the public and with the
Members as to the jurisdiction of this legislative committee.
In
fact, it is authorized to investigate only the violations of the
Code of Ethics; that is, violations of the provisions of law that
deal with conflict of interest.
The committee is not authorized to look into matters of
ethics generally. For instance, the committee has no
jurisdiction to investigate matters relating to criminal acts of
legislators or staff which would not also have constituted a
conflict of interest under the Code of Ethics. And Mr. Lancaster
is very well aware of this kind of confusion.
It is not an
overseeing ethics committee.
It only deals with conflicts of
interest.
The procedures of the committee are strictly regulated by
statute. A person has to submit a complaint to the committee,
but the complaint has to be in writing, has to specifically set
forth allegations of fact as to a particular Member, has to
contain a statement that the allegations are true of the
complainant's own knowledge or belief.
It has to be signed under
penalty of perjury.
The committee is not required to take action of any
complaint that doesn't meet these requirements. There is,
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additionally, a one-year statute of limitation on the filing of a
complaint with the committee. Now, when a sufficient complaint
is filed, the committee is required to send a copy of the
complaint to
Member complained against, but is not required
to notify any other agency or person. The committee may then
make an investigation without an outside complaint on its own
action, if it wishes, but only if two Members from each house
asks for such an investigation.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Two members of the committee

itself?

•

MR. ASHFORD: Yes.
If the committee itself, on its own
motion, wants to investigate some matter, it requires action of
two Members from each house.
It's a joint committee .
Now, if the committee believes that no further action is
warranted, it can dismiss the complaint, and that's the end of
the matter, unless an independent criminal complaint is filed.
If the committee believes that further action is warranted, it
then does a preliminary investigation. And only if the committee
still believes that there's been a violation of the Code of
Ethics, must it then have a hearing on the matter. None of the
deliberations up to the hearing is required to be public. Now,
after a hearing, the committee's actions are limited to
dismissing the matter or making recommendations to the respective
house and/or notifying law enforcement authorities.
If the house
is notified by the committee of some recommendations, the House,
under the statute, must
its own action, if at all, within
ninety days. Although I think that the House, if it wishes,
since it may judge the
ifications of its Members at any time,
could ignore that limitation.
Okay.

the second

of law, the Political Reform Act

of 1974
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Mr. Chairman, before we leave

that --

•

MR. ASHFORD:

Yes.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Go ahead.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: This is one of things that's
misunderstood about this particular committee. It's called the
Ethics Committee, but in reality it is a committee dealing with a
conflict of interest code that is very clearly laid out in the
law with certain established procedures. That that's what Jim is
saying. And I think that's important to point up, because so
many times it's confused with the House of Representatives'
concept of what they do and it is not anything like that under
our structure.
MR. ASHFORD: The Political Reform Act of 1974, how does
this deal with conflict of interest? All right. Under this Act,
a legislator or employee cannot take part in a decision or use
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his or her position to influence a decision which would
foreseeably have a material financial effort on various interests.
of the person or his or her immediate family if the effect is
distinguishable from its effect on the public generally, which
our office feels would be defined to mean any other Member of a
similarly situated group of which the legislator or employee was
a part. These interests include business entities, real
property, sources of income, and donors of gifts. Now, even
where a conflict would exist, a legislator is not prohibited from
taking action where his or her participation is legally required
in order for the decision to be made.
The Political Reform Act of 1974 can be enforced by a
number of means, including action of the Fair Political Practices
Commission, the administrative action Mr. Lancaster referred to
in civil actions and criminal prosecutions.
I should be noted,
however, that the provisions of the act with regard to conflicts
of interest are not enforceable against legislators with regard
to passing legislation. Much has been said of this exception by
persons not aware, perhaps, that the exception has existed in the
Political Reform Act in one form or another since it was first
adopted by the people. They were among the provisions
specifically enacted by initiative when the Act was first passed.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

'74, right?

MR. ASHFORD: Yes. The exemption, in other words, was
not created by the Legislature. As noted in the summary before
you, there are four elements that have to be present for a
conflict to be found under the Act. First, the decision must
affect a particular defined financial interest. The effort of
the decision has to be reasonably foreseeable. The decision has
to have a material financial effect on the financial interest
and, four, the effect must be distinguishable from the effect on
the public generally. Where the legislator or employee's
interest is shared by others in a similarly situated group, the
prohibition is not applicable.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Does that mean if I owned a
retail dry-cleaning business, and there was a bill that affected
all retail dry-cleaning businesses, there's no conflict possible
in that regard for me?
MR. ASHFORD: If you aren't -- yes. But if something
benefited your dry-cleaning center particularly, then you would
be -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

The issue is of questionable

import.
MR. ASHFORD: There's one other group of provisions in
the Government Code that relate to conflict of interests that
don't fall under either Code of Ethics or the Political Reform
Act. And these are provisions that relate to having an interest
in a contract entered into by a body of which you -- a public
official -- is a member. Remote interests are not included here.
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are the only other statutes that
situation.

I mentioned
deal with a confl

Jim.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS
questions or comments.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Are there any

No.

CHAIRMAN
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Yes.
I think a couple of
things.
I understand the prohibition on a Member of the
Legislature
or representing someone before an
agency over which
budget authority. What about the
instance of a
representing a client before a local
government body
a
? Is there any prohibition on that?
MR. ASHFORD: No,
prohibition is limited to
appearances before a state board of agency.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: And then the situation where a
Member of the
represent a client for a fee in
regard to a loc
matter where it was not the case of
appearing before
, but merely using his prestige in order
to influence members
body would not be a conflict?
body, so

wouldn't be appearing before the
this conflict.

't

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Well, but for a fee, if you
called your
counc
members, one by one on the phone,
and indic
were supporting a particular application
before them, there would
no conflict? No prohibition on that
even though you were doing
for a fee? That's sort of the
prestige side of
MR. ASHFORD: Yes, you wouldn't fall squarely within this
prohibition. That's true. Appearance might be otherwise, but
the prohibition here would not be violated.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: And then the remote interest
question is one that I had also -- and I think it deals with
something that the
mentioned.
I think an opinion that I
received from Leg Counsel a number of years ago dealing with the
potential of voting on a subject area where all businesses in a
class were affected by
legislation, and you owned an interest
in one of those businesses, a conflict would not arise in that
instance. But if the legislation dealt with only one business in
which you had an interest 1 or the business in which you had an
interest, there would be a conflict or potential for conflict in
that instance.
MR. ASHFORD:
of the law.

Yes.

That's generally a correct statement

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

And as I understand the Fair
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Political Practices Act, an interest in a business is defined as
any interest. And the question of remove does not come into
play?
MR. ASHFORD:

Yes.

I believe that's

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: If you owned one share of stock
in a company that had ten million shares of stock outstanding,
I've been told that that is sufficient to constitute a conflict
of interest.
MR. ASHFORD: Well, I don't if you would -- I don't know
that's necessarily the case.
If the commission has said that,
that's their view.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: At least that was the definition
when I raised the issue, and that was the advice given verbally
by the Attorney General's representative at that time I raised
that issue.
MR. ASHFORD: It would be a substantial effect on you if
you had such a minimal interest in the business.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: But it could have a -- as
explained to me by the Attorney General's rep at that time -- the
substantial interest is not on you, but on the business that was
affected. So if you own one share and you voted on something
that benefited that business, you would have a conflict of
interest.
MR. McLEAN: Actually, Mr. Frazee, under the Political
Reform Act, there's no remote interest type of test similar to
1090, but there is a threshold. And the threshold is that there
has to be an investment interest of a thousand dollars of more.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: Okay. So, that gets to
question of remote. And probably by the thousand dollar
you eliminate that. But everyone of us who participates
legislative retirement system remotely owns the interest
hundreds of businesses.

the
limit,
in the
in

MR. McLEAN: There are exceptions for those types of
things where you hold -- for example -- you hold an interest in a
mutual fund, stocks held through a mutual fund or through a
retirement system, those kinds of things -- there are exceptions
for those kinds of things.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay.
Ashford's analysis? Mr. Lancaster?

Thank you.
Further questions on Mr.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: One of the things that I've
written to you about is the procedures that have been established
over the years in the Joint Ethics Committee. And I think that's
one thing that the committee should be made aware of. So, I'll

Page 160
redistribute that to

member.
do

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
that's all laid out on how to do it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
regard. So far Mr.
with us?

•

Okay.
AB 938.

's a whole procedure
lation in that
Would you review that

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: AB 938 deals with the exclusion
that legislators under
Political Reform Act for enforcement
of conflict of interest violations, and goes back to what we were
discussing just a few moments ago. Our bill addresses a very
serious perception problem because of that exclusion, and to a
lesser degree a reality problem, but one that can at times exist.
We spent a lot of time drafting this bill. The bill that is in
your packet was the first.
It was just the initial spot bill.
And the language we have s
come up with is now in Leg
Counsel. But I'll just
fly describe that so you have an idea
of what we've been working on. It's a bill that is workable and
one that will not
with
decision-making process of
the Legislature, but deal
those rare instances where there
is a special interest bill and there
a direct conflict of
interest.
What our bill
cover special interest bills,
bills that are des
solely one interest, one
company, one group.
special interest nature would be
identified in
committee analysis and oftentimes isn't and
should be. So,
bill covers any other bill. So, already
you've knocked out most of the bills we deal with. Given that
class of bills, spec
interest bills, the bills would take the
definition of conflict of interest where someone has a direct
financial interest in that company or group and the legislator
would be exempt from voting on that bill if it benefited an
interest in which the legislator had a direct financial interest.
There would also be a knowing requirement in there, so the
committee analysis would have to state that it was a special
interest bill and the Legislature would have to know what they
had a financial interest in.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Steve?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: I'd just go out and find Company
Band make sure we do that all the time. You'll see generic
descriptions in legislation that is designed to confine the
effect to a particular entity, maybe a governmental entity, maybe
a private entity. All you've got to do is broaden the scope so
that it has some effect beyond that one thing, and you've made
your piece of legislation of no value. I mean these are not
stupid people who are, I assume, you're attempting to get at the
specific circumstance in terms of -- why not maintain the broad
-- I mean, I'm frankly a little stunned by this.
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This is the first I've heard that you're going to narrow
the bill. I've noticed in terms of the other bills, they all
seem to unwrite themselves by the way they're drafted, and it
seems to be a pattern developing.
I mean, why not keep the
breadth of -- affect all legislation?
What difference does it
make if, in fact, we should disqualify ourselves from legislation
that is going to have a material effect on a financial interest.
What difference does it make if it also has a material effect on
another entity down the street? I mean it is either right or
it's wrong.
I don't understand the distinction.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: First of all, Steve, I agree
with you one hundred percent. You shouldn't be voting on those
matters. What we're trying to do is draft a bill that is -- if
you want to consider a starting point, fine -- but a bill that is
workable, that can get through this Legislature this year to
start dealing with the two-fold problem, which is why I started
out by saying a serious perception problem and a reality problem
as well. We are excluded right now from any enforcement
provisions of the conflict of interest under the Political Reform
Act. That, in and of itself, is a serious perception problem.
We're exempted from any enforcement whether -- in spite of what
you should or should not do. People can violate it. There's no
enforcement mechanism.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

But your bill doesn't change

that.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Well, it does.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: No, it doesn't. No, it doesn't.
It won't have an effect on one single piece of legislation in
this House.
It'll just affect the way the legislation is
drafted.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: No, that's not entirely true,
because there has been legislation that comes up and it is
identified as special interest legislation that will have an
effect
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: What I'm suggesting to you is
that these people are bright enough, particular those who are
knowingly engaging in a conflict of interest, to draft around
that provision.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Well, first of all, it removes
that exclusion and starts with that, and starts to identify.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

I don't understand why you --- just wait --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: -- is there something you know
that I don't know about the impassability of the legislation as
you had it?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: We've been working with the
language. And what we're trying to do is draft a bill that
allows people to vote. So, ideally, you would like to say that
you have a conflict of interest if you have some financial
interest in the
The problem is, is that attorneys
would have a financial interest in legislation affecting
attorneys statewide
the State Bar.
If you own a farm, you would have a financial interest in
legislation affecting agriculture.
If you had a small business,
you would have an interest.
I wanted to start off with as broad
as possible, but you could be fined for voting on large numbers
of bills.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Which is why -And has brought the process to

a halt.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
there in the first place.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Which is why the exclusion is in
Well, okay.

So --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: So, you've taken the opposite
tack. You've gone to the -- here's the problem. Out here are
the broad circumstances of occurrences.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: And you've attempted in a piece
of legislation to get down to what you perceive to be as a real
problem as opposed to a perceptual problem. But you've narrowed
on the wrong side.
If you go with the historical experience, it
hasn't been generally with single-purpose pieces of legislation
affecting one entity.
It's been, for example, a piece of
legislation affecting the oil industry. And I'm just, you know,
picking something generically. Chevron gives or Arco gives, or
whoever, gives honorariums, trips, gifts, et cetera, and members
vote -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

Right.
-- on those.

You haven't touched

that.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: That's not a conflict of
interest situation as proscribed under our code.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
touch that. You know, I'm--

Right.

I mean I would love to

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: That's where the problem is.
mean that's where the problem, where the discussion--

I

(Thereupon, both Members spoke simultaneously, which was
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undeciperable.)
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: If you could give me language
that would deal with that problem
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: We already have. We've attempted
to do that in terms of offering it to committees, as you know.
And it's supposedly before the Rules Committee now.
It's very
simple. You get more than $500 from somebody -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: No. This covers all outside
income and financial interest in addition on honoraria, gifts.
It deals with the conflict of interest statute as we now have it
under the Political Reform Act.
It's much broader than
honoraria.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Mr. Chairman?
So that --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: So does the suggestion that's
been made to the Rules Committee -- it's any income of more than
$500.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Mr. Chairman, we're not
talking about -- if I may interrupt -- we're not talking about
the same thing here.
I think Mr. Peace is talking about
something else and Mr. Lempert is talking about something else.
If I may comment, Mr. Chairman, this is a broad policy question
we're going to have to come to grips with.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Go ahead.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: What Ted's bill does, in
effect, is shift that area of responsibility to the Fair
Political Practices Commission. And it was excluded deliberately
in 1974 from Prop 9, because it was the judgment of the
proponents of Proposition 9 in 1974, that the House should make
the judgment on its own, its own members, and develop a whole set
of procedures which is required by the Constitution, adopted in
1966, or something like that. But the fact of the matter is,
they excluded us deliberately.
It is not a legislative
exclusion.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

A lot of people think it is.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: It is not.
It's an exclusion
that was adopted by the people in 1974. So, what's he's
attempting to do is to -- through the Attorney General, I guess,
in supporting the measure -- is to push it over to this group
over here, and take it away from us. That's the policy question,
Mr. Chairman, that we're going to have to deal with in this whole
question.
I know it's perceived to be a great idea, and they
think it will improve our perception. But I just wonder if it's
not just saying we can't handle our own house.
I'm not saying
your bill --
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

No, no, no.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: I'm just talking about the
broader question of who should have jurisdiction.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: But the point is though, these
kinds of provisions, enforcement and penalty provisions apply to
other elected officials, and that we have an existing system
where other elected officials can be fined under the existing
law.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: You have a whole
constitutional question about whatever you have in the Fair
Political Practices Commission, the Fair Political Practices
Commission can do absolutely nothing about who sits in the
Legislature.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

I'm sorry?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: It can do nothing about who
sits in the Legislature. That's not their role,
constitutionally.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: It's the role of the House to
make that decision, as you well know. That's the constitutional
question that keeps coming up.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Why they excluded i t - - I'm
only assuming they excluded it -- is because that's basically
what it was in 1974.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

•

Mr. Woocher?

MR. FRED WOOCHER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me just
introduce myself. My name is Fred Woocher.
I'm special counsel
to the Attorney General, John Van de Kamp. This is a bill, the
conflict of interest disqualification provision that Mr. Lempert
is referring to, is a bill that we've been sponsoring as well.
And we've done a lot of thinking on it. Let me just quickly turn
to this one issue.
As I understand it, and just from personal communication
with the authors -- and they, obviously, are just the proponents
of the original Act, and not the millions of people that voted
for it -- but the reason that the Legislature was exempt from the
enforcement provisions, but not exempt, mind you, from the
substantive requirement as well, was that with the new provision
like that, they are simply unsure how it would work, in effect,
with the Legislature, because of the very problems that have been
talked about here. The range, the broad range of bills and
interests which come before the Legislature, they thought, made
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it distinct, as well as for statewide officials, made it distinct
from a local situation where they are fairly narrowly defined and
easily ascertainable.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

That's what Dan Lowenstein

says?
MR. WOOCHER: Yes. You might be interested to know that
Dan Lowenstein now regrets having done that and supports
extending the prohibition.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: This is not a policy
committee -- I mean it's a broad-based -- it's a whole policy.
It's not a question on your bill.
It's a policy in general.
MR. WOOCHER: No, I understand.
It's just to clarify
what the basis is for it. And I think that, to some extent Mr.
Lempert is correct in saying that, as we move from a situation
where there is an utter exemption from any enforcement to one in
which, at the other extreme, you would enforce it with the
Legislature just as you would with any other body or public
official, that it makes sense to move in gradations, and to do it
in a situation where we can see what the consequences are before
subjecting everybody to
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

-- stating that with a straight

face.
MR. WOOCHER:

-- to unreasonable consequences.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
Cavalla -- gradations?

Is that a word you got from

MR. WOOCHER: Let me turn to a couple of other issues as
long as I'm up here. We can go back to the financial disclosure
topic that was discussed previously. Another provision of Mr.
Lempert's bill that we're sponsoring would tighten up again on
the financial disclosure simply by requiring that the current
reporting system, which is on an annual basis, and which you've
heard some criticism of as being untimely, would be required to
be done semiannually. So that there at least would be a little
better system of tracking contributions and income.
In that
context, you're always going to have a problem of how you balance
the burden in the context of investments and outside income of
constantly doing the reporting. The way the system is set up
now, it coincides roughly with income tax reporting requirements
and preparing the same documents.
With respect to the more limited area of gifts and
honoraria, it would be much more simple to have a faster system.
And some of the bills that are before you would suggest that with
respect to that limited area.
On the conflict of interest, we spent a lot of time and
the Attorney General spent a lot of time reviewing what the
appropriate response ought to be to the perception problem that's
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been alluded to with respect to gifts and honoraria and the
potential for conflict of interest.
It was our conclusion, to hark back to a couple of
comments that were made earlier by Mr. Fellmeth and Mr. Zellman,
that we did not want to be in a position where public officials
were isolated from their constituency to the point that they had
to give up their outside lives and essentially give up any
interactions with them. But there were a number of contexts in
which part of the public official's role ought to be encouraged
to interact with interest groups as well as citizens at large.
And that any provision that absolutely prohibited both gifts and
honoraria, in particular, and travel expenses would serve as a
deterrent to having that kind of communication with constituents.
Indeed, we felt that the problem was one of conflict of
interest. That it is perfectly fine to interact with these
people and relate to them, but there should not be any kind of
opportunity for perception that you are personally profiting from
that and then having that influence the official conduct.
That is what led us to take. a position that we should not
have an outright ban on gifts and honoraria, but should address
the problem more directly with the conflict of interest
disqualification provisions.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: I just quickly want to go back
to some of the points that Steve was making, so you see the
difficulty. You know, you mentioned your $500 rule. So that
would mean, since Byron Sher's name was evoked earlier, since he
earns over $500 from Stanford University, that he would not be
allowed to vote on any bill affecting private universities.
It
would mean that any attorney who earned over $500 in a given year
would not be able to vote on any bill affecting attorneys. So,
it's easy to say, oh, I got the system
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
practical effect
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
with that?

What's wrong with that?
-- But when you think about the
What's wrong with that?
Does anyone have any problems

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Byron Sher also wouldn't be able
to vote on the oil industry, because of all the oil stock he
owns.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: But see, what I think you're
creating is a system where it would be unworkable.
It's one that
there's a lot of
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

Why?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
two examples I just mentioned.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
that cause a problem?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

-- valid objection.
What's the problem?

For the
Why does

Well, because --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: -- I think there's a feeling
right now that we've heard a debate on outside income. We heard
that Common Cause even has a position that perhaps some outside
income should be allowed.
It's a debate that's going to go on.
Probably wont' be decided this year. There are some of us who
already do not vote on measures affecting the industries or
whatever outside income we get from -- we disqualify ourselves.
Even though we're not technically required to, I don't see any
problem with that.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Well, I could give you a list
of examples that I think people would have a great deal of
problem with that over $500 from any source. And that covers
most Members of the Legislature. And that would basically
restrict voting on large numbers of bills. And it would be an
unworkable restriction.
Now, if we could-- I'm open to any suggestions on how
this would work. What we've done in our bill is remove the
enforcement exclusion, begin a step where legislators can be
punished for conflict of interest for conflict of interest
violations.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: But, Ted, you can't have it both
ways. You can't argue on one hand that the reason why you're
doing it this way is, because you want to take the gradation
philosophy, that you're working your way toward a system of total
ban. And then on the other hand, argue that we're not doing it
that way, because it's not workable.
I mean either you're headed
toward totally banning outside income or requiring a conflict of
interest disqualification for any outside income -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

Right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: -- or you're not.
If you don't
believe that's workable, then fine.
Say that's not workable and
say, this is where we think it is workable and that's where I'm
going to be. But you can't argue both of them.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: But that's what we're trying to
do. And I'm saying it's unworkable right now to totally ban all
outside income of legislators.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

What does right now mean?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: I think that there are some
instances, such as the teaching of a course or writing a book, or
other instances, where outside income might very well be
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something we allow.
If we do that, then we've got to tailor a
conflict of interest statute different -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Why shouldn't we deal with that
right now as opposed to next week?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Probably should always -- I'm
personally saying that I think that you can make a very strong
case -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Then you don't see this as a
first step. You see this as the way it ought to be done, because
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: No, what I'm saying is we have
put together language that is workable in the sense that covers
hypotheticals and situations.
It's workable in that sense.
People can understand it. They understand where it'd apply.
I'd
be willing to make it more severe. That's what you're saying,
it's not severe enough.
I would like to see the language that
you can draft to allow for that. That's what I'm saying.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

It's very simple.
It's not very simple.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: You can just disqualify yourself.
For example, you suggest we ought to be able to write books.
I
don't think -- why should you be able to write the book?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: We've drawn up a conflict of
interest provision that assumes one makes outside income. You're
not dealing with the conflict of interest language. You're just
saying no outside income. So, you're not dealing with the
conflict of interest question.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: No, you can have outside income.
If you earn over $500 from the source, you disqualify yourself
from voting.
It's as simple as that. Speaker Wright would not
have been able to vote on things for authors.
I don't know.
MR. WOOCHER:

The problem is not so much one that you

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

-- bookwriting is real important

MR. WOOCHER: -- that you know what the problem is and
you attack only a portion of it, because you don't think the rest
is passable. And that's not what I meant by gradations. The
problem is the situation, for example, where you talk about
defining what is the identical class of people that might be
affected by legislation. All right.
If you take the position
that a little interpretation of what kind of bill materially
affects you is one in which there's any kind of financial effect,
then it is true that a bill that deals with State Bar dues would
disqualify anyone who's a lawyer from participating.
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Fine.
should vote on what their dues are?

You don't think lawyers

MR. WOOCHER: You might find that you don't get a quorum
in certain instances. That it simply handicaps -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: No, you could adjust the quorum.
When you disqualify, you adjust the quorum to those members that
are still qualified to vote.
It's done in many circumstances.
MR. WOOCHER:

But it's not -- it's not --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
their dues are?

Why should lawyers vote on what

MR. WOOCHER: Well, because that's an insignificant
effect I would say in that situation. And you've got levels at
which it just -- the legislative process would come to a halt if
there were absolutely strict interpretations of all those
conflict of interest provisions. And the question is, where do
you draw the line in terms of -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: But you've drawn the line at
zero. Your bill will affect nothing. Give me an example of a
bill that it would affect? Show me a piece of legislation in the
last twenty years that it would have kept somebody from voting on
it.
MR. WOOCHER: Well, I think you'll have to see the
language that actually comes out, because I'm confident that it
will affect a lot more.
It's not --by single issue -- I don't
believe it necessarily means it's just a single company. But
it's intended to operate in the same way it operates at the local
level where there's a material effect on somebody as
distinguishable from a class in general.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: I hate to invoke the FBI bills,
but my understanding is that those bills would trigger our bill,
because they were bills that were designed to benefit one
company, one interest, and, therefore, they would be special
interest bills. And if someone had financial interest, then they
could be prosecuted or could be fined for conflict of interest.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: And you don't think that that
could have been written to broaden its apparent scope to avoid
federal legislation? I mean that's the most naive notion I've
heard yet.
I mean it doesn't make any sense. That's what these
people do for a living. They craft language. They craft law.
They change law and to avoid circumstance and to cause
circumstance. That is their profession. It is their expertise.
And to suggest that you are going to have such a narrowly casted
-- and you suggested that the language is actually broader than
Ted has indicated, then I will be interested to see that.
I just
have yet to hear the argument that is convincing to me for
narrowing its scope at all, other than if you have some reason to
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believe you can't get it through the Legislature.
me -- I'll tell you why I'm exercised about this.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:

What concerns

Sure.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: It would suggest to me that those
representations that have made that the conflict of interest
rules which have attempted to be put in on a committeeby-committee basis, the representations and commitments that were
made that they were going to get a fair hearing in the Rules
Committee and be passed upon were not -- they were ingenuine
representations. Because if you something I don't know -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: I have nothing to do with that,
and I have no idea about that. My point is that what we can -- I
appreciate what you're saying today, because we can try to craft
language to deal with people crafting language to get out of it.
If the intent of the bill, no matter how it's drawn, is to
benefit one group or industry, then that can be covered under our
provision.
I understand that you're saying, and we can craft the
language so it's not as narrow as you're perceiving it to be, so
it would cover. My only suggestion to you is that I think you
thought it was naive or come on -- be real. You know I don't
think that it's possible to use that $500, any interest. Because
I think what you would see is if we went down bill by bill by
bill, you would see large numbers of legislators who would not be
able to vote on large numbers of issues. And when there is -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: That will change their financial
circumstances one way or another.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Yes, but when there's not even
a perception problem with those votes.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

That doesn't mean there shouldn't

be.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay. Okay. I think we've
exhausted this at the point in terms of the particulars.
Anything further on the topic of conflict of interest anyone
wants to offer? Or discuss? It not, we'll move on to page two
of the agenda. Personal use of campaign funds. Mr. Ashford?
MR. ASHFORD: This area is very confused, because there
are two bodies of law which affect the use of campaign funds for
personal use. One has been part of the Elections Code since
1982, and the other was enacted by Proposition 73 in June of
1988. It's the view of our office that, in general, both of
these laws may be given effect, although there are instances in
which there appears to be conflict between the two.
The Fair Political Practices commission has adopted
regulations concerning Proposition 73, which in part incorporate
the elections Code provisions. But these regulations of the FPPC
are being tested in the courts. And I believe there's been a
Superior Court judgment declaring them unconstitutional or
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invalid. In short, the subject is one in which this committee
might wish to consider recommending legislation one way or the
other. Let's look at both bodies of law. The Elections Code
provisions generally prohibit use of campaign funds for personal
use, which is defined as a use that creates a substantial
personal benefit without more than a negligible political,
legislative, or governmental purpose.
The Elections Code specifically prohibits use of campaign
funds for professional services or personal debts, including, for
instance, taxes, court settlements, and attorneys' fees in
connection therewith. It also prohibits use of campaign funds
for payments or reimbursement for travel expenses, including
expenses of family members, and payments or reimbursement for
gifts of $100 or more, unless there is a reasonable relationship
between the payment and political, legislative, or governmental
purpose.
Now, the Elections Code specifically prohibits the use of
campaign funds for buying or leasing or refurbishing vehicles or
appliances or equipment or real property if the lessee or the
owner is the candidate or officeholder or member of his or her
family or his or her campaign committee treasurer.
The Elections Code also prohibits use of campaign funds
to pay criminal fines, other than traffic citations. Now, with
regard to surplus campaign funds, those that are left -ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
payment of traffic citations?

You said current law allows the

MR. ASHFORD: No, it prohibits the use. It prohibits the
use of campaign funds to pay criminal fines other than traffic
citations.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
MR. ASHFORD:

So you can pay traffic citations?

Yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE:

You're kidding!
Parking tickets.
Unbelievable.

MR. ASHFORD: With regard to surplus campaign funds,
which are those that are left when a person loses an election or
leaves office, the Elections Code permits these funds to be
transferred to other candidates or to be spent for residual
campaign purposes or as donations to charitable or nonprofit
corporations. And the Elections Code permits retention of these
surplus funds for future political campaigns.
Now, Proposition 73, on the other hand, expressly
prohibits transfers and requires that campaign funds be used only
for expenses associated with election to a specific office or for
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expenses associated with holding that office.
Now, the initiative provides that campaign fund balances
remaining on January 1st, 1989, be expended for any candidacy for
elective office.
The Fair Political Practices Commission adopted
regulations that define lawful purpose to mean purposes permitted
under the Elections Code provisions
The FPPC's regulations further permit expenditures to be
made for payment of debts incurred before January 1st of 1989 or
goods consumed or services completed prior to that date, and
permitted payment for officeholder expenses and contributions to
federal campaigns or campaigns outside of California, or for
contributions to ballot measures other than recall elections.
Now, different restrictions apply under the regulations of the
FPPC through campaign funds that are deposited in the separate
accounts established pursuant to Proposition 73. These funds
fall into two separate categories. There are those contributions
that were received on or after January, 1989, and those that were
received before that date and were brought into compliance with
tho contribution limitations imposed by Proposition 73. These
campaign funds are excluded from the application of the
Proposition's provision which applies to campaign fund balances
remaining on January 1st of '89, and it permits their expenditure
only for the lawful purposes under the Elections Code, other than
to support a candidate for elective office.
Instead, these funds are deemed to be held in trust for
expenses associated with an election of a candidate to the
specific office, which the candidate has stated his or her
intention to seek or with expenses associated with holding that
office.
Now, the validity of the regulations adopted by FPPC
concerning the application of the Proposition's provisions
governing campaign funds is being tested in the courts, and to
date, the Superior Court in Los Angeles has held that the
regulations are not valid.
It's my understanding the commission
has announced its intention to appeal or seek some sort of
respite from this decision.
Now, with regard to possible conflict of the Elections
Code provisions with those of Proposition 73, I said that our
office generally felt that the provision are not generally in
conflict. But we also should point out that there appears to be
instances where what might be permitted under the one would be
prohibited under the other.
We've already noted that -- in our opinion -- we've noted
there's a possible conflict with the campaign provisions of
Proposition 73. And we also note that there's a conflict between
the provision of the Elections Code and those of Prop 73
regarding whether or not campaign contributions are to be held in
trust.
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Now, experience may reveal other inconsistencies. Please
don't ask me to give you ten off the top of my head.
I think
this subject's one which the committee may wish to consider, but
there very definitely are some serious questions here with the
two bodies of law.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Insofar as those two are
inconsistent and they were each passed by the people, each of
them, as I recall, allows us to modify it by a two-thirds vote of
the Legislature. Is that correct?
MR. ASHFORD: To further the purposes of Proposition 73,
that's right. You could modify the Elections Code provisions as
you wish. That was not an initiative. Would not require a
two-thirds vote.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Let's see, the bills here are two
Roberti bills. Mr. Woocher, you want to talk about those bills'
subject matter?
MR. WOOCHER: Yes. Those are just two alternatives,
depending on which way the Legislature wants to go in terms of
putting them into the Political Reform Act or into the Elections
Code, consolidating all these provisions. As Leg Counsel
explained, there are the two bodies where they could now fit, and
so the reason there are two bills is just to keep open the
options of placing them in either one. Substantively, the intent
of both of them is identical, and that is to tighten up on the
existing restrictions. This is one of the few bodies of law
where the Attorney General is given the civil enforcement
authority as opposed to the FPPC pursuant to the Elections Code
provision. And our office has developed some experience in this
area.
It has become clear, and I would echo some of the comments
here that Mr. Zellman expressed earlier, that there are a number
of expenditures -- and perhaps increasingly so, and certain
increasing public attention seem to be focused on them -- that
have strayed somewhat from the constitutional ideal of First
Amendment free speech expenditure to aid in the process of
political campaigns.
In particular, as the recitation of the substantive
restriction indicated, right now, all there need be is a
negligible political, legislative, or governmental purpose of any
expenditure. And even if it contains a substantial personal
benefit, all you need to show is a reasonable relationship for
that expenditure to any political, legislative, or governmental
purpose. And, as Mr. Peace has noted earlier, it's clear that
legislators have no more difficulty in coming up with negligible
relationships or reasonable relationships that one might have in
drafting legislation that is broader than a single subject, you
know, single constituent bill.
And, therefore, what the personal use bill primarily does
is raise those standards so that you need to have a reasonable
relationship for any expenditure and one that confers a
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substantial benefit, would, in fact, need to be primarily
political, legislative, governmental in purpose. The other
aspect of this bill, and one that we found to be necessary, is
that it provides some specific examples and categories of
expenditures that repeat themselves -- travel being one of them
in particular, tickets to events, things like that -- that appear
frequently on forms and in which the rules, as they currently
exist, are very unclear as to what would be considered a
political purpose, or what would be considered to be that
reasonable or primary relationship.

•

Therefore, we attempt to set forth some guidelines in
those specific areas that could be used by those that are
affected by the rules to conform their conduct more readily, and
also be used as a standard that would guide in the interpretation
of the more general standard put forth in the bill.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Bob?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: In SB 1430, the section dealing
with the purchase and lease of automobiles, and that is struck,
as I understand this bill, is to recast these provisions within
the Political Reform Act?
MR. WOOCHER: Let me explain.
The two bills that you
have before you now are simply holding bills without the confines
of the specifics in them. And so, as I understand it, Senator
Roberti is planning in the very near future to amend those before
the committee hearings that would have the specifics of them.
Those were put in to meet the deadlines.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: I see. So the striking of this
language dealing with automobiles was not the intent --

•

MR. WOOCHER: That's correct.
I haven't actually even
looked at it in close detail.
I can tell you what we intend to
do with respect to the automobiles in the new bill .
It will be similar to the old and that is, in general, a
prohibited category of expenditure unless the vehicle is leased
to or in the name of the campaign committee as opposed to an
individual. There will be an exception in there to take care of
the situation of state leased cars so that Members can continue
to use the state leased cars and to pay for any differential
allowances up to certain amounts with the campaign funds.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: One of the difficulties that's
arising now with interpretations of Proposition 73 is trying to
differentiate between officeholder expense and campaign expense,
and in many cases there is no distinction because a lot of what's
done -MR. WOOCHER:

Services both purposes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE: -- laps over. But when you're
in a situation of having restricted/nonrestricted funds, you want
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to be sure to be paying the right one out of the right account.
MR. WOOCHER:

That's right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:
MR. WOOCHER:

I'm happy to say--

And we need some guidance.

-- that that's FPPC's problem.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FRAZEE:

Right.

MR. WOOCHER: At this point, as we see the world, there
are all the funds in the world out there, and in terms of the
expenditures and permissible uses of them, there are those that
are personal and those that are not personal. And within those
that are personal would be prohibited under the Elections Code
provisions; and with respect to those that are not personal and,
therefore, have a political, legislative, or governmental
purpose, then they may be further categorized into campaign,
officeholder, or neither. And as we see it, that enviable task
will fall to the FPPC by regulation.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Having been around here, I think
I put the first bill that bans the conversion of campaign funds
to personal usage, and it was killed in the Senate. And then the
bill that was passed -- I think, Jim, you cited -- is the Paul
Carpenter bill, if I recall correctly. And at that point in
time, the reason the enforcement was lodged in your office rather
than the FPPC was -- it needs to be said -- that there was the
sense that the FPPC folks were the righteous, good-goody guys who
were out to get whoever they could, and there was no point in
giving them more power to get us whenever they could. So, it was
put in the AG's office, thinking it would be a more objective
assessment and if need be, prosecution.
MR. WOOCHER: As I understand it, the bill itself was in
some sense a reaction to the FPPC's motion towards regulating
this by regulation as opposed to any legislation at all.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: I don't recall that, but that
could be. Okay. Any questions or comments on the person use of
campaign funds section? That's for now taken up.
I'm of the mind of adjourn the committee at this point.
We've lost half of our members, and we've also -- of the six
members who were -- who have items to talk about, half of them
are unavailable today. Friedman, Condit and Burton. And we've
been here over two hours, and I'd like to, at this point, adjourn
today and put this as the first item on the next agenda along
with what's otherwise set for the time if there are no
objections.
We seem to have continued to move ourselves forward.
Thank you for being here, each of you.
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CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS:
This is about the fifth
meeting of our Ethics Committee. It started in January. And
it's one more in a series seeking to take testimony about the
various issues that have been put before us, by an earlier
hearing, which tried to develop an agenda of concerns.
Today's agenda is particularly around honoraria, gifts
and travel, government employees coming and going, and lobbying
regulations. And we mean to both look at some of the reform
proposals that have been introduced by various Members of the
Legislature, and as well, to take testimony from others who have
any concern about these issues and suggestions for us that we
might adopt in a way of an ethics program for the Assembly, to
deal with these concerns, both in their substance and in their
appearance -- one or the other.
There has been lots of conversation here, and rather
than taking time. Let's just start the testimony, so we can use
our time most effectively.
Mr. Burton, are you here to give us the benefit of your
wisdom with regard to some part of this? Give us your advice,
please.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER JOHN BURTON: Mr. Chairman, Members of
the Committee, I address myself to the issue of honoraria.
The people of this state, in enacting Proposition 73,
spoke somewhat to the issue of honoraria, by limiting honoraria
to $1,000 per appearance. A Task Force of the Democratic Caucus,
that I chaired, further addressed ourselves to that by stating
that by the first of each month, if a person received an
honoraria, that should be reported to the Clerk, printed in the
Journal -- the subject matter of the speech -- the people to whom
it was given, the place where it was given, etc., so that you
know there was a bona fide appearance, a bona fide speech.
I did not feel that there should be a written copy of
the speech, because in all the years I've given speeches, I've
never had a written copy. And I'm not on the honoraria circuit,
anyway. But, a lot of people speak extemporaneously, and I think
that if you establish the factors that surrounded the speech,
that will, at least, make sure that it's bona fide --
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: I'm just the same.
I talk
four, five, six times a week -- not often with honoraria -- and I
don't prepare anything in writing at all, I just get up and talk.
One way of dealing with that situation is to just require that
they be taped, and just file a tape of it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON: Well, if the committee felt
that that was appropriate, or even if the speech was required,
I'm sure that I could write a speech, put it over here, and I'd
give a different one -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Yes

ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON:
The other proposal that we
didn't make, that I would support, is that if a person did
receive honoraria over a certain amount, that they would be
precluded during that session of the Legislature from voting on
an issue that affected people giving the speech. For instance,
-- gave a speech to the structural engineers, and there was a
bill up that eliminated the statute of limitations on latent
defects in structural buildings, or something that was sponsored
by the structural engineers. The person receiving the honoraria
should be precluded from voting on that.
I do believe that as long as the salaries that Members
receive -- many of the Members with small children, or children
they're trying to put through school, trying to put through
college -- remains at the level that it's at, I do not think -Also, we limited honoraria to 50% of the salary that was in
effect; so that would be a $20,000 limit.
I do not believe that
if an individual has an opportunity to give a speech to a
university, to give a speech somewhere, and that group is willing
to pay an honoraria -- as long as that is reported if the
Committee thought that was it -- either the substance of it or
the subject matter of the speech -- that that would be a problem.
I don't believe the problem is with honoraria. The problem is
that it is perceived by the people, through reports in the press,
that there are conflicts of interest, either perceived or real,
when somebody gets an honorarium and then votes for their bill
the following day, or maybe votes against the bill that a certain
group was opposed to. And I think that does reflect on the
Legislature, in the process.
I think limits, such as the amount, reporting
requirements that are made in a timely fashion, and not made as
they are now -- which I think is April 1st of the following year,
give a timely reporting.
I think our committee adopted a rule
that prohibits a person from voting on a bill for which they
received $500 or more honoraria.
I think that's legitimate.
I
think it's $500.
I think that if somebody dropped it to $250, to be
consistent with -- as I understand it, if you get a $250 gift
what's the amount on a gift that you can -- ? Isn't there some
limit, where if you get a gift within a certain amount, you can't
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vote on legislation affecting the gift giver?
was a --maybe that's in local government.

I thought there

But, anyway, it seems inconsistent to me that if someone
gave somebody a $500 suit, they couldn't vote. But, if they gave
them a $500 honoraria, they could. And I think that limiting it
-- because I think it is legitimate for Members of the
Legislature -- if they give legitimate speeches to groups, and
those are reported, so that their constituents know that they are
prohibited from voting, so that then there is no either real or
perceived conflict on the situation.
I think that is legitimate,
given the fact that I would believe that most of the people
serving the State Legislature today if they were to devote all of
their time and efforts to the private sector, would be making the
equivalent of their remuneration here. So, I don't think there's
anything inherently bad in honoraria; I think that what's bad is
a conflict of interest.
And then, in our business, what's bad is the perception,
as well as the fact.
Therefore, when I go before the Rules
Committee, if they ask what our proposals would be, mine at
least, would be what was adopted by the committee that I chair,
that the Member would be precluded from voting on an issue for
that legislative session. Or, we could do a "time certain." If
it was the end of the session, they couldn't vote -- whatever it
is.
I don't know if you want to make it in perpetuity. But, I
think that's bona fide.
Up until Proposition 73, you could get $32,000 worth of
contributions from some group, and then, if you voted on that
bill, that was all in the interest of good government.
If you
get an honoraria from a group, and you do it, somehow it's
suspect.
I had one honorarium and I donated that amount of money
to a charity.
But I just think that it's not bad, per se, for a Member
to give a speech to entities that aren't involved with the
legislative process -- or cannot be involved within the
legislative process, because prohibiting them from voting on a
measure for which they received. We did that in our Committee,
again Some reporter wanted to know (INAUDIBLE).
I said, "Well,
you know, the San Quentin inmates have a big pac, and they give a
lot of honoraria."
But I guess there are groups that do appear before us
law enforcement, prison guards, D.A.'s, or whatever-- that
probably could -- and if somebody took one, they couldn't vote on
it. But I think that that's an approach that I would support, as
opposed to a total ban, because, again, the reason that there is
such a furor -- in my judgment, from just reading the papers -about honoraria is that, somehow, somebody receives one, then
somebody takes an official action that would appear to benefit
the people who paid an honoraria for a speech. And I think that
if the speech is a bona fide one, if it's reported, and the
person is precluded from voting on legislative matters that
affect the organization that made the honoraria, that that
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eliminates the conflict of interest aspect.
I think that the $1,000 limit that the people enacted in
Prop. 73, which, in my judgment, through a clear reading of it -you could go somewhere and talk about your kid's braces, and they
could give you $10,000, because it really limits it only to
legislative business. So, in theory, you could give a speech on
something else, although (INAUDIBLE) -- has ruled that it means
any honoraria. But if somebody was "wacky" enough to stretch the
issue and take them to court, I think, on a clear reading of the
statute (INAUDIBLE).
I think that with that limit-- I'm being
redundant -- with the reporting, and with the not being able to
vote, I think that that's a bona fide deal, and I think that
addresses legitimate concerns that the people have. And it would
still allow Members to make speeches to universities, make other
speeches to supplement their income, for the people who find it
very difficult having two homes, trying to raise a family, to do
it on the legislative salary.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Okay.

Thank you.

Any questions or comments?
Okay, John.

Thank you for coming in.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON:

Always a pleasure.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Mike Roos.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER MIKE ROOS:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and

Members.
There has been a lot of attention lately, at the
national level, regarding gifts and honoraria, and the appearance
of conflicts of interest. Here in California, the voters
recently voted for Prop. 73, which limits the amount of honoraria
we can receive.
I have no problem with the limit set by the
voters; but, I now see a move afoot, to prohibit entirely the
receipt of honoraria for legislative participation in forums and
legislative conferences and meetings. And I'm here to speak
against any move in that direction.
As a legislative leader, I often receive invitations to
provide groups and conferences with information and insights on
current legislative matters, and I know that many of you do, too.
These often are some of the most informative hours I spend, since
it provides an opportunity to have a give-and-take interaction
with those whose lives we constantly affect. And I've heard that
the same sentiment has been expressed by many other participants,
as well as other Members.
And I think it's important to put that in context:
I
have had many conversations with people who do believe that it's
our job, it's our currency, to go and speak to people. That's
constantly what we're doing. We talk to people, that's how we
form ideas. We have our values reinforced, or, sometimes, we
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have them disabused, and we re-examine, and as a consequence
become better decision-makers.
On the other hand, I must tell you that there is a limit
on our time.
I can fully be consumed with speaking to groups,
wholly in my district.
I have never received an honoraria for
speaking to any constituent group in my district. These are
basically the outside organizations who also request time,
whether it be in San Diego, or other parts of Los Angeles outside
of my voting district, or in Sacramento, San Francisco, or
wherever else in the state. But more about that in just a
minute.

•

Many members of the media often are invited to give
their unique perspective on current events. And yes, they accept
fees, and I do not believe that it clouds their judgment or
perspective when they sit down to write a story, sometimes on the
same groups that they have spoken to, any more than it affects my
position on legislation.
Teaching a two-hour course at USC or Pepperdine about
the political process, writing an article for the Los Angeles
Times on assault weapons, or participating in a debate with H. L.
Richardson on the relative merits of assault weapon bans, in my
opinion, are legitimate activities for public officials to
participate in. And I believe that receiving an honorarium for
the time that is spent is also wholly legitimate.
And again, I want to refer back to the distinction that
I have made, as a public official, between accepting any offered
gift of a speaking fee to someone who is in my voting district,
or an organization in my voting district, versus those who are
outside that voting district.
I certainly understand the Committee's concern, however,
with the appearance of conflicts, and I know that your work is
focused on preventing the borderline cases. And perhaps, that's
where this committee could play an important role, inasmuch as we
are all careful to avoid legal conflict of interest, as defined
by the political reform act, and anything even approaching the
appearance of that.
Let me just give you my ideas of what I'd like to see
the committee undertake as possible alternatives to an outright
ban that I as a person who receives numerous requests would feel
perfectly comfortable in doing. And that would be to bring the
request before this committee for your review and for your
recommendation. And I would even go so far as to accept it as a
binding recommendation.
If you felt that there was the
appearance, or the actual conflict, then I would certainly be
inclined to write back immediately to the requesting agent and
tell them that I must decline their invitation to speak. So,
therefore, I would ask you not only to review, but also to rule
on the propriety of the request.
Thirdly, I think it is in order that, in the aftermath,
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I would provide for your file, open to the public, either a tape
or a transcript of the actual speech given to the group, as part
of not only the request, but the review, your ruling, and again,
in the aftermath.
We already have laws that both limit and require
disclosure of our financial dealings.
I believe our current laws
fully address the public's major concerns regarding excessive
honoraria, and undisclosed sources of income.
I would urge you
to focus on working with Members to help keep them from even
coming close to any legal line. And I'd like to see you move in
the direction of some sort of guidelines that would bind us, that
would make it an open process of where the speeches, or the
opportunities that we are offered, would again be put to a body
that has no stake in it, in order to focus the decision-making
that has been good and competent and ever-searching, as to avoid
any kind of appearance.
But again, I believe that by banning honoraria
altogether, in many cases, it would literally lead us to fall
back, not to accept an invitation, such as to teach a class -that sometimes can be very grueling, just because of the
intensity and the duration of it -- or, to engage in a debate
that is more for the enlightenment and the amusement of those who
have invited, rather than to rehash old territory on something
that you've lived with for nine months or longer. And I think
the losers would be the public process, because I think that it
does show people the ways in which they can get involved.
It
gives them an insight on how their government works, and also
gives them a real notion that, in the usual and customary
follow-up questions and answers, they can have some real
participation or at least a guideline on how you can participate.
Hopefully, that moves them more in the direction of then
re-contacting -- or getting in touch -- with their own local
officials, whether it be at the city, the county, the state, or
the federal level.
I'm happy to answer any questions. But, those are my
initial thoughts that I have spoken to you about, Mr. Chairman,
and I would appreciate the Members' consideration on
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Okay. We will certainly
consider them thoroughly-- yours and John Burton's, as well, and
others we've heard.
Richard?

Ted?

Lucy?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ROOS:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ROOS:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Public Interest Law?

Any comments?
Okay.
Okay.

Thanks, Michael.

Thank you all very much.
Okay.

Is Steve Barrow here?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON: Did anybody figure out how much
Sam Donaldson got for his speech at lunch?
much.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Whatever it was, it was too
God! Did you hear it, John?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON:

(INAUDIBLE)

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: He's a great entertainer. Sam
Donaldson spoke to the hospital folks who were gathered here
today to ask for help with money for the health care system.
I
listened to him, and it was like "Saturday Night Live."

•

ASSEMBLY MEMBER RICHARD KATZ:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

(INAUDIBLE)

Yes, I'm afraid so.

Mr. Barrow.
MR. STEVE BARROW: That kind of reminds me of -- I
wouldn't say that directly to anybody who buys their ink by the
barrel, though -- when you make those kinds of comments.
I'm Steve Barrow, here representing The Center for
Public Interest Law. And I have brief comments on the three
areas that I've been asked to comment on today.
One is that I want to restate our position at the center
about -- we premise all these remarks on that -- we believe the
Legislature's salary should be at a level that would make some of
the comments that I'm going to make possible, dealing with
outside income, and dealing with honoraria and gifts and travel.
We think that the legislators' salary may be too low at this
time, including all the other outside per diems and prerequisites
that are added to it. And that should be of major consideration
to this committee, as to how that might be dealt with.
I also want to state something that my boss, Bob
Feldman, stated to this committee the last time, because I think
it's an important concept that we approach this issue with. We
believe that it's our job to bring this forward, whether you
think this is harassing you or not. We believe that the public
owes absolute respect to elected officials in the state; but, in
turn, the elected officials owe total fidelity to the public, and
to the job that they're elected to do.
We think that in an ideal world -- and we think that we
should be working towards the ideal world -- that honoraria and
gifts and travel gifts should be banned outright. Possibly, when
someone is invited to come and give a speech, instead of
honoraria, allow them to take subsistence income for travel,
meals, and to get there. You may want to consider that, if it's
necessary for a Legislator to go and speak about the job that the
people have elected them to do, then if the honoraria is given,
maybe it should go to the General Fund.
If that speech is
important enough to the job that the Legislator has been elected
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to do, maybe the state should pay the honoraria, in exchange for
the salary that the Legislator gets. So, you exchange honoraria
for salary, to make sure that the public is paying for the
elected officials, and not an interest that comes before the
body, asking for a special change in the law that may have a
financial benefit for them.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Well, I understood the first
part, that if I get an honoraria, I should give it to the
government. As a proposal, I understood it. The other one, I
didn't understand, that if I'm to go somewhere to speak, that I
only get to go if the government pays my way --

MR. BARROW:
-- Well, if the Legislature feels that
it's an extraordinary-- "above the call of duty" -- job to go
give a speech -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Yes --

MR. BARROW:
-- and it's in line with the job that
you're elected to do, the government may consider giving an extra
amount of money to cover that. Right now, you get per diem; but,
it's subsistence per diem. And if you're going "above and beyond
the call of duty," maybe the government should pay for that.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: I do a number of speeches that
I don't get per diem for.
I mean, I don't claim per diem, unless
I'm on state business officially.
I went to Florida in March, and did a speech at a Self
Esteem conference. The state would not have paid for that.
I
think it was an important speech to make.
I could probably
imagine giving the honorarium to the state; but, I couldn't
imagine the state paying my way.
MR. BARROW: This is not a --we're not going to sponsor
any legislation towards this end -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Well, you could, if you
wanted; but, I don't think it would go very far.
I certainly
wouldn't support it.
MR. BARROW: The other thing I wanted to comment on,
dealing with honoraria, is the comments made by Assemblymember
Roos about teaching. We think it is important that the
Legislators be involved with maybe teaching in bona fide
educational facilities; but, we consider that an outside-earned
income, and not an honoraria-type situation. So, I'd differ with
how that was being characterized -- respectfully differ.
If
you're asked to come and speak, and give one speech at an
educational facility, it's still outside-earned income, more than
an honoraria situation.
The issue of gifts -- we've been working hard on looking
at gifts and what we would recommend on that -- we would ideally
ban gifts, except for the accepted means of exchanges between
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family members, and special occasions, and true gifts given in a
reciprocal fashion between friends.
We would caution that
registered lobbyists and groups that hire lobbyists in the
Capitol -- probably, there should be a little different standard
or threshold there, between friends and reciprocal gifts -- if
for nothing else, for the perception to the public that, simply
because somebody lives and has to work in Sacramento, and their
friends may typically be those people who are registered to
lobby, they shouldn't be granted a loophole in the reciprocal
gift situation.
It creates the perception to the public that
there's something going on.
Travel is a much tougher issue. We would say,
especially, outside of the state travel should be banned.
If a
trip is important enough to make, then the public should pay for
it. The problem that Legislators get into is that the public is
willing to read a media story about a trip, paid for by the
taxpayer money, and maybe mischaracterize the trip as kind of a
fun cruise, rather than real work -- when it was real work.
But,
we still think that -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA:
Mr. Barrow, when you
said that out-of-state trips should be banned, you mean that the
expenses could not be accepted for those. That's what you were
intending?
MR. BARROW: Yes. Yes, that out-of-state travel gifts
from private sources should be banned
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:
-- But not from government
state, federal, or foreign government?
MR. BARROW:
be banned.

•

No.

No, we wouldn't say that those should

And inside California, some people argue that, "Well,
you should ban the out-of-state; but, in-state should be fine."
But, we have a lot of very nice areas to travel to here that may
become abusive, in private entities providing travel arrangements
for Legislators or their families, especially at the salary level
that you're at now. That may be perceived as being wrong.
So, we think that "gifts" is a very difficult area to
deal with, as far as dealing with travel gifts; but, we think
that that's an area that this Committee -A couple brief comments on government employees. We
believe that when an employee of the state -- especially of the
Legislature -- or a public official, is on the public payroll,
the employee should not participate in any fund raising at all
when they're on the public's payroll in the campaign sense.
I
personally believe that for a staff person, when they take a
leave of absence to go work for their boss's race down in their
district, it may be beneficial for that person to have a better
understanding to participate in that campaign during an election
season outside of the legislative season to get better experience
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of who their boss is representing and what are the issues at
stake out in the district to keep them from being so myopic on
Sacramento and the Sacramento vision of the world. But when
they're on the public's payroll, especially during the
legislative session, there should absolutely be a ban, a brick
wall, black and white, that staff on the public payroll cannot
participate in fund raising.
We also believe that government employees should not
derive outside income from campaign oriented businesses. That's
probably a little harder to find in some instances, but the kinds
of things like caging houses, or having ownership in printing
houses or a consulting firm on campaigns is probably inconsistent
with their job as working for the public in a bipartisan fashion
and being paid for by the public.
We also think there should be a black and white rule
making sure that no public or governmental employee can utilize
loans from anyone's campaign funds for any reason whatsoever. We
believe that committee consultants should adhere to a very strict
conflict of interest code so that their outside income is not
from any entity or business that they are the ones consulting a
policy committee about that may have the potential to personally
benefit them financially.
We also think that it might be a good idea for campaign
consultants to have job descriptions and that they be qualified
for the consultant job that they are hired to do to make sure
that the consultants in this building are professionals in the
area that they're dealing with and they are not appointed or
given a position for any political reason.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Maybe I'm not hearing you
correctly, but it sounded as if you said we ought to have job
descriptions for campaign consultants.
MR. BARROW: No, for committee consultants.
If you're
the consultant for the Finance and Insurance committee you should
have some qualifications and adhere to a job description for
that. We wouldn't want -- and we have in a growing number of
times the accusation both publicly and privately that some
consultants in this building get their jobs simply to house them
between campaigns because of the higher paying positions when
they really aren't qualified to be consulting in the public
policy area they are working on. One way of dealing with that is
for each committee to have a job description and for the people
to be qualified in the area that they're consulting on.
Lobbying -- and I understand this to be more the
revolving door area -- we would support that there be a revolving
door criteria set up for Legislators of one year before they come
back and lobby the Legislature directly; for committee
consultants, two years to be able to lobby for the business that
they were consulting about or any of the entities regulated by a
committee over here or the committee itself.

Page 186
Anybody that's in a position of a regulatory
decision-maker -- the head of a department down to a certain
level -- and I don't have the specific level in mind -- but at
our regulatory agencies, the sixty-five agencies the state has,
or any of the other state departments, there should be a two-year
ban of being able to come back and lobby that agency and the
committee at the Legislature that they were involved in. And the
governor's staff should be subject to a revolving door, coming
back and lobbying the Legislature, agencies, or the
administrative level.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
MR. BARROW:

Okay.

Mr. Katz.

How long on the governor's staff?

One year, like the Legislators.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: Explain to me why you have a
stricter prohibition for staff than for the Legislators. I think
it ought to be the other way around.
MR. BARROW: Well, for the governor's staff, for
governor's appointees to a specific area it should be two years.
For the governor's staff, like the Legislators, dealing with a
broad range of issues, it's thought more of a cooling off period.
One of the things that you'll find happening is if we do do a
rule like this is that -- a growing phenomenon in Washington -you go to work with a legal firm that deals with political
consulting, you don't do the direct lobbying, but you are behind
the scenes helping make an impact, so -ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
I understand that circumvention,
but my point is that -- I agree with your comment in terms of the
cooling off period, but I think that the Legislator -- you're
saying that a Legislator only has to do one year because he deals
with a more broad, a general area, as opposed to the staffer
who's in a specific area. The counterbalance to that would be,
though, the Legislature by virtue of the relationship and the
access a Legislator has would have more direct access, which I
think would mitigate for a longer cooling off period.
MR. BARROW:

We wouldn't accept a longer cooling off

period.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
I think there ought to be a
longer cooling off period, and I certainly think you ought not
make a distinction between staff -- you hold the staff up to a
higher standard in that regard than you are a Legislator, and I
think that's a mistake.
MR. BARROW: We would, if the committee came out with a
position of two years, we would support that. We think from what
we have heard from Legislators and talking to Legislators and
talking to staff people, that generally it's the first year after
a Legislator leaves that they have the easiest access to their
peers that they were with while they were in office. After that
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time period they become more of the rank and file.
If they call,
they have to wait in line like everyone else, so anyway, it's a
reaction to what we've heard about that. There's nothing magic
about the one year, two year -- would be -- you know, keep it
consistent would be fine.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Okay. Any questions or
comments? Mr. Frazee, Lempert, Ms. Killea. Okay, thank you.
Next witness. Mr. Floyd has come in. Mr. Johnson was here.
I
guess he's left. Would you -- call Ross and tell him to come
back.
I'll put him on as soon as he comes in after the person
speaking has completed.
Dick Floyd.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER DICK FLOYD: Mr. Chairman and members,
I'm the last guy I ever thought I'd see sitting before an ethics
committee with recommendations.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Okay.

Let's have them.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD: You know, I have some thoughts
on that, too, but I would like to talk on a statement.
I have a
bill, AB 66. Under current law, state workers can spend up to
10% of their time doing political work.
I found this out when I
complained about George Deukmejian using his state paid lawyers
from the governor's office to defend a lawsuit about untrue
statements he made in a ballot argument on the elimination of
Cal-OSHA. The FPPC said there was nothing they could do because
the state employees spent less than 10% of their time that month
working on the political campaign to terminate Cal-OSHA.
I have a letter from the FPPC. The only alternative
they had was to file criminal theft charges against the
employees. There has to be a better way. My bill would prohibit
exempt employees from doing outside work on state time.
I'd like
this committee to take a harder look at this issue, and I'd like
my bill to be put over and work with you and your staff to
develop comprehensive legislation in this area.
In short, I do not think that the people of California
can accept 10% of a state employee's time being used on any
political thing. What they do after their work hours, what they
do on their lunch hours, but we're talking about attorneys that
spent somewhat less than 10% of their time on a purely political
issue.
I had to pay my attorneys, and even if it's the governor
whose statement -- it was not an argument of government -- it was
an argument of politics. The statement was found by the court to
be an untrue statement.
It was in the context of a political
campaign, that of restoring Cal-OSHA. Somewhere there's just
something that I don't think the people will buy.
I don't think
they'll buy one percent of state employees' time because they're
paying that salary.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: If they spent more than 10% of
their time on other than state business when they were being paid
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by the state, is that what you said?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD: Yes, Ma'am. Up to 10% of their
time, and they said, "We can't do anything because these lawyers
apparently spent no more than 10% of their time on this political
issue.
Now, 10% of the time would be construed to be four hours
of time. My lawyers cost me a fortune, and I don't know how much
time they spent on it --whatever they said-- but let's assume a
good lawyer, and I assume the governor has the best lawyers, a
couple, two or three hundred dollars an hour.

•

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Yeah. I'm familiar with the
issue, and it's not an issue. Nobody on state time should spend
any of their time on a campaign, you know.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD: The reasons I brought it here is
because I was shocked. I just thought -- we know that everybody
cheats a little bit in this business.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Apparently the FPPC has a
regulation that I didn't know about until right now, and I'm kind
of shocked by it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD: Well, that's why I'm bringing it
here, because I would appreciate your looking at it, because
we're looking -- you're having an ethics committee, and all these
gentlemen here in the press are looking at the ethics -- our
ethics. Ethics are ethics, and as long as we're covering these
things, I just think that -- well, anyway, I appreciate your
insight into it and if need be, somebody will know the proper way
to handle it -- not just for the governor but for every state
employee. There's a water bond. Does this mean 10% of the time
the people on the water board are going out there and making
political speeches? I don't know.
Thank you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
to our attention.

I appreciate your bringing it

ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD: I have another proposed
alternative. It's an alternative to the so-called Condit rule.
And I will admit right out that I threw this into the committee
where I was when the so-called Condit rule came out that said had
anybody who received an honorarium couldn't vote on the thing for
another year or something like that. And you know, we get into
the purity thing, and I have to tell you, I had not received an
honorarium that would have prohibited me in the Labor Committee
from voting for anything because those of us who have a lot of
contacts with labor know that guys like me don't get honorariums.
We get to drive over somewhere, make a speech and leave, but
maybe the other interests on the other side of the issue do that.
I'm not aware of any of that, but it just seemed to me that now
we're getting into something -- we're going to throw in a new
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rule -- whether it's campaign contributions or honorariums, and
somebody's doing this for the purpose, basically to get a press
release, and for one of us to say, "Look at me. I'm clean, and I
distrust everybody else in the thing."
So, with tongue in cheek -- and I have to admit this -I thought that being a guy in the Legislature it's almost a shame
to turn in my annual Conflict of Interest Form. Because I read
everybody's, and you know, it's pretty bad to be the poorest guy
on the block and have nothing to show for a lifetime of public
and private service, but ex-wives do, I mean, have something to
do with it. That was certainly not ethical or unethical, but if
we're going to play these games, and there's a few random
instances I picked to show here, then if you're going to vote for
something that might have a financial incentive to you, then
maybe you shouldn't vote. If I'm the guy that may have a
campaign contribution from anyone in this group, and we're all in
the position, you don't expect any of us to vote for enemies. We
vote for friends. Our friends are also the ones that give us the
campaign contributions to keep us in office. So if we're going
to play with campaign contributions or honorariums, then let's
look at -- what the hell? A $250 or $500 honorarium is not going
to do me a whole lot of good. I'll blow it before the
afternoon's over.
However, if I happen to own a business, a hotel or
something, by god, voting against a minimum wage increase is
going to put more money in my pocket than anything else. What
I'm concerned with is that we over "goody-two-shoes" this ethics
thing. Let's face it. I have no problems with any of the ethics
rules. I don't think I violate any of them. My mama raised me
to know right from wrong, and that's all ethics is, and if I'm
doing right, I don't have any worry. If I'm doing wrong, yeah,
grab my ass, throw me in prison. That's fair, and any of the
rest of us. But I am concerned that in this period of time when
we have to all prove that we're pure virgins in this business -and we know that some of us are not -- and we ought not to just
play this game for the media. We ought not to play this game for
campaign speeches that we might make or that we have made
previously because I don't think anybody in the public expects us
all to be marvelous, personal people, otherwise we'd be wearing
robes. We'd be helping people on a religious thing. I'm not
religious about this thing, except that I maintain that if you do
wrong, nail the wrongdoers, and we ought to know right from wrong
or we shouldn't be here, and that's the end of my speech. Thank
you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Thank you, Dick. Along the
lines of what you just said about where ethics substance lies and
missing the saddle for the reality. As I listen to these things,
I think that where the honorarium situation poses a problem, the
problem is not honorarium. Really what the problem is is a
million dollar campaign. The campaign contributions are a
hundred fold.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER FLOYD:

Worse than that, the half
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million dollar campaign they run against me every two years.
That bothers me. My campaign doesn't bug me. What they throw at
me does.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: No, I'm not talking about your
campaign. Where the real problem for me -- the cost of campaigns
is much worse for the system than some honorarium any of us has
taken.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: Well, I think Dick raises a good
point. An example, particularly, if you're a property owner in a
restaurant and you vote on minimum wage, which probably would not
come under any conflict of interest laws because it is so
generic.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
are affected.

It's true all restaurant owners

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: All restaurant owners are
affected, all business owners are affected, though it would mean
more money.
I don't know how you get at that.
I mean, it's a
hard one to get at in that sense, because you're part of a class
-- part of a whole as opposed to -- if it was only for Restaurant
A, and you owned Restaurant A, that's obviously a conflict of
interest. Nevertheless, you do benefit from that kind of a
decision.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Yes.
I could see expanding the
rules to talk about whether there's a direct benefit -- a direct
visible benefit.
I would be glad for something that goes in that
direction.
Okay. Next up, we have a former --we're going to
intercept one more, Alan Post. Alan is a former Legislative
Analyst and one of the more distinguished of our progenitors, and
has come to give us his advice about ethics and the Legislature.
Alan, thank you for coming.
MR. A. ALAN POST: I'm here, Mr. Chairman and Members,
because I chaired a subcommittee of the Senate commission dealing
with the agency system of the state. We are a commission in
control of the cost of state government, and one of the projects
that we undertook was the agency system because there had been a
very considerable legislative interest in either abolishing it or
changing it radically, shifting it, to the discretion of the
governor to make his own alignment every year or to have the
secretaries in his office take the place of the agency
administrators. And we studied that very carefully and came up
with the recommendation that you should have the agency system
originally put in place, that these were public officials which
had approval of the Legislature in terms of confirmation and you
should not simply rely on the governor's secretaries. And in the
process, we also looked very generically at how the whole system
of management for the governor worked, and how it fitted with his
economic agenda and his political agenda and so on.
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We recognized and so stated that the political
agenda, generally speaking, are carried out with non-state
personnel and non-state funds, but we did recognize -- and this
is particularly a point by members of the commission rather than
our own subcommittee -- that some affiliated activities have
historically been implemented by the use of personnel and
positions within the agencies. We felt it appropriate to put the
statement in there that while the commission concurred in the
limited use of exempt positions, where the method of selection
was best suited to effective recruitment and employment in jobs,
it did require this close personal relationship with the governor
or with a high level appointed or elected official, that such
persons should have appropriate job qualifications and be used
only to carry out agency-related tasks. The purpose of the
statement was, in effect, to say that it was the feeling of some,
in their experience, that they had been used for political
purposes, and that this was not a good idea. Let me say
parenthetically in thinking about this relatively innocuous
statement, that it's difficult to define where politics is being
carried out by persons who are immersed in a political
environment where this is political business. Where you cross
the line, whether you're a state employee or a civil service
employee or an exempt employee or a legislative employee, is
rather difficult unless you have really very good guidelines to
follow that say this is really what you should be doing and this
is what you shouldn't be doing.
I thought we had some really good guidelines in my
office because we were obviously involved in the very center of
political activity, because we were required to make reservations
on bills, on appropriations, and all kinds of matters. You could
be accused, and we were accused at times -- I remember with some
gratitude your defense of my position against Governor Reagan
when I was accused of being political because we had views that
were counter to some of his policy views. We had guidelines that
made me perfectly secure that we were not playing politics. We
were simply speaking out in that political environment. So, this
being the case, I think it's very important that you define
extremely good guidelines for employees to follow.
This is, I
think, critical because of the high degree of campaign funding
that goes on where money is the name of the game almost. And it
affects the interests of so many people that it's very difficult
when money is thrown behind proposals to not be involved in what
could be called political fund raising, even though you're not an
elected official.
So that's really all I have to say here today. As I
say, I'm carrying out the recommendation of our subcommittee.
understand that Mr. Floyd picked up that particular
recommendation in his AB 66.
I haven't read the bill, very
frankly, and I don't know how it's stated, but that was our
reason for stating that, and those are my feelings about it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Thank you, Alan.

I
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Comments?
Ms. Killea
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Do you have any particular set
of guidelines of anything that
have -- has it been written or
is it down on paper that
suggest would be useful for us to
take a look at? We're not trying to reinvent the wheel, so if we
have something that we can
MR. POST: I'm sure that the Analyst's Office still has
guidelines. Our guidel
were such that you'd never -- I mean,
we knew what we were supposed to do. We made recommendations,
but we didn't contact Members thereafter in trying to induce
them. We had a forum. We were very fortunate. We had a forum
before the committees, and we limited ourselves to those
committees. Now, that was a clearly stated rule. We didn't go
outside and lobby. We didn't go inside and lobby. We made our
case, and we walked away from it. We made it as strongly as we
could, but we let it lie there. We had, in accordance with state
law, formulated rules of conduct and disclosure and so on, as is
called for by all agencies, so we had that, and that's in the
record where you laid your position clear so that you couldn't be
accused of having conflicts of interest.
We never engaged
fund raising of any kind. We never
accepted any gifts of any kind. We returned them if they came
in, and we let people know that our office was not in a position
to accept any kind of gratuity, other than going to lunch with
somebody sometimes where they wanted to discuss something. But
that was carefully done, and generally we paid for our own
lunches and tried to
over backwards so that we could -since we lived in a glass house and threw lots of stones -- we
wanted to be sure that we were as clean as it was possible to be.
No, and they were personal rules that, very frankly, I
did the negotiations, and everybody understood that.
I knew who
was doing the talking, in terms of if there was anything that was
political in nature, it was up to me to handle it. That wasn't
too difficult.
It was an autocratic process, but one that made
life easy for me. And I'm sure they still have those guidelines,
a number of them in writing, and I'm sure you could obtain them.
I don't have them myself.
To a large extent, it was a personal formulation,
really, and understood because our office was a lot smaller in
those days than it is now, and I think, in many respects, less
complex. The Legislature was far less complex.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

The whole world was.

MR. POST: The whole world was, but this money business,
I think, has complicated things tremendously. You know, in those
days, a Senator could run and get elected for twelve or thirteen
thousand dollars,
tells me. Now it just isn't possible. The
game is totally different. It's not your fault.
It's a fact of
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life, but it certainly makes the whole environment entirely
different and much more difficult. For that reason, although I
never had anything to do with it, I got involved in campaign
reform when I got out of the Legislature and took a run at it
with a committee that was established for that purpose, and I
still believe the problem is the amount of money that has to be
raised by all elected officials. And now we've created another
problem in the insurance agency. And I just hate to think of the
fact that there will be the same kinds of problems related to
collecting money for that position.
You know, Jackson has been dead a long time, and we
still shouldn't be practicing that kind of democracy of having
every official elected. There's a place for elected Legislatures
and governors, and that's about enough.
I, at one time, recommended that we abolish the elected
treasurer, controller and secretary of state. And I didn't get
very far with Jess Unruh and others (LAUGHTER).
But I still
think that it makes a lot of sense. And I hate to see a
proliferation of elected officials.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
MR. POST:
speech (LAUGHTER).

Thank you for the opportunity to make my

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
good to hear you speak.
MR. POST:

Thank you, Alan.

You're welcome.

It's always

I don't get that opportunity --

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
--Right. Well, anytime you
want to, just give me a call.
I'll be glad to enjoy your-Okay.
I'm going to go next to Common Cause-- Ruth
Holton, and then to (INAUDIBLE) after that for clarification
comments he wishes to offer us for consideration.
(LAUGHTER).
MS. RUTH HOLTON:

Ruth Holton, of the Common Cause.

We appreciate this opportunity to once again express our
on the topic of the day. Since we've basically covered
"gifts and honoraria," I'll briefly address the government
employees question, and the "revolving door" question. But
first, I think, I'd like to say that we agree with the chair and
with Mr. Post that the biggest issue is campaign financing. And
these other issues are important, but nowhere near as important
as addressing the campaign financing reform issues.
op~n~ons

On the government employees issues, we, like the center
-- Steve Barrow -- firmly believe that, while staff is on the
public payroll, they may not -- and should not -- participate in
fund raising. They also should be prohibited from accepting
gifts and honoraria. And like Assemblyman Floyd, we believe that
while the staff is on the public payroll, they should be
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conducting the public's business, and not private political
business. On the question of "revolving door," which we don't
see as one of the
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
--Let me just ask, to get a
clarification -- I think what you're saying is, the broad one -that is, certainly, I agree that a person ought not, ever, on
public time do anything that isn't public committed
you know,
responsive. What about on personal time?
MS. HOLTON:

Personal time?

I think that's a different

matter
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

-- Okay --

MS. HOLTON:
But the question comes when it's personal
time, and it's voluntary, or personal time and there is
pressure that that personal time has to be given up, because one
has an interest in keeping one's job.
If it's voluntary, it's
certainly useful for the staff person to participate in the
campaign; they know what's going on, they might very well be a
friend of the Legislator. So, that's a much more difficult
question. But certainly, when it's public time, they should be
doing the public's business.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Okay, sure, go ahead.

MS. HOLTON: On the "revolving door" issue, which we
don't think is certainly the most serious ethics issue -- but
once again, because of the lack of public confidence in the
Legislature -- it's an
sue that ought to be addressed if we're
ever going to rebuild the trust in government.
We think there are basically two main problems created
by the "revolving door" phenomenon: There is the problem that
first arises before the public official leaves office and is
casting about, thinking, "Well, what should I do next?" And
then, of course, there is the problem when he or she accepts
employment that requires them to go back to either their former
agency, or their former committee, or former employer.
The question does arise:
Is there a possibility that a
regulated company might be a future employer? Does that
possibility affect the way that an agency or department head, for
example, makes determinations about that company? It very well
may not have any influence; but, the perception is certainly that
it might have influence.
Legislators, when they leave, and come back the next
session with a whole array of clients, the question then again
arises: Did they line up those clients before they left; and if
they did, were those clients treated, perhaps, more favorably,
because it was thought that possibly they would be future
clients? And once again, that may very well not have had an
influence; but, the perception is that it did.
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We would suggest tightening considerably the current
"revolving door" statutes: For legislators, adopt a one-year ban
on lobbying the Legislature; for the governor, a one-year ban on
lobbying the executive or the legislative branch; for agency and
department heads or commissioners, a one-year ban on lobbying
their own agency, department or commission; for top-level
gubernatorial staff, a one-year ban on lobbying the
administration; and for legislative committee consultants, a
one-year ban on lobbying their former committee.
Legislative staff, we think, is tricky. Our sense is
that it probably is not necessary to include more than the
top-level staff, who can be identified as holding key positions,
and certainly are seen in the Legislature, in some cases, as
having as much power as the legislators themselves. And we don't
want to unduly restrict, and come into a situation where it's
almost counter-productive, having so many rules and regulations
for every single staff person.
These "revolving door" restrictions may be stricter than
you might think necessary; but, it's important for the
Legislature, I think, to send a clear signal to the public that
it is concerned about the potential abuse of power -- and
"potential" is what we're saying here. We're not saying that it
happens all the time; but, there is the perception that it
happens. It merely adds to the general distrust of government.
And when it does happen, it hits the front pages.
The public should not have to merely trust that public
officials will exercise discretion -- which most of them do -- in
their dealings with former employees or colleagues. The public
should be assured that government officials cannot "cash in," so
to speak, on their former positions for private gain. So, we
would suggest tightening, as we have laid out, the current
"revolving door" statutes, just for clearer rules.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Okay.

Richard.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: At least one of the areas where
the "revolving door" seems to be the worst is the PUC and
regulated utilities. I don't know if the PUC has separate
regulations on that -- I don't if Charlene knows -- does the PUC
have any regulations yet -- covering that?
MS. CHARLENE SIMMONS:

I don't know.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: I remember, several years ago,
when we were concerned about utility rate increases, we found a
real "Catch-22," in the sense that so much of what they do,
frankly -- if you don't have knowledge of the industry, it makes
it really hard to regulate; and if you do have knowledge of the
industry, you're the kind of person the industry wants to hire.
And in some cases, it's that specific: if you haven't been in
the industry, at some point, you really don't know when to
evaluate whether what they're saying makes sense or not.
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MS. HOLTON: I just wanted to say that every agency is
required by the Government Code to have a statement of
incompatible activities.
I'm not familiar, specifically, with
the PUC, but I would assume that that would be included. And I
will check into that -ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: Okay.
I wonder if it's so vague
that it doesn't really mean much.
I know there's trading back
and forth -- you know, a "five on, five off" kind of a routine.
And it was troublesome, at least when we looked at it, because
that seems to be one of the areas, as well.
I'm not sure that the one year is enough, or that the
specific -- you're much more specific in your proposal than what
Steve was talking about. And I think what that overlooks is the
fact that, even though you may work in one specific policy area,
you deal with people -- be they legislator or staff -- who are
involved in many policy areas, and the relationships you develop
as a result of that can be beneficial. So, it would be
relatively easy to then hire somebody off the "Ag" committee, and
then have them go work the utilities committee, and not come
under your prohibition, which I think would be a mistake.
MS. HOLTON: Well, for staff people, that's certainly
the case. But it becomes difficult as to -- we don't want to
prohibit people from using their expertise. Clearly, they should
be able to use their expertise. And when it comes down to staff
people -- the committee consultant, say, of the "Ag" committee
has an expertise -- and if they've been in the capitol a long
time, they'll probably know a lot of people. But where is it
reasonable to draw the line? And we think that that "reasonable
line" is that committee consultants cannot come back and lobby
their own committee.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:
MS. HOLTON:

Okay.

Your --

-- One year --

-- Right

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
And again, your
administrative, legislative
was more generic? It was a
one-year ban -- ?
MS. HOLTON:
Yes. For agency and department heads and
commissioners, they cannot lobby their agency, or their
department, their commission.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: I guess I was thinking more -- I
was going back to the unitary tax bill, where the proponents had
hired the governor's director of finance to lobby the
Legislature, which I don't think would be prohibited, under
yours. But nevertheless, that was the same person who had done,
a year earlier, the estimated revenue gain or revenue loss from
such a proposal.
I find that to be a conflict of interest, just
like I find them also hiring the CEO from the Senate to do the
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same thing.
MS. HOLTON:
Yes. There are a lot of things that -- if
you looked at every individual situation -- there are a lot of
conflicts of interest. And the question is, how do you easily
draw clear lines, instead of thinking, "All right, here's an
exception; this person should fall into this -- "
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
-- Well, I guess that's why I
come down on the more general than you do. Rather than say, "You
can't work your committee, but you can work some other
committee," you ought not to be able to do it for two years
period.
MS. HOLTON:

To work any committee at all -- ?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

-- Yes --

MS. HOLTON:
-- We would probably -- if that were the
recommendation of the Committee, we would probably support that.
But our position is (INAUDIBLE) -ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:
(INAUDIBLE) if you didn't
support it, because it was too tough.
(LAUGHTER)
I mean, I
thought that -- (LAUGHTER)
problem.

MS. HOLTON:
(LAUGHTER) --

I don't think that's going to be a

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

-- (INAUDIBLE) got something

to say?
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:

No (INAUDIBLE) --

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

Richard, are you covered?
Yes.

Thanks.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Thank you. Okay. On the
honorary gifts and travel, Jim Ashford, Deputy Counsel -- are you
going to give us some kind of an overview of the existing law
?

MS. LILY SPITZ:

-- Mr. Chairman, can I -- ?

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

-- Oh, sure.

I forgot that --

sure.
MS. SPITZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.
Spitz, representing the FPPC.

Lily

I wanted to explain the gasp that you heard at the back
of the room when Mr. Floyd was testifying about an FPPC letter
that he received that stated that a state employee could spend up
to ten percent of his or her time doing political work, and that
would be okay with us. The reality is that under existing law
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any state worker cannot participate in political work on state
time; it is simply prohibited. What is true is that there is a
provision in the Political Reform Act that specifies that in the
private sector, where an employee spends up to ten percent of his
or her time on political work on the employer's time -- again,
this is private sector -- that would not have to be disclosed or
reported as a contribution to the candidate. And only under
those circumstances would the "ten percent rule", which is what
it's called, be applied to -- would create a non-contribution
kind of situation.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Well, the implication of Mr.
Floyd's statement was that that "ten percent rule" was applied by
you people in an opinion regarding the services of a state lawyer
in the private sector
MS. SPITZ:

That was the implication, yes, that we

heard -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

-- That's not accurate

?

MS. SPITZ:
That's not -- I have not seen the
letter; I can't speak to the letter. But -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
You have a copy -- ?
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
MS. SPITZ:
response on that.

I'll see if I have it --- Okay

Certainly, we'll be happy to give you a

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
MS. SPITZ:

We'll get the letter and--

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Mr. Ashford.

MR. JIM ASHFORD: Honoraria and travel expenses and
gifts -- you've asked, generally, for a statement of what the
existing law is with regard to those topics.
The Code of Ethics for legislators, and other state
officers, has a general prohibition against legislators or
employees accepting anything of value -- from other than the
state -- for services related to the legislative process. This
prohibition is qualified, however, by other provisions that allow
payment for speeches in public on legislative subjects -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
did this -- ?
MR. ASHFORD:

-- This code is where?

In the Government Code.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

And

-- The Prop. 9?

Where
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MR. ASHFORD: No.
adopted by the Legislature

This is the Code of Ethics, as

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
MR. ASHFORD:

When, roughly?

It goes back to 1960 --

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
full-time Legislature -- ?
MR. ASHFORD:

Okay.

Okay.

When we first became a

Right

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Okay.
I thought I'd just
trace it, so I can get the sense of the implications of it
MR. ASHFORD:

Yes.

The Political Reform Act has a prohibition that was
enacted by Prop. 73, which limits a legislator from accepting
honoraria in excess of $1,000 from a single source in a calendar
year; but, it excludes travel and subsistence expenses.
Now, except for expenses or per diem paid by a
governmental agency, or travel and subsistence for intra-state
travel and accommodations, or payments by an educational,
academic, or charitable organization, all of these honoraria and
reimbursements have to be reported as income, under the Political
Reform Act.
The Constitution generally prohibits a legislator from
accepting a free pass or discount from a transportation company;
acceptance is grounds for disqualification, although the house of
the Member would be the judge of that
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
A "Frequent Flyer" ticket
wouldn't violate that, because you've earned it, in some sense,
right? Have you ever been asked -- ?
MR. ASHFORD: Any program offered by a transportation
company that is not offered only to Members of the Legislature,
or to individuals because they are Members of the Legislature, is
fine -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
MR. ASHFORD:

-- Okay --

-- It's like any other plan --

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
(LAUGHTER) --

(INAUDIBLE) be sure.

MR. ASHFORD: With regard to employees, the Rules
Committee of the houses could prohibit any activities which might
(INAUDIBLE) to honoraria or reimbursement of expenses; but, I'm
not aware of any such policies. With regard to gifts, the Code
of Ethics --
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
There currently are not
policies (INAUDIBLE) or staff employees, and whether they can
accept honoraria, travel, or gifts -- ?
MR. ASHFORD:

-- I'm not aware of any--

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
will be changed, I hope.

-- Okay.

All right.

That

MR. ASHFORD: The Code of Ethics subjects gifts to the
same prohibitions as honoraria; but, there's a specific exemption
for campaign contributions, which are not "gifts," under the Code
of Ethics. The "Political Reform Act of '74" requires the
disclosure of certain gifts -- the Code of Ethics subjects gifts
to the same prohibitions as honoraria.
It says that you can't
take gifts for doing state service . But it says that a campaign
contribution is not a "gift" for these purposes. It doesn't say
that a campaign contribution is payment or compensation to the
Member.
It just (INAUDIBLE) that out. Campaign contributions
are regulated in another place.
The Political Reform Act requires the disclosure of
certain gifts to legislators and designated employees. And it
defines gifts broadly, under the Act, to include any payments
that aren't supported by consideration, including rebates and
discounts that aren't made to the public, generally. There are
exceptions: information material; gifts from relatives; and so
forth.
It should be noted here, for the Committee's
consideration, that Proposition 73's single-source limitation on
honoraria includes a reference to gifts, as well. As enacted,
the provision of Section 85400 of the Government Code is arguably
subject to two, or maybe three, constructions: One construction
would be that gifts are subject to a $1,000 limit, and that
honoraria are subject to a $1,000 limit. A second possible
construction is that a combination of gifts and honoraria is
subject to the limit. And there is a third construction that
there is a flat prohibition against gifts. There aren't any
regulations on this subject, to my knowledge, yet; but, I
understand that FPPC is considering a regulation that would adopt
the first view above -- that is, a separate limit for gifts and
for honoraria.
It's also my understanding that the instructions
that are currently provided for filling out statements of
economic interest throw gifts and honoraria together for this
purpose. As you can see, there's a little confusion here, which
the committee may wish to address.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Okay. Questions? Comments?
Anyone else here wish to speak about the honoraria, gifts and
travel question of the agenda? We've got an O'Connell bill, a
Lempert bill, a Peace bill, which we will consider as part of our
agenda. And the Burton matter has been discussed, the Condit
rule has been mentioned by Mr. Floyd, in passing, and the Floyd
rule we've had discuss
of. Anyone else wish to speak, at this
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point?
Okay.
-- Jim, do you
have an existing law
off, because I'm
quite sure I authored the
,
provides, as
someone said, that no one
lowed on government time to do
anything other than public interest work, and it provides, in
terms of a freedom of speech -- which I think is precious to any
person in California -- that on our own time, we're free to do
whatever we want. And that's true of school employees, and true
of government employees, at all levels, as well.
Mr. Lempert, did you want to make a presentation, or
comment, about your AB 942?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER TED LEMPERT:

Yes.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: We came to that point, and have
gone past it. I'll go back to it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: Thank you very much, Mr.
Chairman. I just wanted to say, starting off, that I have spent
a lot of time listening to people's concerns and suggestions on
this issue, and was especially paying attention to the witnesses
who were speaking about the honoraria question. And what we have
proposed, in AB 942, is a complete ban on honoraria, and very
strict restrictions on the receipt of gifts by legislators.
I understand and sympathize with a lot of the comments
that were made earlier, about how there are legitimate speeches,
and speeches where there is no actual -- or, really, even
perceived -- conflict, and worthwhile speeches that are given.
And the argument is made, "Why can't people receive reimbursement
and payment for those?" It's a question that I've been
struggling with over
putting together this
bill. But the problem is that
with a failure to write
language that can separate
versus the illegitimate
honoraria payments.
limit, or percentage
of salary figure, or any
wording -- every time we
try something 1
that, it
remove the problem that
the honoraria system has come to -sometimes, there is
either an actual or a perceived
, based on the receipt of
honoraria. Whether
's just showing
at an event and
receiving a payment for appearing at an event and not even giving
a speech, or giving a speech to a group that has a direct
interest in legislation, and the
ipating, or
introducing, a bill at a time near the receipt of that honoraria
payment.
So, after spending
hours working with Common
Cause and FPPC, and meeting with numerous Members of this House
on this issue, we felt that the best proposal was a complete ban
on honoraria, because it's almost impossible to make the
distinction between the legitimate and illegitimate, in any kind
of piece of legislation. And that
since been talked about,
many times earl
There
perception problem with
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the honoraria, and we do need to deal with it -- that the ban is
the way to go.
The other part of the bill deals with gifts. Again, we
try to make as "blanket" a rule as possible, because once you
start writing a lot of exceptions, you get into a great deal of
trouble. So, we have the $120 figure there, which is based on
the fact that lobbyists can take you to meals for $10 a month.
So, we take that through the year, which is $120, and make that
the strict limit, and limit any gifts to $120 and no more.
Just a couple quick comments in response to some of the
things mentioned today, under our honoraria bill: We do allow -we make a distinction between spoken word and written word.
Assemblyman Roes mentioned the (INAUDIBLE) piece -- we do allow
payments for published works and books and (INAUDIBLE) pieces, as
long as it's a general market rate. We also allow for expenses
associated with participation in conferences or events. So,
we're not stopping people from participating in these things;
they can be reimbursed for their expenses, but they cannot
received payment for the actual speech. And those were a couple
of problems that were mentioned earlier. Also, you'll note in
the language that we handed out, that teaching would be allowed,
as long as it's at an accredited teaching institution. There are
a lot of specifics that you see in the two pages there, and I'd
be happy to answer questions.
I guess, in closing, I'd just emphasize that -- as I
know Dick Floyd mentioned -- that people know right from wrong,
and we get caught up in a lot of these reform proposals.
I
understand exactly what he's saying; but, there's a reason we
have rules and regulations and guidelines, because that does
affect people's behavior. And I know, in working on these rules,
that it really makes you think about what you're doing. So, I
think that it's essential that this House does adopt some
stricter regulations and guidelines, so people know what
practices they should be following. And that's why we've
proposed these bills.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Okay. Questions or comments of
the Committee? Then, back to Jim Ashford, on the Government
Employees briefing (INAUDIBLE) law -MR. ASHFORD:
Briefly, state employees, other than
legislative employees, are prohibited from engaging in activities
not compatible with their government employment. Each agency has
to determine which activities are inconsistent, or incompatible,
or in conflict with the duties of the office. And some of these
activities are specified by statute. For instance, you're not
permitted to use state facilities for private use; you can't take
money from a source other than the state for doing the state's
business; and you can't take gifts from persons who do business
with your agency.
There's also a provision in the Public Contract Code,
which is not specifically mentioned in your written analysis, and
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state employee simply uses state facilities or state moneys or
whatever for personal benefit. The issue also rises in the
context, however, of use of state staff and state services for
political purposes, which is the more controversial area, both in
terms of rule setting and in terms of the public's interest in
the issue.
The concept behind AB 2220 is relatively simply, and
that is that under current law, all we have is a criminal
penalty.
It's a penal code section which prohibits the use of
state resources for personal and political purposes, which really
was set out for the embezzlement situation, and there is no civil
remedy. Now, this results in two flaws from a law enforcement
perspective. One is that if in the context where there is a case
that ought to be prosecuted and has to be prosecuted criminally,
there is a very tough standard of proof, and there are other
burdens imposed on law enforcement and prosecutorial officials in
making that case out. Specifically, you need to prove criminal
intent and specific intent, which in the context of these kinds
of violations is very difficult to prove. The more general
problem, however, is the one that prosecutors are put in a bind
of either allowing minor violations to occur and go without any
remedy whatsoever or really bringing a criminal prosecution for
something that may well not merit the overly harsh penalties
associated with a criminal prosecution, one of which is
disqualification from office. So that most of these cases,
unless they're truly egregious, either go unbrought, or if they
are brought they're very difficult to make the case stick, and as
a result there's just simply no middle ground.
So what this bill
would do is create a civil penalty. It would keep control over
the prosecution of those actions with law enforcement officials,
that is, with the district attorneys, the city attorney, elected
city attorney in the large cities, or with the Attorney General's
office, and it would set forth sufficient fines and penalties so
that violations will be deterred and if they occur can be dealt
with in a reasonable manner.
The bill that you may have before you at the present
stage is simply a skeleton of the bill which sets forth the civil
penalty and says that it's an unlawful activity creating a civil
offense. And that bill is currently being fleshed out with a
series of amendments that will be in print shortly to clarify
that there is a diminimus exception to the violation and that is
that the incidental use of public resources for personal and
political purposes is not a violation per se and to try and flesh
out precisely the confines of the violation in the context of the
political arena where you do have to take into account both the
political speech rights and the nature of the political
activities that are current in the Legislator's activities or
those of any state employee.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Thank you.
Lucy.

Okay.

Questions?

Comments?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: I do have just another one that
hasn't been brought up, and I think we're going to have to face
up to it one way or another, decide we're not going to do it or
at least get it on the books, is the level of salary. We keep
talking about the honoraria and whether we're going to ban it or
going to reduce it, are we going to limit it or are we going to
-- all these things, and clearly the most clear cut is to
increase the salary.
Now, we all know the political problems there.
But it
seems to me that if we're going to have an out and out ban, you
would almost have to -- don't take it personally -- I don't
accept it personally because I don't get that, and it's just
easier to have them give it to charity, so I won't have to bother
with it. But for a lot of people it's very important in the
sense that they have very heavy responsibilities, financial
responsibilities. There certainly is a part of the job, that
Mike Roos referred to, I think it's very important that we do get
out in public, even if it isn't exactly talking about something
that we are directly related with in terms of a bill or
something. But I think as public officials we have a
responsibility to do a lot of speaking, and in some cases it may
be very difficult to do that without some kind of payment.
I
don't want to judge that, but it seems to me we should come up
with some kind of plan -- we don't have a specific bill or
anything like that. How we would try to trigger that, and have
the ban on honoraria and gifts, or at least honoraria, triggered
by a certain -- if we get an independent commission or one of
these things that we talk about -- because what Congress ran
into, the trouble they had, is that their salary raise -- the
honoraria banning was not directly tied into the raising of the
level of the salary.
I think that is where part of their
problems came from.
I don't know whether something like that
would be worth our setting out as our goal for us. It's not going
to be done this late in the legislative year and probably not
next year, but it's something we should set out as a goal, it
seems to me.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

Mr. Katz.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ: I think I agree with Lucy, but
for some different reasons.
I think, and I know-- and I'm
probably speaking for everyone who's sitting here at least -none of us, when we ran for office, had any idea what an
honorarium was.
I mean, we sort of knew what the salary was -and at least in Ted's case didn't give any thought to retirement
at all at that point, when running for office -- and so I guess
what I'm saying is that we knew what it was when we got in, and
while it's true situations change -- and I guess the one thing
that makes this job different than any other job is the 5% cost
of living that we vote for the next group that comes in, which
tends to be most of us --but it's after an election, which I
think is a healthy break. There is nothing built in. There's no
other job around it in the world, that I'm aware of, where there
are not tenure increases, seniority increases, merit increases,
built into the system, which makes it -- which is part of what
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makes it so difficult, because as people get older and their
responsibilities change, normally you have ways to build that in.
You can go in and ask for a raise or you can go look somewhere
else for a job.
It's a long comment, but I guess I think we try
and look at swapping the honorarium for the salary increase as
way of giving up something to get something to try -- to me it's
politically doable.
I've gotten to the point where I think we ought to just
get rid of the honorariums and then try to make the merits on the
salary at a different point, that we ought to just dump the
honorarium and move on, I guess.

•

The interesting thing,
numbers, my guess is 75% of the
by a half a dozen people out of
leaves us 114 votes for us, out
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::

probably, and I haven't seen the
honoraria are probably collected
a hundred and twenty, which still
of that.
Okay.

That final section in today's agenda is lobbying
regulations. Mr. Ashford, a briefing here.
MR. ASHFORD: Very briefly. As you know, the Political
Reform Act governs lobbyists by imposing comprehensive
regulations on lobbying activities, and these are attempts to
influence legislative or administrative decision-making in state
government. The nature and extent of permissible lobbying
activities are covered by statutory regulations and detailed
provisions made for accounting for contributions and expenditures
-- made to accomplish or influence legislative or administrative
action.

I

An individual lobbyist has to prepare a certification
for filing with the Secretary of State as a part of a required
registration of a lobbing firm or lobbyist employer with which he
or she is associated. Lobbyists, lobbying firms, and lobbyist
employers are also required to file periodical disclosure reports
containing information to keep -- and also are required to keep
detailed records concerning their expenditures. The Political
Reform Act specifies certain unethical practices by lobbyists or
lobbying firms, and there are also prohibitions on gifts by
persons to officials or employees of more than ten dollars a
month. Their provisions are enforced primarily by the
commission, although the Attorney General or district attorneys
may also enforce criminal provisions with respect to lobbyists.
There are also civil penalties and injunctive relief available.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
Proposals?

Okay.

We have one by Lempert, one by (inaudible).

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: AB 17 is relatively
straightforward.
It prohibits Members of the Legislature from
lobbying or registering as a lobbyist for a period of one year
after leaving the Legislature. Former directors of state
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departments would also be prohibited for one year, and I think
that other executive branch members should be included in that as
well -- and Byron Sher's bill deals with that part -- which is
similar to what we have, and I think their definition of
executive branch members is one that should be considered. Also
members of state boards or commissions would be prohibited from
lobbying the board or commission of which he or she was a member,
so while the ban on lobbying for legislators and executive branch
members would be an outright prohibition on lobbying, members of
boards and commissions would be the board or commission on which
they were a member.
There has been some form of revolving door legislation
in twenty-five states, and we know that Congress has attempted
that in the past couple of years, and again dealing with a
specific problem. But in this case, even more so a perception
problem of cashing in immediately on public service at a time
when the contacts are greatest, which are former colleagues, so
we feel this is an important bill and one that we hope the
committee considers and has a recommendation on.
Thank you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Okay. Over here, we have Mr.
Sher, AB 600, to present something on it.
I'm told we have
Senator Marks, that Tim Hodson is here.
Good.
MR. HODSON: Mr. Chairman, my name is Tim Hodson.
I
work for Senator Marks. We delivered a letter from Senator Marks
outlining his position on SB 1314 in the general issue of
revolving door.
I won't try to duplicate that letter. Let me
just summarize it by saying that in the Senator's opinion the
current state law is far too narrow.
It allows activities which
in Massachusetts, Wisconsin, Florida, and other states would be
illegal.
His current bill, SB 1314 is based on SB 1820, which
failed in the Senate Rules Committee last year.
It would create
a twelve-month cooling off period during which a former state
official could not lobby the state on any matter, which under his
or her duties or the responsibilities of their agency, during the
year before their departure from state service.
It would also
ban legislators and legislative staff from becoming lobbyists for
twelve months after leaving the Legislature.
It does have a bit
of a grandfather clause which would exempt officials who entered
state service prior to January 1, 1984. That provision was put
in to try to make it very clear that the intent of this bill was
not to bash this governor or any particular individual in this
administration, and it was an attempt to grandfather it and allow
those people who entered this administration under the old rules
to continue through.
I'd be happy to answer any questions.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:: Okay. Questions?
Mr. Peace was here and made a quick exit.

Comments?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Well, I have AB 287.
If you
have any questions about it, I'd be happy to respond.
The theory
behind the bill, as you know, you've had these various
discussions about what we were going to do about honorariums, the
principal disagreements amongst members, being a feeling that if
we were to ban honorariums that it would represent a
discriminatory practice because some members have other business
and such and the ability to earn money outside of the honorarium
arena and others don't. That leaves us with -- if, in fact, we
are to recognize that as an inequity and as a result feel we need
to leave honorariums in the arena in some way, this bill is half
of what I would envision as an appropriate change in conduct.
Part of the current problem, as I see it, is that the record is
not available in terms of those honorariums until the end of the
year.
I think the press and the public do have a right to know
at the time at which we are conducting business if, in fact,
there is the potential of a conflict of interest. And I think,
from the Members' perspective, in the long run they'll be better
protected by having announced to a prior revelation of that
relationship, so that everybody knows going in what the dynamic
is. As you know, I also have another related bill that would
require that Members abstain from voting in certain standards
from which they've received over $500. While any amount is
inherently arbitrary in terms of choosing a cut off line, I can
only say that I've made a reasonable effort to arrive at a figure
that I felt was an amount to which when one had received up to
that $500, we felt that it would be unreasonable for a person to
really expect that a Member had been influenced by that amount of
money.
I realize that you're inherently faced with the notion
that $501 is only a dollar more than $500, but you have to come
up with some number somewhere and that seemed to be as reasonable
as any.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS::
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KATZ:

Questions?

Comments?

Richard.

(Inaudible).

ASSEMBLY MEMBER PEACE: Yeah.
I kind of go back and
forth, to be honest with you.
I'm kind of ambivalent about it.
I think I'm sensitive in particular with respect to Members who
have been here for some time and don't have any other outside
business involvement.
It's extraordinarily difficult to suddenly
change -- it could really mean changing an income level for some
Members, downward, and quite immediately and dramatically, and I
could agree that might be somewhat of a problem.
Also, there's a legitimate positive -- we've all gone to
conventions of one group or another and had honorariums involved
with respect to that.
I know that I've had very positive
experiences in terms of learning more subject matter in terms of
going, and I'd like to think that people that I've spoken to and
groups that I've spoken to have had some benefit in terms of
that.
But I'll be frank with you, I'm not going to go out of
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town, be away from my family another day, for a group or
something like that. There's probably something lost in terms of
that, and there's also some element of -- and this is something
that always comes up with concern to the Speaker's large
honorarium list -- and that is the fact that some of us are
better speakers than others, are better at that, and the Speaker
is one of those people, and we have to give some recognition to
that.
I'd like to think that perhaps this is a way of
recognizing that and putting some reasonable limits on it.
I think if -- best case scenario -- if we were looking
at the whole package of compensation and everything, I'd like to
get rid of the honorariums altogether, simply from the
perspective of the appearance's sake. But it probably is not
unreasonable to expect that that be part of a larger compensation
change that would involve a more competitive rate, if you will,
in terms of salary.
In the meantime, I think the best we can do
-- and I think it means a lot -- it's not an empty gesture to
have this regular disclosure, and I think -- a Member's going to
think twice about that whole -- and even a member of the third
house is going to think twice, to the extent that the third house
may be consciously engaged in providing honorarium opportunities
at opportune moments, if you will, as legislation moves through
the House.
It's going to certainly make them think twice about
creating a situation in which maybe they have -- they have a
Member whom they don't know -- they know that that Member has to
disclose that honorarium and such.
I mean, it may actually have
the potential of people politically moving the votes in the
opposite direction of where they're getting honorariums from, so
I think to this extent you may see some disciplining of the third
house to the extent that many of the abuses of that process.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKERS:

(Inaudible).
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HEARING OF
THE ASSEMBLY SELECT COMMITTEE ON ETHICS
CHAIRED BY:
THE HONORABLE JOHN VASCONCELLOS
MEMBER OF THE ASSEMBLY
STATE CAPITOL, ROOM 317
MAY 24, 1989
CHAIRMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS: Our hearing today completes
the third phase of our Assembly Select Committee on Ethics' work.
We began by writing and adopting a Charter and work plan
defining our goals and specifying how we intended to reach them.
Our process has been open and non-partisan, carefully adhering to
the public commitments we made in our Charter.
In our second phase we took testimony from citizens,
public officials, and group representatives and surveyed our
membership to find out their concerns about governmental ethics.
We brought experts from around the country to challenge and
stimulate our thinking.
These hearings allowed us to develop our
agenda of concerns.
Our most recent hearings have focused on specific areas
of concern and the reform proposals advocated by Members and
public interest groups. Committee staff has prepared detailed
analyses of the associated issues and problems and has provided
committee members with comprehensive briefing books. Legislative
Counsel has provided "plain English" summaries of existing law,
which we will organize into a handbook for Members and staff.
Our committee has requested that two standing committees
-- Elections, Reapportionment and Constitutional Amendments and
Public Safety -- hold 12 bills in our subject areas pending the
introduction of our committee proposal. The Assembly has granted
each of these bills a rule waiver from procedural deadlines,
allowing the bills to be heard later this year. After today each
of the authors will have presented their proposal to our
committee.
I appreciate the constructive contribution which they
have made to our committee's work and their cooperation in
facilitating our work process.
Our next major task will be to draft a committee
proposal for presentation to the Assembly.
I encourage our
committee members to evaluate the information which they have
received and to begin to formulate priorities and proposals. We
will meet soon to begin deliberations regarding the contents of
our draft proposal, and we hope to begin our June 21 hearing with
a draft, working proposal.
In the meantime the entire
Legislature will also be preoccupied with another extremely
important ethical question--how the state defines its priorities
in our budget. Assembly Member Lucy Killea has formed a District
Ethics Advisory Committee composed of 20 constituents with
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diverse backgrounds. The committee has been discussing many of
the issues which we have considered here, particularly
concentrating on writing an advisory code of conduct. Ms. Killea
will describe that effort and product for us today.
Several of today's witnesses are actively engaged in
ethics efforts in other arenas. Tom Flood was recently appointed
Pacific Bell's first ombudsman. Pacific Bell has made ethics a
top priority in its 1989 business plan. The company has created
an ethics advisory panel, is re-writing its code of conduct, and
is requiring management courses in ethics. As ombudsman, Mr.
Flood is responsible for listening to and resolving ethical
problems which the company's employees may bring forward.
Bill Maier is Executive Director of the Bay Area Ethics
Consortium, which is affiliated with the Center for Ethics and
Social Policy at the Graduate Theological Union in Berkeley. He
is going to discuss ethics education with us today.
Welcome.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LUCY KILLEA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I'll be joined by my administrative assistant from the district.
When I first joined this committee, I think I realized that there
were certain responsibilities but there are also certain risks in
what we're doing. The first risk is that we may accomplish
nothing, and the members of the committee will be blamed for any
dropping of the ball on political reform.
Certainly, there's another risk, that we will revert to
a partisan agenda, which so far as I know we haven't, and we
would push forward a program that would lack the consensus we
need to gain, not only the support of our colleagues, but also
the public. And finally, we took the risk of becoming rather
obscure and irrelevant and talking about weighty intellectual
issues and not coming up with anything that really adds to the
understanding of these important matters that we're dealing with.
So I accepted these risks knowing that every step we took could
be held up to ridicule by the cynical and suspicion by the press
and from the public at large. So these are some of the things I
think we're facing.
It's not just starting with a clean slate, as far as
we're concerned, but nevertheless, I think it's a way to keep an
ear to the public and know what the constituents would like to
see in this committee, and that's why I set up the district
committee.
I've asked this committee-- they've drawn me in regular
meetings -- we had a lot of discussion both on general issues as
well as some of the legislation-- and I've asked them to hold me
accountable, and I think they're going to be doing that -- just
on what we come up with because they're very interested in what
we're doing and what we're coming up to. So if any of you feel
that nobody's paying attention, that's not quite true.
In a
sense, they have got sort of a fire lit under my chair, and it's
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getting hotter and hotter. So if we don't come up with
something, I'm going to have rather a hot seat as far as that's
concerned. But I think we can, and I do want to recommend one
approach to you that I think we need in this group -- in that we
felt it was important that we set forth certain positive
behavioral standards for ourselves, and that's what we needed to
do.
So, Chris Crotty, my administrative assistant, has a bit of
information about the committee and how it worked on this
particular code of conduct that we have proposed.
Chris, you want to take over?
MR. CHRIS CROTTY: Thank you.
I was Assemblywoman
Killea's staff person to the Advisory Committee in San Diego.
It
was comprised of San Diegans from various fields of service -law, health, education, media, sports, civil service, and other
backgrounds. The individuals, as Assemblywoman Killea stated,
took their charge very seriously and looked at each piece of
legislation that's before the committee currently, and in
addition, came up with some other ideas. Some of the legislative
recommendations that they made were to support a complete ban on
honoraria and gifts, to support a one year limit for former
legislators and administrators before they could return to lobby
before the Assembly, to support the creation of an independent
counsel or prosecutor, and to oppose partisan efforts at
political reform.
As stated, the committee had some suggestions that were
not contained in the legislative proposals that you're
considering. One was that elected officials should attempt to
find ways to cast more light on the public deliberations that
they take. Two suggestions that the committee had were to
encouraged television and other broadcast coverage of legislative
sessions and to make the Brown Act or equivalent provisions
thereof applicable to the Legislature.
The other recommendations that we had was that there be
more available leadership on ethical matters in the Legislature
and that there were two ways that this could be accomplished. We
felt one was to create a position within the Legislature that
would be a role model -- would be responsible for espousing
ethics and credibility. The position would be one of honor and
it would exemplify a code of conduct for all legislators and
their staffs. Secondly, we felt that the Legislature ought to
recognize an independent overseer or a watchdog of the
Legislature whose observations, both critical and laudatory,
could be publicized in various means through the media,
especially through the media.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Correct that which is not
laudatory? They were bent in that direction?
MR. CROTTY: Sure. Hopefully, there would be balancing.
It was also felt that in the committee there are various
professions represented, and most of the professions represented
have ethics codes, or codes of conduct. We examined the codes of
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conduct for teachers, for realtors, for health care providers,
and we took a shot at writing a short aspirational code for the
Assembly.
It was felt that the code should express our
aspirations for good conduct and that matters of outright illegal
behavior should be handled separately in the criminal codes.
Three categories of conduct that were identified were
unlawful behavior, unethical conduct, and beneficial conduct, and
we thought that those three should be set apart and distinguished
so that individuals more clearly understand not only the code of
conduct -- that things were unethical -- but if they were not
illegal that didn't make them ethical. We believe that an ethics
code ought to do more than articulate minimum legal standards and
enforceable rules, and that a statewide ethics code could express
moral values and political ideals, such as selfless public
service, honor, duty, justice, respect, and personal integrity.
In 1980, Congress passed a public law which provided for
a public display of a code of ethics or public service. That's
posted in public buildings. We felt that the California
Legislature should consider a similar measure and you should have
in front of you a mock-up of what we believe is an understandable
and enforceable code of ethics.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

That's this right here?

MR. CROTTY: Yes, so if you'd permit me to briefly go
through it, it states that the Assembly of the State of
California, in order to maintain the integrity of representative
government and to sustain the confidence of citizens in their
representatives, hereby establishes the following code of ethics
that shall apply to all Members:
One, we will lead by example as well as by law.
legislate is as important as what we legislate.
Two, we will act honestly and fairly.
starts with us.

How we

Ethical conduct

Three, we will put the public's interest ahead of our
own personal advancement.
Four, we will listen to those citizens who speak out,
and we will seek out those citizens who don't know how to speak
out.
Five, we will treat all with courtesy and civility.
Six, we accept our roles as leaders, and will work to
know the difference between following public opinion and leading
in the pursuit of public good.
Seven, we will deliberate issues fully and openly in a
manner that sustains the public trust. We will make no private
promises that imperil this trust.
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Eight, we will not mislead others about the opinions we
form.
Nine, we will conduct our private lives in ways that
will not reflect disfavorably on our roles as legislators.
Ten, we will always remember that the power of our
office is given to us in trust and only for the period of time
for which we are elected to serve.
To put these principles into action we acknowledge a
difference between unlawful behavior, unethical behavior, and
exemplary behavior. While we will prohibit the unlawful, we will
seek the ethical and strive for the exemplary.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Thank you. We will receive your
report and your proposed code of ethics. We will make that part
of our committee's discussions when we get into our own
deliberations.
Tom Flood, Pacific Bell ombudsman.
MR. TOM FLOOD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I am the
company ombudsman.
I didn't know how to say that a few months
ago, but we've been working on the ethics strategy in my office
as part of an overall company strategy on ethics. My job is an
outgrowth of the unfortunate incidences that have happened in the
last couple of years, most notably, the sales practices where we
had been selling products to customers in an unethical way. And
it caused a great deal of introspection on the company's part
because we had always internalized the fact that we believed
ourselves to be an ethical company, and it was very distressing
to the company to have the incidents happen that did.
As a result we did a great deal of study, not unlike
what I think you're going through here, and decided that with the
help of the CPUC's oversight committee, called CMAC, with the
help of the Berkeley Ethics Institute, we -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Which was the first one?

MR. FLOOD: Consumer Marketing Oversight Committee,
which was part of a committee that was co-chaired by the CPUC and
Pacific Bell to look at what kinds of things might prohibit
future incidents like these sales practices.
In any case, we looked at the recommendations of the
CMAC committee, as well as the Roundtable report that I see on
the bench that Kirk Hanson put together within the last couple of
years. We studied that and took a look at what other companies
are doing to reinforce ethical behavior, and out of all our study
it became clear to us that we needed an overall strategic
direction emphasizing ethics, part of which, as I said, is my
ombudsman's position.
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MR. WILLIAM MAIER: I'd like to thank the chairman, the
committee and the staff, for requesting us to appear here today
and to talk about the education process. The Bay Area Ethics
Consortium is a unique organization because it's composed of
people from business, academics, religious communities, labor and
local governments, so it really represents a broad cross-section
of our society and it's made up of some key people in the fields
of ethics, policy, and education.
Tom mentioned Kirk Hanson and his involvement with the
Business Roundtable. Kirk is a member of the Bay Area Ethics
Consortium and helped to found it. Three other key consultants
who work for the Business Roundtable in compiling this report,
which you see in front of you, Charles McCoy, Fred Twining, and
Manuel Vascollas, are also key consultants to the Roundtable in
preparing this report.
I might also mention that the consortium will be making
a presentation to the California Business Roundtable in July,
staring with this report, and bringing it up to date in terms of
what is happening in corporate ethics and how to improve the
situation. So just from the standpoint of trying to establish
some credibility, hopefully with you, that we had experience in
the field of ethics. I realize there's a difference between the
business community and government in terms of organization and
purpose and other functions, but when you talk about the process
of education, I do feel that there's a cross-over. And what I'd
like to share with you very briefly are the things that the
people in the consortium have learned in the process of working
with people in large organizations and educating people in the
field of ethics, and responsibility.
I might add that what I'm going to cover very briefly is
contained in this summary in the first introductory pages of this
report, but I'll try to add some value to what I'm going to say.
First of all, I think it's clear that you need the commitment of
your leadership in the Assembly if you're going to begin this
education process. In the corporation, which is a very
hierarchical organization, commitment is easy to get. When the
chairman of the board says, "This is what we're going to do," we
do it. It's much more difficult to get that in the Legislature.
You have a more flat organization, but I urge you, for leaders
like the chairman of this committee and other respected leaders
in the Legislature, to take the initiative and become personally
involved.
Some companies that we have worked with, such as Syntex,
for example, a corporation which, as you know, is a
pharmaceutical corporation in the Bay Area, Hans Wolfe, who is
the chairman of the board, personally conducts ethics training
for the middle management people of that company. He personally
prepared case studies, involves himself in discussions first
hand. There's a lot of give and take. He understands where his
people are coming from; they understand where he's coming from.
So I think leadership is a key process.
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At McDonnell Douglas Corporation, Sandy McDonnell,
chairman of the board, was personally involved in instituting
their ethics program and saw to it that it was a comprehensive
program throughout the corporation.

•

Secondly, clarity about expectations of your program is
important throughout the organization. The code of ethics, I
think, is important, and I think the testimony that we heard
previously is a good start on the code of ethics, but I think
also we're rule-bound and law-bound, and that what you are really
after is trying to build trust and understanding of what is fair
and what is in the public interest. And that only is going to
come through -- a clarity of your expectations and a
comprehensive training program, which I'll discuss in a minute .
In terms of training or educating your people on ethics,
begin to understand their personal values and where they're
coming from and how important that is in terms of making policy
decisions. That is the way that your program will evolve.
It's
incredible, in terms of the work that we've done in
organizations, how people assume we all have the same values and
same beliefs, and that is not true.
It takes a period of time to
really get to know what people's beliefs and values are and how
they emerge in the policy-making process, and that can be done
only through some very intense training.
I want to commend you on the approach that you've taken
so far by interviewing your peers and getting their input on
their concerns and expectations.
I think that's a good start.
I
would hope that you would continue that kind of in-depth process.
Fourthly, I think that the development of internal
search within the Legislature or the staff is very critical.
Outside consultants can be important and probably will need to be
used at the onset of your course to give you the benefit of their
experience, but you need to develop your own resources, which can
handle ethical questions and dilemma.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BILL LANCASTER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Chairman.

Bill?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: What you're saying, in
effect, is "Let us not go to the outside world. Let us do our
own thing."
MR. MAIER:

I'm saying that I think outside consultants

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
I know.
I understand,
but see, there's always the great trend to go to a special
prosecutor, to go to the Fair Political Practices Commission, to
go to the Attorney General, to go to this guy, that guy. What
you're really saying is we should be the master of our own house,
as far as our conduct is concerned.
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MR. MAIER: Yes, I am. I think it's the proverb of
feeding a hungry man. If I give him a fish, I feed him for
today. If I teach him how to fish, I've taught him how to feed
himself for life, and I think that is what you want to really
think about doing, so yes, I'd support that.
Fifthly, I'd recommend that you take your code of ethics
or code of aspirations that you develop and take it to the
public. It's a privilege for me to be here today to talk with
all of you and to discuss this, but I think, once you decide what
it is you're about and what your training and education is about,
I think it would be a tremendous gesture for you to go throughout
the state and meet with people publicly and involve them in some
way with your code of ethics and your education process.
I read your comments, Mr. Chairman, about the cynicism
and apathy of the public regarding the Legislature, and I think
if you want to revitalize the sense of democracy that exists, or
the lack of it that exists out there, I think reaching out to the
public is key. One of the previous witnesses here talked about
the media and involving them. I think you might get some
interesting input as to what the public thinks your code of
ethics should be. At least they will feel they've had a hearing
and a say in that process.
Along with that, I'd like to say that the notion of what
is the common good today in our society, I think, should become
an important part of your education process, not just rules, not
just procedures, not just what is legal or illegal, but what is
the common good that exists today. People begin to identify
their infrastructure, their schools, their highways, as part of
that common good, but when we get into the political realm or the
social realm, or the value realm, I think we begin to come apart
very fast.
As you're probably aware, the California Council on
Humanities has issued a grant this year which they're offering to
various constituencies to develop proposals to help them define
that common good. I'd recommend that you stay close to what
those developments are and what the notions are that rise up out
of the common good and what is the Legislature's responsibility
as far as the common good is concerned.
Lastly, I'd like to say that, when all is said and done,
and you've had a code of ethics developed and you've decided on
some sort of training and education program, that probably you're
going to need to consider some structural reform because more and
more people in the corporate world are coming to the realization
that oftentimes it is the way we are organized and structured
that creates ethical problems, and I'm talking specifically about
salaries. I'm talking about honorariums and things that may need
to be changed that are basic to the Legislature before you can
correct certain problems, and what -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

What kind of structural changes?

Page 220
MR. MAIER: In corporations today, many corporations
range from very hierarchical, ten or fifteen layers of
management, supervision, and they're really looking at that and
seeing if they really want to create participatory management and
involvement -- they've got to make that organization flatter.
They've got to reduce the levels. They've got to change the
structure so that people can really feel a part of that. That's
the kind of structural change I'm talking about.
For you, I'm talking specifically about things such as
salaries, so that people aren't dependent on honorariums.
I'm
talking about things of that nature.

•

Finally, I guess I would say, too, that the process that
you're going to undertake is not a short-term one. When I worked
at Pacific Bell, we were part of a culture change process
that people said might take three or four years at the very best.
I think it's going to take probably at least that long, if not
longer, to change the culture of an organization .
There was a meeting at Harvard University in December
where they just received a $30 million grant to develop an ethics
program in their business school. They called in constituents
from all the universities -- major universities -- across the
country to talk about how to integrate ethics in the business
curriculum. Dean McArthur had this to say: He said it will take
at least a generation of work to implement the changes in the
school's research, course development, and professional
development activities that are necessary to establish a
curriculum and faculty-wide foundation for ethics teaching and
learning. He said he hopes in the next ten or fifteen years to
get a very large part of the 117 faculty to deal comfortably with
issues involving ethics and values.
I know you don't have ten or fifteen years, but the
point is that this is a long-term effort, and it's got to be an
ongoing one.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
MR. MAIER:
you very much.

Okay.

That's what I would share with you.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Thank

Thank you.

Mr. Elder, Lempert, both on that matter here right now.
(inaudible).
MR. JIM ASHFORD: Very briefly, Mr. Chairman, the
existing adjudicatory structure in the Legislature for assessing
potential violations of the code of ethics about which we've
spoken in previous meetings is the Joint Ethics Committee. That
committee is created both in statute and the Joint Rules, and
it's authorized to investigate and make findings concerning
violations of the code of ethics, and this is the extent of its
jurisdiction.
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It does not investigate ethics generally or matters
relating to campaigns or other matters. It's a specific
statutory authority. These investigations can be conducted
either on complaint of any person addressed to the committee or
on the committee's own motion. When that committee initially
begins to look at a complaint, they can dismiss it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Just a second.
your place in the agenda (inaudible).
ASSEMBLY MEMBER DAVE ELDER:
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Dave, we came to

Okay.

Your presentation.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER: I have a bill, AB 6, Mr.
Chairman. Three years ago or more I introduced a bill to call
for this in the Assembly. The bill was never referred from the
Rules Committee anywhere. It was not heard in the Rules
Committee.
This is great progress for us, of course, a chance to
talk about the bill. We don't want to be cocky about our success
here, the fact that the bill's getting some notoriety.
Basically, what AB 6 would authorize is for the FPPC to
develop and make available to elected officials and candidates a
three videotape course dealing with ethics and conflict of
interest. This was initially an idea that occurred to me after
viewing the same kind of presentation prepared for realtors in
California. I might suggest that the committee might want to
view that at some point, if you haven't. It's rather
interesting.
The commission, to cover its costs, would also be
authorized to charge a fee for those viewing the tapes, and as a
result of discussions with the FPPC representatives, it's my
intent to amend the measure to do three things: one would be to
authorize a small appropriation, probably not more than
twenty-five dollars. Twenty-five thousand to thirty thousand of
those funds would act as seed money for preparation of the first
set of videotapes.
Next, the commission would be given the authority to
prepare two sets of tapes, one for state elected officials and
the other for local officials. I think, really, that the
distinction, I think that they both could be covered for the same
film. I don't think it's that different if you're running for
office.
Number two, finally, the course material would focus on
elements of the Political Reform Act, the related regulations
which are most often violated. I think that people come from the
business world, where certain practices are quite common, and
they may have been in one particular industry where certain
things are done routinely which in the political world are viewed
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as inappropriate.
I'm not suggesting that our behavior is
better, necessarily.
It's different.
I think that many of the
people who first get into office get into trouble right away
because they don't understand that it's different.
I'm not
saying that ours is better.
I'm just saying that we have a
different set of rules and are really, trustees or boards of
governors, if you will, of a different kind of corporation, a
public corporation.

•

This is a big job. We have 4,000 special districts in
the State of California, many of whom have elected officials. We
have a thousand or more school districts with elected officials,
fifty-eight counties, six hundred cities, and of course, a
hundred and twenty Members of the Legislature, plus
constitutional officers, and much of what is written about
activities, legal officials, are things that those of us in
higher elective office, in the sense of working for the state,
are probably aware of as inappropriate. But I think it's
possible to list out those most common mistakes, really, that
people make and make them aware of them and tell them if they do
those things there will be consequences.
I think that also it would help in the prosecution side
because you'd be able to demonstrate that the individual actually
saw the film on a particular date and was made aware that certain
activities are inappropriate, and I think that this would
mitigate with the juries, at least. Also, those who refuse or
don't take this course, that fact could also be used against them
in a campaign, which would have a very salutary effect in terms
of numbers of people who would watch it.
Beyond that, I've been pretty silent on what ought to be
in the report, other than the most common violations of the act
or criminal cases or whatever, and in the realtor's videotape,
which is what this is really modeled after.
It gets into a lot
of questions relative to philosophical ethical considerations
which I think are important, and I would leave those kinds of
points to the discretion of the select committee.
I think that, as I've observed management in the private
sector and where it's going, one of my favorite comments was
attributed to Peter Drecker, when he talks about the effective
executive is one who gets the right things done, and that's, I
think, an important thing. What are those right things to do?
That's really our challenge. What are those? How should we
allocate our time, resources, and efforts to further the public
good or the general good, and that's essentially what this is all
about.
Some of the more recent people writing on management and
the authors of Megatrends have gone into further elaboration in
some of the books, one that no particular parallel should be
drawn by this, but I think it's called Managing Chaos, deals with
the question of -CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Is that Peters' book, Thriving
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on Chaos?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER: Thriving on Chaos, right. We're
certainly not thriving, and the question is, we're certainly not
handling it too well. But in any event, he does talk about the
passion in certain industries for customers -- well, in our case
our customers are the public -- and we have to make sure that
what we're doing is to promote their interests as we perceive
them, and the satisfaction of our customers, I think, is probably
at a low ebb as far as this body is concerned.
I think that it can be turned around.
turned around in terms of our -- without really
- communicate with them, which is now impossible,
difficult to visualize. We were constrained by

How it can be
being able to
is a little
this.

I just produced a report on the pensions. We have
several hundred contracting agencies under PERS alone, a thousand
under STERS, and yet we're not able to make copies of the report,
that we prepared on the pensions that they contributed to,
available to them, so it will take us, within the present limits,
probably four or five years to get the report out to people who
are affected by these huge swings in the stock market and
investment.
So I understand that probably the course is a good idea.
Maybe that is a way that the public can see that we're
serious about this. It would be helpful to all of us to have
some guidance, some moral compass, if you will, in terms of how
we conduct ourselves. A lot of things come up on a day-to-day
basis that are new and unique. Only yesterday in terms of the
Legislature's role in trying to bring the parties together in the
Los Angeles Unified School District dispute raised questions that
I couldn't even imagine.
And every day with hundreds and
hundreds of bills and thousands over a career, questions that are
presented that have never been experienced by people because
they're new ideas, so it would be helpful to have some touchstone
or reference of what is considered appropriate around, and even
if it has to be in the negative form.
I overheard the comments in Ms. Killea's presentation
there. It seemed to me that the "we" could be removed and made
"I" and then ask people to sign it. That would tie that together
a little bit better.
I don't know that I buy all of the -- I mean I think
that the principals are pretty good. I don't know that the list
was totally comprehensive. I notice that there were ten of them
like the Ten Commandments or the Bill of Rights, if you will,
type of approach, so I don't know whether ten is an appropriate
number. I think basically it just gets down to -- I like the
idea of civility, and I don't see as much civility in the
hearings as we ought to have. It obviously has an impact when
people spend $400 to come up here from Los Angeles then are
treated rudely. I think that needs to be brought into it, that
we should encourage and make allowances for the fact that people
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are not congressional presenters.
As to this idea of having legislators not be able to
lobby for a year after they leave office, most of the ones that
leave office I've observed to be attorneys, and they are
basically appointed to the bench-- and that's the reason they're
in the Legislature now -- an awful lot of them at substantial pay
raises.
I don't know whether he means to extend it that
legislators would not be allowed to return to the bench, which I
think is truly a conflict of interest because they're put in a
position of playing ball with whoever the governor is, subject to
the appointment process.

•

Another question arises out of the fact maybe we should
be encouraging people to leave and become lobbyists rather than
discouraging them so we have shorter terms.
I mean, turnover
seems to be something that they want.
If we make it impossible
for people to be economically able to support themselves they're
going to stick around long enough to where they don't have that
problem, it's solved by death, or their pension is maxed out, and
I don't know that we necessarily want to encourage people to
serve beyond fifteen years or so or twelve years or ten years or
if there's some magical number.
I know that in the judiciary, we
encourage justices to retire at age seventy, and we penalize them
for not doing that by reducing their pension. Perhaps that kind
of approach would be appropriate, that your pension would be
maxed at ten years, and for every year after that it is
diminished so that we really get people who are sacrificing on
behalf of the public good, and maybe we could have them walk
around with very painful shoes on so that this job could hurt
even more.
A lot of these comments remind me of a sister I had in
Catholic school who was decrying the fact that ...
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

It's a lot like that, right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER: It is. This sister was really
upset that they had gone to padded kneelers.
She felt that the
kneelers should not be padded, that kneeling in church ought to
hurt, and I seem to sense a certain amount of that in what's
coming through here. But this question of not being able to go
into lobbying or some other activity, and I would suggest that
after ten years or so up here it's really hard to go back to what
your career was. Most of those people whom you were working with
have been advanced beyond where you were, and the last thing they
want to see is your jolly face on the scene competing with them
for future promotions. They got rid of you, as it were, by
agreeing to serve on your committee to get you out of the
corporate promotion ladder, and now you're going to come back
like a bad penny.
So I would suggest that we ought to be
encouraging people to bail out of here as fast as possible in
order to get new ideas, more ideas from different people, so this
idea that you shouldn't be able to lobby for a year, I think, is
probably counterproductive
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Any questions?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER: Could I -- will this bill ever
be heard for a vote? I mean, I just wondered about that. I've
been to two of these now, and I've got to tell you, John, I
really enjoy these conversations and it's been really pleasant.
I don't get any reaction to it. It gets to be my one person's
view of how things are, and I kind of like these chats from time
to time, but what exactly is going to happen to my bill?
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Well, all the bills have been
held pending our developing a proposal which will go to the house
before summer break. After that time, all the bills will be
heard, I believe, in our respective committees.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ELDER:

After summer break?

Okay.

In

1989.

CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: That's our expectation.
Bill,
I've got to go make a presentation to a budget committee. I'm
going to turn it over to you. Mr. Sher is up next, and last, Mr.
Burton.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Well, Mr. Chairman, with
your permission, what I'm going to do -- I'm going to hold Jim
Ashford to myself and my comments until you get back because I
would like you to hear them, and most of members of the
committee, so if you're going to leave, I'll
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
fifteen minutes.

Okay.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
Byron Sher.

I'll be back, I think, in

Who's next?

John Burton,

ASSEMBLY MEMBER BYRON SHER: I'm a carry over from a
previous agenda, Assembly Lancaster. The committee closed down
before my bill was reviewed. It won't take long because Mr.
Elder -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Why don't we proceed because
you're a carry over, and that's great.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER SHER: Well, my bill is AB600, and Mr.
Elder kind of set it up. If this were a situation where you were
calling for opposition witnesses, you could incorporate by
reference Mr. Elder's last comments about a revolving door
because my bill addresses that suggestion and, indeed -please.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Hold on just a moment
Mr. Sher, I do not see AB600 listed.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER SHER:

It's a carry over from a previous

agenda.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

Will you refresh my memory
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of what AB 600 does?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER SHER: AB 600 is a bill modeled after
the federal revolving door law which would prohibit both
ex-employees of the executive branch and the legislative branch
from coming back and lobbying, particularly the committees,
unless it were extended to cover the Members of the Legislature
and legislative employees as well.

•

Senator Marks had a companion bill last year that did
just that, and so these bills were going through the two houses.
In any event, it didn't pass last year, so this year, in order to
address that question, I've extended the bill so that it covers
not only ex-employees of the executive branch but also
ex-employees of the legislative branch and Members of the
Legislature themselves, and it would have the twelve year -twelve month prohibition -- twelve years is a little excessive
the twelve month prohibition against -- in the case of Members of
the Legislature coming back and lobbying, trying to influence
legislation is the way it's put, committees or Members of the
Legislature with respect to employees who are not members, they
would be restricted from lobbying.
Two things though. First of all, they can only be
restricted from lobbying those people they were employed by or
Members with whom they had substantial contact, and that would be
a prerequisite -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
constitutional officers as well?

Would AB 600 apply to

ASSEMBLY MEMBER SHER: Not as it's currently written.
It only applies to designated employees of the executive branch,
designated employees of the Legislature, and Members of the
Legislature.
That's something I'd be prepared to consider although
I'm not sure that there's a problem there as far as for example
the lieutenant governor coming back and ex-lieutenent governor
and lobbying the Legislature. Perhaps that's a problem.
If
that's a problem I'd be prepared to address it, but as it's
presently written, it's limited to those groups I've mentioned.
I don't know if you want me to make the case for it.
I
think the case is fairly obvious, and I noticed currently, as we
see, calls for reforms in editorial comments and elsewhere,
inevitably you see included the need for some sort of revolving
door limitation at the state level just as we have at the federal
level, and I think it's an idea whose time has come, and Mr.
Lempert, that is his own bill on the subject. But as I say, this
is the second go round for me.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Thank you, Mr. Sher.
I
appreciate it very much. The committee has the ability, as
you're aware -- the committee is holding these bills until the
conclusion of our -- and then I guess these go to the floor, is
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that correct, or go back to where they're supposed to go.
you, Mr. Sher, we appreciate it very much.

Thank

Mr. Burton.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER JOHN BQRTON:
Could you send me a prepared text?

I missed your comments.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Mr. Burton has chaired a
task force the Speaker put together on not just this aspect but
other aspects of -ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON: We're going to eliminate that
thing with last second amendments.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Assembly Rules Reform, and
one of the proposals in this, which is Recommendation Fourteen,
dealt with development of a committee in the Assembly to affect a
code of ethics committee.
For your information, Mr. Burton, you remember I wrote
you a letter on this in November, and I have a lot of sympathy
for your approach. I have some suggestions on modifications and
as soon as Mr. Ashford is through I will make those suggestions,
so why don't you proceed now and state your case?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON:
Mr. Lempert.

Thank you, Mr. Lancaster and

Basically my recommendations, or task force
recommendation, was taken from the Committee on Official
Standards of Conduct from the United States House of
Representatives. If there is not -- in there according to your
rules -- if there was no recommendation for appropriate
sanctions, that should have been in there. I'm trying to
remember the reason why we may have left that vacant.
I'm concerned that the only thing that I'm aware of that
are in our rules right now is a motion for censure, which can
almost be done and was almost done last year. Whether you could
say it was with good cause or with caprice -- that somebody on
the floor could take exception to someone's words and move almost
immediately to a censure motion and then by the majority of those
present and voting. I think that's rather severe.
I think that we addressed it somewhere in HR 7, was that
censure motions would have to come with a recommendation from the
Ethics Committee, and would have to be done by a vote margin and
I think a censure -- maybe that's because my experience in the
House is -- I consider it's a very severe punishment.
Our punishments in the house went from an informal
letter that you shouldn't have done that, you showed bad judgment
and you shouldn't do it again, to a reprimand, which was a public
matter -- voted by the full House to a censure, and censure in
the House meant that you could not, if you were a chair of a
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committee or a subcommittee,
for the term of the
if you were
your colleagues
or a subcommittee,

no longer hold that honor
you were censured. Then
and came back, and if
a
of the full committee
make that happen.

That's why I bel
that the House, the Assembly, needs
other measures than that. The most severe in the House of
Representatives was, of course, an expulsion which i f - - I'm
trying to remember whether
two thirds or a majority.
During the time that I was there, no one was expelled, but people
that were, in fact, committed felonies, resigned from the House
as opposed to facing expuls
But I believe that our rules
should reflect a censure that I think should first be sent to the
Ethics Committee and should take a vote of forty-one Members of
the House. Reprimand should be a second thing, though that also
should come from the
Committee or would emanate, and then,
thirdly you could have an informal -- or somebody did something
that they shouldn't do, and basically that deals in the House
kind of with transgress
, with campaign funds.
If I were to
take my campaign funds
lend them to myself to buy a car and
some kind of deal like
, that's really not an egregious
offense but something that people shouldn't do, so those were the
recommendations of our task force.

•

I do not
what the law is on expulsion. Two-thirds
in this House, too?
, and I think again that should -- well,
I guess two-thirds vote could come anywhere, but our present rule
on censure
, I think, a dangerous thing.
If a majority Member
of our House gets mad at a minority Member -- and as I read the
rule you could almost move to censor somebody immediately -- and
in the heat of battle, I just think that would be a very
dangerous precedent, and that's kind of a tough political load
for someone to carry. At the time it was made last session, or
considered, it was really because a Member referred to the
governor as an "SOB," which maybe or maybe not was conduct
unbecoming a Member.
If you were running for reelection, your
opponent could say you were censured by the Assembly and maybe
the first one in the last twenty~five years. Somebody might
think you were guilty of child molestation as opposed to, maybe,
just intemperate remarks. That, I think, that would be bad if we
could -As long as I'm here, I'd like just comment on the
special prosecutor, independent counsel deal that these bills, by
Isenberg, Killea, myself, and Keene. These bills are in the
committee on Public Safety that I chair. I'm kind of --mine was
just a skeleton bill -- I'm kind of in concert with the Isenberg
theory, although I believe it should probably go beyond state
officials and maybe, for some reasons, local public officials.
I
favor the process for setting up a special prosecutor or
independent counsel the way it's now done at the federal level
because I think it's very dangerous if you create an ongoing
office of special prosecutor. That office will then be under
pressure to justify its existence. Therefore, they will be under
pressure to start
valid or not. The reason
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for an independent prosecutor, the special prosecutor or
historically, at the federal level, was you had no one to look
into the executive branch of government because the Attorney
General of the United States is an appointee of the chief
executive, and part of the executive cabinet,
the executive
part of the government. They couldn't real
investigate
themselves, so that was created at the time of Watergate to
investigate the executive branch of government, people in the
executive branch of government, specifically Ed Meese, sometime
President Reagan and maybe or maybe not George Bush, I don't
remember.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
president.

Sometimes president or sometime

ASSEMBLY MEMBER BURTON: Both. Sometimes president, but
President Reagan used to say, and especially Ed Meese, "Well, you
ought to have this for the legislative branch." Well, the
legislative branch was not in conflict and not being investigated
by itself for crimes. During the time I served in the House of
Representatives, I can think of close to a dozen Members of the
House and Senate who were indicted by the Department of Justice,
convicted by the Department of Justice and sent to jail, and
removed from their public trust.
I really think that was a
specious argument given by Meese, saying, "Well, they did it to
me. Why don't they do it to them."
I think, in some regards, the same argument can be made
here, that the attorney general is independently elected, could
be a Democrat, could be a Republican. He is not controlled by
the Legislature, not controlled by the executive, and in theory
what we have in place now is sufficient. However, I think there
are times when, because of the political nature of it, where the
attorney general, if he doesn't move on something it's political
favoritism.
If he does move on something, as he did in the case
of one of our colleagues, it's a political hatchet job. Maybe it
just gets that special area out of the
itical arena.
But I
think what's important is to have the process where one could be
set up as opposed to having an office.
It's like the Strike
Force on Organized Crime, the Department of Justice. Every time
they came up for budget, to go out and arrest five or six people
with Italian surnames as kind of a big criminal conspiracy -Costra Nostra -- and nobody ever quite knew what happened to
those prosecutions, but they always came at budget time.
I think
it's dangerous to have an agency that
to justify its
existence has to go out and find wrong-doing whether it exists or
not.
And lastly, just as I talk now, maybe or maybe not,
there's merit to extending it to local officials. Maybe in
select cases.
I do know now that under our laws, the attorney
general can move in and try certain cases if they don't think the
D.A. can do it.
I think what we're dealing with is not so much a
matter of law and order and "preventing wrong-doing."
I think
what we're really trying to deal with -- which is a bad thing to
do -- is the perception, as opposed to the reality, that somehow
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people in government can commit crime and get away with it.
I
don't know anyone in government who has committed crimes that
were brought to light and has been able to get away with it. One
of the problems is
don't understand is what is conduct
unbecoming, if you
, or unethical conduct, and what is
against the law. Certain things that people should or shouldn't
do that may be questionable, but they're not against the law, and
it's not because the law's not strong or covers less subject
matters. As chairman of the committee that I serve on, there are
enough laws on the books to put enough people in jail for
everything they do for varied lengths of time, so I do think that
a special prosecutor process has merit.
Our committee's waiting for -- I guess out of respect
for this chairman of this committee's request to hold on-- but
we also -- it would be our intention to work our will on any
legislation that comes in that may or may not reflect the
thinking of this committee, and I've got a bill in there.
But
as far as I'm concerned, Phil Isenberg or somebody else can have
the honor, the glory, and the worry of seeing it through the long
tedious process, and that's enough about it.
I comment just quickly, or you, John, I think it's
important on the other thing. My ethics thing was patterned
roughly after the House Ethics Committee.
I do believe that we
should have other standards other than just the censure, that
there should be a reprimand and maybe if there's an informal slap
on the wrist to somebody, that could be their reprimand.
I do
think either reprimand or censure should come from this committee
to the floor and I think should require forty-one votes to
censure somebody. Right now, if you can remember the incident
with our colleague, Mr. Floyd, there was danger at that point of
a censure motion being voted on the floor that may or may not
have carried by a majority of those voting for what was basically
an intemperate comment and an untoward remark, and not really, in
my judgment, censurable conduct.
Because, again, a censure in the House of
Representatives or the United States Senate means if you're
chairing a committee or subcommittee, you're immediately removed
for the rest of that session and then, if your colleagues are
willing, and your constituents are willing for you to be
reelected, then you can put yourself in contention for such a
thing.
But I think censure comes with a strong connotation and
is our only -- except expulsion sanction.
I think that's the way
it is now.
I think it's dangerous because all you have to do is
be mad at somebody to get majority vote to censure somebody and
let him explain to his constituents. And if it's the only one in
the last fifty years, and let him or her explain that it's really
no big deal, all I did was say some bad words.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Burton,
you know, Mr. Burton's right on target, and actually, what you
need is a moment of hesitation, if you will, because the House
itself could be in an emotional state where they would censure.
Where in a moment of reality, in a period of time, in fact, it
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within our offices and among the
and provide resources,
, and
would codify the existing
different D.A. 's off
our off
and the district
relationship that's
prosecutions are handled.
It's
attorneys, with respect
local officials, that there would
intended that, with
be support only. With
to the statewide officials, there
off
as well.
could be involvement of

•

The second port
of the bill is the creation of a
special prosecutor option, the one that's received most attention
in terms of the press.
I want to clarify a couple of things in
terms of what the existing state of law is with respect to the
appointing of a special prosecutor. I think there's a couple of
items mentioned in the outline of issues that was handed out
today that it's a little more subtle and some of them are
slightly inaccurate in terms of what can be done now with respect
to the special prosecutor.
The system that we have now, that is, all prosecutions
are essentially handled on a local level by local district
attorneys. That's our constitutional framework. The attorney
general has supervisory authority. Our office exercises that
authority under circumstances where an issue may have been looked
at by the district
the first instance and then no
action is taken and is
to our office for possible
action. The second is a situation where the district attorney is
legally disqualified from acting, and our office is legally
responsible for taking over that. There are legal standards for
disqualification that are much more stringent than the common lay
person may think
terms
what constitutes a conflict of
interest for disqualific
It's set forth in the penal code,
and there's a body of case load that's been developed.
I have a
book in our off
, but I'll share it with your consultant, that
goes through the case law in various different areas, and
essentially, the courts are quite strict in allowing a
disqualification to be made of a sitting district attorney.

I

Nevertheless, there are approximately 250, 300 cases a
year in which district attorneys throughout the state are
disqualified.
In those instances, our office attempts to handle
those prosecutions. In certain instances, Government Code
Section 12553 allows our off
to employ special counsel, but
that is restricted to a situation where the D.A. is, in fact,
legally disqualified, and it comes to our office in that context.
Implied special counsel means that we appoint special
counsel ourselves. There is no court appointment mechanism or
anything like that. So in terms of a situation where you're
worried about removing the taint from a possible conflict of
interest, 12553 really doesn't do it because the issue just
becomes who's appointed as opposed to whether the attorney
general him or herself would be handling the prosecution.
The other possibility, where a special prosecutor can be
appointed or someone called "special counsel" is in a situation
which is referred in the handout about the grand jury, Penal Code
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MR. WOOCHER:

That's right.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: In other words, a special
prosecutor from the outside, in effect, is the last case.
MR. WOOCHER: That's right. Now, mind you, the other
thing that our bill would require is that the special prosecutor,
in fact, not be somebody from outside but be somebody from inside
the current law enforcement community and prosecutory community,
by appointing a district attorney from a county in which there's
no involvement. So the case of that individual would be made by
the court, taking into consideration the factors of availability
and things like that. Our view is that once you start to go
outside the system, first, you have problems in getting qualified
people. Either it will be incredibly expensive if you're not
going to restrict their pay, or if you do restrict their pay,
you're just going to find a dearth of people who are able to
handle it and willing to do so, and that has, to some extent,
been our experience when we've attempted to employ special
counsel under our existing statutory authority. We typically
will go to other district attorney's offices as a first crack,
because you can't get outside people to do those kinds of jobs.
Second, you get a consistency in terms of expertise,
familiarity with these kinds of issues and charging regularity.
That is, you have someone who's making these kinds of
prosecutorial judgments consistently and will treat this case
according to the same standards that are being applied to others,
rather than somebody who comes in on a one-shot basis and they,
just unconsciously or just out of ignorance, have a bias in one
direction of another that wouldn't be shared in the normal course
of a prosecutor's decision in terms of the -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: This procedure would apply
on referrals, for example, from the Fair Political Practices
Commission, or as the case may be, the same procedure would
apply?
I

MR. WOOCHER: Under our system, it would not be -- I
mean, if the Fair Political Practices, for example, was
conducting an investigation, and they determined that they
thought there was possible criminal conduct as well, they would
refer that, as they do now, to a district attorney.
If the
district attorney felt that either they were unable to handle it,
for whatever reason, want to kick it up to the attorney general,
and the attorney general felt that it was a case that was
suitable for a special prosecutor to handle, then the mechanism
could come into play, exactly.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: We have Gary Mullin with us
from the California district attorneys.
I'm sorry. Did you want
to comment on this particular issue? Is he still here? Where is
he?
Well, thank you very much.
I'm sure you're very aware
that there's a measure now under consideration of the committee
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for the final product, so we'll see how it develops.
Lucy? Okay, you have AB 410? Right. Lucy.

Who's next?

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Yes. Mr. Chairman, and
Members, this sets up -- there are some similarities, actually,
but there are some differences. This bill sets up a mechanism
for a panel of judges to appoint an independent counsel to
investigate specific political crimes by certain high level
government officials -- just not crimes across the board. But
these would be specific political crimes and also would create
the Special Crimes investigation Unit within the attorney
general's office to assist district attorneys with their local
investigations of political corruption.
In other words, if this
is an area in which they need some help, we do not interfere with
the district attorneys' pursuit as long as they're willing and
able to do so. The law doesn't go into effect on that.
The bill is supported both by the Center for Public
Interest Law and Common Cause, two main public interest groups
involved in this issue. This bill -- what the attorney general
has determined through a preliminary investigation which is -there you can see that more or less final channels through which
requests for investigation might come, the FPPC, the Ethics
Committee, and the Judiciary Committee, and the Ethics Committee
being, however, we end up with the Joint Committee or whatever we
have as a tool. They go into the preliminary investigation.
If
a citizen has a complaint, there is a threshold of fifteen days.
If it's clearly a spurious complaint, the case is closed and that
is done very quickly.
But if there seems to be some possible
cause of further investigation, then it goes into the preliminary
investigation stage. That's screen-out what might be just
complaints rather than actual -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Let me see if I understand
that. The complaint is filed with the attorney general. He has
fifteen days to determine whether or not it's worth proceeding,
is that right?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
investigation, even --

With the preliminary

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So if he says nothing within
the fifteen day period, then I assume they don't proceed, is that
right?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: No. Actually, they have to
report back to the complainant, that's correct, isn't it. Steve
Barrow, with the -MR. STEVE BARROW: My name is Steve Barrow with the
Center for Public Interest Law, which is supporting Assemblywoman
Killea on this bill. And the threshold of this bill, like the
federal system, is to provide time to look to see if there is a
credible source making the accusation and whether there's
specific information to point to the crime that fits that
statute, and then, if both of those issues are found, then it
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automatically goes over to ninety days.
If the attorney
general's office is unable to disprove the specific accusations
or not able to say, "This is not a credible person," then it's
still gets kicked into the preliminary investigative stage. So
you have two safeguards for the public that things can't stop at
the point for unwarranted reasons. They must go on to the next
phase.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: How does it work -- not that
a citizen has a complaint and brings it to the attorney general's
Office? Do you know how it's done?

•

MR. BARROW: Well, as we understand -- Fred should
probably come up and talk about this, but one of the things that
we're concerned about -- and we're backing this bill because of
the discretionary aspect -- that both D.A. 's have and A.G. 's to
not pursue a case, and that simply may be very innocent on their
part, but based on economics, may have a lot to do with these
that are difficult cases. And we may need to
we have, maybe,
five murders or four rapes or some drug cases on our desk, and we
may not want to go after it, so they can shut it down then.
MR. WOOCHER: Yes. The existing policy of our office is
if a complaint comes to us officially, we determine which
district attorney has jurisdiction over that, we refer it down to
them, and then we monitor their progress on that case.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
course, vary from county to county.

The priorities, though, of

MR. WOOCHER: That's right, and of course, that's what
they're elected to do, to address those points.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: So then, actually when you go
through the preliminary investigation, then if there's no
evidence that would warrant pursuing it, then the case is closed,
and the attorney general, in this case, reports back to the body
requesting the complaint that there is no complaint, and that
closes the deal. So there's a word back.
In other words,
there's something coming back saying there's insufficient
evidence to pursue this, or there's evidence against whom you're
pursuing, whatever might be the case.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Would this measure, in its
present form, preclude a district attorney from acting?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

No, not at all.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Because there are certain
offenses which, I presume, are not listed.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

That's not a complete list.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Bribery, conflict of
interest, things of that nature.
If they went to the local
district attorney first, he would not have to kick it up to the

Page 237
attorney general, in effect, would he?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: No, they can carry it
themselves if they feel they're able to and want to, they can
pursue it themselves.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So this procedure that
you're outlining in your measure would only apply to the attorney
general's office.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: That's right. We're just
taking the attorney general's part because that is where we're
putting some variations into it then, I think, similar to the
other one. If the preliminary investigation indicates that there
are serious charges here that should be pursued, it goes to the
panel of judges.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Then this would, in effect,
remove the attorney general from the picture totally at this
point.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Yes, yes.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: The panel would be -- are
they Supreme Court Justices, or just
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Yes, we'll have a Supreme Court

Justice.
MR. WOOCHER: Right, who appoints the judicial counsel.
The Chief Justice of the Supreme Court appoints three judges to,
at this time, a panel.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: And they, in effect, become
kind of a grand jury in a sense, because they make a
determination whether there is any validity to the -ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

Their function is just to

appoint.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

So they can't --

ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: So the attorney general has
made the determination of whether or not it's worth passing on to
them to have an independent counsel appointed.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So if the justices are
unable to stop it at this point, their function is to appoint a
special counsel?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
enter into the ---

That's correct.

They don't

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Does your measure have any
criteria for a special prosecutor or whatever the case may be?
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

That's correct.

MR. BARROW: But
bill, after grand jury
, if an independent
appointed and after the grand
jury's
and they do dec
that there is nothing to indict -because of the kind of people involved with these cases are
elected high-level public officials -- there's most likely going
to be some leakage of information that there's an investigation
going on. We have in this bill, that even if there's not an
indictment at the end of the grand jury work, the air is cleared,
that a neutral statement is made that there was an investigation
into a certain person, there was nothing there to indict, there
is not a problem, and they clear the air.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Rather than just walking away
from it and leaving a question mark, then, as you indicate, we
limit it to simply the crimes involved with the office. In other
words, if the office holder is accused of some kind of a crime
that's outside of his office-holding responsibilities, that would
be handled through the regular courts. Then we include all
statewide elected officials appointees of the governor, except
municipal, superior, and appellate court judges. This is all.
As you can tell from all the different things that all these
bills have had, there are a lot of points of concurrence and some
differences, and that's a very fluid situation right now.
I
think we want to try to come up with absolutely the best system
we can that provides what we're looking for in terms of a balance
between a serious pursuit of any alleged illegality as well as
protection for the individuals.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
read this now, I
particular

So what
're saying in
apply
particular
can only apply to elected

state off
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
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ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA: Mr. Chairman, one for the
s,
actually, I initiated
cooperation of both the Center for
Cause, and they have done a great
on. I just want to indicate that I'm
somewhere along the line if we
we won't but it's a Killea bill, rather
an awful lot of work, and
working with them on it, and
I
appreciate it.
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in-house

just wanted
, you
to

your thoughts on a stronger
to what Congress has and
counsel idea.

MEMBER KILLEA:
remove it somewhat
from that in the sense that
, the Ethics
Committee, as the peer
anybody
may
having a misconduct
problem, could take action, but it
't simply their decision
completely. You have the FPPC and some of the judiciary
committees. We threw that in as a possibility of a source of
some concern, too, as well as an ethics -- now that the final
ethics committee form would take, but my feeling is that the
present structure in Congress
not the most desirable one.
It's better to have a semi-independent person pursuing it rather
than a counsel for the committee.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT:
investigation.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:
us as an ethics committee, the j
and actually pursuing it.

So we could be a source of the
Yes, but it would not be up to
committee, of taking it up

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: The present law -- and Mr.
Ashford's over there -- of the joint committee presently can turn
over their findings to the district attorney or to the attorney
general, but the present ethics committee only deals with
conflicts of interest or violations of law, but your measure only
deals with violations of law.
If the ethics committee, as
conceived, goes further than that, then it would not have
anything to do with this measure whatsoever because it would be a
conduct rather than a violation of
Your bill only deals
with violation of
ASSEMBLY MEMBER KILLEA:

's correct.

That's

correct
ASSEMBLY MEMBER

AB 113.

, we've got
some
, and perhaps what would be most helpful would be for
me to walk through it trying to
ight what are the
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Reform Act.
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The special prosecutor
sitting senior or retired

appointed by a panel of
court of appeals

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: The court has an opportunity
at that time to say, "No, a special prosecutor shall not be
appointed"?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG: No. The court has the
ability under my bill to do the following.
It cannot judge the
attorney general.
It doesn't sit there saying: "The attorney
general is right," or "The attorney general is wrong." Later on,
in the bill, however, if the attorney general seeks to dismiss a
special prosecutor, the Saturday night massacre episode, the
court has the ability to judge the adequacy of the reasons for
the dismissal and deny the dismissal.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG:

I see, or grant it?
It must be a dismissal for

cause.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: So the attorney general is,
in effect, removed from the final judgment on who the special
prosecutor should or should not be?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG: Yes, and here's the question.
In every criminal case, there's a matter of discretion. You
can't escape that. Somebody, somewhere, always makes a decision
as to whether to proceed or not. Here, what you want to do is,
when the attorney general thinks there might be a preliminary or
relatively -- it need not be a very high standard or preliminary
finding -- then you appoint another person who arguably has no
conflict of interest. This
the political overtone in the
case.
It's not a Democrat investigating a Republican or vice
versa, and then that special prosecutor does his of her own
investigation, retaining the
to make ultimate decisions
of prosecution or not.
Now, the next point,
I
's one that is
important. Ms. Killea was talking
disclosure.
But there
is so much at stake here and the attention of the press is so
high on anybody in government, it seems to me that although the
press is in favor of disclosing every complaint received from
anyone, regardless of substantial merit, when I held my press
conference, they made it very clear that they thought it was
improper, and the minute a letter came in they thought they
should be able to look at the letter and all the documents.
I
simply don't believe that.
I think this ought to be treated, as
with every other criminal investigation in the State of
California, I don't think these people ought to be treated
differently, which is the preliminary stages, prior to the filing
of a criminal charge. There ought not be permitted a reviewing
of information. Once a formal charge is filed under indictment
in this case, under this bill, the prosecutor's name and
statement of the case may be made public. At another time in the
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MR. WOOCHER:
1, Mr.
committee
is considering
things. You
, the
Committee on Joint
lative
s -deals with
financial confl
-interest -- either that
restructured and
scope broadened, I don't care, or that
should be abol
committee
, I don't care.
I do think,
,
it's important to
the
distinction
criminal activity and non-criminal activity.
I really do. I mean, it seems to me violations of the criminal
laws should be treated with the utmost severity by people who
know what they're doing, which means prosecutors. Violations of
cannons of ethics, rules of conduct, and so on, it seems to me,
ought to be
more appropriately by a different entity.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG:

Thank you very much.
Thank you.
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this, in fact, preempt district attorneys' from handling cases.
From our perspective, in reading that legislation, it's not clear
how that would be
As we
it,
attorney general
-- if somebody fi
example, simultaneously, as
is often the case
and
attorney
general, as
general would be
mandated to
ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG: Under my
11, I think that's
correct. Under Senator Keene's bill that's not correct. Under
Ms. Killea's bill
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:

I think

's correct,

under -ASSEMBLY MEMBER ISENBERG:

I think

'S - -

MR. WOOCHER: Well, Keene's bill, it probably wouldn't
arise, because the attorney general's policy would be to let the
D.A. 's have it
t. So I don't know if you could get -- I
don't see that
can get concurrent jurisdiction, so I think it
would, in fact,
the district attorney from handling this
kind of case at the outset.
Just two clarifications as well: one is, I know Senator
Keene's bill does, in fact, deal with only criminal violations.
If there's any ambiguity there --not civil allegations, or at
least not civil violations -- as is often the case, this kind of
allegation can be
civil or violations, and what you find,
I think, Assemblyman Isenberg is correct. There are very complex
challenging decisions that go into the determination of whether
to bring something civil or criminal, often between the judgment
as to somebody's state of mind at the time of the offense, and
that's the reason why we felt that these are best left with
existing prosecutors rather than going outside the system as to
who's to be making that kind of determination.
The other point that was raised by Assemblyman Isenberg
was with respect to the issuance of subpoenas. And one provision
that I believe also gave the prosecutors concern and gave us
concern with respect to that issue was that, as I read the bill,
during the preliminary investigation period conducted by the
attorney general,
's a prohibition against issuing subpoenas
or impaneling grand juries. Now, I know that's taken directly
from the federal law.
I'm not sure why that's in the federal
law, but our office would feel that
a real restriction on the
ability -that's probably a
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measures are with the committee until we come
report.
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The witnesses are down to Mr. Ashford and myself talking
to each other? Well, might as well make it a hundred percent.
Walt, come on up and give us -- let me kind of bring Assemblyman
Katz up to where we are.
We've gone through, again, with the exception of Mr.
Ashford and myself, relatively what the powers and authorities of
the Joint Ethics Committee presently are, and my recommendations,
which I do have a set of recommendations on what I feel should be
done relative to the broadening of authority, but unfortunately,
we don't have the committee with us, so do you have something to
say, Mr. Zellman?
MR. WALTER ZELLMAN:

•

Very little.

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
name for the record?

Would you please state your

MR. ZELLMAN: My name is Walter Zellman.
I'm the
Executive Director with Common Cause.
I know of your hearing
today, folks, this is on the special prosecutor issue.
I would
just say that Common Cause has at this point supported both the
Killea and the Keene bills. They are different. we expect that
those differences will and should be worked out. We do support
also the concept in both of those bills of having a special unit
within the attorney general's office of the political --someone
suggested that we make it some other term than political crimes
-- but we do believe there's some real value in that.
I would
just like to say that I'm glad, in a sense, I'm the last witness,
I take it.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
think, will be the last.

Mr. Ashford and myself, I

MR. ZELLMAN: Okay, well, we don't count you.
In a
sense, I, as also the first witness before this committee, and I
want to say that I think this committee has made a very unusual
and very fine effort to grapple with these issues over the last
few months. You have sat through fifteen or sixteen hours of
hearing on that, and that's very unusual for any subject of
legislation.
I realize the attendance today has been on the
downside, but most days it's been very good, and so I wanted to
commend you on that, but I do think there is a problem you have
to deal with on timing.
Deadlines are approaching.
I know some authors want
their bills moved. We would like to see if some of this can be
moved this year, so we're torn between your desire to go slow and
do it right and gather all the data and, on the other hand, the
public concern that something has to be done and should be done
quickly.
I would also urge you to find the best compromise you
can within that period. My sense is there is time.
If this
committee can meet once or twice more to draft a package, put it
before the house before the interim, and then give the Senate a
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month to grapple with

when they come back.

I
's some concern
or not some of
this should
statute or
It's been our
experience,
l to our
off
this
morning to check on
to see what
of it was, it's
been our experience nationwide and in
federal government that
legislative bodies
a very,
poor job of policing
themselves. It's understandable. It's a
lict-of-interest.
It's hard to go
and
leagues. So the
notion of putting a
things you've been hearing about in
rule, we would not advise 1 because it means
you're going to
have to sit in judgment on your
, and
's an incredibly
difficult thing to do, and the reality
almost never done.
So our advice would be to go for statutes wherever possible,
except where
are clearly more
to be done by
legislative
of conduct.
If it turns out that statutes are impossible because two
much of this is two thirds votes -- cannot be
thirds votes -you should consider the
approach, but
obtained, then
we would favor
statute approach with an opportunity of
of these matters.
external polic
Again, where policing them is not the issue, where
they're more sort of ethical, moral turpitude kind of questions,
then you might go to some of things you have
as censure,
sanction, reprimand
Legislature,
other than that,
we pre
the statute approach, and I
to make that clear.
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
Zellman. Mr. Zellman complimented this
thoroughness, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: I think
compliment, and I think Ms. Simmons, our
lot of credit for putting this together.

Mr.

iate the
, deserves a

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: Mr.
we are now
1
down to Jim Ashford and myself, I believe 1 on the agenda. I did
request of the staff that Gary Mullen, from the California
District Attorneys Association
given
opportunity to appear
at the next meeting because
not here, and they do have some
concerns about the attorney
's role
1 of this, and
that's bas
ly where we are.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Mr. Ashford now, then you.

MR. ASHFORD:
Joint
Legislative
outside.
At that point,
committee can appo
a very preliminary look
at the complaint initially. If
finds that it doesn't state
facts that are sufficient to constitute a violation of the Code
of Ethics, then it can just dismiss the complaint. Now, if the
committee, after looking at the complaint, determines that it
does sufficiently state facts, then
conducts a
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preliminary investigation, and
regard to this investigation are

of the

with

If, as a
committee determines there is a
allegations of the complaint,
on the matter, and after the
to make findings of fact then
recommend appropriate action on
house or the attorney general, the
Commission, and the district
summary of the authority of the j

•

ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
matter is,
it's misnamed.
It's not an ethics
ically a
conflict-of-interest committee.
It
of the
reform measures, I believe, back
1966, or
was, and
the purpose is to rule on whether or not a Member is,
fact,
involved in a conflict of interest, and that is a violation of
the law, also.
It could be under statute, so consequent ,
procedure is one I think we should be aware of, but what is clear
is this: a person will contact the committee and say, "This is
what I think happened or shouldn't happen," as is in the
individual circumstance. The committee is prohibited from
discussing this individual case at all until the point where Mr.
Ashford makes it -- we feel there
reasonable cause to believe
and proceed. Everything up until
conf
and
is not a public hearing.
The meetings are confidential. They
are not heard as a public hearing.
It requires,
any
initiation of any step before the hearing
s,
iating any
investigation of that sort, it requires two votes from each
house.
It's a six-member committee made
Republicans
and three Democrats.
If you cannot receive two votes of each
house, it's stopped right then and there.

•

The person that files
complaint
must be filed under certain c
One,
person must,
of course, believe the accusations are true, and secondly, they
must sign the complaint under penalty of perjury. The next step,
if that happens, is a determination by the committee and a review
by the Leg Counsel.
If the committee moves towards the stage of
the hearing itself, then the Leg Counsel no longer can play a
role in this approach.
Special
must
brought aboard,
and that means that takes Leg Counsel ~- the reason Leg Counsel
has to leave that aspect is because they
effect, an
attorney for the whole house.
past, but
has -- the last time it occurred,
was it,
?
-- as far as the hearing stage
, 1980?
MR. ASHFORD:
I believe not later than
think of two instances where that -ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER:
held by the Joint Ethics Committee to

I

can only
been
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committee itself, by a vote of two members of
house, may
institute proceedings without the offic
complaint by a
citizens,
basic
's
we are.
scope should
one.
Joint Ethics
sment
in
these
from individual
that we
feel that we are
of
state
law,
and
so,
other violat
combined,
in
the
code
narrowest sense,
themselves. But whatever occurs,
an,
made
should be
parties.

s Committee's
by the
the Member
, but I really
the area of
broadest and
the Members
committee
of both

I've outlined a selection process
how these
committee members are selected, and no Member should serve more
than two terms on this committee. The chairmanship and vice
chairman should rotate between parties equally. At the present
time, the chairman is myself. The viGe chairman
Bob Presley
of the Senate, which gives a bipartisan ef
, and we are in
constant touch with each other and in consultation on these
matters.
I believe a budget should be established for a broader
committee, I hope for a joint committee, Mr. Chairman, and I'll
tell you why. It
not
poss
I
the joint
committee
maintained
means that both
houses will
in establ
a cons
code of
conduct between the houses. I think i we can do that, that will
be great. But if
lure to bring about
broadening of
authority of the joint committee, I
, that the
assembly should proceed with its own
if that cannot
occur. In that case,
membership
by the
two-thirds vote of
rules committee, and
budget should be
adopted by the committee, which means staff
which does not
exist at the present time. And the staff
be of the legal
profession plus investigators to give us
, and that it
also should have the ability to proceed as it does, not to refer
cases to the attorney general or to the
attorney. And
if the wisdom of
legislature
to create a special
prosecutor, to trigger that mechanism too,
that power should
be broadened to cover violations of state
, under certain
accusations, and to develop a code of
, right along
with Mr. Burton's comments, if in
did
occur recently, that should be an
to this
committee, and
committee should
judgment
whether to
or not to
course,
ll
forty-one
votes, but I
ought to see the
discussion
before action. So basically that's
, Mr.
I would
like to propose that as a procedure, and I know we are not going
to make a final judgment today. I do
-- you do have copies
of my suggested procedure, and I think
a concept
that is overdue
should be done, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:

Okay.

Ms .

lea.

Thank you,

Bill.
KILLEA: Yes.
ASSEMBLY
investigation, now,
over that,
is
mean, we certainly
no
something that, of course, we in our independent counsel, we
were saying
about this
didn't deal with. But
automatical
the committee
recent situation that
but not necessarily an independent counsel type of activity, is
that correct?
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LANCASTER: No. As
committee goes
through its procedure, and we would deem the financial conflict
of interest as a violation of law, then the committee may, by a
vote, turn that over to
district attorney or the attorney
general for a prosecution.
The whole question before it reaches the hearing stage,
the public hearing stage, everything is confidential. Under the
federal system, I'm not quite sure exactly how that works, but
they have a broader scope, and I think this committee should have
broader authority, too, to be honest with you.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Okay.
I guess that concludes
today, and but for this one person who didn't show up today, it
concludes our information investigation gathering, and now our
task is to proceed to develop a proposal for the Assembly. And
what I've indicated publ ly as what I hope we can have is that I
hope we can have a proposal to submit to the Assembly before the
summer break, which is July 21, although I wish we would break
sooner. That's an awful long ways away.
I think, in terms of how to get out of it what we have
and begin to formulate a
what I'm thinking of doing is
1
sitting down with the -- Bob Frazee has been the senior
Republican in this matter,
Richard Katz
the senior as a
Democrat, and figure out what an agenda of the items from the
beginning to the end. That's from the beginning with a code,
conflict, disclosure, honoraria, with the middle being education,
and the end is prosecution or sanctions process, and bring an
outline back and have a meeting where we just simply talk about
it, get a sense of where
committee is, then ask Ms. Simmons
to go off and draft a proposal which
bring back what we will
work through and go up and down piece
piece and draft one that
recognizes everybody's particular concerns and balances all the
issues of the body in a cone
1
marketable
amongst our colleagues.
The way to get
on track -- and
Wally said he believes
statutes rather than
I concur with that, but I'm also thinking that
August, to put out some house rules so that we
year we have a set of
and our
in
would think-- and I haven't talked to anybody

terms of what
house rules -- and
I'd like us, in
show that this
order. Then I
about this, it's
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not a conclusion, but it's my own thinking -- that our report in
July, I would think, would be in the categories of code of ethics
and education and sanctions, and it would be in two parts: one
part is here's what we propose we adopt in August as a house
rule, and here's what we propose be a statutory picture of which
bills go forward to become and to proceed through house rules.
At least, as of August, we're clean. Then the bills can go
forward.
Ted's, yours, and others considered to the committee's
course of action -- but then, in that way, sort of to bill track.
It covers us for now, so we've done our work and put it into
motion in a way (inaudible) while the other one completes itself
in the second year of the term. Does that seem like a reasonable
ASSEMBLY MEMBER LEMPERT: If you could just check into
one thing.
Some people are bringing it to my attention that
there's actual timing rules related to amendments in a political
format where there's a twenty-day waiting period when no action
is taken.
So, if we could just check into that and see if it
might affect the timing of the bills at issue.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS: Well, if that's amenable, we'll
go on that track.
I will be meeting with Katz and Frazee next
week and have an outline to bring back to this group, I'd say
maybe in two weeks, and we can have a discussion on it and see
where we want to go with it.
I don't want to preempt that.
I
think in that discussion we have to think about all the things to
be weighted and figure out some way -- what's the best way to do
it.
CHAIRMAN VASCONCELLOS:
bJ ready, okay. Thank you all.

With that-- okay, okay, we'll
Committee's adjourned.

--oOo--
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Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
February 6, 1989
The Assembly Select Committee on Ethics has been created by
Speaker Willie Brown and charged by him with the responsibility
for undertaking a comprehensive study and developing a
well-balanced program on ethics for submission to, and hopefully,
adoption by the Assembly.
There is no more important matter before the Legislature.
Recently, the public has seen and heard so much evidence of what
appears to be unethical behavior in every walk of life that it is
losing confidence in our institutions, particularly in the
government's ability to perform fairly and competently.
The Select Committee's principal charge is to develop a code
of legislative ethics for members, staff, and advocates; to
create an education system and a system of adjudication; and to
ensure that the Assembly's standards for decision-making are
clear, consistent, and reasonable, and are equitably enforced.
Our process will be an open one. We hope and expect that
the public, interested groups, legislators, and other
governmental officials will participate in the series of hearings
which we will be holding around the State. We are a study and
development committee, not an enforcement committee. We hope to
design an elegant program which addresses both the reality of the
legislative process and the public's perception of it.
The Committee's goal is to create reform from the "inside."
Surely those of us who participate in the legislative process and
understand its many complexities can craft the best improvements.
Certainly the voters expect this of us, as they indicated by
passing both Propositions 68 and 73.
Concerns about ethics in government are not unique to the
California Legislature. Other states and the federal government
also are grappling with this difficult issue.
President Bush
has just appointed an Ethics Commission, saying that,
"We need
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an unambiguous c
serve the
between the
The President
four principles:

code of conduct, to ensure that those who
any actual or apparent conflict
public interests."
his Ethics Commission to adhere to

1. Ethics standards for public servants must be
tough enough to inspire public confidence;
2. they must be fair;
3. they must treat all three branches of the
government equally; and
4. they cannot be so restrictive that they
discourage people from entering public service.
These are good guidelines for our Select Committee to follow
too.
It's important to acknowledge that the conflicts that
government officials face are not unique, although they are more
public. Leaders who exercise collective power in other arenas,
such as business, the media, and religion, also face ethical
dilemmas and sometimes make bad choices. Unethical or illegal
actions are damaging to companies such as Beechnut, which sold
water to babies instead of apple juice; to financial institutions
such as Drexel Burnham, which recently plead guilty to criminal
fraud and agreed to pay a $650 million fine; to TV evangelists
who don't practice what they preach; and to scientists who
fabricate data, among others.
The manner in which the Legislature conducts its business is
vitally important.
I'm concerned that the public isn't "buying"
the Legislature's work products because they don't think they're
well made.
Ensuring the integrity of our decision-making
process, and restoring the public's confidence in our actions,
will make our decisions more defensible on policy grounds. An
ethical process will serve to counteract the damaging cynicism
which is weakening our democratic institutions.
Assemblyman Frazee shared with me the disturbing story of a
constituent who sent him a lengthy reform proposal into which the
constituent had put a lot of thought and effort. The man
concluded by saying that the Legislature would never adopt such a
proposal because of "special interests." That conclusion doesn't
do justice to the hard work many of us undertake in the public
interest to improve the quality of life in California.
We must ensure that the reality of serious, committed
legislative work isn't obscured by the suspect actions of a few
or by the more pervasive apparent conflicts of interest created
by our system of campaign financing.
The vast majority of public
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officials act with integrity and are proud to be held accountable
by the voters for their decisions and policies.
The Committee's first official action will be to adopt a
charter and a work plan. This last week staff and I met with
every member of the Committee and with the Speaker to discuss
this document. Today's draft has already gone through four
revisions and has been greatly improved by this collaborative,
cooperative process. The Charter sets out and clarifies the
Committee's purpose, while the work plan details the process we
will follow.

I
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Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
February 27, 1989

•

The purpose of our hearing today is to develop an agenda of
ethical concerns for our Select Committee on Ethics to address.
We have invited interested citizens, officials, and any other
persons to inform us about the ethical problems and dilemmas
which they have experienced or perceived in the operation of
state and local government. We intend to benefit from their
observations at the outset of our process.
I want to thank you who have come to testify for taking the
time to address this crucial issue. Your comments and opinions
will make an important contribution to our work.
Before we begin I would like to comment on the committee's
name -- the Select Committee on Ethics. Some persons are
confused about our purpose, and that may be because the word
"ethics" has several definitions. According to the dictionary,
"ethics" first of all means a system of moral principles.
Although our committee's work will be broadly based on
universally accepted principles, our attention is really focu·sed
on the second meaning of "ethics," which is "the rules of conduct
recognized in respect to a particular class of human actions or a
particular group."
This is an important distinction. The majority of
individuals who participate in the legislative process are, I
believe, acting in the public interest, and their actions fall
within the generally accepted moral principles of our society.
However, there is considerable disagreement over which specific
examples of conduct fall outside the ethical boundaries of
legislative or administrative behavior.
For example, there are ethical tensions inherent in the
democratic process. Legislators are expected to make decisions
based on the common good -- yet to represent their particular
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constituents. We are expected to exercise our own judgment -yet to defer to electoral decisions. We are elected by parties
-- yet we need to have cordial relations with our colleagues in
order to be effective. We are required to raise large amounts of
money from the private sector for campaigns -- yet to not be
overly influenced by those contributions once in office.
The public, and most legislators, are concerned that the
line between ethical and unethical behavior is too blurred in
government today. The goal of this committee is to clarify that
line by clearly defining appropriate standards of conduct for
participants in the governmental process.
In our charter, we
have stated that this effort will probably require new rules or
laws, an education system, and an enhanced system of
adjudication.
In the meantime, we are moving ahead to clarify existing
rules and obligations. A "plain English" comprehensive analysis
of existing laws and rules pertaining to legislators and staff is
currently being prepared and will be released at our April 3
hearing. This analysis will be used in a series of educational
sessions which the committee will sponsor for members and staff.
We intend to supplement, clarify, model, and re-enforce
appropriate standards of legislative conduct. We welcome your
contribution to this process.
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Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
March 15, 1989

•

The purpose of today's hearing is to provide committee
members the opportunity to discuss and evaluate the ethical
standards expected of persons in government, particularly those
of us in the legislative process, and to consider the
requirements that we may need to impose upon ourselves in order
to meet those standards. To facilitate this discussion, we have
invited three individuals with impressive backgrounds in
legislative ethics to share their wisdom and advice with us.
Mr. Brand is a former Counsel of the House of
Representatives and is now in private practice in Washington
D.C., specializing in civil and criminal litigation involving
corporate and government ethics.
Mr. Josephson is the founding president of the nonprofit
Joseph and Edna Josephson Institute for the Advancement of
Ethics. He brings a wealth of experience to his role, having
previously served as an educator, attorney, law professor and
businessman.
Mr. Jennings is an Associate for Policy Studies and
the former Co-Director of the Legislative and Representative
Ethics Project of the Hastings Center in New York. The Hastings
Center is a "think-tank" specializing in ethical issues. Mr.
Jennings co-authored the book "The Ethics of Legislative Life"
which all of the committee members have received.
We are grateful that Mr. Brand, Mr. Josephson, and Mr.
Jennings were able to take time from their busy schedules to
meet with us today.
At our last hearing we listened to the concerns which
various citizens, officials, and groups raised about the manner
in which the Assembly currently addresses some important ethical
questions. Since then, members of this committee have been
meeting with our colleagues to elicit their concerns. Each of us
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has been assigned 9 members to meet with, in an alphabetical,
non-partisan sample.
I would like to open this hearing by asking each member
of the committee to briefly summarize some of the important
points raised in their meetings. We can thus benefit from the
insights of participants in the Assembly's legislative process as
well from as our outside experts.
Our next hearings will focus on substantive reform
proposals. The schedule for those hearings is in your packet.
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Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
April 5, 1989
Our hearing today begins the second phase of the work of
our Assembly Select Committee on Ethics. We began the committee
by formulating a Charter describing our mission and goals and we
agreed on a work plan to achieve those goals.
In the first phase
of our work plan, which we have now completed, we sought input
from members of the public, public interest groups, other Members
of the Assembly, and nationally-known experts. Our hearings have
been informative and well attended and have identified a wide
variety of ethical concerns.
Beginning today, we have scheduled a series of hearings
in which we will listen to substantive reform proposals
addressing those ethical concerns. After completing this second
phase of our agenda we will progress into a third phase and
formulate our own proposal.
We are right on target on our work plan and are
proceeding on the difficult but important task of formulating a
complete proposal for consideration by the Assembly. We hope to
have a proposal to the Assembly by summer break.

•

Today we will discuss "Legislators' Financial Matters,"
including financial disclosure, conflict-of-interest, personal
use of campaign funds, and honoraria, gifts, and travel.
Assemblyman Frazee and I previously reviewed and agreed on the
list of bills and proposed rules whose authors we have invited
today.
In addition, representatives of the Fair Political
Practices Commission, the Attorney General, and several public
interest groups are here to discuss their proposals and to answer
committee questions.
During our discussion of financial disclosure, we will
consider requesting the Auditor General to audit the state's
existing financial disclosure system. This request follows from
our Charter, in which we expressed the need to know how well
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current laws are working. The findings won't be available until
next year, but we need to get the work started.
Our next two hearings will be similar in format to this
hearing. On April 26, we will consider proposals relating to
governmental employees, advocates, and post-employment lobbying
practices. On May 10, we will discuss enforcement structures,
including the creation of a standing committee and a system of
education and adjudication, a special prosecutor, and a code of
conduct. We may also hold another hearing. We will then
summarize what we have heard and begin developing our proposal.
Legislative Counsel has prepared a "plain English"
summary of the law affecting members and staff for each of our
hearings.
Jim Ashford, Principal Deputy, has been assigned to
our committee and has been attending our hearings. He will begin
each segment of today's discussion by summarizing for us the laws
we already have on the books. This will help us identify whether
we need new laws, improved enforcement of the laws we already
have, or both.
Our first witness today is Robert Fellmeth, Director of
the Center for Public Interest Law at the University of San
Diego. Bob was unable to testify at our last public hearing. He
will express some general concerns about legislative ethics and
discuss the reform proposals which his organization is
advocating. Welcome.
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Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
May 10, 1989
Our hearing today considers topics which have
particularly generated concern and comment in our previous
meetings and in the press: honoraria, gifts, and travel for
legislators; governmental staff ethics; and regulation of
lobbyists, particularly "revolving door" lobbying by former
governmental employees. We have invited public interest groups
and authors of reform proposals to come and discuss what reforms
they feel we should recommend to the Assembly.
Many observers feel that some current practices in these
areas project an appearance of conflict-of-interest and thereby
serve to diminish public confidence in our government, its
officials, and its policies.
I share this concern.
I believe it is recognized by the Legislature that we
need to draw a tighter and clearer line to define acceptable
behavior. The Speaker, for example, is on record as saying that
staff should not accept gifts, honoraria, or free trips from
lobbyists and that we need a staff code of ethics.
Recent press
articles detailing textbook publishers' gift and entertainment
practices for school officials suggest this may be a governmentwide problem requiring a government-wide response.
The Speaker has also proposed limiting honoraria and
outside income for Members when tied to a pay increase, assuring
legislators both the independence and the means necessary to
enable us to do our jobs well.
In addition, this may be a good time to improve the
State's current limited "revolving door'' lobbying restrictions.
Such legislation could become effective during the transition
period between administrations and apply to new officials, a
positive way to introduce reform.
Our Assembly Select Committee is committed to
undertaking an open and comprehensive look at legislative and
governmental ethics in the broadest framework.
We do not want to
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get caught in the trap of "scandal ethics," seeking a quick fix
for an immediate problem without a wider perspective. To be a
legislator is a high calling -- calling for much trust and
trustworthiness. We hope to make that standard explicit,
operational and credible.
That is why we are taking the time to listen, to consult
and seek advice, and to hear from every Member, concerned person
and group advocating reform proposals. Representative government
is a rare, delicate, and precious institution in human history,
well deserving of our full attention and careful and deliberate
reform.

MEMBERS

C!!~d ifnrttia 1Uegishdure
STAFF
CHARLENE WEAR SIMMONS
Principal Consultant
CYNTHIA COOKE
Associate Consultant
RENEE FRANCIS
Committee Secretary

~ssemblv ~elect
C!!nmmittee ntt ~t4i:es
11 00 J Street, First Floor
Sacramento, California 95814
(916) 324-8234

ROBERT FRAZEE
ELIHU HARRIS
RICHARD KATZ
LUCYKILLEA
BILL LANCASTER
TED LEMPERT
STAN STATHAM

ASSEMBL VMAN JOHN VASCONCELLOS
CHAIR

Opening Statement
Chairman John Vasconcellos
May 24, 1989
Our hearing today completes the third phase of our
Assembly Select Committee on Ethics' work.
We began by writing and adopting a Charter and work plan
defining our goals and specifying how we intended to reach them.
Our process has been open and non-partisan, carefully adhering to
the public commitments we made in our Charter.
In our second phase we took testimony from citizens,
public officials, and group representatives and surveyed our
membership to find out their concerns about governmental ethics.
We brought experts from around the country to challenge and
stimulate our thinking. These hearings allowed us to develop our
agenda of concerns.
Our most recent hearings have focused on specific areas
of concern and the reform proposals advocated by members and
public interest groups. Committee staff has prepared detailed
analyses of the associated issues and problems and has provided
committee members with comprehensive briefing books. Legislative
Counsel has provided "plain English" summaries of existing law,
which we will organize into a handbook for members and staff.
Our committee has requested that two standing
committees--Elections, Reapportionment and Constitutional
Amendments and Public Safety--hold 12 bills in our subject areas
pending the introduction of our committee proposal. The Assembly
has granted each of these bills a rule waiver from procedural
deadlines, allowing the bills to be heard later this year. After
today each of the authors will have presented their proposal to
our committee.
I appreciate the constructive contribution which
they have made to our committee's work and their cooperation in
facilitating our work process.
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Our next major task will be to draft a committee
proposal for presentation to the Assembly.
I encourage our
committee members to evaluate the information which they have
received and to begin to formulate priorities and proposals. We
will meet soon to begin deliberations regarding the contents of
our draft proposal, and we hope to begin our June 21 hearing with
a draft, working proposal.
(In the meantime the entire
Legislature will also be preoccupied with another extremely
important ethical question--how the state defines its priorities
in our budget.)
Assembly Member Lucy Killea has formed a District Ethics
Advisory Committee composed of 20 constituents with diverse
backgrounds. The committee has been discussing many of the
issues which we have considered here, particularly concentrating
on writing an advisory code of conduct. Ms. Killea will describe
that effort and product for us today.
Several of today's witnesses are actively engaged in
ethics efforts in other arenas. Tom Flood was recently appointed
Pacific Bell's first ombudsman. Pacific Bell has made ethics a
top priority in its 1989 business plan. The company has created
an ethics advisory panel, is re-writing its code of conduct, and
is requiring management courses in ethics. As ombudsman, Mr.
Flood is responsible for listening to and resolving ethical
problems which the company's employees may bring forward.
Bill Maier is Executive Director of the Bay Area Ethics
Consortium, which is affiliated with the Center for Ethics and
Social Policy at the Graduate Theological Union in Berkeley. He
is going to discuss ethics education with us today.
Welcome.

